
AGENDA

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WARRENTON
REGULAR MEETING

May 11, 2021-6:00 P.M.

Warrenton City Commission Chambers - 225 South Main Avenue

Warrenton,OR97146

Public Meetings will be conducted in the Commission Chambers with a limited seating
arrangement. To adhere to social distancing recommendations, meetings will now also be audio

and video live streamed. Go to https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/administration/pafie/live-stream-

public-meetings for coimection instructions.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. City Commission Meeting Minutes ~ 4.27.21

B. Monthly Finance Report - March 2021

C. Community Center Advisory Board Minutes - 2.25.21

Items on the Consent Calendar have previously been discussed and/or are considered routine.

Approval of the Consent Calendar requires a motion, a second, and no discussion, unless

requested by a member of the City Commission.

4. COMMISSIONER REPORTS

Proclamation - National Public Works Week-May 16-23^ 2021

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, anyone wishing to address the City Commission concerning items of interest

may do so. The person addressing the Commission must complete a Public Comment Card

and submit it to the City Recorder prior to the meeting. All remarks will be addressed to the
whole City Commission and limited to 3 minutes per person. Public Comments may also be

submitted by email to the City Recorder, at cityrecorder@ci.warrenton.or.us, no later than



5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. The Commission reserves the right to delay any action, if

required, until such time as they are fully informed on a matter.

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS - None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS

A. Consideration of the First Reading of Resolution No. 2600; Establishing the Use of
Consultants in the Review of Public Works Construction Permits

B. Consideration of Bid Award - Big River Construction; SW Alder Reconstruction, 2"

1st Street Project

C. Consideration of Second Reading of Resolution No. 2598; Spring Cleanup Costs

D. Considerationof Street Vacation No. 155; Resolution No. 2599 - Setting a Public

Hearing Date

E. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1251; Street Vacation No. 147Amendment

F. Consideration of Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1248; Homestay Lodging and
Vacation Rental Dwellings, and Ordinance No. 1250; Homestay Lodging Standards

G. Consideration of Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1249; Marijuana Businesses in

General Commercial (C-l) and General Industrial (1-1) to Conditional Uses

H. Consideration of Community Center Capital Reserve Fund and Facilities

Maintenance Fund Review

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS - None

9. GOOD OF THE ORDER

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION

11. ADJOURNMENT

Warrenton City Hall is accessible to the disabled. An interpreter for the hearing impaired may be requested
under the terms of ORS 192.630 by contacting Dawne Shaw, City Recorder, at 503-861-0823 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided.



MINUTES
Wan'enton City Commission

April 27, 2021
6:00 p.m.

Wan'enton City Hall - Commission Chambers

225 S. Main
Warrenton,OR97146

Mayor Balensifer called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the public in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Commissioners Present: Mayor Henry Balensifer, Tom Dyer, Gerald Poe, Mark Baldwin, and

Rick Newton

Staff Present: City Manager Linda Engbretson, City Recorder Dawne Shaw, Deputy City
Recorder Rebecca Sprengeler, Police Chief Mathew Workman, Public Works Director Collin
Stelzig, and Public Works Operations Manager Kyle Sharpsteen

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. City Commission Work Session Minutes - 4.13.21

B. City Commission Meeting Minutes -4.13.21

C. Warrenton Marinas Advisory Committee Minutes -~ 3.22.21
D. Police Department Monthly Statistics ~- March 2021

Commissioner Baldwin made the motion to approve the consent calendar as presented.

Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Foe - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifer - aye

COMMISSIONER REPORTS

Commissioner Dyer noted parking problems and sight visibility issues on Juniper. Mayor

Balensifer added this to the agenda as discussion item 8.B. There were no objections.

Commissioner Newton noted the drug take back event this past weekend. Police Chief Mathew

Workman explained the event and noted 200 pounds of drugs taken back. Commissioner Newton

noted attending the Merkley town Hall with Mayor Balensifer; the 15 families at Tongue Point
will not be evicted but classes may be cut. At the CREST (Columbia River Estuary Study
Taskforce) meeting the Elk DLC (Declaration of Cooperation) was signed. He attended a LOG
(League of Oregon Cities) call and asked that people continue to wear masks and get vaccinated.

City Manager Linda Engbretson requested to add Spring Clean-up as a business item. Mayor
Balensifer added it to the agenda as item 7.C. There were no objections.

MINUTES
Warrenton City Commission
Regular Meeting~4.27.21
Page: 1

3.A



Mayor Balensifer noted a correction to the CREST DLC; it may go under Oregon Solutions.
There was brief discussion.

After reading a Proclamation, Mayor Balensifer declared the week of May 2-8, 2021 as

Professional Municipal Clerks Week.

Mayor Balensifer noted an additional proclamation declaring the month of May 2021 as Building
Safety Month.

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

PUBLIC HFARFMG

Mayor Balensifer opened the Public Hearing on the amendment to Wan'enton Municipal Code

(WMC), Title 16 Development Code, Division 2 Land Use Districts to include Homestay
Lodging and Vacation Rental Dwellings (Ordinance 1248), and amendments to WMC Title 8.24
Homestay Lodging Standards (Ordinance 1250). Formalities followed and no conflicts of interest
or ex parte contacts were reported. Ms. Engbretson reviewed the staff report. She stated the

Planning Commission recommends approval. Mayor Balensifer asked for public testimony. No

one spoke in favor or in opposition. There being no further discussion. Mayor Balenslfer closed

the public hearing.

Mayor Balensifer noted for the second reading or before the adoption of Ordinance 1248, he

would like to see the standard format of the code changes with the strike thru and holding of
additions for consistency. There was consensus that the current format is fine to move forward.

Commissioner Dyer made the motion to adopt the findings and recommendations of the
Planning Commission under DCR 21-1 and conduct the first reading, by title only, of

Ordinance No. 1248. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Poe - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifcr - aye

Mayor Balensifer conducted the first reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1248; Amending
Warrenton Municipal Code Title 16, Development Code, Division 1, Chapter 16.12 Definitions;
Division 2, Land Use Districts, Chapters: 16.24, 16.28, 16.32, 16.36, 16.40, 16.44, 16.56; and

Division 3, Chapter 16.180.

Commissioner Dyer made the motion to adopt the findings and conclusions of the Planning

Commission in relation to DCR 21-1 and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1250

by title only. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Poe - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifer - aye

Mayor Balensifer conducted the first reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1250; An ordinance

amending Warrenton Municipal Code Title 8, Health and Safety, Chapter 24 Homestay Lodging
MINUTES
Warrenton City Commission
Regular Meeting - 4.27.21
Page:2



Safety Standards.

Mayor Balensifer opened the Public Hearing on the amendment to WMC, Title 16 Development
Code to update Marijuana businesses in General Commercial (C-l) and General Industrial (1-1)
to Conditional Uses as opposed to Permitted Uses, Ordinance No. 1249. Formalities followed

and no conflicts of interest or ex parte contacts were reported. Ms. Engbretson reviewed the staff

report. Mayor Balensifer asked for public comment. No one spoke in favor. Mr. George Warren
of Skipanon Drive spoke in opposition. Mayor Balensifer noted for the record that it sounds like
Mr. Warren is in favor, not opposition and clarified the intent of the change is to add restrictions.

Mr. Warren agreed that he is in favor. Ms. Engbretson farther clarified. There being no further
continents, Mayor Balensifer closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Newton made the motion to adopt the findings and conclusions of the

Planning Commission ofDCR 21-2, and conduct the first reading, by title only, of

Ordinance No. 1249. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Poe - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifer - aye

Mayor Balensifer conducted the first reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1249; All
Ordinance amending WMC Title 16, Development Code, Division 2, Land Use Districts,
Chapter 16.40, General Commercial (C-l), and Chapter 16.60, General Industrial (1-1).

BUSINESS ITEMS

Public Works Director Collin Stelzig noted that NW Natural and the Warrenton Middle School
are close to completion of the work on Dolphin Avenue. He noted that per City ordinance, the
properties adjacent to the new sewer main. will be required to connect to it and pay the associated

fees for the laterals. Big River was the only respondent. He reviewed the proposed contract with

Big River Construction- for new sewer laterals on Dolphin Avenue. Commissioner Newton asked
if the line is big enough for future expansion. Mr. Stelzig clarified the contract is just for the

laterals, not the main line. Commissioner Newton asked for farther clarification.

Commissioner Baldwin made the motion to approve awarding the public improvement
contract for new sewer laterals on Dolphin Avenue to Big River Construction, for the

amount of $40,954.00. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Poe - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifer - aye

Mayor Balensifer noted for the record he lives behind Alder Creek. He does not stand to gain

financially from this but will refrain from voting. Mr. Stelzig presented a public improvement

contract with Bergerson Construction for temporary aluminum tide gates located at Alder Creek.

Mr. Stelzig discussed the details of the project. Commissioner Newton asked for particulars on
the new tide gates. Mr. Stelzig confirmed the City will own the aluminum assembly.

MINUTES
Warrenton City Commission
Regular Meeting - 4.27.21
Page: 3



Commissioner Newton made the motion to approve awarding the public improvement
contract for the Alder Creek Tide Gate Structure; Tidegates #4.2 and #4.4 repair to

Bergerson Construction for $41,450.00. Motion was seconded and passed by majority.

Newton ~- aye; Dyer - aye; Poe - aye; Baldwin ~- aye; Balensifer - abstain

Mr. Stelzig discussed the proposal to increase fees for Spring Clean-up costs, as outlined in

proposed Resolution No. 2598. Mayor Balensifer asked about the past discussions on changing
to a voucher system. Mr. Stelzig clarified. Discussion continued. Commissioner Baldwin noted

that he likes the voucher system. Mayor Balensifer noted concerns about lack of communication

on the status of the voucher system. He thought it was the Commission^ direction to staff to go

with vouchers. The Commission gave their thoughts. Mayor Balenslfer said he would like to see

the vouchers imposed next year.

Commissioner Dyer made the motion to conduct the first reading of Resolution No. 2598

amending the Spring Clean-up collection policy. IVlotion was seconded and passed

unanimously.

Newton - aye; Dyer - aye; Poc - aye; Baldwin - aye; Balensifer - aye

Mayor Balensifer asked for a staff report or memo update on the voucher system.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

North Coast Regional Representative, Lisa Phipps of Department of Land Conservation and

Development (DLCD) gave an update on the DLCD grant. The last steering committee meeting
decided it would be a good idea to talk with the City Commission and Planning Commission
about the EOA (Economic Opportunity Analysis). There was brief discussion. Ms. Phipps noted
she will forward a power point to the City Commission. She reviewed the EOA process and

outcomes as outlined in her presentation. Ms. Phipps noted that Warrenton is perhaps the
economic driver in Clatsop County outside of the Port ofAstoria and tourism. There have been

several steering committee meetmgs and focus groups in multiple areas of industry. The project

team is working with the consultant to get the draft strategies ready for public consumption and
feedback. Ms. Phipps discussed the project timeline. There is a firm end date of June 30, 2021 to
spend all of the grant funds with no opportunity for extension. The consultant is willing to attend

public hearings even if they occur past the deadline. The public involvement process will occur

over May and June. There are big conversations coming later this year.

Commissioner Dyer did a site visit due to a call from a constituent. Mayor Balensifer explained

the parking and visibility issues near Jumper. He noted the constituent requested striping to block
parking. The Mayor and Commissioner Dyer agreed. A radar sign may help with speed

enforcement. Mayor Balensifer noted that the brush may need to be cut back. Ms. Engbretson
said that it would be looked into. Chief Workman gave details on the radar trailer results near the
area. He agreed the shrubbery needs to be trimmed. Discussion followed. Mayor Balensifer

stated there would be merit to at least look into what that distance would be or of it's feasible to

MINUTES
Warrenton City Commission
Regular Meeting ~ 4.27.21
Page:4



add red striping or block off parking for the first three driveways at the top of the hill. Ms.
Engbretson stated we can staff this tomorrow and come up with a plan. Discussion continued.

GOOD OF THE ORDER

Mayor Balensifer asked Chief Workman for the leading color for police cars. Chief Workman
noted it is black. Mayor Balensifer noted curiosity about people voting from outside of city

limits. Chief Workman noted it is possible there are many out-of-city responses. Discussion
followed. The results will be available on Thursday.

Commissioner Newton further discussed the housing issues and class reductions at Tongue
Point. The Friends of the Wan'enton Library is looking for members. Amie's Cafe and Tres Bros

are doing well. Mayor Balensifer noted concerns about a call with the governor that himself and

other mayors were excluded from. Commissioner Newton noted other updates.

Commissioner Poe noted a Hammond business owner is really happy with the City.

Ms. Engbretson noted there is consideration of three applicants to be interviewed for the

Planning position. Mayor Balensifer noted the structure change of pursuing a City Planner

instead of Community Development Director. Ms. Engbretson elaborated. Discussion continued.

At 7:12 p.m. Mayor Balensifer amwunced they will now meet in executive session under

authority of ORS 192.660(2)(h); to consult wifh counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of
a public body wifh regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. He stated the
Commission is not expected to return to regular session to take action on any item considered in

the executive session.

There being no further business, Mayor Balensifer adjourned the regular meeting at 8:02 p.m.

Respectfully prepared and submitted by Rebecca Sprengeler, Deputy City Recorder.

APPROVED:

ATTEST: Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder

MINUTES
Warrenton City Commission
Regular Meeting - 4.27.21
Page;5



( Volume 14, Issue 9 Monthly Finance Report
March 2021

May 11, 2021 )
Economic Indicators

Current 1 year ago

• Interest Rates:

LGIP: 0.60% 2.08%

Prime Rate: 3.25% 3.25%

• CP1-U change: 2.6% 1.5%

• Unemployment Rates:

Clatsop County: 7.1% 3.3%

Oregon: 6.0 % 3.6%

U.S.: 6.0% 4.4%

Department Statistics

• Utility Bills mailed 3,401

• New Service Connections 6

• Reminder Letters 430

• Door Hangers 145

• Water Service Discontinued 28

4 Counter payments 351

• Drop box payments 412

• Mail payments 1,279

• Auto Pay Customers/pmts 681

• Online (Web) payments 1,151

• Checks issued 326

Current and Pending Projects

• CRF & ARP Grant Funding

• 2022-2027 Capital Improvement Pro-
gram

• 2021-2022 Budget Preparation

• Reinstatement of Past Due Process
and Setting up Payment Plans

Financial Narrative as of March 31,2021

Note: Revenues and expenses should
; track at 9/12 or 75% of the budget.

General Fund: Year to date revenues
amount to $3,424.649, which is 77.4% of
the budget, compared to the prior year
amount of $3.309,633, which was 78.9% of

', the budget and are up by $115,016. In-
' creases are shown in property taxes, fran-
; chise fees, state revenue sharing, planning
; fees, fire charges and grants and are offset
by decreases in transient room tax, munid-

• pal court, police charges, parks charges,
' miscellaneous, interest, and leases.

Expenses year to date amount to
; $3,127,262. which is 66.4% of the budget,
; compared to the prior year amount of
; $3,268,589, which was 69.6% of the budg-
: et and are down by $141,327. All depart-
ments are tracking under budget. Depart-
ments continue to watch spending due to
economic uncertainties brought on by the

; Covid-19 pandemic.

: WBL: Business license revenue amounts
i to $59,500, compared to $60,230 at this
] time last year, a difference of $730. Year
to date licenses processed is 690 com-
pared to 691 at this time last year.

Building Department: Permit revenues
this month amount to $49,147 and
$264,084 year to date. which is 56.2% of
the budgeted amount. Last year to date
permit revenue was $208,132 which was
61.9%, of the budgeted amount.

State Tax Street: State gas taxes re-

ceived this month amount to $30,229 for
fuel sold in February and $257,094 year
to date. City fuels taxes received this
month amount to $26,11 7 for fuel sold in
January and are $208,794 year to date.
Total gas taxes received year to date are
$465,888 compared to $485,150 at this
time last year.

Warrenton Marina: Total revenues to
date are $551,856, 96.6% of the budget-
ed amount, compared to the prior year
amount of $555,980, which was 89.1% of

: the budgeted amount. There is $10,216
1 in moorage receivables outstanding.

; Hammond Marina: Total revenues to
I date are $319,325,136.8% of the budg-
eted amount, compared to the prior year

, amount of $381,21 0, which was 101 .4%
' of the budgeted amount. There is $1,975
! in moorage receivables outstanding.

' Of the total outstanding receivables:

; $770 (6.3%) is current,

I $3,184 (26.1%) is 30-60 days past due,

\ $1,196 (9.8%) is 60-90 days past due
i and
I
i $7,041 (57.8%) is over 90 days past due.

I Water Fund: Utility fees charged this
! month are $169,755 and $79,607, and
$1,864,923 and $1.135,652 year to date
for in-city and out-city respectively and
totals $3,000,575 and is 95.8% of the
budget. Last year at this time, year to

; date fees were $1 ,831,043 and $1.041 ,484,
for in-city and out-city, respectively and to-

; taled $2,872,527.

I Sewer Fund: Utility fees charged this
! month are $208,444 and $1,863,365 year to
date, which is 87% of the budget. Last year

; at this time, year to date fees were
\ $1,824,760. Shoreline Sanitary fees year to
, date are $102,290. Septage revenue year
; to date is $126,170 and Is 126.2% of the
budget. Total revenues year to date are

i $2,188,409 compared to $2,153,603 at this
i time last year.

I Storm Sewer: Utility fees (20% of sewer
i fees) this month are $41,666 and $372,500
year to date and is 87% of the budget. Last
year to date revenues were $364,762 which
was 78.8% of the budget.

Sanitation Fund: Service fees charged this
I month for garbage and recycling were
I $97,642 and $17,510, and $741.430 and
; $155,410, year to date, and are 87.1% and
; 86.2% of the budget respectively.

Community Center Fund: Rental revenue
year to date is $5,950 and represent 45.8%
of the budget. Last year at this time rental
revenue was $14,680 and 91.8% of the
budget.

3.B



City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of March, 2021

General Fund

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures
Municipal Court
Admin/Comm/FinfACF)
Planning
Police
Fire
Parks
Transfers
Total Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

I Beginning Fund Balance

I Plus: Revenues

I Less: Expenditures

I Ending Fund Balance

Current
Month

1,382,990

308,550

12.728
113,597

19,516
109,186
86,564

9,471

351,062

1,340,478

Current
Month

57,021

1,032

3,035

55,018

Current

Month
2,405,549

60,017

22,486

2,443,080

Year
to Date
1,043,091

3,424,649

92,895
807,861
157.295

1,297,480

624.050
77,503
70,178

3,127,262

1,340,478

Budget
600,000

4,425.741

160,306
1,167,282

292,992
2,000,654

855,386
163,557

70,178
4,710,355

315,386

WBL
Year

to Date
71,405

60,114

76,501

55,018

Budget
78,000

59,800

128,346

9,454

State Tax Street
Year

to Date
2,561,838

491,249

610.007

2,443,080

Budget
2,300,000

709,965

2,674,892

335,073

% of
Budget

173.85

77.38

57.95
69.21
53.69
64.85
72.96
47.39

100.00
66.39

425.03

% of
Budget

91.54

100.53

59.61

581.95

% of
Budget

111.38

69.19

22.80

729.12

(see details of revenue, page ^

Current
Month
871,928

49,569

21,646

899,851

Current
Month
357,253

26,981

65,027

319.207

)

Building Department
Year

to Date
898,004

270,212

268,365

899,851

Budget
790,000

474,000

384,175

879,825

Warrenton Marina

Year

to Date
172,727

551,856

405,376

319,207

Budget
145,000

571,226

558,797

157,429

% of
Budget

113.67

57.01

69.85

102.28

I

% of
Budget

119.12

96.61

72.54

202.76



City of'Wan'enton

Finance Department

Financial data as of March 2021, continued

Current
Month

Beginning Fund Balance

Plus: Revenues

Less: Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Hammond Marina
Year

to Date Budget
Beginning Fund Balance 305,735 180.776

Plus: Revenues 3,115 319,325

Less: Expenditures 20,001 211,252

Ending Fund Balance

2,767,403 2,688,213

240,917 2,188,409

150,265 2,018.567

Beginning Fund Balance 467,722 432,697

Plus: Revenues 115,427 902,823

Less: Expenditures 147,654 900,025

Ending Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 211 ,430 128,494

Plus: Revenues 4,397 224.793

Less: Expenditures 16,251 153,711

Ending Fund Balance 199,576 199,576

% of
Budget_

160,000 112,99

233,401 136.81

315,641 66.93

288,849

Current
h/bnth

288,849 77,760

Sewer Fund

Year
to Date Budget

371.46

% of
Budget

2,200,000 122.19

2,428,800 90.10

3,462,167 58.30

2,858,055

Current
Month

2.858,055 1,166,633

Sanitation Fund
Year

to Date Budget

244.98

% of
Budget

450,000 96.15

1,037,195 87.04

1,291,501 69,69

435,495

Current
Month

435,495

Library
Year

to Date

195,694

Budget

222.54

% of
Budget

111,000 115.76

225,902 99.51

232,070 66.23

Water Fund
Current
Month

Year
to Date Budget

2,650,566 3,144,980

266,462 3,094,073

139,638 3,461,663

2,200,000

5,766,500

7,049,683

1,412,923 1,185.198

42,298 380,232

16,105 126,314

18,243 18,243

% of
Budget

142.95

53.66

49.10

2.777,390

Current
Month

2,777,390 916,817

Storm Sewer

Year
to Date Budget

302.94

% of
Budget

1,100,000 107.75

433,400 87.73

1,200,861 10.52

1,439,116

Current
Month

1,439,116 332,539

Community Center
Year
to Date Budget

432.77

% of
Budget

17,553 18,239 16,000 113.99

2,542 10,966 16,560 66.22

1,852 10,962 24,119 45.45

8,441 216.12

104,832 190.38

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency

Capital Projects Fund
Current Year % of
Month to Date Budget Budget
13,181 19,464 25,288 76.97

19,209 120,822 6,407,433 1.89

19,237 127,133 6,432,721 1,98

13,153 13,153



City ofWarrenton

Finance Department

Financial data as of March 2021, continued
($) Cash Balances as of March 31,2021

General Fund
WBL

Building Department
State Tax Street

1,248,253

55,098
911,036

2,466,863

Warrenton Marina
Hammond Marina

Water Fund
Sewer Fund

339,342
289,712

2.300,010
2,543,966

Storm Sewer
Sanitation Fund

Community Center
Library

1,385,570
340,914

18,741
201,248

Warrenton Urban Renewal Agency
Capital Projects 20,573

Debl Service 2,457.569

General Fund

Revenues

Property taxes-current

Property taxes-prior

County land sales

Franchise fees

COW - franchise fees

Transient room tax

Liquor licenses

State revenue sharing

Municipal court

Planning Fees

Police charges

Fire charges

Park charges

Mscellaneous

Interest

Lease receipts

Grants

Sub-total

Transfers from other funds

Overhead

Total revenues

Collection

Frequency

AP

AP

A

MAQ

M

Q
A

MQ

M

1

[

SM

1

I

M

M

1

1

M

2020-2021

Budget

1,077,628

30,000

59B,000

256,281

525,212

550

168,891

136,700

105,000

21,000

103,524

1,200

18,000

216,473

3,258,459

1,167,282

4,425,741

Actual as
a

% of

Current

Budget

102.92

96.46

0.00

64.33

87.14

59.70

90.91

75.89

54.56

50.96

50.72

95.05

0.00

821.83

32.02

75.57

0.00

80.31

0.00

69.21

77.38

Collections/Accruals

Year to date

March 2021

1.109.146

28,937

384.680

223,322

313,570

500

128,163

74,580

53.510

10,651

98,400

425

9,862

5,764

163.582

11,696

2,616,788

807,861

3,424,649

March 2020

994,456

24,533

374,413

131,463

372,027

550

105,078

95.330

43,071

15,407

70,356

480

12,954

16.009

163,983

2,420,110

889,523

3,309,633

(over)

under

budget

(31,518^

1,0631

213,320]

32,9591

211,6421

50|
40,7281

62,1201
51,490'

10,349

5,124

(8,662)

12,236

52,891

(11,696)

641,671

359,421

1,001,092

S - semi-annual

I - intermittently

MQ - Monthly, cigarette and liquor and Quarterly, revenue sharing

R - renewals due in July and new licenses intermittently

A"annual

M - monthly

Q - quarterly

SM - Semi-annual in November then monthly

AP - As paid by taxpayer beginning in November

WQ - Century Link, NW Nat & Charier-quarterly,

all others monftily

Note: Budget columns do not include contingencies as a separate line item but are included in the ending fund balance. Unless the Commission

authorizes the use of contingency, these amounts should roll over to the following year beginning fund balance. For budget details, please refer

to the City ofWarrenfon Adopted Budget for fiscal year ending June 30,2021. Budget amounts reflect budget adjustments approved by the

Commission during the fiscal year. Information and data presented in this report is unauctited.



WARRENTON COMMUNITY CENTER
Advisory Board Meeting

February 25, 2021
4:08 PM

Meeting Date: February 25, 2021

Call to Order: Chairman, Debbie Little, called the regular meeting
to order at 4:08 PM. Debbie was not present, she conducted the
meeting over her cell phone.

Roll Call: Chairman, Debbie Little; Secretary, Carol Snell, Ken
Gulp and April dark, Financial Director for the City ofWarrenton.
Excused: Penny Morris and Vice Chair, Ronald LeChurch.

Introduction of Guests: None

Public Comment: None

Approval of the regular minutes for Januaiy 21, 2021: Ken Gulp
moved to accept the minutes as written, seconded by Carol Snell.

Motion was approved

Financial Report: April reported she had no financial report.

Old Business: It was decided to have Breakfast with the Easter
Bunny on March 27, 2021. Set-up will be Friday, March 26th.
We will conduct the breakfast the same as the Santa Breakfast.
The Pig has agreed to provide the pancakes, etc. and the cook.

Avery Iverson will be the Easter Bunny. This will be Avery's last
year helping us. Caria Iverson will take the money. Lorna has

agreed to order the sausages. Carol will do the shopping. She and
April will meet on the 18th to take inventory for items needed (i.e.
food boxes, silverware, etc.). Debbie has paper bags we can put

3.C



the food boxes in. Penny is working on the raffle. April will bring
the money box on Friday the 26th. April has printed flyers. The
school will send out e-mails to the students.

New Business: Ken had a series of questions to discuss. (See

attached). Items 1 thru 12 were discussed to varying degrees.

Correspondence:

Next Meeting: No meeting on the March 18, 2021.

Set-up Friday, March 26, 2021 @4 PM
Breakfast, March 27, 2021 at 7 AM

Our next meeting will be April 15, 2021.

It was moved and seconded to close the meeting at 4:58 PM

' • •'.. ' rib .-•'•").. f) c

-^-ix^.U;rf^.^ _ L.Murf^,(IXJL _/--
Debbie Little, Chairman Carol Snell, Secretary



Warrenton Community Center

Feb 24, 2021

1. List of ail repairs needed by priority.

2. Would vending machines heip.

3. What type of businesses would we like to attract?

4. Do we have to go through the city's Teck department when we could get it less expensive

elsewhere, if so, it will be pushed back on our priority list. And with our budget the city is kind of

forcing us to fend for ourselves

5. Could we put together a schedule of events so we can schedule other events.

6. What is our capacity after COViD-19 and during?

7. Do we have a COVID-19 capacity plan?

8. Do we have appropriate rate due to the iess capacity?

9. Do we have appropriate signage to get to the Warrenton community center?

10. Do we belong to the Chamber of Commerce, and if so, are they pushing to have events here?

11. What would the heating bill be if we kept the heat on full time?

12. Do we have a.c.



PROCLAMATION

National Public Works Week

WHEREAS, the period from May 16th through May 23rd has been set aside
throughout the United States as National Public Works Week; and

WHEREAS, the public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities,

and services that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient

communities and to the public health, high quality of life, and well being of the

people of Warrenton; and,

WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities, and services could not be provided

without the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers,

managers, and employees at all levels of government and the private sector,

who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, and protecting our nation's

transportation, water supply, water treatment, and solid waste systems, public

buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders, and

children in Warrenton to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive

interest and understanding of the importance of public works and public works

programs in their respective communities; and,

WHEREAS, the year 2021 marks the 61st annual National Public Works Week

sponsored by the American Public Works Association be it now,

NOW THEREFORE, I, Heniy A. Balensifer III, Mayor of the Cily ofWarrenton,
do hereby designate the week May 16-22, 2021 as National Public Works

Week in the City ofWarrenton, Oregon, and I do urge everyone to join in this

observance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and caused to be
affixed the Seal of the City of Warrenton, Oregon to be affbced on this 1 1th day

of May, 2021.

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

Attest:

Dawne Shaw, City Recorder

4



AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TO: The Honorable Mayor and Warrenton City Commission

FROM: R. Collin Steizig, P.E., Public Works Director

DATE: May 11th, 2021

SUBJ: Establishing the Use of Consultants in the Review of Public Works

Construction Permits

SUMMARY

Rate resolutions are considered over two meetings to give the public the opportunity to

comment. This is the first reading.

The City has the need for professional design services beyond the capacity of City staff

members in the review of applications for public works construction permits and

development application, and the current application fees do not cover the full cost of

application processing.

The Public Works Department seeks Commission approval to establish the use of

consultants in the review of public works construction permits and development

applications, which will provide design services associated with the application and

authorizing assigning the consultants cost to the applicant, as reflected in Resolution

2600.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED IVIOTION

"/ move to conduct the first reading of Resolution No 2600; Establishing the Use of

Consultants in the Review of Public Works Construction Permits or Development

7.A



Applications, and to Provide Design Se/v/'ces Associated with Public Works Construction

Permits or Development Applications and Authorizing Assigning the Consultants Cost to

the Applicant" Establishing May 25, 202^, as the Effective Date, and Repealing any

Other Resolution in Conflict."

ALTERNATIVE

None Recommended.

FISCAL IIVIPACT

This resolution will provide an increase in revenue for the City.

Approved by City Manager \ /..^ //' > ^ />

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



Resolution No. 2600

Introduced by All Commissioners

A Resolution Establishing the Use of Consultants in the Review of Public Works Construction
Permits or Development Applications, and to Provide Design Services Associated with Public

Works Construction Permits or Development Applications and Authorizing Assigning the
Consultants Cost to the Applicant

WHEREAS, the City ofWarrenton has the need for professional expertise beyond the capacity
of City staff in the review of applications for public works construction permits and development

applications; and

WHEREAS, the City ofWarrenton has the need for professional design services beyond the
capacity of City staff to provide design services associated with public works construction

permits or development applications; and

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the applicant to pay the costs of processing public works
construction permits and development applications; and

WHEREAS, the current application fees do not cover the full cost of processing such

applications.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton Resolves as follows:

Section 1. In addition to any other application fee, whenever the Public Works Director

determines that review of a development application or construction permit application requires

the retention by the City of professional consulting services, the applicant shall reimburse the

City for the cost of such professional consulting services. Such costs are a debt due and payable

to the City prior to issuance of final plan or construction approval. The Director may require the

applicant to deposit an amount with the City estimated in the discretion of the Director, to be
sufficient to cover anticipated costs of retaining professional consulting services and to ensure

reimbursement for such costs. Unless waived or postponed by the Director, execution of a

reimbursement agreement and payment of the deposit shall be considered a component of a

complete application and application fee. This does not preclude the Director from later requiring

execution of a reimbursement agreement and additional deposit if the Director later determines

that there is a need for consulting services or additional services. Any amount not expanded by

the City will be returned to the applicant, without interest.

Section 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.



Adopted by the City Commission of the City ofWan'enton, Oregon, this _ day of

2021.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder

APPROVED:

Henry Balensifer III, Mayor



AGENDA MEMORANDUM

TO: The Warrenton City Commission

FROM: Richard Stelzig, Public Works Director

DATE: May 11, 2021

SUBJ: Bid Award - SW Alder Reconstruction 2nd - 1st Street Project

SUMMARY

A public bid opening was held for the SW Alder Reconstruction 2nd Street to 1st Street

Project. One bid was received for this project, Big River Construction provided a bid for

the total amount of $409,846.26. Attached is the bid submitted by Big River Construction

and the bidding evaluation summary submitted by A.M. Engineering.

The advertised engineer's estimate was $350,000 to $400,000. The City budgeted this

project for $425,000 in the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION

Staff recommends the following motions;

"I move to approve awarding the contract for the SW Alder Reconstruction 2" Street to 1st

Street Project to Big River Construction for the amount of $409,846.26."

ALTERNATIVE

1) Other action as deemed appropriate by the City Commission

2) None recommended

7.B



FISCAL IMPACT

This project has been approved by the City Commission and is included in the City of

Warrenton 2020-2021 Adopted Budget.

Approved by City Mana^TV/Lr^^ ) 0^^'-^

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



P.O. Box 712 • Des Moines, Iowa 50306*0712 IN8UHANCE

POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIVIDUAL ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that:
1. Employers Mutual Casualty Company, an Iowa Corporation
2. EMCASCO Inaurance Company, an Iowa Corporation
3. Union Insurance Company of Providence, an Iowa Corporfltion

4. Illinois EMCASCO Insurance Company, an Iowa Corporation
5. Dakota Fire Inauronce Company, a North Dakota Corporation
6. EMC Property & Casualty Company, an Iowa Corporation

hereinafter refsrred to severaliy as "Connpany" and collecUvely as ''Companies", each does, by Ihese presents. make, constiluie and appoint:

TAMARAA.RINGEISEN
its irue and lawfu! attomey-in-fact, with full power and aulhority confefred to sign, seal, and execute (he Surety Bond:

Any and All Bonds

and to bind each Company thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such ins&umenls were signed by the duly authorizod officers o! each such Company, and all
of the acis of said attorney pursuant to thg authority hereby gwen are hereby ratified and confifinad.

April 1st 2021The authority hereby granted shall expire , unfess sooner revoked.

AUTHORITY FOR POWER OF ATTORNEY
This Power-of-Aitorney is made and executed pursuant to and by the authority ol the foflovring resolution of ths Boards of Directors of each of the Companies at the
first regularly schsdulsd mseting of each compatiy duEy ca!led and hsld in 1999;

RESOLVED: The PfesSdenl and ChfeE ExecuEive Officer, any Vice President, the TrBasuror and the Secrelary of Empfoyoo Mutual Casualty Company shall have
power and authority to (1 ) appoint attomeys-in-fact and aulhorize them to execute on behaif of each Company and atla^i the seal of the Company thereto, bonds
and undsrtakings, recognizances, contfacts of indemnity and other wriDngs obligatory in &ie nature thereof; and (2) to remove any such attomey-in-fact at any time
and revoke the power and authority given to him or her. Attofneys-En-fact shail have power and authority, subject to the terms and limitations of the power-ot-anorrwy
issued to them, to execute and dsiiver on bshatf oftho Company, and to attach the seal of (he Company thereto, bonds and unctertakings. recognizances, contracts of
Indemnity and other writings obiigatory in !tie nature thereof. and any such Inslmment oxeculed by any such aftorney-in-fact shall be fully and En all re$p9ct$ binding upon
the Company. Ceriificalion as to the validity of any power-of-attomey aulhorized herein nnacfe by an officer oi Employers Muluai Casually Company shall be fulfy and in ali
respects binding upon )hi$ Company. Tha (acslmfie or mechanically reproduced signature of such officer, whether macte heretofore or hereafter, v^ierever appearing upon
a certified copy of any power-of.attomsy of the Company, shal! be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

IN WiTNESS THEREOF, tfie Compantes have caused these presents to be signed for each by their officers as shown, and the Cofporate seals to be hereto affixed this
1st day of Juty , 2018 .

Ssais Bf'uce G, KeHey. OtO, Cha^an of
Companies 2.3,4,5 & 6; Presidenl
of Companies 1,2 & 6; Treasurer of
Companies 1.2,3,4& 6

-^
ToddStrolher
Vice President

^ '- 5 ; ; 5 •'
•zi :y;

? <?;

^JWWljOTETOOCU"
OammtN*on.Nufnt»Tnew;

yyponwi4rtpnj
'Octob<r<6.:

On this 1st day of July , 2018 before me a Notary Public in and for the
State of Iowa, personally appeared Bruce G. Kfliley and Todd Stroiher, who, being by me
duiy sworn, did say that they are, and are Kmwn to me to be the CEO. Chairman. Presidont
and Treasurer, and/or Vice President, respectively, of each of the Companfes abwe; that
ihe seals affixed to this instrument are the seals of said corporations; that said instrument
was signed and sealed on behalf of each of the Companies by authority of their respective
Boards of Directors; and that Ihs said Bruce G. Kelley and Todd Strother, as such officers,
acknowledged tha executton of said inslrunwnt io be they voiuntar/ act and deed, and the
voluntary act and deed ot each of the Companies.

My CommissSon Expires October 1 0,2022.

CERTIFICX+E

1^8^MU^
Notaty Publfc in and (or the State qfl

I. James D. Clough, Vice President of the CompanlBs, do her^y wrtify.ltiaf Ihe (onigoiiig rasoluiion of the Boards of Difectors by each of the Companies. and
this Power of Attorney issued pursuant thefelo on Ist dayof Jyfy , 2()16 , c^6 nue and coirect and afesliii in fulj force and effect

In Testimony Whereof I have subscnbed my name and affixed this ltee§t?i)e seat of each Compsny this 14 day ol April .2021

7838(9-19) 0000000 P8082 000 SSE 000000.09 "For verification of the authenticfty of the Power of Attorney you may call (515) 345-2689.'



CERTIFICATtON OF NONDISCRiMINATJON

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

Pursuant \o the requirements of ORS 279A.110,1 certify that I have not discriminated and will not discriminate against
a subcontractor in awarding a subcontract because the subcontractor is a minority, woman or emerging small
business enterprise certified under ORS 200.055 or a business enterprise that is owned or controlled by or that
employs a disabled veteran, as defined in ORS 408.225.

^/2-0/Z(
DATE

NOTE: THIS STATEMENT MUST BE RETURNED WITH THE 818

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 13



iW MSti HKOir

OwnFfQtvof

ifiownvj-wpwp^

P.O.Box 873
aside. Oregon S7133

[503) 46M600
idam@a man fl nr.com

Sonlim TIHf
CiirUd

3

i
?

L
;
1

i

^
s

)
1
1
!

•Codd

)

1

t

)

I
M

i

Twnpomrv Work Zbrr T;affl& Connol, CvnplotB

Eroilim CKitial

C.n.rat [miVBtlan

[ttmmal a! [KhUne Water Sthflcn

Ft?mffulfltofT5tntddnp^ACflnd Comnm?

H-hlhCcrmcitfdHDPEWrplpi

II" tnih Coirusntfd HDPE WT Pipif

Cctth S?ikta,Curli Open Ing T^ppCG-3

Catth tlirtlru^TyjiH^WIttl SfltldGfatc

CflncrfftB Maflholn, Stflrm 4B'"5hflircrtw Flit Top with Tffie OG-3 tnirt

Rlprap Bnlm with GBOlmrtllo

Fnjndilton Etumllcn. A> Dlreitfij

16" iubartit IntlUntlDn./li Dirmod

A(G"iittSuUnn»,611.H;lb]AsDlrKl»[l

AWC'ts. 6" tlllcll ShDuldeft •nd 3" Thick CrttWaf

Aum't* Sat, HMAC Bai»

Lnri i W Inch HtMC
Concrtt; Cuitn, Momllthlt Curt) and GuRsr

Up to 1 [hchPolvWrtflrSfln^CB LIn?

Connrlf Wtlkl. Slimlh. W«[kw*vi, and ftOA Landlnci

CflttUrtB &rh/nm^t t'*1 JThlch

FiwiTwnt Sci, Typf 8-HI

Hcnw^PflTidBfrhuirdinc Fflnc?^ wand^n and cytEane

Sln^tff MdHbOx S^pporti

Sfld Lawn, Ptflrtten flrtrf Fill Atva

Uo(M

u
LS
LS
Cf
LS

u
Lf
LF

il
11
[f
cv
Of
St
St
Of
cv

TH
LF

[f

u
5F

u
LS
Lf

u
5V

QuflnfUty

1
t
1<BO
t
IfH

WS
301

a
;
2
1
10
Si.1
10
20
11

Ml

4

1
1 mi

11
2
3
ss
4
!;3

[fitlrui [un

Ailtllrl[»

iUUGS.flO

;MI>3.«1
W.OX.X
iis.so
;33i,DC

>1.7S

•its.ao

W.ao
i4.50a.00
;1,570.00

in.oo

10 SO
.no

!a
ro

»
»
»
.00

»

.00

FU

so

!0
KB
>.3

Cnunilon

WMWK
Suucs.na 1.71's.

$(.^11.61) 13K
;iS,K».K> ll.VM
iip.Ms.oo i.nx

i33S^O O.OTO

Wn.so O.IM

i30.4t0.00 H.lOlt

UW.oo
;4,50d.OO
SU,5«I.[»

i4,ooaoo
SlOflOO.OO

W^sx
SCM.OO
iMU.W
S12.MI
Sl.aw.oo

il.007.00

Wwao
iSS.CBO.OO
i21.U3.00

il.'lOO.DO

i7j<?80iDO
tWW.00

'IV.

16%
iW
IS?
,™
»t
Ult
•mi

;w
av.

1W,
i3K

I™

ICT
$^SftCI;,ao l4,31K

iCOB.OO D.ICK
il.OOO.BO D.27K

;M
•TH

tiwaoa n,4m
ss.mm 1.39ft

win™-corn
.InltPrtCr

il.MB.OO

;iaam
>I;,dCTS.im

>;D.CIO

;im.ao

i;. 50
;114.7;,

MM
;],owm
;i,aao.aa

>3,U]QTO

U.OOO.DO

>30D.m

;S6,50
ai.Eo
;1.00
iimi.m

idl.OO

;113,00
;3B.OO

,1,100,00

[SDO
il. S!

;3S™
;!1)
QO

mo
.1

Jtthin Inc.

trtmiion

WM7.K

M.soo.oo

Siao.oo
tU,4MI.M)

iSI.BM.M

ssas.oo
iSB^i.OO
{1MW.M
y,lKX),ao

S2i.aoo.Mi

S^DOCLOO
MOB.KI
M.liD.iH;
St6.S0.50
Stfl.oo
Si^MD.no

SM^o.ro
W.w.ws
WWS.W
iiaoam)
y.sao.ao
S^&oo.oo
S3.i00.00
SM.m.M

Si.im.M)

S1.3K).1»
4<0
;3.M7.H;

;1,;W.W

iii.Mi.oo

U7B

mK
1.01K

1.1M1

].!!%

].1W

14.I2K
l.BSK

l.BSK

1.4W

i.nm

I.ZSK
iWH
i.wm

141K

i.Mft

j.ym

),MK

i.oni

I.GIH

1D.8<K

3.30K

I.ilft
I.lllt

].!C)t

um
\.WY.

I.37S

l.ltV.

1.D3K

;.]»(

1.3M

]3W
;.I4W

14.IIX
).S9)t

S.BCK

L4SK
1.4W

i.om

I.Uft
I.M»

l.H»t

l.WV.

uss.

l.MHt

I.MK

i.om

l.Clft

IO.SW

3.3CW

;.]CT
;.1M

;.II»1
Mm
1.55K

P:\1900l Wan-enton SW Atder Rei:onstruction\Biddine Aliirtance\Bid Resultl\SW Atder Reconstruction Bid Tabl.xlsm
3:34 PM

4/20/2021



>A.M.
Engineering

Owrw: Qtv oTWflmniop

Sollm&r: A.M. EnElnfterlnc

wfiwwsi-.nmK-r

P.O. Bax fl73
SOB Sid a, Oreflon 97',39

(503) wa-seao

SBCuenTlth
Ban U it

LJn? Item ttprrt Codfl

1
2
3

5
G
7

1
10

u

15
16
17
18
IS

n

;5
:[.

;7
28 2B
•S IS

30 is
31 31
3:
33 33

JS

ttBfll &ri<flptlofl

MobltlHllon
Imicmnry Work Zanc Tnfflt Cwiuol. Ccmplne

EKnlwi Cofltwl

ftemmut of EnBitlneWiHT Stwin

RgmovaE ot SLcrfacJngh ACsrbd Cowrple

;4- lush Cormcilnl HOP!. WT Hpf

W hith Coirueatfd HDPE Wr Pip;
C(MicrfltF Manh&Fn, StOfm 4& StiiHow Flat Top

Catch S;astm,Curb OpefiJhE Typp CG-3

Catch BtsEns, Typfl -I WJth $olJrf Grate

,'Etoi

Foundntion Eiuwtlm, *i OlrKHd

le-Subifailfiubltlntion.AiDimti-d

SuhtNidt m Embintmsnl CNlMllt, Ai Clrwd

Afl£rp|^to3ubbdi#,&dl.lO(b]Ai Dirfctfttf

AEETBpaIe S*"F, HMAC Base

HUBi::,l/Ilm:hHMAC

Concrfltt Curt^ MopnlitIiiE Curb and Guttflr

Concrrt* Curbt^ St?nEiAr^ Curb

up 10 r imh potf WcW ;»!U]C> Unf

Cornrpt* Wjtkt, A&A Rampt hrttti T^uncatfrf Oomn

Conncrtmn T&ExtstJn^StTuctum,Ai D^rfct^Ef

Courilr Watki, Sldtwidli, Walkwayi. iini! MW LamluiES

l^niFFtf DHnwitvs, E' TIlUt

Paunnmt Bar, Iroe B.HS

Stj;ns with pDlt* Standafri ShfrUhCi E-rt^Ud.rd AtUfntnum, tldffWdlK <n(^

tem
•BfCl

Stn^lu MdlEtHBf Supports

UolHt

u
u
LS
u
Of

IV
LF
LF
LF
[A
(A
SA

CY
CY
sv
SY
cy

CT
TH
if
if

ST

u
if
ST
SF

u
If
[A
ST

Ouanuiy

1
1
1
1
lOlO
1

1 TO
1W
HW

3

1
30
:.(.!

10
us

701
we
921
an
4

1
4604
S07
1;

1

P:\19001 Warrenton SW Aider Remnstrucyon\BiddinEA;s[stancc\B;d Reiutts\£W A!der Reconstruction Bid Tabs.xism
3:31 PM

4/20/2021



BID BOND

For

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
For

The City ofWarrenton

KNOW ALL PEOPLE BY THESE PRESENTS:

Thai we. Big River Construction, Inc. _, hereinafter called
(Name of Contractor)

the PRINCIPAL, as Principal, and Employers Mutual Casualty Company
(Name of Surety)

a corporation and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
and authorised to transact a surety business in the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the SURETY, as Surety,
are held and firmly bound unto the City of Warrenton, a Municipal Corporation of Ihe State of Oregon,
hereinafter called the OBLIGEE, in Ihe penal sum of

Five Percent (5%) of Bid Amount ————-—- pon^s (^%_of_Bid_Amouplor the
payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said PRINCIPAL and the said SURETY bind ourselves,
our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by Ihese presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATIONS IS SUCH THAT:

WHEREAS the PRINCIPAL has submitted a Bid Proposal for the SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Bid Proposal submitted by the PRINCIPAL is accepted, and the Conlract awarded
to the PRINCIPAL, and if the PRINCIPAL shall execute the proposed Agreement and shall furnish such
Performance and Payment Bonds as required by the Contract Documents within the time fixed by the
Documents, then this obligation shall be void; if the PRINCIPAL shall fall to execute the proposed Agreement
and furnish the bonds, the SURETV hereby agrees to pay the OBLIGEE the penal sum as liquidated damages,
within ten (10) days of such failure.

Signed and sealed this ^4 _ day of ^P[ij, ,2021,

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL: SURETY:

(Corp. Seal) (Corp. Seal)

Signature- /J<^36^^</ Rinmturn- \-'<-t-t-/--^r-. V-\ .^^<^:^—<\^£^._. I ^_ j

Company: Big River Coristi^tion, Inc. company: Employers Mutual CasuaHy Company

^\
Name: J^i^^ '5 , ^&r»^ ^ame; Tamara A. Ringeisen

Tiiie: Pr^d&vd-..,_ Title; ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
(Attach Power of Attorney)

Cil/ofWarrenlon
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 15



BID FORMS

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
The undersigned, having full knowledge of the quality and quantity of work and material required, hereby proposes to
furnish all labor, material and equipment required to complete the work of:

in accordance with the ODQT/APWA 2018 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction and the Special
Provisions, Plans and Specifications hereto, and at the foilowng Bid Schedule prices by the following completion
dates:

• Substantial Completion - Monday, August 9, 2021
• Final Complelion - Thursday, August 19, 2021

Enclosed herewith is a bid surety deposit in the amount of at least Five Percent (5%) of the bid.

The undersigned bidder hereby represents as follows; That this bid is made without connections with any person, firm or
corporation making a bid for same. and is in al! respects fair and without collusion or fraud.

Contractor agrees compiy with ORS 279C.838 or ORS 279C.8^fO or 40 USC3141, et seq, iflhe contract is subject to state
or federal prevailing wage laws.

The undersigned is y YES __NO a resident bidder. as defined in ORS 27&A.120. (PLEASE CHECK ONE)

Oregon Construction Contractor Board No. 1^-1:?-6'S'2- ,.

The bidder acknowledges receiving and incorporating changes described in

Addenda NO._I_through Z. _.

Complete In black tnk or by typewriter. If BIDDER is:

An Individual

Signature,

(Individual's Name, Typed or Printed)

doing business as^

Business address_

Phone No._

A Partnersthio

Firm Name.
Signature.

(Ngme of Partner, Typed or Printed)

Business address..

Phone No..

CflyofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 1



AUmfted Liability Company (LLC)

LLC Name,

By_
(Signature of genera! partner - attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed),

Business Address

State in which compsny was formed.

Phone No..

A Coreoratlon
' < .x,

Corporation Name 'Sl^-J^^-^b^^k'^^GA ^ "^^^

Signature '<

/4J<^3bGt V. 'Sb^TtA
(Officer's Name, Typed or Printed)

(\resy<aA4-
(Title)

(Stale of incorpor<

Attest ^
(Secretary^Sig nature)

Business address 335o€^ MtV^ f Of B<^t^CS
A^o^ia ,GVZ <:t^l03

Phone No. W^ -^^ - ^S ^^

Date of Qualification to do business 0^/z.col

OiyofWwsnton
SW i-'u6w AvfttH.e 2nd SlreRi [o 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 2



A.M.
P.O. Box 973

Seaside, Oregon 97138
(503)468-8600

'.corn

Engineering

April 20, 2021

Collin Steizig, PE
Public Works Director
CityofWarrenton
45 SW 2nd St.
Warrenton, OR 97146

RE: SW Alder Reconstruction 2nd Street to 1st Street - Bidding Evaluation Summary

Dear Collin,

The SW Alder Reconstruction 2nd Street to 1st Street project bid closing occurred on 4/20/21, at 2:00
P.M.. The following is a summary of the evaluation I performed on the 1 submitted bid.

Big River Construction Inc.

Bid Tabulation Evaluation:
o The costs are generally acceptable.

o The bid was approximately 9% higher than the estimate, aithough the data used for the
estimate was several years old and apparently not adjusted enough for inflation.

o Item 19 does cause a littie bit of concern as it is an "As Directed" item. While a good

effort was made to estimate quantities, this item is probably the most subject to an
increase and the unit cost is large in comparison to other aggregate items.

Bid Documents Evaluation:

o In general the bid documents conform to the requirements.

Summary/Recommendation:

o Big River is the sole bidder on this project and I wouid recommend awarding the project
to them.

After you have reviewed the recommendations, if you need any additional information or would like to
discuss anything I would be happy to set up a meeting. I will issue the notice to award once you have
made your decision.

If there are any questions, piease don't hesitate to cail me.

P:\13001 Warrenton SW Alder Reconsfwcl!on\Bid(Sing Assislance\SW Alder Reconstaicfion Bidding Evaluation Summaty.docx 4:10 PM
04/20/2021



A.M.
P.O. Box 973

Seaside, Oregon 97138
(503) 468-8600

adam@amengnr.com
Engineering

Sincerely,

^M^

Adam Dajley, P.E.

President

Enclosures: None

Cc: File

P:\19001 Warrenton SW Alder Reconsiniction\Btdding Assistance\SW Alder Rewnsffuciion Bidding Evaluaffon Summafy.docx 4:10 PM
04/20/2021



SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

Summer 2021

^
^swleuTmw^

W^^/r
~v^

RENEWAL DATE: DECEMBER 31, 2021

A.M.
Engineering



C!TY OF WARRENTON

Table of Contents

CALL FOR BIDS - PUBLIC WORKS IMPROVEMENT

BfDDERS CHECKLIST

BfD FORMS

Bid Form

Bid Schedule

Section 00190 - Measurement of Pay Quantities

Certification of Nondiscrimination

First-Tier Subcontractors Disclosure Form

Bid Bond

AGREEMENT

PERFORMANCE BOND

PAYMENT BOND

GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

APPENDICES

Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries Prevailing Wage Rates for Pubfic Works
Contracts

SUPPLEMENTAL DRAWINGS - Attached separately.

" END TABLE OF CONTENTS "

SWAider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
City ofWarrenton



City ofWarrenton
225 S Main Ave
Warrenton, OR 97146

CALL FOR BIDS - PUBLIC WORKS IMPROVEMENT

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Sealed bids will be received up to the hour of 2:00 PM local time, on Tuesday, April 20, 2021

Received by:

Adam Dailey
Engineering Consultant

Received at:

Bids will ONLY be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through QuestCDN.com

Any bids received after the above specified time will not be considered.

Bids will be received for the following work:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Portions of SW Alder between N Main Avenue and SW 4th Street have been improved previously to widen the road.
The remaining stretch for this project, between 2nd Street and 1st Street will include the reconstruction of the existing
roadway as well as the addition of roadway width, landscaping strips on both sides of the road, 4 ADA compliant curb
returns, sidewalks on both sides of the road, replacement of the inadequate storm drainage system, and some
additional minor utility improvements, All improvements will be constructed to the current City standards.

• Substantial Completion - Monday, August 9, 2021
• Final Completion - Thursday, August 19, 2021

The following is a brief summary of the major elements of Work that are to be provided by the Contractor:

- Traffic Control
- Potholing
- Demolition
- Roadway and Trench Excavation
- Stormwater Infrastructure Construction
- Roadway Reconstruction/Construction
- Walkway and Curb Return Reconstruction/Construction
- Concrete Driveway Construction
- Asphalt Paving
" Pavement Striping
- Landscaping

PRE-BID MEETING

An OPTIONAL pre-bid meeting will be held.

2:00 PM Tuesday, April 6, 2021

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Call for Bids
Page 1



225 S MAIN AVE. WARRENTON, OR 97146

Bids submitted by bidders who have not attended a MANDATORY pre-bid meeting will not be accepted and will be
returned unopened.

Statements made by a City representative at the pre-bid meeting are not blinding on City unless confirmed by written
addendum. A project site tour will follow as part of the pre-bicf meeting.

SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS

The contract documents may be viewed and downloaded by registering with QuestCDN online
(www.questcdn.com) or r calling (952-233-1632). A contractor may view the Contract Documents at no cost on the
QuestCDN website prior to deciding to become a Plan-holder. To be considered a Pian-holder for construction bids,
a contractor must register on QuestCDN.com and purchase the contract documents, in digital form for downloading,
at a cost of $50.00. Registering as a Plan-hotder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors
because Plan-holders will receive addendums and other contract document updates via QuestCDN.
For this project bids wiil ONLY be received and accepted via the oniine electronic bid sen/jce through
QuestCDN.com, To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click the online bidding
button at the top of advertisement. Prospective bidders must be on the plan hoiders list through QuestCDN for bids to
be accepted.

The Quest Project Number for this contract is 6960812

Questions regarding the project during the bid period shall be submitted in writing to:

Adam Daiiey, PE
Design Engineering Consuitant
A.M. Engineering
PO Box 973 Seaside OR. 97138
503-468-8600

PREQUAUHCATION

Prequalification of bidders IS NOT required.

When prequalification is required, forms may be obtained from:

N/A

Prequaliftcation applications must be received at the above location no less than seven (7) calendar days prior to bid
opening. Required minimum prequalification class(es) of work for the Contractor (or Contractor in combination with
proposed subcontractors) for this contract are:

N/A

BIDOPENING

Prior to submission of its bid, bidder shall be registered with the Oregon Construction Contractor's Board as
required by ORS 701,055, and thereafter compty with the requirements of ORS 701.035 to 701.055.

Bidders shal! be qualified in accordance with the applicable parts of ORS 279C En order to submit a bid for public
works in Oregon.

If the total bid exceeds $50,000.00 the contract will be subject to Prevailing Wage Statute ORS 279C.800 to
279C.870. The contract is NOT subject to federal prevai!ing wage rates under the DavJs-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C.
3141 etseq),

All bids must be accompanied by a certified check, a cashier's check or bid bond in an amount equal to at ieast
Five Percent (5%) of the total bid.

Bids will be pubiiciy opened at the hour of 2:00 PM local time, on Tuesday, April 20, 2021

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Call for Bids
Page 2



Opened by:

Adam Daifey, PE
Design Engineer Consultant

Opened at:

City Hall
225 S. Main Ave. Warrenton, OR,97138

By: Collin Stefzig, Public Works Director
City of Warrenton

PUBUCATIONS: Daily Journal of Commerce (DJC): Wednesday, March 31, 2021 and Monday, April 5, 2021
The Daily Astorian: Tuesday, March 30, 2021 and Tuesday, April 6, 2021

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Call for Bids
Page3



BIDDER'S CHECKLIST

FORMS TO EXECUTE FOR SUBMISSION OF B!D

The Bidder's attention is especially called to the following forms which must be executed in full before bid is submitted:

(a) Bid Form: The Bid Form is to be filled in and signed by the bidder and returned with bid.

(b) Bond Accompanying Bid: A!! bids shali be accompanied by a guarantee equal to at least
Five Percent (5%) of the bid amount This guarantee may be in the form of a bond, certified check or
cashier's check. Bid bonds will be accompanied by a power of attorney bearing the same date as the
bond.

(c) Certification of Nondiscrimi nation: This form must be signed and submitted with bid.

(d) if applicable, First-Tjer Subcontractor disclosure form, within 2 hours of bid closing,

(e) Pre-qualifjcation application received at Engineering Division Office at least? calendar days prior to bid
opening when required.

Facsimife transmissions of bids, bid security or subcontractor disclosure forms will not be accepted.

FORMS TO EXECUTE AFTER AWARD OF BID

(a) Contract:, The agreement provided in these Solicitation Documents is to be executed by the successful
bidder within 14 calendar days of award of the contract.

(b) Insurance must compiy with the General Conditions and Special Provisions of the Contract
Documents. Proof of such insurance and additional insured certificate must be delivered to the Agency
at the same time the contract is signed.

(c) The contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond each in an amount equal to
one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the faithfuf performance of this contract
and for the protection of claimants under ORS 279C.600,

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bidder's Cheddist
Page 1



BID FORMS

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
The undersigned, having full knowledge of the quality and qusntity of work and material required, hereby proposes to
furnish all labor, material and equipment required to complete the work of:

in accordance with the ODOT/APWA 20-18 Oregon Standard Specifications for Constnjction and the Special
Provisions. Plans and Specifications hereto, and at the followmg Bid Schedule prices by the following complelion
dates:

• Substantial Completion - Monday, August 9, 2021
• Final Completion - Thursday, August 19, 2021

Enclosed herewith is a bid surety deposit in the amount of at least Five Percent (5%) of Ihe bid.

The undersigned bidder hereby represents as follows; That this bid is made without connections with any person, firm or
corporation making a bid for same, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.

Contractor agrees comply with ORS 279C.838 orORS 279C.840 or 40 USC3141, et seq. if the contract is subject to state
or federal prevailing wage iaws.

The undersigned is V YES __NO a resident bidder, as defined in ORS 279A.120. (PLEASE CHECK ONE)

Oregon Construction Contractor Board No. M^-6'S2. _.

The bidder acknowledges receiving and incorporating changes described in
Addenda NO, 1.,... through ' Z- _.

Complete In black Ink or by typewriter. If BIDDER is:

An Individual

Signature.

(individual's Name, Typed or Printed)

doing business as..

Business address_

Phone No._

A Partnership

Firm Name
Signature.

(Name of Partner, Typed or Printed)

Business address

Phone No.

CttyofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 1



A Limited Liabflitv Company /LLC1

LLC Name

BIL
(Signature of general partner - attach evidence of authority io sign)

Name (lyped or printed).

Business Address

State in which company was formed.

Phone No.

A Corporation

Corporation Name ^^J&^^-Fl^sk'ud^GH^ ^ t^AC

Signature^

/lj!dVfc6t T, 'Sb^-tA
(Officer's Name, Typed or Printed)

^resiAaA4-
(Tille)

(Stale of !ncorpor<

Attest ^
(Secretary^Signalure)

Business address '^G^H Hh/lf »0/ BlS'tAACS

A^r-ift ,0^ <l^l0'5

Phone No. W^ -^S: - ^ ^^

Dale of Quafificalion to do business_„ Q^-j ^2^-001

City of'Wafrenton

SW Aide," /V/ftiitis 2;vi StrycS io Isf StreGi
Bid Fornre

Pacse ?.



BID SCHEDULE

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

Bid
Item
No.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33
34
35

Description

Mobilization

Temporary Work Zone Traffic Control

Erosion Control

Removal of Structures and Obstructions

General Excavation

Removal of Existina Water Services

Removal ofSurfacings, AC and Concrete

Asphalt Pavement and Concrete Saw Cutting
24" Inch Corrugated HDPE WT Pipe

^ Inch Corruaated HDPE WT Pipe

Concrete Manholes, Storm 48" Shallow Flat Top

Catch Basins, Curb Opening Type CG-3
Catch Basins, Tvoe 3 With Solid Grate

Concrete Manholes. Storm 48" Shallow Flat Top with Type CG-3
inlet
Riprap Basins with Geotextile

Foundation Excavation, As Directed
16" Subgrade Stabitization, As Directed

Subgrade or Embankment Geotextile, As Directed
Agsregate Subbase, 641.10(b)As Directed

Aggregate, 6" Thick Shoulders and 3" Thick Driveway

Aggregate Base, HMAC Base
Level 2,1/2-inch HMAC

Concrete Curbs. Monolithic Curb and Gutter

Concrete Curbs, Standard Curb
Up to F Inch Polv Water Service Line

Concrete Walks, ADA Ramps with Truncated Domes

Connection to Existing Structures, As Directed

Concrete Walks, Sidewalk, Walkways, and ADA Landings

Concrete Driveways, 6" Thick

Pavement Bar, Type B-HS

Signs with post, Standard Sheeting, Extruded Aluminum, sidewalk
ends
Remove and Reinstall Existing Signs, stop signs

Removing and Rebuilding Fence, wooden and cyclone

Single Mailbox Supports

Sod Lawn. Planters and Fill Area

Quantity

1
1
1
1

1090
1

1799
234
508
201

1
8
2
2

1
20

561
10
20
19

701
348
921
80
4

240
1

4604
507
32
2

2
88
4

529

Unit

LS
LS
LS
LS
CY
LS
SY
LF
LF
LF
EA
EA
EA
EA

CY
CY
SY
SY
CY
CY
CY
TN
LF
LF
EA
SF
EA
SF
SF
SF
EA

LS
LF
EA
SY

Unit Price Bid Amount

Total Bid Amount

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 3



A.M.
Engineering

Ownrr: atyofWanmlon

Scllcltar; A.M. Enclnnnint

CU/3Q/2021 03,2D PM PST

P.O. Box 973
ioDcido, OrogDn B713S

[5D3] 46S-8BOa
adam@amnngnr.cwn

Uo/M Oiuntity

TwnpOMfv ^rt/ork Zone Tjdfftc Cofltroil, Con'

(IfnBFltixtav.tmn

RBrmnulBTSiirfacinp,*Ctn<Concr«u

;4" Inch CorrueaKd HDPE WT Plpt
13" Inch CortUEslri) MCPE WT Pipe

Cgnuirt* Man^oleit Storm 4; •hi Ti

Foundation E»uvat)on,^sDlrftctfd

16- SubE'ida StablHiatimi, iks ENmnd

A^rFgfltt Subbaw, 6< 1.10(1?] As CNrpctfld

Wctslc. 6" Thick ShouUfrs and 3" Thick Brl'

Lm!l^V2LnchHMAC

Cuntr;»Curt)i. Standin) Cuib

frWtlkt.,ADAfl*mpt^thTfLinftmJ &0mm

tlon To C^litin:^ Strurtum, ^ Ohwtffd

rWnltl, SHtWlk.WllIkwavl.ondADHLanitlni

r Oflvvwfi. G" Thick

UnKMte

W/sn.ao
?tE,50
S225.QC

S175
Ses.aa

Suoo.00
Swnw
i2.00d.00
U.ossm
S17S.1M
S3I.TO
iio.w
;1.»

Mso.oo
W.oo
11
Waaa
MI.ua

MI.70

Ml.oo
soo
SCO
m
ion
).S

Eltl

WW 7.M1

Wm's.w
W.ooo.w

;17,Mi.OO
S33S.OO

y77.50
;3B.<a(I.OO

suw.w
iiwco.oo
M.OOO.M

^to.oon.nc
S17S.OB
iSM.OO
^Wt.10
iii.so

M7.1S3.00
Sss.caa.oo
S2UBi.M>
Si,UB.(m

3MOO.OO

S7.6SO.OO

ll-![

ssusii^a

;608^»
il.OOO.OO
1-SK

il,;6C.U>

ii.mc.M

SS.337.IO

um
lust
4.7SK

U.OiiS

n.;iK

B.ID1.

1,2m

JJ4B
LOW
•LWt.

fl.BS%

n.i n;

I.Mt

B.KXt

C.131t

0.371;

U.TW,

5.63X

e.stai.

asm
IWi
(UCT
W,.il)i

o.iim

0.27S

D.3M

B.47X

MW
I.MX

Jnltfnce

waa.x
il2.400.01
>:0.00

^00.00

u.w
iIH.TC

i3.axi.no

i3.DOO.OO

ii.ouo™

iion.oc
Wi.'a

aisa
,1.K

iioo.oo

;]QO.M

iiu.oo
.1B.BO

is
,1,1Q[1,QD

.WOB

'.vs

•1.<X,

;la.M

;!0
•30

un
.:

Lfli

$<tS^*7-

MOD.OO
SlMM.OO
isi.aiw.oo

WiW
MSnBl.lH

{3,1)00.00

SW1DB.DO

Syxao
Sl.IM.W

S16,M9.50

im,«i
S:.OOO.DO
Sl.'ua.m

iii.moD
M.VIS.W
M.MO.OO

y.wam
WMOSO
tt.scssa
S44,41B.U)

^,307^;.
M.;im.oo

iuo.oo

ITS.

>3B
))1
13B
>?*h

KK
,32';

fit

im
ITS
'.csl

Wfi
ion
I'M.

•w.

iW
•Sit

)7K
MX
[IX

KHt

m
•Eft
•M
.5K

;ai.

].i7%

UM
s,vw.

i.JZK
l.s-i

l.uv.

14.;;'

.r™

1-10.

..sw

1.07X

1.2i»

I.MK

1.00%

?
I.WH

[.MM

l.SOT
ISJV,

'.?«'•

].[>!*;

ijm;
l.i21

HIS
I. if.

L2n
,.5Sf.

P:\190ai Wan-errton SW Alder Flcconitrurt(on\BfddineA»istancc\Bid Result3\SW Alder Reuinstrucfion Bid Tabs.xlsi
3:34 PM

4/20/2021



Section 00190 ~ Measurement of Pay Quantities

00190.00 Scope

Section 00190.00 is supplemented with the following:

Measurement and payment for all Work shown or specified herein will be made on a unit or
lump sum price basis in accordance with the prices set forth in the Bid Schedule for individual
items of Work. Contractor shall make a careful assessment when preparing the Bid.

The items listed below refer to and are the same pay items listed in the Bid Schedule. They
constitute al! of the pay items for the completion of the Work. No direct or separate payment
will be made for providing miscellaneous temporary or accessory services or all other items
not specifically named in specific bid item description and needed for the prosecution of the
Work, and all other requirement of the Contract Documents. Compensation for aH such
services, things and materials shall be included in the prices stipulated for the lump sum and
unit price pay items listed herein.

The prices stated in the Bid Schedule include overhead and profit and all costs and expenses
for bonds, insurance, taxes, labor, equipment, materials, commissions, transportation charges
and expenses, patent fees and royalties, labor for handling materials during inspection,
together with any and ail other costs and expenses for performing and completing the Work,
complete and in place, as shown on the Plans and specified herein. The basis of payment
for an item at the lump sum or unit price shown in the Bid Schedule shall be in accordance
with the description of that item in this Section.

Items listed as ALLOWANCES in the Bid Schedule, if any, are to be used and will be paid for
only at the written direction and authorization of the Engineer, if agreed to by the Agency.
Measurements and payment wilt be in accordance with the Contract Documents or the terms
of the written authorization for the additional Work and wili include but not necessarily be
limited to, the furnishing, hauling, placing and installing of materials and the furnishing of such
manpower and equipment as required to accompiish the Work as direct in writing by the
Engineer.

Lineal Foot payment for Storm Sewer Pipe & Fittings shall exclude distance through manhoies
and other structures (i.e., payment is measured from outside face of catch basin to outside
face of catch basin, or outside face of catch basin to outside face of manhole).

Lineai Foot payment for Sanitary Sewer Pipe & Fittings shall exclude distance through
manholes and other structures (i.e., payment is measured from outside face of manhole to
outside face of manhole).

Description of Bid Items on Bid Schedule:

1 Mobiiization (Lump Sum Payment): The unit price payment for this item
includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and incidentals
and performing all Work to obtain permits and licenses; move equipment and
materials onto the site; furnish construction trailers and other construction
facilities; prepare the site for Work under Contract; marshal workers,
materials and equipment, and those of subcontractors to accomplish Work
under Contract; prepare, submit and modify as appropriate to address review
comments for material submittals and shop drawings, as-built drawings

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 4



showing field changes to the original design and other submittals; remove
equipment and extra materials from site upon completion of Work and all
other Work not identified in a separate bid item.

Temporary Work Zone Traffic Control, Complete (Lump Sum Payment): The
unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing a!i Work to provide
temporary traffic control measures (TCM), Traffic Control Supervisor (TCS),
Flaggers, and furnishing, installing, moving, operating, maintaining,
inspecting, and removing traffic control devices (TCD) throughout the Project
area according to the Supplemental Drawings, the traffic control plan (TCP)
for the Project, these Specifications, or as directed. Payment wilt be made on
a prorated monthly basis based on the percent of the original Contract
Amount that is earned from other Contract items.

Erosion Control (Lump Sum Payment): The unit price payment for this item
includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and incidentals
and performing all Work to implement and maintain structural and non-
structural Best Management Practices (BMP) for the purpose of controlling
soil erosion by wind or water and keeping eroded sediments and other
construction-generated pollutants from moving off project sites. Minimum
requirements for all project construction sites and conditions are described in
the DEQ 1200-C Permit and accompanying Erosion and Sediment Control
Plan (ESCP) drawings. Additional or revised erosion and sediment controi
features, not shown on the initial ESCP, may be required depending on the
Contractor's methods of operation and schedule. Payment shall include an
erosion and control inspector with acceptable certification, training or
qualified experience to implement, monitor and report on the erosion control
measures in accordance with the DEQ 1200-C Permit requirements.
Payment will be made on a prorated monthly basis based on the percent of
the original Contract Amount that is earned from other Contract items.

Removal of Structures and Obstructions (Lump Sum Payment): The unit
price payment for this item includes: furnishing ail necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all Work to remove and
dispose of structures and pipes, regardless of material type and size,
indicated to be removed in the Supplemental Drawings, grouting resulting
voids in structures when pipe is removed, backfilling and compacting trench
with Trench Backfil! Material, and CLASS B 3/4" - 0, to the top of the Roadway
Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of aggregate base rock) or top of trench
foundation where applicable. Removal of piping shall be from structure to
structure or as indicated in plans. Preserve and protect existing conditions
and private property. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting and
Roadway Reconstruction.

General Excavation (Payment Per Cubic Yard In Place): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing alt necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to excavate, load, hau!, and
dispose of all materials within the project disturbance limits to finish subgrade
at an average depth of 13 inches. Preserve and protect existing conditions
and private property. Coordinate miscellaneous private property relocation
with owners. Separate payment will be made for surfacing removal.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 5



Removal of Existing Water Services (Lump Sum Payment): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing a!! necessary materiais, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to remove and dispose of
existing water service including meter box and service piping to corp stop at
the main, corp stop to be shut off and plugged with brass plug, coordinate
with City for removal of water meter if present, backfili and compact with
CLASS B 3/4" - 0 Trench BacRfiil Material to the top of the Roadway
Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of aggregate base rock) as shown in the
Plans. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.
Separate payment wi!l be made for Sawcutting.

Removal of Surfacings (Payment Per Square Yard): The unit price payment
for this item includes: furnishing ail necessary materials, equipment, labor
and incidentals and performing a!l Work to excavate, load, haul, and dispose
of existing asphalt or concrete surfacing such as roadways, walks, driveways
and adjacent curbing, to all depths (4" Average Assumed), as indicated to be
removed on the Plans. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private
property. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting.

Asphalt Pavement and Concrete Saw Cutting (Payment Per Linear Foot):
The unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary
materials, equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all Work to
sawcut existing asphalt or concrete regardless of thickness as shown on the
Plans. Unit price payment shal! be for each linear foot of material sawcut on
each side of the trench or on pavement required for removal, as measured in
the field. Payment also includes sawcutting of PCC that is beneath asphaltic
concrete paving. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private
property. No additional payment will be made for any re-sawcutting required
to restore a clean sawcut prior to trench patching or final placement of
concrete or asphalt pavement.

24" Inch Corrugated HDPE WT Pipe (Payment Per Linear Foot): The unit
price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials,
equipment, labor and inddentais and performing all Work to pothole and
verify utiiity elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering,
bypass pumping, making connections to existing pipes or structures with
fittings if required, install embankment geotextile, bedding, storm sewer
piping, fittings, tracer wire, backfili and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" " 0
Trench Backfill Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade
(at bottom of aggregate base rock), trench compaction cleaning, video
inspection, and acceptance testing as specified and as shown on the
Supplemental Drawings. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting and
foundation excavation (Overexcavation). No additional payment will be made
for additional testing, cleaning and video inspection required as a result of
correcting unsatisfactory Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and
private property.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 6



10 12" Inch Corrugated HDPE WT Pipe (Payment Per Linear Foot): The unit
price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing ali Work to pothole and
verify utility elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering,
bypass pumping, making connections to existing pipes or structures with
fittings if required, install embankment geotextile, bedding, storm sewer
piping, fittings, tracer wire, backfill and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" - 0
Trench Backfill Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade
(at bottom of aggregate base rock), trench compaction cleaning, video
inspection, and acceptance testing as specified and as shown on the
Supplemental Drawings. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting and
foundation excavation (Overexcavation). No additional payment wili be made
for additionai testing, cleaning and video inspection required as a result of
correcting unsatisfactory Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and
private property.

11 Concrete Manholes, Storm 48" Shallow Flat Top (Payment Per Each): The
unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary maferiais,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing ali Work to pothole and
verify utility elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering,
bypass pumping, install embankment geotextile, CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock,
structure, backfill and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" - 0 Trench Backfi!!
Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of
aggregate base rock), trench compaction, cleaning, and acceptance testing
as specified and as shown on the Supplemental Drawings. Separate
payment will be made for Sawcutting, foundation excavation
(Overexcavation). No additional payment will be made for additional testing,
cleaning and video inspection required as a result of correcting unsatisfactory
Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

12 Catch Basins, Curb Opening Type CG-3 (Payment Per Each): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to pothole and verify utility
elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering, bypass
pumping, install embankment geotextile, CLASS B 3/4" " 0 base rock,
structure, backfil! and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" " 0 Trench Backfill
Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of
aggregate base rock), trench compaction, cleaning, and acceptance testing
as specified and as shown on the Supplemental Drawings, Separate
payment will be made for Sawcutting, foundation excavation
(Overexcavation). No additional payment will be made for additional testing,
cleaning and video inspection required as a result of correcting unsatisfactory
Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

13 Catch Basins, Type 3 With Solid Grate (Payment Per Each): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing ail Work to pothole and verify utility
elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering, bypass
pumping, instai! embankment geotextile. CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock,
structure, backfili and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" - 0 Trench Backfill
Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of
aggregate base rock), trench compaction, cleaning, and acceptance testing

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 7



as specified and as shown on the Supplemental Drawings. Separate
payment will be made for Sawcutting, foundation excavation
(Overexcavation). No additional payment wiil be made for additional testing,
cleaning and video inspection required as a result of correcting unsatisfactory
Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

14 Concrete Manhoies, Storm 48" Shallow Fiat Top with Type CG-3 Inlet
(Payment Per Each): The unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing
ali necessary materials, equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all
Work to pothole and verify utility elevations, trench excavation, trench
stabilization, dewatering, bypass pumping, install embankment geotextile,
CLASS B 3/4"" 0 base rock, structure, backfill and compaction with CLASS
B 3/4" - 0 Trench Backfili Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction
Subgrade (at bottom of aggregate base rock), trench compaction, cleaning,
and acceptance testing as specified and as shown on the Supplemental
Drawings. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting, foundation
excavation (Overexcavation). No additional payment will be made for
additional testing, cleaning and video inspection required as a result of
correcting unsatisfactory Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and
private property.

15 Riprap Basins with Geotextile (Payment Per Cubic Yard in Piace): The unit
price payment for this item includes: furnishing ali necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing aii Work to excavate site,
install loose riprap Class 50 rock energy dissipater and Woven Geotextiie
Type 2, Table 02320-2 Geotextile as shown in the plans. The unit price
payment also includes dewatering. Preserve and protect existing conditions
and private property.

16 Foundation Excavation (Payment Per Cubic Yard In Place): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to remove and dispose of
unsuitable trench foundation material encountered during trench excavation,
furnish and install embankment geotextile. compact Selected Stone Backfii!
6" - 0 material as necessary or as directed to provide a stable foundation.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

17 16" Subgrade Stabilization (Payment Per Square Yard): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing al! necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to remove and dispose of
unsuitable subgrade material as directed during road construction
Overexcavation. Furnish, install and compact 16" thick "Subbase Aggregate"
material, 641.10(b) with subgrade geotextile, to provide subgrade
stabilization. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

18 Subgrade or Embankment Geotextile (Payment Per Square Yard): The unit
price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all Work to install woven
subgrade geotextile as directed. Table 02320-4 Geotextile Property Values
for Subgrade Geotextile. Table 02320-5 Geotextile Property Values for
Embankment Geotextile. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private
property.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 8



19 Aggregate Subbase (Payment Per Cubic Yard In Piace): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing ali Work to furnish, install, and compact
aggregate subbase material over Subgrade Geotexfile, on approved
subgrade to provide a stable subbase as directed. Preserve and protect
existing conditions and private property.

20 Aggregate Shoulders (Payment Per Cubic Yard In Place): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to furnish, install, and compact
6" thick shoulder, CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock over Subgrade Geotextile, on
approved subgrade to provide suitable sidewalk edge support or as directed.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

21 Aggregate Base (Payment Per Cubic Yard In Place): The unit price payment
for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor
and incidentals and performing all Work to furnish, install and compact 12"
thick base/level course, CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock, over Subgrade
Geotextile on approved subgrade to provide a suitable base for asphalt.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

22 Level 2, 1/2-inch ACP (Payment Per Ton): The unit price payment for this
item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and
incidentals and performing all Work to furnish, install and 3" compacted
asphalt concrete pavement, and provide acceptance testing in accordance
with specifications and as shown on the Plans. Adjustment to final grade of
valve boxes, meter boxes, monument boxes or other similar structures with
removable cover in the asphalt concrete paving limits shall be considered
incidental to this pay item. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

23 Concrete Curbs, Monolithic Curb and Gutter (Payment Per Linear Foot): The
unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials,
equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all Work to install geotextile,
12" thick CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock, and standard concrete curb and gutter
as specified and as shown on the Plans. Preserve and protect existing
conditions and private property.

24 Concrete Curbs, Standard Curb (Payment Per Linear Foot): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to install geotextile, 12" thick
CLASS B 3/4" - 0 base rock, and standard concrete curb as specified and as
shown on the Plans. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private
property.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 9



25 Up to 1" Inch Poly Water Service Line (Payment Per Each): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing a!! necessary materials, equipment,
iabor and incidentals and performing all Work to pothole and verify utiiity
elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering, make
connection to existing corp stop at main with fittings if required to change
size, install embankment geotextile, bedding. poly piping, meter box, tracer
wire, meter box, fittings, backfi!! and compaction with CLASS B 3/4" - 0
Trench Backfilf Material to the top of the Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade
(at bottom of aggregate base rock), coordinate with City for relocation or
replacement of water meter, and disinfection and acceptance testing as
specified and as shown on the Supplemental Drawings. Separate payment
will be made for sawcutting and foundation excavation (Overexcavation). No
additional payment wili be made for additional testing, cleaning and video
inspection required as a result of correcting unsatisfactory Work. Preserve
and protect existing conditions and private property.

26 Concrete Walks (Payment Per Square Foot): The unit price payment for this
item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and
incidentals and performing all Work to install geotextile, 2" thicR CLASS B
3/4" - 0 leveling course, 4" unreinforced concrete ADA compliant ramps with
cast in place Brick Red truncated domes as shown on the Plans. Adjustment
to finai grade of valve boxes, meter boxes, monument boxes, or other similar
structures with removable cover in concrete shall be considered incidentai to
this pay item. Adjustment of utility service poles, not to include transmission
line poles. Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

27 Connection To Existing Structures (Payment Per Each): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing ail Work to pothoie and verify utility
elevations, trench excavation, trench stabilization, dewatering, bypass
pumping, removal and disposal of existing sewer service, install embankment
geotextile, bedding, up to 6" D3034 DR35 sewer piping, cleanouts, fittings
including connection to existing home service, tracer wire, backfill and
compaction with CLASS B 3/4" - 0 Trench Backfill Material to the top of the
Roadway Reconstruction Subgrade (at bottom of aggregate base rock),
cleaning, and acceptance testing as specified and as shown on the
Supplemental Drawings. Separate payment will be made for Sawcutting and
foundation excavation (Overexcavation). No additionai payment will be made
for additional testing, deaning and video inspection required as a result of
correcting unsatisfactory Work. Preserve and protect existing conditions and
private property.

28 Concrete Walks (Payment Per Square Foot): The unit price payment for this
item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and
incidentals and performing all Work to install geotextile, 2" thick CLASS B
3/4" - 0 leveling course, 4" unreinforced ADA compliant ADA concrete
sidewalks, walkways, and Landings as specified and as shown on the Plans.
Adjustment to final grade of valve boxes, meter boxes, monument boxes or
other similar structures with removable cover in concrete shall be considered
incidental to this pay item. Preserve and protect existing conditions and
private property.

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 10



29 Concrete Driveways (Payment Per Square Foot): The unit price payment for
this item includes: furnishing ail necessary materials, equipment, labor and
incidentals and performing all Work to install geotextile, 6" thick CLASS B
3/4" - 0 leveling course/base rock, 6" unreinforced concrete driveways, and

wings as specified and as shown on the Plans. Adjustment to final grade of
valve boxes, meter boxes, monument boxes or other similar structures with
removable cover in concrete shall be considered incidental to this pay item.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

30 Pavement Bar, Type B-HS (Payment Per Square Foot): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing ali Work to install 12" wide white
pavement bar markings as specified and as shown on the Plans. Removal of
conflicting pavement markings shall be considered incidenta! to this bid item.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

31 Signs with post, Standard Sheeting, Extruded Aluminum (Payment Per
Each): The unit price payment for this item includes: furnishing ali necessary
materials, equipment, labor and incidentals and performing all Work to install
2" O.D. sign post, single sided aluminum "Sidewalk Ends" Sign, 8" diameter
full embedment concrete post base. Preserve and protect existing conditions
and private property.

32 Remove and Reinstall Existing Signs (Lump Sum Payment): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentals and performing all Work to remove and re-instaii
existing stop signs, including posts, within the project limits as specified and
as shown on the Plans. Unit price also indudes CLASS B 3/4" - 0 post full
depth embedment material 12" around post. Payment will be made on a
prorated basis based on the percent of the original Contract Amount that is
earned from other Contract Items. Preserve and protect existing conditions
and private property.

33 Removing and Rebuilding Fence (Payment Per Linear Foot): The unit price
payment for this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment,
labor and incidentais and performing all Work to remove and re-install
existing fence of varying materials, including posts, within the project limits
as specified and as shown on the Plans. Contractor will notify and coordinate
with private property owner for this item to preinspect and discuss the work.
Unit price also includes cost for replacement of contractor damaged or
previously deteriorated components in kind as coordinated with the engineer.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

34 Single Mailbox Supports (Payment Per Each): The unit price payment for
this item includes: furnishing all necessary materials, equipment, labor and
incidentals and performing all Work to remove and re-instali existing
maiiboxes and posts of varying materials, within the project iimits as specified
and as shown on the Plans. Contractor will notify and coordinate with private
property owner for this item to preinspect and discuss the work. Unit price
also includes cost for replacement of contractor damaged or previously
deteriorated components in kind as coordinated with the engineer. Preserve
and protect existing conditions and private property.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 11



35 Sod Lawn (Payment Per Square Yard): The unit price payment for this item
includes: furnishing ail necessary materials, equipment, labor and incidentals
and performing all Work to provide and install landscape sod in landscape
and road section fill areas on a scarified subgrade to accommodate 4" of
topsoil and sod layer thickness. Sod to be 1" below level of adjacent curbs
and waiks. Unit price includes onsite borrow material used for subgrade.
Preserve and protect existing conditions and private property.

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 12



CERTlFIGATfON OF NONDISCRIMINATION

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

Pursuant to Ihe requirements of ORS 279A.110,1 certify that i have not discriminated and will not discriminate against
a subcontractor in awarding a subcontract because the subcontractor is a minority, woman or emerging small
business enterprise certified under ORS 200.055 or a business enterprise that is owned or controlled by or that
employs a disabled veteran, as defined in ORS 408.225.

H/2-Q/-L\
DATE BID

NOTE: THIS STATEMENT MUST BE RETURNED WITH THE BID

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Bid Forms
Page 13



FLRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
BID CLOSING: Bidding wili be closed at the hour of 2:00 PM locai time, on Tuesday, Apr!! 20, 2021

This form must be submitted at the location specified in the Ca!l For Bids on the advertised bid closing date and within
two working hours after the advertised bid closing time.

List below the name of each subcontractor who will be furnishing Sabor or materials and that is required to be disclosed,
the category of work that the subcontractor wil! be performing and the dollar value of the subcontract. Enter "NONE" if
there are no subcontractors that need to be disclosed.

(ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NEEDED.)

Name Doilar Value Category of Work

1)_ $.
2).

3).

4)

Failure to submit this form by the disclosure deadline will result in a nonresponsive bid. A nonresponsive bid will not
be considered for award.

Form Submitted by (Bidder Name):

Contact Name:

Phone no.:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Bid Forms
Page 14



BID BOND

For

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
For

The City ofWarrenton

KNOW ALL PEOPLE BY THESE PRESENTS:

Thai we, Bi9 River Construction, Inc. .hereinafter called
(Name of Contractor]

the PRINCIPAL, as Principal, and Employers Mutual Casualty Company
(Name of Surety)

a corporation and existing under and by virtue of the taws of the State of.
and authorized to transact a surety business in the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the SURETY, as Surety,
are held and firmly bound unto the City of Warrenton. a Municipal Corporation of Ihe State of Oregon,
hereinafter called the OBLIGEE, in the penal sum of

Five Percent (5%) of Bid Amount —————— pongrg ($5% of Bid Amoupfcr ihe
payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said PRINCIPAL and the said SURETY bind ourselves,
our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATIONS IS SUCH THAT:

WHEREAS the PRINCIPAL has submitted a Bid Proposal for the SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Bid Proposal submitted by the PRINCIPAL is accepted, and the Contract awarded
to the PRINCIPAL, and if the PRINCIPAL shall execule the proposed Agreement and shall furnish such
Performance and Payment Bonds as required by the Contract Documents within the time fixed by the
Documents, then this obligation shall be void; if the PRINCIPAL shall fall to execute the proposed Agreement
and furnish the bonds, the SURET/hereby agrees lo pay the OBLIGEE the penal sum as tiquirfated damages,
within ten (10) days of such failure.

Signed and sealed this 14 _ day of jARrt!_,2021,

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL: SURETY:

(Corp. Seal) (Corp. Seal)

company: Big River CqnsHuctJon, Inc. company: Employers Mutual Casuaity Company

Signature- ([^S^AY^/ Fiinnatnro- V"<-i-^~/-'t-. ^\ .\-<^^^-^\<^>.. I ^-_ _^

Name: ^/t^r^T^o?^ f^rne: Tamara A. Ringeisen

Title: Prc&dfii/d- _ Title: ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
(Attach Power of Attorney)

^

City ufWarrenton
SW Afder Avenue 2nd Street to 1s[ Street
Bid Forms
Page 15



P.O. Box 712 • Des Molnes, Iowa 50306-0712 IHSURAHOE

POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIVIDUAL ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that:
1. Employers Mutual Casualty Company, an Iowa Corporation
2. EMCASCO Insurance Company, an iowa Corporation
3. Union Insurance Company of Providence, an Iowa Corporfltion

4. Illinois EMCASCO Insurance Company, an Iowa Corporation
5. Dakota Fire Insurance Company, s North Dakota Corporation
6. EMC Property fc Caauaity Company, an Iowa Corporation

hereinafter referred to severally as "Company'' and collecth/ely as "Companies", each does, by these presents, make, constJtute and appoint:

TAMARAA.RINGEISEN
its true and lawful attomey-in-fact, v/ith fuf) powef and authority conferred to sign, seal. and execute the Surety Bond:

Any and All Bonds

and to bind each Company thereby as folly and to tho same extent as if such instruments were signed by the duty authorized officers of each such Company, and all
of the ac!s of said attomsy pursuant to the authority hereby given are hereby ratified and contirmed.

The autfiwity hereby granted shall expire AP"E1sl ^ 2021 , ynfess sooner rovoksd,

AUTHORITY FOR POWER OF ATTORNEY
This Power-of-Allorn&y is made and executed pursuant to and by the authority of th& foitowing resolution of the Boards ol Directors of each of tho Companies al lh6
first regularly schedutsd meeting of each company duty calied and held in 1999:

RESOLVED: The President and Chief Executive Officer, any Vice President, the Troasufer and the Secretaty of Employers Mutual CasualEy Company shall have
power and authottty to (1) appoint altomeys-in-fact and auihorize them to execute on b9ha!l of each Company and attach the seat of the Company thereto, bonds
and undertakings, recognizances, contracts of indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof; and (2) to remove any such attomsy-in-fact at any time
and revoke Uie power and authority given to hjrn or her. Attomeys'iMact shall havs power and aulborlt/, subject to the terms and limitations of the power-of-attomey
issued to them, lo execute and deiiver on behaif of the Company, and to attach iho soa! o! the Company thereto, bonds and uncfertaklngs, recognizances, conlracts of
indgmnity and oth6r wrings obilgatoiy !n the nalure thereof, and any such inslrumenl executed by any such attorney-in-facl shall be fully and in at! respects binding upon
the Company. Certification as to (he validity of any power-of-attomey authorized herein made by an officer of Emptoyers Mulual Casualty Company shall be fulFy and in alt
fsspecls binding upon fbis Company. The facslmite or mechanically reproduced slgnalure of such officer, whBlher made heretofore or hereaftar, wherever appearing upon
a certified copy oE any powerof-attomey of the Company, shall be valid and binding upon Ihe Company with the same force and effect as though manualiy affixod.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Conripanies have caus^ these presents to be signed (or eadi by their officers as shown, and the Corporate seals to be hereto affixed this
1st day of July , 2018 .

Ssais

^

IHSEALJIJ t|( SEAL )|| ||i. SEAL )j|
^y^y ''^'^y ?$^t5?1

Br'uce G. Keliey, 0£0, Cha^an of
Companies 2,3,4.5 & 6; Prasidenl
of Companies 1,2 & 6; Treasurar of
Companies 1,2,3,4& 6

^^..
Todd Strother
Vice President

1® J»wywmioae.
^Omnffcn Hrfntw 7KW

• M^jBamft<NteHBqpri»
'OrtabTlM

On this 1st day of M/ , 2018 before me a Notary Public in and for the
Stale ol IWQ, personally appeared Bruce G. Keliey an(f Todd Stroiher, who, being by me
duly sworn, did say Ihat they are, and are known to me to be the CEO, Chaitrftan, President
and Treasurer, and/or Vice Prosldsnt, respectively, of each of the Companies above; that
the seals affixed to this Instrument are the seals of said corporations; thai said instrument
was signed and seaied on behali of each of the Companies by authority of their respective
Boards of Directors; and that thfi said Biuco G. Keliey and Todd Slfoiher, as such officers,
acknowledged th6 executkm of said inslfument to be (heir voluntafy act and deed. and the
voluntary act and dfied of each of the Companies.

My Commission Expires October 10, 2022.

]^S^MUf,
; in and for the State q?l

CERTIFICA+E
I. James D. Ctough, Vice President of the Companiss, do hereby certity.lhat the foregoing rds-jluljon of the Boards of Direciors by each of Ihe Companies, and

this Power of Attoiney issued pursuant thereto on 1st dayof Juiy, ^ ,i 2018 ^ ^6 true and correct and are stili in full force and effect

In Testimony Whereof I have subscribed my name and affbced the facsinnife seal bleach Company this „ 14 day ot Apri! , 2Q21

7638(9-19) 0000000 P8082 000 SSE 000000-00 "For verification of the authenticity of the Power of Attorney you may call (515) 345-2689.'



AGREEMENT

1.00-GENERAL

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _ day of _, 2021, by and between
,, hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR" and the City of Warrenton, a municipal

corporation, hereinafter called "CITY."
WiTNESSETH:

That the said CONTRACTOR and the said CITY, for the consideration hereinafter named agree as follows:

2.00 - DESCRIPTION OF WORK
The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform the work of:

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
and do all things required of it as per his Bid, all in accordance with the described Bid, a copy of which is
hereto attached and made a part of this Contract.

3.00 - COMPLETION OF_CONTRACT
The CONTRACTOR agrees that the Work under this Contract shall be completed by the following dates:

• Substantial Completion - Monday, August 9, 2021
• Final Completion - Thursday, August 19, 2021

If said CONTRACTOR has not fully completed this Contract within the time set or any extension thereof, it
shall pay liquidated damages in accordance with Section 00180.85 of the General Conditions.

4.00-CONTRACT PRICE
The Contract Price for this project is $___ . Payment will be made in accordance
with ORS 279C.560 including progress payments at the end of each month. Retainage will be withheld in
accordance with ORS 279C.550 - .565.

5.00-CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The CONTRACTOR and the CITY agree that the plans, specifications (including the ODOT/APWA 2015
Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction and Contract Documents defined in Section 00110.20 of the
Contract Documents Genera! Conditions and alt modifications thereto) and bid are, by this reference,
incorporated into this Contract and are fuliy a part of this contract.

6.00 - NONDlSCRiMINATION
it is the policy of the City of Warrenton that no person shail be denied the benefits of or be subjected to
discrimination in any City program, sen/ice, or activity on the grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color,
national origin, sex, sexuai orientation, gender identity and expression. The City ofWarrenton also requires
its contractors and grantees to comply with this poiicy.

7.00 - CONTRACTOR IS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
A. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that for all purposes related to this Contract, CONTRACTOR is and shall
be deemed to be an independent CONTRACTOR and not an employee of CITY, shall not be entitled to
benefits of any kind to which an employee of the C!TY is entitled and shaii be soieiy responsible for all
payments and taxes required by law; and furthermore in the event that CONTRACTOR is found by a court of
law or an administrative agency to be an employee of the CITY for any purpose, CITY shall be entitled to
repayment of any amounts from CONTRACTOR under the terms of the Contract; to the full extent of any
benefits or other remuneration CONTRACTOR receives (from CITY or third party) as result of said finding and

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Agreement
Page 1



to the ful! extent of any payments that CITY is required to make (to CONTRACTOR or to a third party) as a
result of said finding.

B. The undersigned CONTRACTOR hereby represents that no emptoyee of the City of Warrenton, or any
partnership or corporation in which a CITY employee has an interest, has or will receive any remuneration of
any description from the CONTRACTOR, either directly or indirectly, in connection with the letting or
performance of this Contract, except as specifically declared in writing.

8.00 - SUBCONTRACTS " RELATIONS WITH SUBCONTRACTORS. ASSfGNWIENTS AND DELEGATION
A. Assignment or Transfer Restricted. The CONTRACTOR shall not assign, sell, dispose of, or transfer rights
nor delegate duties under the contract, either in whole or in part, without the CITY'S prior written consent,
Uniess otherwise agreed by the CITY in writing, such consent shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of any
obligations under the contact. Any assignee or transferee shall be considered the agent of the CONTRACTOR
and be bound to abide by ali provisions the contract, If the CITY consents in writing to an assignment, sale,
disposal or transfer of the CONTRACTOR'S rights or delegation of the CONTRACTOR'S duties, the
CONTRACTOR and its surety, if any, shall remain iiable to the CITY for complete performance of the contract
as if no such assignment, sale, disposal, transfer or delegation had occurred unless the CITY othenvise agrees
in writing.

B. CONTRACTOR may not discriminate against a subcontractor in awarding a subcontract because the
subcontractor is a minority, women or emerging sma!l business enterprise certified under ORS 200.055 or a
business enterprise that is owned or controlled by or that employs a disabled veteran, as defined in ORS
408.225. if CONTRACTOR violates this prohibition, the CITY wii) regard the violation as a breach of contract
and may either terminate the contract or exercise any other remedy for breach of contract.

9.0Q-NQNWAJVER
The failure of the CITY to insist upon or enforce strict performance by CONTRACTOR of any of the terms of
this Contract or to exercise any rights hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any
extent of its right to assert or rely upon such terms or rights on any future occasion.

10.00 - LABORERS AND MATERIALMEN. CONTRIBUTfONS TO INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT FUND. LIENS
AND WITHHOLDING TAXES
CONTRACTOR shail make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying CONTRACTOR labor or
material for the prosecution of the work provided for this contract.

CONTRACTOR shall pay aEi contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from CONTRACTOR
or any subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.

CONTRACTOR shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the CITY on account of any
labor or materiai furnished.

CONTRACTOR shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS
316.167.

11.00 " CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS
As required by ORS 305.385(6), CONTRACTOR certifies under penalty of perjury that the CONTRACTOR,
to the best of CONTRACTOR'S knowledge, is not in violation of any of the tax laws described in ORS
305.380(4).

12.00 " CiTY OCCUPATION TAX
Prior to starting work, CONTRACTOR shall pay the CITY occupation tax and provide the Public Works Department
with a copy of occupation tax receipt. CONTRACTOR shall, likewise, require ail subcontractors to pay the CITY
occupation tax and provide a copy of the receipt to the Public Works Department prior to commencement of work.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Agreement
Page 2



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C1TYOFWARRENTON

a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon

City Attorney Date

BY:

City Manager Date

ATTEST:

Title

Date

CONTRCATOR:

Contractor Date

ATTEST;

Title

Date

City ofWarrenlon
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Agreement
Page 3



PERFORMANCE BOND
For

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
For

The City ofWarrenton

AMOUNT$.

BOND NO.

KNOW ALL PEOPLE BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we. . hereinafter calied

(Name of Contractor)

the PRINCIPAL, as Principal, and

(Name of Surety)

a corporation and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of _ and authorized to transact

a surety business in the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the SURETY, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto

the City of Warrenton, a Municipal Corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the OBLIGEE, in the

penal sum of^^^^^ , Dollars

($__ ,) for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said PRiNCiPAL and the said

SURETY bind ourselves, our hears, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointiy and severaliy, firmiy by

these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT:

Whereas on the.„„,,,„ day of_ _ , 2021 the PRINCIPAL entered into a certain contract with the

OBLiGEE, a copy of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for the construction of:

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

CityofWarrenton, Oregon

NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINC!PAL herein shall faithfully and truly observe and comply with the terms of the contract

and shall weil and truly perform all matters and things undertaken to be performed under said contract upon the terms

proposed therein and shall promptly make payments to all persons supplying labor or material for any prosecution of

the work provided for each contract and shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecute against the OBLIGEE

on account of any iabor or material furnished, and shall promptiy pay all contributions or amounts due the State Accident

Insurance Fund and ail contributions or amounts due the State Un-employment Compensation Trust Fund incurred in

the performance of said contract and shall promptly, as due, make payment to the person, co-partnership, association

or corporation entitled thereto of the moneys and sums mentioned in Section 279 of the Oregon Revised Statutes, then

this obiigation is to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Performance Bond
Page 1



This performance bond shall also guarantee the improvement against defects in materials or workmanship for

a period of one (1) year from the date of written Substantial Completion acceptance of the subject project by

the OBLIGEE.

The total amount of the SURETY'S liabiiity under this bond both to the OBLIGEE and to the persons furnishing iabor or

materials, provisions and goods and to any other person or persons, shall in no event exceed the penalty hereof.

Provided, however, that the conditions of the obligation shall not apply to any money loaned or advanced to the

PRINCIPAL or to any subcontractor or other person in the performance of any such work, whether specificaliy provided

for in the contract or not.

This bond is executed for the purpose of comp!ying with Chapter 279 of Title 26, Oregon Revised Statutes, the

provisions of which are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three counterparts each one of which

shail be deemed an original, this the __ day of,„, „, 2021.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY;

(Corp. Seai) (Corp. Seal)

Company: Company:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

(Attach Power of Attorney)

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract.

IMPORTANT:

if CONTRACTOR is partnership, all partners should execute BOND.

Surety company executing BOND must be authorized to transact business in the State of

Oregon.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Performance Bond
Page 2



PAYMENT BOND
For

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
For

The City ofWarrenton

AMOUNT $

BOND NO.

KNOW ALL PEOPLE BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, , hereinafter called

(Name of Contractor)

the PRINCIPAL, as Principal, and

(Name of Surety)

a corporation and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of _ and authorized to transact

a surety business in the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the SURETY, as Surety, are heid and firmly bound unto

THE CITY OF WARRENTON, a Municipai Corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called the OBLIGEE, and

unto ali persons, firms and corporations who or which may furnish !abor, or who furnish materiais to perform as

described under the contract and to their successors and assigns in the total

aggregate penal sum of^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ ^ Dollars

($_._.__.,_._„_._) for the payment of which sum well and truiy to be made, the said PRINCIPAL and the said

SURETT' bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, Jointly and severaliy, firmly by

these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATtON IS SUCH THAT:

Whereas on the _ day of_, 2015 the PRINCiPAL entered into a
certain contract with the OBLIGEE, a copy of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for the construction of:

SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

City ofWarrenton, Oregon

NOW, THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall promptly make payment to alt persons, firms, and corporations furnishing

materials for, or performing !abor in the prosecution of the WORK provided for En such contract, and any authorized

extensions or modification thereof, including ai! amounts due for materials consumed or used In connection with the

construction of such WORK, and for a!! iabor cost incurred in such WORK including that by a SUBCONTRACTOR, and

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Payment Bond
Page 1



to any mechanic or material man lien holder whether it acquires its lien by operation of State or Federal law; then this

obligation shail be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, that beneficiaries or claimants hereunder shall be limited to the SUBCONTRACTORS, and persons, firms,

and corporations having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL or its SUBCONTRACTORS.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said SURETY for vaiue received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change,

extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be performed thereunder or the

specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive

notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of this contract or to the WORK or to

the SPECIFICATiONS.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: (a) Unless claimant,

other than one having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL shall have given written notice to any two of the foliowing:

the PRINCIPAL, the OBLIGEE, orthe SURETY above named within one hundred twenty (120) days after such claimant

did or performed the fast of the work or labor, or furnished the fast of the materiais for which said ciaim is made, stating

the materiais were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed. Such notice shall be served by

mailing the same by registered maii or certified mail, postage prepaid, in an enveSope addressed to the PRINCIPAL,

OBLIGEE, or SURETY, at any place where an office is regularly maintained for the transaction of business, or sen/ed

sn any manner in which legal process may be served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that

such service need not be made by a public officer. (b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which

PRINCIPAL ceased work on said CONTRACT, it being understood, however, that if any limitation embodied in the

BOND is prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shaf! be deemed to be amended so

as to be equal to the minimum period of [imitation permitted by such law,

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended automatically and

Immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the Contract not increasing the

contract price more than 25 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the SURETY to the full and faithful performance

of the Contract as so amended. The term "Amendment", wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this

BOND, the contract or the loan Documents shall include any alteration, addition, extension or modification of any

character whatsoever.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OBLIGEE and the PRINCIPAL shall abridge the right of

any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Payment Bond
Page 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three counterparts each one of which shall be deemed an

original, this the ^,,,_, , , day of __^ _^^^^^^ , 2021.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL: SURETY

(Corp. Seal) (Corp. Seal)

Company: Company:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Titie: Title:

(Attach Power of Attorney)

NOTE:

IMPORTANT:

Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract.

If CONTRACTOR is partnership, ail partners should execute BOND.

Surety company executing BOND must be authorized to transact business in the State of

Oregon.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Payment Bond
Page 3



General Conditions for Construction

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 00100 - GENERAL CONDITIONS ......................................................................................................................1

Section 00110 - Organization, Conventions, Abbreviations, and Definitions.........................................................1

00110.00 Organization of Specifications...................................................................................................................... 1

00110.05 Conventions Used ThroughouE the Specifications Include .,..,,..,...................................,,....,,,..,..........,,.,,,.,.1

00110.10 Abbreviations...............................................................................................................................................^

00110.20 Deffnitions........................................................................,...,,...,..,....,..,,..,.,..,...,.,,,...,...,...,,..,,.,,,..,,..,...,,.,^

Section 00120 - Bidding Requirements and Procedures.......................................................................................12

00120,10 Bid Booklet....,.....,......................,........,.........,............................................................................................^

00120.15 Examination of Work Site and Solicitation Documents; Consideration of Conditions to be
Encountered.............................................,,................................................................................................ 12

00120.16 Material, Equipment, and Method Substitutions ........................................................................................ 13

00120.17 Use of Agency-Owned Land for Staging or Storage Areas ........................................................................13

00120,20 Interpretation of Quantities in Bid Schedule ...............................................................................................13

00120.25 Subsurface Investigations .......................................................................................................................... 13

00120.30 Changes to Plans, Specifications, or Quantities before Opening of Bids ...................................................14

00120.40 Preparation of Bids..................................................................................................................................... 14

00120.45 Submittal of Bids......................................................................................................................................... 15

00120.50 Submitting Bids for More than One Contract.............................................................................................. 16

00120.60 Revision or Withdraws! of Bids.............................,...,....,.,,,..,,..,....,...,..,,..,........,..,,.....,..,..,..,,,.,,...,..,„.,,.,,, 16

00120.65 Opening and Comparing Bids..................................................................................................................... 16

00120.70 Rejection of Nonresponsive Bids....................,........................................................................................... 16

00120.80 Reciprocal Preference for Oregon Resident Bidders..................................................................................17

00120.90 Disquafification of Bidders.......................................................................................................................... 17

00120.91 Rejection of Bid on Grounds of Nonresponsibility of Bidder...,,..,,.,,...,....,....,..,..,....,....,...,...,..,,,..,..,,..,,.,,. 18

Section 00130 -Award and Execution of Contract................................................................................................19

00130.00 Consideration of Bids................................................................................................................................. 19

00130.10 Award of Contract....................................................................................................................................... 19

00130.15 Right to Protest Award................................................................................................................................20

00130.20 Cancellation of Award,................................................................................................................................20

00130.30 Contract Booklet,........................................................................................................................................20

00130.40 Contract Submitiais....................................................................................................................................20

00130.50 Execution of Contract and Bonds,..............................................................................................................21

00130.60 Failure to Execute Contract and Bonds......................................................................................................22

00130.70 Release of Bid Guaranties......................................................................................................................... 22

00130.80 Project Site Restrictions...,..,....,,,..,,..,....,...,.,,.....,......,.,...........................................................................^

00130.90 Notice to Proceed.......................................................................................................................................22

Section 00140-Scope of Work.................................................................................................................................23

00140,00 Purpose of Contract,..................................................................................................................................23

00140.10 Typical Sections.....................................................................,.......,,,.,,.......,..,,..,..,.....,.,.,.,,...,...,...,,..,,..,,.,^

00140.20 Thickness...................................................................................................................................................^

00140.30 Agency-Required Changes in the Work ..................................................................................................... 23

00140.40 Differing Site Conditions..............................................,...........,...„...,.,,,..,....,..,,.,,..,,.,,,......,..,...,.......,,,.,,.,, 24

00140.50 Environmental Pollution Changes............................................................................................................... 24

00140,60 Extra Work.................................................................................................................................................^

00140.65 Disputed Work.....................................................................................................................

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions TOC



00150.02 inspector's Authority and DU^QS.................................................................................................................27

00150.10 Coordination of Contract Documents..........................................................................................................27

00150.15 Construction Stakes, Lines, and Grades..................................................................................,,...............,28

00150.25 Acceptability of Materials and Work.........................................................................................................29

00150.30 Delivery of Notices......................................................................................................................................29

00150.37 Equipment Lists and Other SubmEttals .......................................................................................................33

00150.40 Cooperation and Superintendence by the Contractor.................................................................................33

00150.50 Cooperation with Utiiities............................................................................................................................34

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors ...........................................................................................................35

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors........................................................................................................... 36

00150.60 Construction Equipment Restrictions..............................................................................,........................... 37

00150.70 Detrimental Operations............................................................................................................................... 37

00150.75 Protection and Maintenance of Work During Construction......................................................................... 37

00150.80 Removal of Unacceptable and Unauthorized Work....................................................................................38

00150.90 Final Inspection ..........................................................................................................................................38

00150.91 Post-Construction Review.........................................................................................................................38

00150.95 Final Acceptance........................................................................................................................................39

00150.96 Maintenance Warranties and Guarantees.....................................................................................,.,,..,....., 39

00150.97 Responsibility for Materiais and Workmanship...........................................................................................39

Section 00160 - Source of Materials .„...........—.-......—............................................................................................40

00160.00 Definitions..............................................,..............,,.,....,..,....,..,,...,......................................................^

00160.01 Notification of Source of Supply and Materials...........,...............................................................................40

00160.05 Quaiified Products List (QPL).....................................................................................................................40

00160.10 Ordering, Producing, and Furnishing Materials ..........................................................................................40

00160.20 Preferences for Materials ...........................................................................................................................41

00160.30 Agency-Furnished Materials.,...............,,.................................................................................................... 41

00160.50 Agency-ControSled Land; Limitations and Requirements............................................................................41

00160.60 Contractor-Furnished MateriaSsand Sources............................................................................................. 42

00160.70 Requirements for Plant Operations ............................................................................................................42

00160.80 Requirements for Sources of Borrow and Aggregate.................................................................................42

Section 00165 " Quality of Materials .........................................................................................................................44

00165.00 General.....................................................................................................................................................^

00165.01 Rejected Materials.....................................................................................................................................44

00165.03 Testing by Agency......................................................................................................................................44

00165.04 Costs of Testing..........................................................................................................................................44

00165.10 Materials Acceptance Guides..........................................................................................................,..,,...,.. 44

00165.20 Materials Specifications and Test Method References,..............................................................................44

00165.30 Fieid-Tested Materials...............................................................................................................................45

00165.35 Nonfield-Tested Materials...........................................................................................................................45

00165.50 Statistical Acceptance Sampling and Testing..................................,,..............,,......................................... 46

00165.75 Storage and Handling of Materials.............,...............,,,............................................................................ 46

Section 00170 - Legai Relations and Responsibilities.,....,......................................,,..,....,.......,,...,..............,........^?

00170.00 Genera!.............,,..,,,.................................................................................................................................

00170.01 Other Agencies Affecting Agency Contracts............................................................................................,..47

00170.02 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes............................................................,........,....,.,.,......................................49

00170.03 Furnishing Right-of-Way and Permits....

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions TOC



00170,71 Independent Contractor Status................................................................................................................... 58

00170.72 Indemnity/HoidHarmiess........................................................................................................................... 58

00170.7'1! Employee Drug Testing Program ...............................................................................................................59

00170.78 Conflict of Interest......................................................................................................................................59

00170.79 Third Party Beneficiary ...............................................................................................................................59

00170.80 Responsibility for Damage to Work .......................................................................................................59

00170.82 Responsibility for Damage to Property and Facilities .................................................................................60

00170.85 Responsibility for Defective Work.............................................................................................................60

00170.89 Protection of Utility, Fire-control, and Railroad Property and Sen/ices; Repair; Roadway
Restoration,................................................................................................,.........,,..,,....,.,.......,,.,............,. 61

00170.92 Fencing, Protecting Stock, and Safeguarding Excavations........................................................................ 62

00170.93 Trespass,..........................................................................................................,.....,,.,.,..,.,...,,..,,,,.,....,....,^

00170.94 Use of Explosives...................................................................................................................................,..,62

00170.94 Use of Explosives.......................................................................................................................................62

Section 00180 " Prosecution and Progress .............................................................................................................63

00180.00 Scope.......................................................................................................................................................^

00180.05 Assignment/Delegation of Contract..........................................................................................................63

00180.06 Assignment of Funds Due under the Contract............................................................................................63

00180.10 Responsibility for Contract..........................................................................................................................63

00180.15 Agency's Right to Do Work at Contractor's Expense..............................................................................,.,.63

00180.20 Subcontracting Limitations .........................................................................................................................63

00180.21 Subcontracting................................................................,.,.,.,,...,..,,..,,......................................................^

00180.22 Payments to Subcontractors and Agents of the Contractor........................................................................ 65

00180.30 Materials, Equipment, and Work Force ......................................................................................................66

00180.31 Required Materials, Equipment, and Methods............................................................................................66

00180.40 Limitation of Operations..,,...,,...,...,,.,,,..,,....,.....,.,.......................................................................................^

00180.41 Project Work Schedules.............................................................................................................................67

00180.42 Preconstruction Conference....................,.................................................................................................. 74

00180.-43 Commencement and Performance of Work ...............................................................................................74

00180.50 Contract Time to Complete Work .............................................................................................................76

00180.60 Notice of Delay...........................................................................................................................................77

00180.65 Rtght-of-Way and Access Delays...............................................................................................................77

00180.70 Suspension of Work ...................................................................................................................................77

00180.80 Adjustment of Contract Time.....................................................................................................................78

OQ'180.85 Failure to Complete on Time; Liquidated Damages....................................................................................79

00180.90 Termination of Contract and Substituted Performance............................................................................... 80

Section 00190 " Measurement of Pay Quantities..................................................................................................84

00190.00 Scope.......................................................................................................................................................^

00190.10 Measurement Guideiines..............................................................................................................,,..,,..,,..,. 84

00190.20 Contractor to Provide Vehicle Weigh Scales..............................................................................................85

00190.30 Plant Scales ...............................................................................................................................................87

Section 00195 - Payment...........................................................................................................................................88

00195.00 Scope and Limit..........................................................................................................................................88

00195.10 Payment For Changes in Materials Costs ..................................................................................................88

00195.20 Changes to Plans or Character of Work.................................................................................................... 89

00195.30 Differing Site Conditions............................

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions TOC



Section 00197 "Payment for Force Account Work .„..........-........................................„...................................—-.98

00197.00 Scope.....................................................................................................................................................

00197.01 General....................................................................................................................................................... 9^

00197,10 Materials...............................................................................................................................................^

00197.20 Equipment.............,..,.,..,,..,.................................................................................,,..,..................................^

00197.30 Labor.....................................................................................................................................................-^

00197.80 Percentage Allowances............................................................................................................................ 100

00197.90 Billings....................................................................................................................................................^

Section 00199 - Disagreements, Protests and Claims...........„.,.,.„.„...................................................................102

00199.00 General.................................................................................................................................................... 10^

00199.10 Procedure for Resolving Disagreements.............................,...................,,...............................................102

00199.20 Protest Procedure..................................................................................................................................... 102

00199.30 Claims Procedure..................................................................................................................................... 103

00199.40 Claim Decision: Review; Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies............................................................106

00199.50 Mediation..............................................................................................................................................

00199.60 Review of Determination Regarding Records.,........................................................................................ 108

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions TOC



PART 00100 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

Section 00110 - Organization, Conventions, Abbreviations, and Definitions

Organization

00110.00 Organization of Specifications - The Specifications are comprised of the foliowing:

• The "Genera! Conditions for Construction for the City ofWarrenton (Agency)," pubiished by the Agency, which
contain Part 00100 "Genera! Conditions", which deal with the solicitation process and contractuai relationships;

• The "2018 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction," which contain Parts 00200 through 03000,
published by the Oregon Department of Transportation which contain the detailed "Technical Specifications"
involved in prosecution of the Work, organized by subject matter; and

• The Special Provisions.

In addition, throughout the Specifications:

* Each Part is divided into Sections and Subsections.

• Reference to a Section includes all applicable requirements of the Section.

* When referring to a Subsection, only the number of the Subsection is used; the word "Subsection" is implied.

• Where Section and Subsection numbers are not consecutive, the inten/a! has been reserved for use En the
Special Provisions or future expansion of the Standard Specifications.

Conventions

00110.05 Conventions Used Throughout the Specifications Include:

(a) Grammar - The "General Conditions for Construction for the City of Warrenton (Agency)", part 00100 "General
Conditions", is written in the indicative mood, in which the subject is expressed. The "2015 Oregon Standard
Specifications for Construction", published by the Oregon Department of Transportation, which contain parts 00200
through 03000, the detaiied "Technical Specifications", are generally written in the imperative mood, En which the
subject is implied. Therefore, throughout Parts 00200 through 03000, and on the Plans:

• The subject, "the Contractor", is implied.

* "Shall" refers to action required of the Contractor, and is implied.

* "Wi\\" refers to decisions or actions of the Agency and/or the Engineer.

* The following words, or words of equivalent meaning, refer to the actions of the Agency and/or the
Engineer, unless otherwise stated: "allowed", "directed", "established", "permitted", "ordered", "designated",
"prescribed", "required", "determined".

• The words "approved", "acceptable", "authorized", "satisfactory", "suitable", "considered", and
"rejected", "denied", "disapproved", or words of equivalent meaning, mean by or to the Agency and/or the
Engineer, subject in each case to Section 00150 of the Genera! Conditions.

• The words "as shown", "shown", "as indicated", or "indicated" mean "as indicated on the Plans".

• Certain Subsections labeled "Payment" contain statements to the effect that "payment wil! be made at the
Contract amounts for the following items" (foliowed by a list of items). In such cases the Agency shali pay
for only those Pay Items listed in the Schedule of Items.

(b) Capitalization of Terms - CapitaSized terms, other than titles, abbreviations, and grammatical usage, indicate
that they have been given a defined meaning in the Standard Specifications. Refer to Section 00110.20 "Definitions".
Defined terms wil! always be capitalized in Part 00100; in Parts 00200 through 03000, defined terms will generally
not be capitalized, with the notable exception of "the Contractor", "the Agency", and "the Engineer".

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction

Page 1



(c) Punctuafion - In this pubiication the "outside method" of punctuation is employed for placement of the comma
and the period with respect to quotation marks. Only punctuation that is part of the quoted matter is placed within
quotation marks.

(d) References to Laws, Acts, Regulations, Rules, Ordinances, Statutes, Orders, and Permits - References
are made in the text of the Specifications to "laws", "acts", "rules", "statutes", "regulations", "ordinances", etc.
(collectively referred to for purposes of this Subsection as "Law"), and to "orders" and "permits" (issued by a
governmental authority, whether local, State, or federal, and collectiveiy referred to for purposes of this Subsection
as "Permits"). Reference is also made to "applicable laws and regulations". The following conventions appSy in
interpreting these terms, as used in the Specifications.

• Statutes and Rules-Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) and Oregon Administrative Rufes (OAR)
referenced in the Specifications are accessib!e on line, including through the Oregon Legislative Counsel
Committee web site and through the Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division web site.

• Law - In each case, unless otherwise expressly stated therein, the Law is to be understood to be the
current version in effect. This aiso applies where a specific Law is referenced or cited, regardless of
whether the text of the Law has been included in the Specifications or not, and regardless of whether the
text of the Law has been summarized or paraphrased. In each case, the current version of the Law is
applicable under any Contract. The reader is therefore cautioned to check the actual text of the Law to
confirm that the text included in the Specifications has not been modified or superseded.

• Permits - Orders and permits issued by a government agency may be modified during the course of
performing the Work under a Contract. Therefore, wherever the term "order" or "permit" is used in the
Specifications, it is intended to refer to the then-current version. That version may be embodied in a
modified, superseding order or permit, or it may consist of all terms and conditions of prior orders or permits
that have not been superseded, as we!l as the additional terms added by amendment or supplement. In
certain cases, the orders and/or permits are identified by name in the Specifications; in other cases the
terms are used in the generic sense. The reader is cautioned to check the text(s) of each order and permit
identified either by name or by generic reference.

• Applicable Laws and Regulations - Where the phrase "appiicabie laws and regulations" appears,
it Is to be understood as including all applicabie laws, acts, regulations, administrative rules, ordinances,
statutes, and orders and permits issued by a governmental or regulatory authority.

Abbreviations

00110.10 Abbreviations - Following are meanings of abbreviations used in the Standard Specifications, in the
Special Provisions, on the Plans, and in other Contract Documents. Other abbreviations and meanings of abbreviations
may be in the individual Sections of the Standard Specifications to which they apply, in the Special Provisions, and in
OAR 731-005 and OAR 731-007.

AAR - Association of American Railroads
AASHTO ~ American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
ABC ~ Associated Builders and Contractors, Inc.

AC - Asphalt Concrete
AC! - American Concrete Institute

ACP - Asphalt Concrete Pavement
ACWS ~ Asphait Concrete Wearing Surface
AGC - Associated General Contractors of America

AIA - American Institute of Architects
AISC - American Institute of Steel Construction
A!SI - American Iron and Steel Institute
A1TC - American Institute of Timber Construction
ANS! - American Nationa! Standards Institute
APA - Engineered Wood Association
APWA - American Pubiic Works Association
AREMA - American Railway Engineering and Maintenance of Right-of-Way Association
ASCE - American Society of Civil Engineers

CityofWarrenton
SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 2



ASME - American Society of Mechanical Engineers
ASTM " American Society for Testing and Materials
ATPB - Asphalt Treated Pemneable Base
AWG - American Wire Gauge
AWPA - American Wood Protection Association
AWS - American Welding Society
AWWA - American Water Works Association
CAgT - Certified Aggregate Technician
CAT-i - Certified Asphalt Technician I
CAT-!! - Certified AsphaSt Technician I!
CBM - Certified Ballast Manufacturers
CCO " Contract Change Order

OCT - Concrete Control Technician
CDT - Certified Density Technician
CEBT ~ Certified Embankment and Base Technician
CMDT - Certified Mixture Design Technician
CPF - Composite Pay Factor
CRSf - Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute
CFR - Code of Federal Regulations
CS - Commerdai Standard, Commodity Standards Division, U.S. Department of Commerce

D1.1 - Structurai Welding Code - Steel, American Welding Society, current edition

D1.5 - Bridge Welding Code, American Weidsng Society, current edition
DBE - Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
DEQ - Department of Environmental Quality, State of Oregon
DOGAMf - Department of Geology and Mineral industries, State of Oregon
DSL - Department of State Lands, State of Oregon
EAC - Emutsifled Asphait Concrete
EPA " U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

ESCP - Erosion and Sediment Control P!an
FHWA - Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation
FSS - Federal Specifications and Standards, Generai Services Administration
GSA - General Services Administration

[CEA - Insuiated Cable Engineers Association (formerly IPCEA)
IES - illuminating Engineering Society
IMSA - International Municipal Signal Association
[SO - international Standards Organization
ITE - Institute of Transportation Engineers
JMF - Job Mix Formula
MFTP - Manual of Field Test Procedures (ODOT)
MIL - Military Specifications
MSC - Minor Structure Concrete

MUTCD - Manual on Uniform Traffic Contro! Devices for Streets and Highways, FHWA, U.S. Department of
Transportation

NEC - National Electrical Code
NEMA - National Electrical Manufacturer's Association

NESC - National Electrical Safety Code
NIST - National institute of Standards and Technology
NPDES - National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NPS - Nominal Pipe Size (dimensionless)
OAR - Oregon Administrative Rules
ODA " Oregon Department of Agriculture
ODOT " Oregon Department of Transportation
ORS - Oregon Revised Statutes
OR-OSHA - Oregon Occupational Safety and Heaith Division of the Department of Consumer and Business

Services

OSHA - Occupational Safety and Health Administration, U.S. Department of Labor
PCA ~ Portland Cement Association

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 3



PCC - Portland Cement Concrete
PCt " PrecasVPrestressed Concrete Institute

PCP - PolEution Control Pian
PF - Pay Factor of a constituent

PLS - Professional Land Surveyor

PMBB - Plant Mixed Bituminous Base
PTI - Post-Tensioning Institute

PUC - Public Utility Commission, State of Oregon
QA - Quality Assurance

QC - Quality Control
QCT - Quality Contro! Technician
QL - Quality Level
QPL - Qualified Products List
RAP - RecSaimed Asphalt Pavement
REA - Rural Electrification Administration, U.S. Department of Agricuiture
RMA - Radio Manufacturers Association or Rubber Manufacturers Association

SAE - Society of Automotive Engineers
Sl - Internationai System of Units (Systeme Internationale)
SRCM " Soil and Rock Cfassification Manua! (ODOT)
SSPC - Society for Protective Coatings
T - Tolerances, AASHTO Test Method
TM - Test Method (ODOT)
TV - Target Value
UBC - Uniform Building Code (as adopted by the State of Oregon)
UL - Underwriters Laboratory, Inc.

UPC - Uniform Plumbing Code (as adopted by the State of Oregon)
USC - United States Code
WAQTC - Western Alliance for Quality Transportation Construction
WCLIB - West Coast Lumber Inspection Bureau
WWPA - Western Wood Products Association

Definitions

00110.20 Definitions - Fol!owing are definitions of words and phrases used in the Standard Specifications, in the
Special Provisions, on the Plans, and In other Contract Documents. Other definitions may be in the individual Sections
of the Standard Specifications to which they apply, in the Special Provisions, and in OAR 731-005 and OAR 731-007.

Act of God or Nature - A natural phenomenon of such catastrophic proportions or intensity as would reasonably
prevent performance.

Addendum - A written or graphic modification, issued before the opening of Bids, which revises, adds to, or deletes
information in the Solicitation Documents or previously issued Addenda.

Additional Work" Increased quantities of any Pay Item for which a unit price has been established, or the increase of
Work within the scope of the Contract.

Advertisement - The public announcement (Call for Bids) inviting Bids for Work to be performed or Materials to be
furnished.

Agency - The City of Warrenton, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, which has entered into a Contract
with the Contractor.

Agency-Controlled Lands - Lands owned by the Agency, or controifed by the Agency under lease or agreement, or
under the jurisdiction and control of the Agency for the purposes of the Contract.

Aggregate - Rock of specified quality and gradation.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction

Page 4



Attorney in Fact - An Entity appointed by another to act in its place, either for some particular purpose or for the
transaction of business in general,

Award - Written notification to the Bidder that the Bidder has been awarded a Contract.

Base - A Course of specified material of specified thickness placed below the Pavement.

Bid - A competitive offer, binding on the Bidder and submitted in response to an invitation to bid.

Bid Bond - The Surety bond for Bid guarantee.

Bid Booklet - The information inciuded in the Solicitation Documents that contain the information identified in
00120.10.

Bid Closing - The date and time after which Bids, Bid modifications, and Bid withdrawals wilt no longer be accepted.

Bid Documents " See under Solicitation Document

Bid Opening - The date and time Bids are opened.

Bid Schedule ~ The lump sum Pay Item; or the list of Pay Items, their units of measurement, and estimated quantities,
(When a Contract is awarded, the Bid Schedule becomes the Schedule of Items.)

Bid Section - The portion of the Bsd Bookiet containing all pages after the Bidder's checklist and before the appendix.

Bidder - An Entity that submits a Bid in response to an invitation to bid.

Bike Lane - A lane in the Traveled Way, designated by striping and Pavement markings for the preferential or exclusive
use of bicyclists.

Borrow - Material lying outside of planned or required Roadbed excavation used to complete Project earthwork.

Boulders - Particies of rock that will not pass a 12 inch square opening.

Bridge ~ A single or multipie span Structure, including supports, that carries motorized and non-motorized vehicles,
pedestrians, or utilities on a Roadway, walk, or track over a watercourse, highway, railroad, or other feature.

Buttress - A rock fill placed at the toe of a landslide or potential landslide in order to resist slide movement.

Calendar Day - Any day shown on the caiendar, beginning and ending at midnight.

Call for Bids " The public announcement inviting Bids for Work to be performed or Materials to be provided.

Camber - A slight arch in a surface or Structure to compensate for loading.

Change Order - A written order issued by the Engineer to the Contractor modifying Work required by the Contract, or
adding Work within the scope of the Contract, and, if applicable, establishing the basis of payment for the modified
Work.

Class of Work - A designation referring to the type of Work in which Bidders must be pre-qualified, if prequaliftcation
is required.

Ciay " Soil passing a No. 200 sseve that can be made to exhibit plasticity (putty-like properties) within a range of water
contents.

Clear Zone - Roadside border area, starting at the edge of the Traveled Way, that is available for safe use by errant
vehicles. Establishing a minimum width Clear Zone implies that rigid objects and certain other hazards within the Clear
Zone should be relocated outside the Ciear Zone, or shielded, or remodeled to make them break away on Impact or be
safeiy traversable.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 5



Close Conformance - Where working tolerances are given on the P!ans or in the Specifications, Close Conformance
means compliance with those tolerances, Where working tolerances are not given, Close Conformance means
compSiance, in the Engineer's judgment, with reasonable and customary manufacturing and construction tolerances.

Coarse Aggregate - Crushed Rock or crushed Gravel retained on a 1/4 inch sieve, with aliowabie undersize.

Cobbles - Particles of Rock, rounded or not, that will pass a 12 inch square opening and be retained on a 3 inch sieve.

Commerciai Grade Concrete - Concrete furnished according to Contractor proportioning, placed En minor Structures
and finished as specified.

Conduct Disqualification - A disqualification under ORS 279C.440.

Construction Contracts Unit - Agency's office that administers construction contracts.

Contract ~ The written agreement between the Agency and the Contractor, including without limitation all Contract
Documents, describing the Work to be compSeted and defining the rights and obligations of the Agency and the
Contractor.

Contract Administration Engineer-The Agency representative presiding over Agency-level claims review under
00199.40.

Contract Amount - Lump sum Pay Item or the sum of the Pay Item amounts computed by multiplying the Pay Item
quantities by the unit prices in the Scheduie of Items.

Contract Day - A day counted for purposes of charging Contract Time.

Contract Documents" Solicitation Documents, Specifications, Standard and Supplementary Drawings, Contract
booklet, Change Orders, Force Account Work orders, pay documents issued by the Agency, Materials certifications,
Project Work schedules, final estimate, written orders and authorizations issued by the Agency, Material source
development and reciamation plans, and permits, orders and authorizations obtained by the Contractor or Agency
appticabSe to the Project, as weli as al! documents incorporated by reference therein.

Contract Time ~ The amount of time allowed to complete the Work under the Contract.

Contractor - The Entity awarded the Contract according to the solicitation.

Correction Period - Period from Second Notification to Final Acceptance as per Subsection 00170.85(b).

Course - A specified Surfacing Material placed in one or more Lifts to a specified thickness.

Coverage - One Pass by a piece of Equipment over an entire designated area.

Cross Section - The exact image formed by a plane cutting through an object, usually at right angles to a central axis,
to determine area.

Day - A Calendar Day including weekdays, weekends, and holidays, unless otherwise specified.

Defective - An adjective which when modifying the word "Work" refers to work that: (1) is unsatisfactory, fauity or
deficient; (2) does not conform to the Contract Documents; (3) does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test
for approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or (4) has been damaged prior to Engineer's issuance of Third
Notification (Finai CompSetion).

Design Engineer - The individual or entity named in the Special Provisions who designed part or ail of the Project and
who, by contract, has been assigned duties and responsibilities to assist Agency and Project Manager En administration
of the Contract,

Digital Sig nature - A form of electronic signature that is registered with a certification authority, e.g.,VerESign or similar
digital signature software company, which requires a password to be entered in order to generate the digital signature
upon the electronic document. Once the digits! signature is applied, any alteration of the document results in the
elimination of the digital signature on the document

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 6



Disqualification - The predusion of a Person from contracting with a Contracting Agency for a period of time En
accordance with OAR 137-049-0370.

Durable Rock - Rock that has a siake durability index of at least 90% based on a two-cyde slake durability test,
according to ASTM D 4644. In the absence of test resuSts, the Engineer may evaluate the durability visually.

Emuisified Asphalt - Emuisified asphait cement.

Emulsified Asphalt Concrete - A mixture of Emulsified Asphalt and graded Aggregate.

Engineer (Project Manager) - See Project Manager.

Entity -A natural person capable of being tegally bound, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, corporation,
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership, profit or nonprofit unincorporated association, business
trust, two or more persons having a joint or common economic interest, or any other person with legal capacity to
contract, or a government or governmental subdivision.

Equipment-All machinery, tools, manufactured products, and fabricated items needed to complete the Contractor
specified for incorporation into the Work.

Establishment Period - The time specified to assure satisfactory establishment and growth of planted Materials.

Existing Surfacing - Pavements, siabs, curbs, gutters, walks, driveways, and similar constructions of bricks, blocks,
Portland cement concrete, bituminous treated materials, and granular surfacing materials on existing Highways.

Extra Work - Work not included in the Contract, but deemed by the Engineer to be necessary to compiete the Project.

Field Order - A written order issued by the Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but which may not
involve a change in the Contract Amount or the Contract Times.

Final Acceptance - Written confirmation by the Agency that the Project has been completed according to the Contract
including ati corrective work identified by the Agency during the Correction Period, with the exception of latent defects
and Warranty obligations, if any, and has been accepted.

Final Inspection ~ The inspection conducted by the Engineer to determine that the Project has been completed
according to the Contract.

Fine Aggregate - Crushed Rock, crushed Gravel, or Sand that passes a 1/4 inch sieve, with allowable oversize.

First Notification ~ Written Notice to Proceed issued to the Contractor by the Engineer,

Foreign Contractor - A contractor that is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of Oregon. See
OAR 137-049-0480.

Force Account Work" Items of Extra Work ordered by the Engineer that are to be paid according to Section 00197.

Granular Materia! - Graded and selected free-draining material composed of particles of Rock, Sand, and Gravel.

Gravel - Particles of Rock, rounded or not, that will pass a 3 inch sieve and be retained on a No. 4 sieve.

Highway - Every road, street, thoroughfare and place, including bridges, viaducts and other structures within the
boundaries of the State, open, used or intended for use by vehicular traffic.

Incidental - A term identifying those acts, services, transactions, property, Equipment, labor, Materials, or other items
for which the Agency will make no separate or additional payment.

Inspector" The representative of the Engineer authorized to inspect and report on Contract performance,

Leveling - Placing a variabie-thickness Course of Materials to restore horizontal and vertical uniformity to existing
Pavements, normally continuous throughout the Project.

Lift - The compacted thickness of material placed by Equipment in a single Pass.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Con&taicEion
Page?



Mandatory Source-A material source provided by the Agency from which the Contractor is required to obtain
Materials, (see 00160.00(b) and 00160.40)

Materials - Any natural or manmade substance specified for use in the construction of the Project or for incorporation
into the Work.

Median - The portion of a divided Highway separating traffic traveling in opposite directions,

Milestone - A principal event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate compSetion date or time
prior to Substantial Compietion of all the Work.

Multiple Course Construction - Two or more Courses, exclusive of Patching or Leveling, placed over the entire
Roadway width.

IViultf-Use Path - That portion of the Highway Right-of-Way or a separate Rjght-of-Way, physically separated from
motor vehicle traffic and designated for use by pedestrians, bicyciists and other non-motorized users.

Neat Line - Theoretical iines specified or indicated on the Plans for measurement of quantities.

Nondurable Rock - Rock that has a sfake durability index of less than 90% based on a two-cycle slake durability test,
as tested by ASTM D 4644, or Rock that is observed to readiiy degrade by air, water, and mechanicai influence.

Notice to Proceed - Written notice authorizing the Contractor to begin performance of the Work.

On-Site Work - Any Work taking piace on the Project Site, induding designated staging areas adjacent to the Project
Site, except for instaHation of covered temporary signs according to Section 00225.

Organic Soil - A Soii with sufficient organic content to influence the Soil properties.

Panel - The width of specified Material being placed by Equipment in a single Pass,

Pass - One movement of a piece of Equipment over a particular location.

Patching - Placing a vanable-thickness Course of Materials to correct sags, dips, and/or bumps to the existing grade
and Cross Section, normally intermittent throughout the Project.

Pavement - AsphaSt concrete or portland cement concrete placed for the use of motor vehicles, bicycles, or pedestrians
on Roadways, Shoulders, Muiti-Use Paths and parking areas,

Pay Item (Contract Item) - A specific unit of Work for which a price is provided in the Contract.

Payment Bond - The approved security furnished by the Contractor's Surety as a guaranty of the Contractor's
performance of its obligation to pay promptly in full ail sums due for Materials, Equipment, and iabor furnished to
complete the Work,

Peat - A Soil composed primarily ofvegetatsve matter in various stages ofdecomposition, usually with an organic odor,
dark brown to black color, and a spongy consistency.

Performance Bond - The approved security furnished by the Contractor's Surety as a guaranty of the Contractor's
performance of the Contract.

Plans (Drawings) - Standard and Supplemental Drawings, and reviewed unstamped and stamped Shop Drawings
and Deferred Submsttals. See 00150.10 and 00150.35.

Project - The sum of all Work to be performed under the Contract,

Project Manager (Engineer) - The Agency's representative assigned by the Agency to administer the Contract who
assumes the responsibilities, duties and authorities of the Project Manager (Engineer) as indicated throughout the
Contract Documents.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 sl Street
General Conditions For Construction
Pages



Project Site - The geographicai dimensions of the rea! property on which the Work is to be performed, inciuding
designated contiguous staging areas.

Prospective Source - A Material source provided by the Agency, from which the Contractor has the option of obtaining
Materials, (see 00160.00(a) and 00160.40)

Publicly-Owned Equipment - Equipment acquired by a state, county, municipaiily or political subdivision primarily for
use in its own operations.

Public Traffic" Vehicular or pedestrian movement, not associated with the Contract Work, on a public way.

Railroad " Publicly or privately owned rail carriers, including passenger, freight, and commuter rail carriers, their
tenants, and licensees. Also, Utilities that jointly own or use such facilities,

Right-of-Way - Land, property, or property interest, usually in a strip, acquired for or devoted to transportation or other
public works purposes.

Roadbed - Completed excavations and embankments for the Subgrade, including ditches, side slopes, and slope
founding, if any.

Roadside - The area between the outside edges of the Shoulders and the Right-of-Way boundaries. Unpaved median
areas between inside Shoulders of divided Highways and infielct areas of interchanges are included,

Roadway ~ That portion of a Highway improved, designed, or ordinarily used for vehicuiar travel. exclusive of the bemn
or Shoulder, If a Highway includes two or more separate Roadways, the term "Roadway" refers to any such Roadway
separately, but not to all such Roadways collectively, (see Traveled Way)

Rock - Natural deposit of solid material composed of one or more minerais occurring in large masses or fragments.

Sand - Particles of Rock that will pass a No. 4 sieve and be retained on a No. 200 sjeve,

Schedufe of Items - The list of Pay Items, their units of measurement, estimated quantities, and prices.

Schedule of Values - The breakdown of the values of the component elements comprising a lump sum Pay Item,

Second Notification - Written acknowledgment by the Engineer of the Substantial Completion of a Milestone or of the
Work according to 00180.50(g).

Shoulder-The part of a Roadbed contiguous to the Traveled Way or Roadway, whether paved or unpaved, for
accommodating stopped vehicles, for emergency use and for lateral support of Base and surface Courses.

Silt - Soii passing a No. 200 sieve that is nonplastic or exhibits very low plastidty,

Single Course Construction - A wearing Course on!y, not including patching or leveling Courses or partial width Base
Course.

Slope - Vertical distance to horizontal distance, unless otherwise specified.

Soil - Accumulations of particles produced by the disintegration of Rock, which sometimes contains organic matter.
Particles may vary in size from Ciay to Boulders.

Solicitation Document - Documents which define the procurement of a public improvement Project, including, but not
limited to, the Bid Booklet, Agency-provided Plans, Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, Addenda, and which
includes all documents incorporated by reference. May also be cailed Bid Documents,

Special Provisions - The special directions, provisions, and requirements specific to a Project that supplement or
modify the Standard Specifications. Permits and orders governing the Project that are issued directly to the Agency by
a governmental or regulatory authority are considered to be part of the Special Provisions, to the extent and under the
conditions stipulated in the Special Provisions.

Specifications - The Standard Specifications and Special Provisions, together with all provisions of other documents
incorporated therein by reference.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1sE Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 9



Standard Drawings - The Agency-prepared detailed drawings for Work or methods of construction that normaliy do
not change from project to project.

Standard Specifications ~ The "General Conditions for Construction for the City of Warrenton" published by the
Agency, and the "2018 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction", Parts 00200 through 03000, "Technical
Specifications", published by the Oregon Department of Transportation as amended by the Agency. It provides
directions, provisions, and requirements necessary for performing public improvement projects.

State - The State of Oregon.

Structures - Bridges, retaining walls, endwalis, cribbing, buildings, culverts, manhoSes, catch basins, drop inlets,
sewers, service pipes, underdrains, foundation drains, and other similar features which may be encountered in the
Work.

Subbase - A Course of specified material of specified thickness between the Subgrade and a Base.

Subcontractor- An Entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or another Subcontractor, to perform a portion
of the Work.

Subgrade - The top surface of completed earthwork on which Subbase, Base, Surfacing, Pavement, or a Course of
other Material is to be placed.

Substantial Completion-The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where,
in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficientiy complete, in accordance with the Contract
Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended.

.Substructure - Those parts of a Structure which support the Superstructure, incSuding bents, piers, abutments, and
integrally built wingwalls, up to the surfaces on which bearing devices rest. Substmcture also includes portions above
bearing surfaces when those portions are built integrally with a Substmcture unit (e.g., backwaiis of abutments). When
Substructure and Superstructure elements are built integrally, the division between Substructure and Superstructure is
considered to be at the bottom soffit of the longitudinal or transverse beam, whichever is lower. Culverts and rigid
frames are considered to be entirely Substructure.

Superstructure - Those parts of a Structure above the Substructure, including bearing devices.

Supplemental Drawings-The Agency-prepared detailed drawings for Work or methods of construction that are
Project specific, and are denoted by title in the Project title block.

Supplier - The Entity that furnishes goods to be incorporated into the Work.

Surety - The Entity that issues the bond.

Surfacing - The Course or Courses of material on the Traveled Way, auxiliary lanes, Shoulders, or parking areas for
vehicle use.

Third Notification - Written acknowledgment by the Engineer, subject to Finai Acceptance, that as of the date of the
notification the Contractor has achieved Final Completion of the Project according to the Contract, including without
limitation completion of ali minor corrective work, Equipment and plant removal, site clean-up, and submittai of all
certifications, bills, forms and documents required under the Contract.

Ton - One short ton of 2,000 pounds (Ton, ton, Tn, or T).

Topsoil - Soil ready for use in a planting bed.

Traffic Lane - That part of the Traveled Way marked for moving a single iine of vehicles.

Traveled Way - That part of the Highway for moving vehicles, exclusive of berms and Shoulders.

Typical Section - That Cross Section established by the Plans which represents in general the lines to which the
Contractor shal! work in the performance of the Contract.

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 10



Unsuitable Material - Frozen material, or material that contains organic matter, muck, humus, peat, sticks, debris,
chemicais, toxic matter, or other deleterious materiais not normally suitable for use in earthwork.

Utility - A line, facility, or system for producing, transmitting, or distributing communications, power, electricity, heat,
gas, oil, water, steam, waste, storm water not connected with highway drainage, or any other similar commodity which
directly or indirectly serves the public. The term may also mean the utility company, district, or cooperative owning and
operating such facilities, induding any wholly-owned or controlled subsidiary.

Warranty Bond - The approved security furnished by the Contractor's, Subcontractor's, Manufacturer's, Instalfer's or
Supplier's Surety as a guaranty of performance of their respective warranty obligations.

Wetlands - Areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to
support, and that under normal circumstances do support, vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated Soil
conditions. Wetiands generaily include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas.

Work-The furnishing of all Materials, Equipment, iabor, and incidentals necessary to successfuily complete any
individual Pay Item or the entire Contract, and the discharge of duties and obligations imposed by the Contract.

Work Change Directive - A written statement to Contractor issued on or after the Date of the Agreement and signed
by Owner and recommended by Engineer ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or responding to
differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies.
A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Amount or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties
expect that the change ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive wiil be incorporated in a subsequentiy
issued Change Order foliowing negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Amount or Contract
Times.

Work Day - Every Calendar day excluding Saturdays, Sundays and iega! holidays as listed in ORS187.010.

Worker - Any person performing work under the contract, including employees of the Contractor or subcontractor, and
persons having fuli or partial ownership of the Contractor or subcontractor. (This definition is not intended to nor does
it alter the definition or meaning of the term "worker" as used In any appiicable laws or regulations, including but not
limited to for purposes of paying prevailing wage rates.)

Working Shop Drawings - Supplemental Plans, not furnished by the Agency, that the Contractor is required to submit
to the Engineer, (see 00150.35)

Workplace Violence - Any act of physical, verbal or written aggression by an individual in or related to the work place
and/or project sites. This includes, but is not limited to, verbal abuse, threats or intimidation and physical intimidation,
assault or battery by a worker or former worker. Work place violence may also include destruction or abuse of property.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 11



Section 00120 - Bidding Requirements and Procedures

00120.01 Receipt of Bids; Opening - See Special Provisions,

00120.02 PrequaUfication of Bidders - See Special Provisions.

00120.03 Request for Solicitation Documents - See Special Provisions.

00120.04 Pre-Bid Meeting - See Special Provisions

00120.10 Bid Booklet - The Bid Bookiet may include, but is not limited to:

• Cail for Bids
• Bidder's Checklist
• Bid Section
• Appendix, which includes required time-sensitive forms, sample forms,

and other informational pages

The Cali for Bids and Bid Section may include, but is not limited to:

• Description and location of the proposed Project

• Time, date, and location for opening Bids

• Project completion time

• CiassofWork

• Bid statement

• Certificate of non-coilusion

• Certificate of Nondiscrimination

• Certificate of non involvement in any debarment or suspension (for Federal-Aid Projects)

• Certificate regarding lobbying activities (for Federal-Aid Projects)

• Certificate of residency (for State Projects)

• Certificate of compliance with Oregon tax laws

• Bid Schedule

• identification of Bidder(s) and Sureties

• Bid signature page

• Bid Bond form

• First-tier Subcontractor Disclosure form

Other certificates or statements may be bound within the Bid Section. Plans, Specifications, and other documents
referred to in the Bid Section will be considered part of the Bid.

00120.15 Examination of Work Site and Solicitation Documents; Consideration of Conditions to be
Encountered ~ Before submitting a Bid, Bidders shall make a careful visual examination of the site of the proposed
Work, the Bid Bookiet, Plans, and Specifications. Bidders shali aiso review any subsurface investigation materiai
referenced in 00120.25 that may be available and conduct additional investigation of any unusual condition apparent
during the visual site examination. As soon as reasonably practicable after noting any such unusual condition, Bidder
shall notify Agency, in writing, of any such unusual condition and the additional investigation undertaken by Bidder.
Submission of a Bid will constitute confirmation that the Bidder has examined the Project Site and finds the Plans and
Specifications to be sufficiently detailed and accurate to enable Bidder to properiy perform the Work, and understands
the conditions to be encountered in performing the Work and all requirements of the Contract.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 12



The Bidder is responsible for ioss or unanticipated costs suffered by the Bidder because of the Bidder's faiiure to fully
examine the site and become fully informed about ali conditions of the Work, or failure to request clarification of Plans
and Specifications Bidder believes to be erroneous or incomplete.

Any requests for clarification of or changes to Plans and Specifications by the Bidder shall be requested in writing by
email through the Engineer. Notification of erroneous or incomplete Pians or Specifications shall also be submitted to
the Engineer. Unless the procurement period is shorter than one week, notifications and requests for changes or
clarification shall be submitted at least seven days prior to the date of Bid Closing. The Agency will respond to each
request at least 72 hours prior to the date of Bid Closing, if the Procurement period is !ess than seven days, requests
shall be submitted within one day after the Procurement is issued and the Agency will issue its response to each such
request at least 24 hours prior to Bid Closing. Failure to timefy request clarification or changes shali be deemed
acceptance of ali of the terms and conditions of the Procurement. Oral explanations or interpretations given before
receiving Bids for a Project will not be binding. To be binding, interpretation of the Plans and Specifications by the
Agency must be made by written Addendum furnished to all Holders of Bidding Plans according to 00120.30.

00120.16 IViaterial, Equipment, and Method Substitutions "When the Contract specifies certain Materials,
Equipment, and/or Methods, the Bidder shall include those Materials, Equipment, and/or Methods in the Bid.
Substitution after execution of Contract is specified in 00180.31(b), 00180.31(c), and 00180.31 (d),

00120.17 Use of Agency-Owned Land for Staging or Storage Areas - The Contractor may use Agency-owned
property for staging or storage areas, subject to the foliowing limitations:

(a) Within Normal Right-of-Way Limits - If approved by the Engineer, the Contractor may use available property
within the normal Right-of-Way limits for the purpose of constructing improvements under the Contract as long as
such use does not unduly impede other legitimate users of the Right-of-Way or adjacent properties. Where the
Agency owns, or has rights to, other adjacent properties in the Project area, "normai Right-of-Way" is fjmited to a
iine drawn across that property connecting the normal Right-of-Way limits on either side of the property.

(b) Outside Normal Right-of-Way Limits - The Contractor may not use Agency-owned property outside of normal
Right-of-Way limits for the Project without the approval of the Engineer.

If a Bidder obtains approval before submitting a Bid, use of the property wili be at no cost to the Contractor, or at a
cost stated by the Engineer upon granting approval, as confirmed by Addendum.

if approval is not obtained before submitting a Bid, and the Contractor proposes to use Agency-owned property
outside the normal RJght-of-Way limits, then use of the property may be approved by the Engineer, but the Contractor
will be assessed fair market value, as determined by the Engineer, for use of the property.

(c) Restrictions on Use - Contractors shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations pertaining
to use of Agency-owned property, and sha!!:

• Not cause unreasonable impacts on traffic and other facility users.

• Clean up all hazardous materials deposited by, or resulting from, Contractor operations.

• Be responsible for all costs associated with use of the property.

00120.20 Interpretation of Quantities in Bid Schedule - Quantities appearing in the Bid Schedule are approximate
and are provided oniy for comparison of Bids. The Agency does not warrant that the actual individua! Items, amount
of Work, or quantities will correspond to those shown in the Bid Schedule. Payment to the Contractor wiil be made
only for actual quantities of Work performed and accepted or Materials furnished and accepted, as required by the
Contract. Quantities of Work to be performed and Materials to be furnished may each be increased, decreased, or
omitted as provided in 00120.30 and 00140.30.

00120.25 Subsurface Investigations - If the Agency has conducted subsurface or geologic investigations of the
proposed Project Site or contiguous to the Project Site, the results of the investigations may be induded in written
geotechnical data reports. If geotechnical data reports have been prepared, such reports shall be included in the
Solicitation Documents (see special provisions) and shall be considered as part of the Contract Documents to the extent

City o^Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 13



that the Contractor may reiy upon the accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports. If the Agency has
retained subsurface samples, they will also be available for inspection, Bidders and the Contractor may make
arrangements for viewing the samples through the Engineer's office.

The availability of subsurface information from the Agency is solely for the convenience of the Bidder and shail not
relieve the Bidder or the Contractor of any risk, duty to make examinations and investigations as required by 00120.15,
or other responsibility under the Contract Documents. It is mutually agreed to by all parties that:

The subsurface investigations made by the Agency are for the purpose of obtaining data for planning and design of
the Project.

The data for individual test boring logs apply only to that particular boring and is not intended to be conclusive as to
the character of any material between or around test borings.

!f Bidders use this information in preparing a Bid, it is used at their own risk, and Bidders are responsible for all
conclusions, deductions, and inferences drawn from this information.

Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner, including its Engineer, or Design Engineer, or any
of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to any
Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations,

opinions, or information.

00120.30 Changes to Plans, Specifications, or Quantities before Opening of Bids - The Agency reserves the
right to issue Addenda making changes or corrections to the Plans, Specifications, or quantities. Only holders of
SoSicitation Documents obtained from the Agency's office who have been identified by the Agency as Holders of Bidding
Pians wiil be notified of these Addenda by mail, delivery sen/ice, or email sent to the Bidder's mail, street or email
address as it appears in the Agency's fiies.

The Agency may extend Bid Closing if Agency determines prospective bidders need additional time to review and
respond to addenda. Agency will not, except to the extent required by a counten/ailing public interest, issue Addenda
less than 72 hours before Bid dosing unless the Addendum also extends Bid Closing.

Bidders shali acknowledge Addenda by listing Addenda on the Bid Form. The Agency will not be responsible for failure
of Bidders to receive Addenda sent as described in the preceding paragraph. Bids shail incorporate all Addenda. Bids
may be rejected if opened and found by the Agency to not be based on all Addenda issued before Bid Closing.

00120.40 Preparation of Bids:

(a) General:

(1) Bids-The Bidders shal! not alter, in any manner, the documents within the Bid Section. Bidders shall
complete the certifications and statements inciuded in the Bid Section of the Bid Booklet according to the
instructions. Signature of the Bidder's authorized representative thereon constitutes the Bidder's confirmation of
an agreement to all certifications and statements contained in the Bid Booklet. Entries on the documents in the
Bid Section shall be in black or blue ink or typed. Signatures and initials shall be in ink.

The Bidder shall properly complete and bind all the documents in the Bid Section, as specified in 00120.10,
between the front and back covers of the Bid Booklet, except that the Bid Bond is not required if another
permissible type of Bid guaranty is provided, (see 00120.40(d))

(b) Bid Schedule Entries:

(1) Bid Schedule Entries-Using figures, Bidders shall fill in aii blank spaces in the Bid Schedule. For each item
in the Bid Schedule, Bidders shaif enter the unit price and the product of the unit price muitiplied by the quantity
given. The unit price shall be greater than zero, shall contain no more than two decimal places to the right of the
decimal point, and shali be expressed in U.S. dollars and cents (for example, $150.25 or $0.37). Unit prices
submitted which contain more than two decimal places, wii! be truncated by the Agency at the second decimal
place to determine the product of the unit price and quantity. No Founding will be considered or paid. Bidders Bid
shall aiso enter the total amount of the Bid obtained by adding amounts for al! items in the paper Bid Schedule.
Corrections or changes of item entries shail be in ink, with incorrect entry lined out and correct entry entered and
initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 14



(c) Bidder's Address and Signature Pages - Bidders shall include in the Bid the address to which ali
communications concerning the Bid and Contract should be sent. The Bid must be signed by a duly authorized
representative of the Bidder.

d) Bid Guaranty - All Bids shail be accompanied by a Bid guaranty in the amount of Five Percent (5%)
of the tota! amount of the Bid.

(1) Bid Guaranty The Bid guaranty shall be either a Surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit issued by an insured
institution as defined in ORS 706.008 or security in the form of a cashier's check or certified check made payable
to the Agency, (see ORS 2790.365(4})

if a Surety bond is submitted, Bidders shall use the Agency's standard Bid Bond form included with the Bid Booklet
or an alternative Bid Bond form, including terms of the Agency's standard Bid Bond, acceptable to the Agency.
Bidders shall submit the bond with original signatures and the Surety's sea! affixed. The Bid guaranty shall be
submitted by mail, delivery service, or hand delivered to the offices and addresses, and at the times given in the
Bid Booklet.

• Acceptable Surety companies are limited to those authorized to do business in the State of Oregon.

* Forfeiture of Bid guaranties is covered by 00130.60, and return of guaranties is covered by 00130.70.

(e) Disclosure of First-Tier Subcontractors ~ If the Bidder's Bid exceeds $100,000, or without regard to the
amount of a Bidder's Bid, if the Agency's cost estimate for a public improvement project as indicated in the
Invitation for Bids exceeds $100,000, the Bidder shall, within two working hours of the time Bids are due to be
submitted, submit to the Agency, on a form provided by the Agency, a disclosure identifying any first-tier
Subcontractors that will furnish labor or labor and Materials, and whose contract value is equal to or greater than:

• 5% of the total Project Bid, but at least $15,000; or

• $350,000, regardless of the percentage of the total Project Bid.

For each Subcontractor listed, Bidders shall state:

* The name of the Subcontractor;

* The dollar amount of the subcontract: and

• The category of Work that the Subcontractor wouid be performing.

If no subcontracts subject to the above disclosure requirements are anticipated, a Bidder shail so indicate by entering
"NONE" or by filling in the appropriate check box. For each Subcontractor listed, Bidders shall provide all requested
information. An incomplete form will be cause for rejection of the Bid.

The Subcontractor Disciosure Form may be submitted for a Bid either:

• By filling out the Subcontractor Disclosure Form included in the Bid Booklet and submitting it together with the
Bid at the time and piace designated for receipt of Bids;

• By removing it from the Bid Booklet, filling it out and submitting it separately to the Agency at the address given
in the Bid Booklet; or

* The Subcontractor Disclosure Form shall be sealed in a separate envelope, addressed to Public Works
Director, City of Warrenton, 225 S Main Ave. Warrenton, OR 97146, showing on the outside of the envelope
the name of the Bidder and the Contract title preceded by the words "Subcontractor Disclosure Form".
Facsimile submissions of Subcontractor Disclosure Form will not be accepted.

Subcontractor Disclosure Forms submitted by any method will be considered late if not received by the Agency
within two 2 working hours of the time designated for receiving Bids.

THE AGENCY MUST REJECT A BID IF THE BIDDER FAILS TO SUBMIT THE DISCLOSURE FORM WITH THIS
INFORMATION BY THE STATED DEADLINE (see OAR 137-049-0360).

00120.45 Submittal of Bids:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 15



(a) Bids - Bids may be submitted by mail, parcel delivery service, or hand delivery to the Agency, and at the times
given in the Bid Booklet. Bids may not be submitted by FAX or electronic means, Submit Bids in a sealed
envelope addressed to PubSic Works Director, City ofWarrenton, 225 S Main Ave. Warrenton, OR 97146 Date
of opening and Project titie must be plainly marked on the outside of the sealed envelope preceded by the words
"Sealed Bid". If a delivery or courier service is used, the Bidder shall place the sealed envelope containing the
paper Bid inside the delivery or courier service's envelope.

Bids submitted after the Bid Ciosing time will not be opened or considered. The Agency assumes no responsibility
for the receipt and return of late Bids.

Preparation and submission of Bids is at the so!e risk and expense of the Bidder and is not a cost of contract
performance.

00120.60 Modification or Withdrawal of Bids:

(a) Modification - Bids once submitted may be modified in writing prior to the time and date set for Bid Closing and
submitted to the place designated for receipt of Bids. Any modifications shall be prepared on the company
letterhead, signed by an authorized representative, and state that the new document supersedes or modifies
the prior Bid. The Bid modification shall be delivered in a sealed envelope and shail be marked as follows:

BID MODIFICATION
Bid Title and Closing Date and Time

(b) Withdrawal - Bids may be withdrawn by written notification on company letterhead signed by an authorized
representative and received prior to the time and date set for Bid Closing and submitted to the place designated
for receipt of Bids. Bids also may be withdrawn in person prior to the scheduled Bid Closing upon presentation
of appropriate identification.

Requests to withdraw Bids shall be marked as fotiows

BID WITHDRAWAL
Bid Title and Closing Date and Time

No Bid can be withdrawn after having been opened.

00120.65 Opening and Comparing Bids - Bids wili be opened and the totai price for each Bid wiil be read publicly
at the time and place indicated En the Call for Bids. Bidders and other interested parties are invited to be present.

Bids for each Project will be compared on the basis of the total amount of each Bid. The total amount of the Bid wiil be
the total sum computed from quantities listed in the Bid Schedule and unit prices entered by the Bidder.

In case of conflict between the unit price and the corresponding extended amount, the unit price shall govern, and the
Agency may make arithmetic corrections on extension amounts.

Errors) discovered after Bid Opening cannot be corrected by the Bidder, and the contractor wiii be required to perform
work at the unit price if its Bid is accepted.

00120.70 Rejection of Nonresponsive Bids - A Bid will be considered irregular and will be rejected if the irreguiarity
is deemed by the Agency to render the Bid non-responsive. Examples of irregularities include without limitation:

• The Bid Section documents provided are not properly used or contain unauthorized aiterations.

• The Bid is incomplete or incorrectly completed.

• The Bid contains improper additions, deletions, alternate Bids, or conditions.

• The Bid is submitted on documents not obtained directiy from the Agency, or is submitted by a Bidder who has
not been identified by the Agency as a Holder of Bidding Plans, as required by 00120.03.

• The Bid or Bid modifications are not signed by a person authorized to submit Bids or modify Bids, as required by
00120.40and00120.60.

City ofWarrenton
SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 16



• A member of a joint venture and the joint venture submit Bids for the same Project. Both Bids may be rejected.

• The Bid has entries not typed or in ink, or has signatures or initials not in ink.

• Each change or correction is not individually initialed.

• White-out tape or white-out iiquid is used to correct item entries.

• The price per unit cannot be determined.

• The Bid guaranty is insufficient or improper,

• The original Bid Bond form is not used or is altered.

* The Oregon Construction Contractors Board registration number and expiration date are not shown on the Bid if
required in the Solicitation Document. This requirement applies to Agency and State-funded Projects, with the
exception of Aggregate production and landscape Projects, (not required on Federal-Aid Projects)

• A disclosure of qualified first-tier Subcontractors, if required under 00120.40(e), is not received within 2 working
hours of the time Bids are due to be submitted, or the disclosure form is not compiete.

• The Bidder has not compiied with the DBE requirements of the solicitation.

* The Bid does not acknowledge al! issued Addenda,

* The Bid contains entries that are not greater than zero.

• The Bid entries are not expressed in LJ.S. dollars and cents.

* The Agency determines that any Pay Item is significantly unbalanced to the potential detriment of the Agency.

tn addition, the Agency may reject all Bids and suspend the project in the event all Bids exceed the funds the Agency
has appropriated for the project or for good cause upon its finding that It is in the public interest to do so. The Agency
may also waive minor Jnformalities or irregularities.

00120.80 Reciprocal Preference for Oregon Resident Bidders " This Subsection applies only to Contracts for
Projects financed without federa! funds.

Bidders shal! complete the certificate of residency provided by the Agency in the Bid Booklet. Failure to properly
complete the form will be cause to reject the Bid.

As used in the certificate of residency and this Subsection, "Resident Bidder" means a Bidder who has:

• Paid unempioyment taxes or income taxes in the Stale of Oregon during any of the 12 calendar months
immediately preceding submission of the Bid;

* A business address in the State of Oregon; and

• Certified in the Bid that the Bidder qualifies as a Resident Bidder.

"Nonresident Bidder" means a Bidder who is not a Resident Bidder as defined above.

In determining the lowest Bid, the Agency wii), for the purpose of awarding the Contract, add a percentage increase to
the Bid of a Nonresident Bidder equai to the percentage, if any, of the preference given to that Bidder in the state in
which the Bidder resides (ORS 279A.120). The percentage preference applied in each state will be published on or
before January 1 of each year by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services. The Agency may rely on these
percentages without incurring liability to any Bidder (ORS 279A.120).

This increase will oniy be applied to determine the lowest Bid, and will not cause an increase in payment to the
Contractor after Award of the Contract.

00120.90 Disquaiification of Bidders -The Bid(s) of a disqualified Bidder wii! be rejected. Any of the following
reasons is sufficient to disqualify a Bidder:

• More than one Bid is submitted for the same Work by an Entity under the same or different name(s).

• Evidence of coliusion among Bidders. Participants in collusion will be found not responsible, and may be subject
to criminai prosecution.

• Any of the grounds for disqualification cited in ORS 279C.-440.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 17



A Bidder will be disqualified if the Bidder has:

• Not been prequalified if required by 00120.02;

• Been declared ineligible by the Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries under ORS 279C.860;

• Not been registered (licensed) by the Oregon Construction Contractors Board (CCB) or been licensed by the
State Landscape Contractors Board before submitting a Bid (ORS 2790.365(1 }(k), ORS 701.021, ORS 701.026,
and ORS 671.530). The Bidder's registration number and expiration date shal! be shown in the Bid form, if
requested. Failure to furnish the registration number, if requested, will render the Bid non-responsive and subject
to rejection, (not required on Federal-Aid projects); or

• Been determined by the CCB under ORS 701.227 not to be qualified to hold or participate in a public contract
for a public improvement.

00120.91 Rejection of Bid on Grounds of Nonresponsibility of Bidder -The Bid of a Bidder who is found to be
nonresponsible according to the criteria iisted in 00130.10 or ORS 2790.375(3) will be rejected.

CityofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 18



Section 00130 -Award and Execution of Contract

00130.00 Consideration of Bids - After opening and reading Bids, the Agency will check them for correct extensions
of unit prices and totals. (see 00120,65) The total of extensions, corrected where necessary, will be used by the Agency
for Award purposes. Discrepancies between words and figures will be resolved in favor of words. In selecting the lowest
responsive Bid that meets the criteria for award, the Agency reserves the right to take into consideration any or all
alternatives calied for in the Bid Form.

The Agency resen/es the right to waive minor informalities and irregularities, and to reject any or ail Bids for irregularities
under 00120.70 or for good cause after finding that it is in the public interest to do so (ORS 279C.395). An example of
good cause for rejection in the public interest is the Agency's determination that any of the unit Bid prices are materially
unbalanced to the Agency's potential detriment, A materially unbalanced Bid is defined as, "a Bid which generates a
reasonable doubt that award to the Bidder submitting a mathematically unbalanced Bid will result in the lowest ultimate
cost to the Agency."

The Agency may correct obvious errors, when the correct information can be determined from the face of the document,
if it finds that the best interest of the Agency and the public wil! be served thereby,

Bids will be considered and a Contract awarded, if at ail, within 60 Calendar Days from the date of Bid Opening, unless
an extension beyond that time is agreed to by both parties and acknowledged En writing by the Bidder.

00130.10 Award of Contract - After the Bids are opened and a determination is made that a Contract is to be
awarded, the Contract wil! be awarded to the lowest responsible Bidder. For the purposes of this Section, "lowest
responsible Bidder" means the responsible Bidder that submitted the lowest responsive Bid who is not on the list
created by the Construction Contractors Board according to ORS 701 , and who has:

• Substantially complied with all prescribed public bidding procedures and requirements.

• Available the appropriate financial, Materials, Equipment, facility and personnel resources and expertise, or
ability to obtain the resources and expertise, necessary to indicate the capabiiity of the prospective Bidder to
meet all contractual responsibilities.

• A satisfactory record of performance, in evaluating a Bidder's record of performance, the Agency may consider,
among other things, whether the Bidder completed previous contracts of a similar nature with a satisfactory
record of performance. For purposes of evaluating a Bidder's performance on previous contracts of a similar
nature, a satisfactory record of performance means that to the extent that the costs associated with and time
available to perform a previous contract remained within the Bidder's control, the Bidder stayed within the time
and budget allotted for the procurement and otherwise performed the contract in a satisfactory manner.

• A satisfactory record of integrity. In evaluating a Bidder's record of integrity, the Agency may consider, among
other things, whether the Bidder has previous criminal convictions for offenses related to obtaining or attempting
to obtain a contract or subcontract or in connection with the Bidder's performance of a contract or subcontract.

• Qualified legally to contract with the Agency.

• Supplied all necessary information in connection with the Agency's inquiry concerning responsibility, if a
prospective Bidder fails to promptly supply information requested by the Agency concerning responsibility, the
Agency shall base the determination of responsibility upon any available information, or may find the prospective
Bidder not to be responsible.

• Not been disqualified by the public contracting agency under ORS 279C.440.

If the Bidder is found not to have a satisfactory record of performance or integrity, the Agency will document the record
and the reasons for the unsatisfactory finding,

The Agency wiil provide the Notice of Intent to Award to the Bidders, and may provide Notice of Intent to Award on the
Agency's web site,

The Award wiil not be final until the later of the following:

• Seven calendar days after the Notice of Intent to Award has been issued; or

• The Agency has provided a written response to each timeiy protest, denying the protest and affirming the Award.

CilyofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Condilions For Construction
Page 19



If the Agency accepts a Bid and awards a Contract, the Agency will send the successful Bidder written notice of
acceptance and Award.

Notice of Award and Contract booklets ready for execution will be sent within 60 Calendar Days of the opening of Bids
or within the number of CaSendar Days specified in the Special Provisions or a written mutual agreement between
successful Bidder and Agency.

The Contractor will not automatically be entitled to extra compensation because the commencement of Work is delayed
by failure of the Agency to send the Contract for execution. However, if more Calendar days elapse between the date
the Bid is opened and the date the Agency sends the Contract to be executed, as specified in 00130.10, the Agency
will consider granting an adjustment of time for completion of the work to offset any actual delay to Contract completion
resulting directly from delay in commencement,

00130.15 Right to Protest Award - An adversely affected or aggrieved Bidder may submit to the Agency a written
protest of the Agency's intent to Award within seven Days after issuance of the notice of intent to Award the Contract,
unless a different protest period is provided under the Solicitation Documents. The Bidder's protest must be in writing
and must specify the grounds upon which the protest is based.

A Bidder is adversely affected or aggrieved oniy if the Bidder is eligible for Award of the Contract as the Responsible
Bidder submitting the lowest Responsive Bid most eligible for Award under the Contractor Evaluation Criteria and is
next in line for award, i.e., the protesting Bidder must claim that ail lower Bidders are ineiigibie for Award:

• Because their Bids were nonresponsive; or

• The Agency committed a substantial violation of a provision in the Solicitation Documents or of an applicable
Procurement Statute or administrative rule, and the protesting Bidder was unfairly evaluated and would have, but
for such substantial violation, been the Responsible Bidder offering the lowest Bid.

00130.20 Cancellation of Award - Without iiability to the Agency, the Agency may for good cause cancel Award at
any time before the Contract is executed by ail parties to the Contract, as provided by ORS 279C.395 for rejection of
Bids, upon finding it is in the public interest to do so.

00130.30 Contract Booklet - The Contract booklet may include but is not limited to:

• Addenda

• Schedule of Items

• Contract (Agreement)

• Performance Bond

• Payment Bond

• Certification of workers' compensation coverage

00130.40 Contract Submittals - Before the Agency will execute the Contract, the successful Bidder shal! furnish the
foliowing:

(a) Performance and Payment Bonds - When Awarded the Contract, the successful Bidder shall furnish a
Performance Bond and a Payment Bond of a Surety authorized to do business in the State of Oregon.

The successful Bidder shall submit the standard bond forms, which are bound in the Contract Booklet or alternative
bond forms acceptable to the Agency. Faxed or photocopied bond forms wili not be accepted. The amount of each
bond shall be equal to the Contract Amount. The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond must be signed by the
Surety's authorized Attorney-in-Fact, and the Surety's seat must be affixed to each bond. A power of attorney for
the Attomey-i n-Fact shall be attached to the bonds in the Contract booklet, which must include bond numbers, and
the Surety's original seal must be affixed to the power of attorney. Bonds shall not be canceled without the Agency's
consent, nor will the Agency normally release them, prior to Contract completion. The amount of the Performance

CilyofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 20



and Payment Bonds shall be increased to equal the new Contract Amount whenever the Contract Amount is
increased for any reason.

(b) Certificates of Insurance - The successful Bidder shali furnish the Agency certificates of insurance applicable
to the Project, according to 00170.70. The insurance coverages shall remain in force throughout the performance
of the Contract and shall not be allowed to lapse without prior written approval of the Agency. Bidders shall refer to
00170.70 for minimum coverage limits and other requirements.

For specified Contracts, certified copies, and in some instances the original, of insurance policies may be required
by the Special Provisions.

(d) Registration Requirements:

(1) ORS 701.021, ORS 701.026, and ORS 671.530 require that Bidders be registered with the Oregon
Construction Contractors Board or licensed by the State Landscape Contractors Board prior to submission of a
Bid on a Project not involving federal funds. Registration with the Construction Contractors Board or licensing by
the State Landscape Contractors Board is not a prerequisite to bidding on Federaf-Aid Projects; however, the
Agency will not execute a Contract unti! the Contractor is so registered or iicensed.

(2) Bidders must be registered with the Corporation Division, Oregon Secretary of State, if bidding as a
corporation, limited liabiiity company, joint venture, or limited liability partnership, or if operating under an assumed
business name and the !ega! name of each person carrying on the business is not included in the business name.

(3) A Contractor registered under ORS 701 may bid on a landscaping Project or perform a construction project
that includes landscape contracting as a portion of the project if the landscape contracting is subcontracted to a
licensed landscaping business as defined in ORS 671.520.

(4) A landscaping business may bid on a Project or perform a Contract that includes the phase of landscape
contracting for which it is not licensed if it emp!oys a landscape contractor, or subcontracts with another licensed
landscaping business, licensed for that phase.

(e) Tax Identification Number ~ The successful Bidder shall furnish the Agency the Bidder's Federal Tax Identification
Number.

00130.50 Execution of Contract and Bonds:

(a) By the Bidder - The successful Bidder shali deliver the required number of Contract bookiets with the property
executed Contract, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, certification of workers' compensation coverage, and the
required certificates of insurance, to the Agency within 14 Calendar Days after the date on which the Contract
booklets are sent or otherwise conveyed to the Bidder under 00130.10. The Bidder shall return the originals of ail
documents received from the Agency and named in this Subsection, with original signatures or Digital Signature.
Certificates of insurance shall also be originals. Certificates of insurance for coverages that are permitted by the
Agency under 00170.70(a) to be obtained by appropriate subcontractors sha!l be delivered by the Contractor to the
Agency. No copies of these documents will be accepted by the Agency.

Proper execution requires that:

• If the Contractor is a partnership, limited liability partnership, joint venture, or limited liability company, an
authorized representative of each Entity comprising it shall sign the Contract, Performance Bond, and
Payment Bond, and an authorization to sign shall be attached.

• If the Contractor is a corporation, the President and the Secretary of that corporation shall sign the Contract,
Performance Bond, and Payment Bond. However, if other corporate officers are authorized to execute
contracts and bonds, the successful Bidder shall furnish with those documents a certified, true and correct
copy of the corporate bylaws or minutes stating that authority. If only one officer is signing, then the bylaws
or minutes must include the authority to sign without the signature of others. The successful Bidder shall also
include the titie(s) or corporate office(s) held by the signers).

(b) By the Agency-Within 10 Working Days after the Agency has received and verified the properly executed
documents specified in 00130.50(a), and received legal sufficiency approval from the Agency's attorney (if required),
the Agency will execute the Contract. The Agency will then send a fulEy-executed original Contract booklet to the
successful Bidder, who then official!y becomes the Contractor.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General CondiEions For Construction
Page 21



00130.60 Failure to Execute Contract and Bonds - Failure of the successfui Bidder to execute the Contract and
provide the required certificates, certifications, and bonds may be cause for cancellation of the Award, and may be
cause for forfeiture of the Bid guaranty under ORS 279C.385.

Award may then be made to the next lowest responsible Bidder, the Project may be re-advertised, or the Work may be
performed otherwise as the Agency decides.

The forfeited Bid guaranty will become the Agency's property, not as a penalty but as liquidation of damages resuiting
from the Bidder's failure to execute the Contract and provide the certificates, certifications, and bonds as required by
these Specifications.

00130.70 Release of Bid Guaranties - Bid guaranties will be released and checks returned 7 Calendar Days after
Bids are opened, except for those of the three apparent lowest Bidders on each Project. The guaranties of the three
apparent lowest Bidders will be released and checks returned to unsuccessful Bidders within 7 days of the Agency's
execution of the Contract.

00130.75 City's Business License - Successful Bidder shail have current business license (occupationai tax) with
the City ofWarrenton prior to entering into an agreement. Before permitting a subcontractor to begin work, Contractor
shall verify that subcontractor has a current City ofWarrenton business license.

00130.80 Project Site Restriction - Until the Agency sends the Contractor written Notice to Proceed with the Work,
and the Contractor has filed the public works bonds required in 00170.20, the Contractor shall not move Materials,
Equipment, or workers onto that Project Site.

00130.90 Notice to Proceed ~ Notice to Proceed wili be issued within 5 Calendar Days after the Contract is executed
by the Agency.

Should the Agency fail to issue the Notice to Proceed within 5 Calendar Days of Contract execution, the Contractor
may apply for an adjustment of Contract Time according to 00180.80(c).

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 22



Section 00140 - Scope of Work

00140.00 Purpose of Contract - The purpose of the Contract is to set forth the rights and obligations of the parties
and the terms and conditions governing completion of the Work. The Contractor's obligations shall include without
limitation the following:

• The Contractor shall furnish ail Materials, Equipment, labor, transportation, and Incidentals required to complete
the Work according to Plans, Specifications, and terms of the Contract.

• The Contractor shall perform the Work according to the lines, grades, Typical Sections, dimensions, and other
details shown on the Pians, as modified by written order, or as directed by the Engineer.

• The Contractor sha!) perform all Work determined by the Engineer to be necessary to compiete the Project,
including Agency required changes En the Work in accordance with 00140.30.

• The Contractor sha!l contact the Engineer for any necessary clarification or interpretation of the Contract,

00140.10 Typical Sections -The Typical Sections are intended to apply in genera!. At other locations where the
Typical Section is not appropriate, the Contractor shall perform construction to the identified alignment as directed by
the Engineer.

00140.20 Thickness -The thickness of Courses of Materials shown on the Plans, given in the Specifications, or
established by the Engineer is considered to be the compacted thickness. Minor variations are acceptabie when within
tolerances specified in the Specifications or Plans, or when approved by the Engineer.

00140.30 Agency-Required Changes in the Work" Changes to the Plans, quantities, or details of construction are
inherent in the nature of construction and may be necessary or desirable during the course of Project construction.

Without impairing the Contract, the Agency reserves the right to require changes it deems necessary or desirable within
the scope, which in the Specifications means general scope, of the Project, These changes may modify, without
limitation:

• Specifications and design

• Grade and alignment

• Cross Sections and thicknesses of Courses of Materials

• Method or manner of performance of Work

• Project Limits

or may resuit in:

• increases and decreases in quantities

• Additional Work

• Elimination of any Contract item of Work

• Acceleration or delay in performance of Work

Upon receipt of a Change Order, the Contractor shall perform the Work as modified by the Change Order. If the
Change Order increases the Contract Amount, the Contractor shall notify Its Surety of the increase and direct the Surety
to increase the amount of the performance and payment bonds to equal the new Contract Amount. The Contractor's
performance of Work according to Change Orders shall neither invalidate the Contract nor release the Surety. Payment
for changes in the Work will be made according to 00195.20. Contract Time adjustments, if any, will be made according
to 00180.80. A Change Order signed by the Contractor is the agreement that the adjustment in the Contract Amount
or Contract Time indicated is full compensation for all change order items including the impact of the change order on
the balance of the Work to be accomplished.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 23



00140.40 Differing Site Conditions - The following constitute differing Project Site conditions provided such
conditions are discovered at the Project Site after commencement of the Work;

• Type 1 - Subsurface or latent physicai conditions that could not have been discovered by careful examination of
the Project Site, utility locations and available records as described in 00120.15 and differ materially from those
indicated in the Contract Documents; or

• Type 2 - Unknown physical conditions of unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily encountered
and generaiiy recognized as inherent in the Work provided for in the Contract.

The party discovering such a condition shall promptly notify the other party, in writing, of the specific differing conditions
before they are disturbed and before the affected Work is performed. The Contractor shall not continue Work in the
affected area until the Engineer has inspected such condition according to 00195.30 to determine whether an
adjustment to Contract Amount or Contract Time is required.

Payment adjustments due to differing Project Site conditions, if any, will be made according to 00195.30. Contract
Time adjustments, if any, will be made according to 00180.80.

00140.50 Environmental Pollution Changes - ORS 279C.525 will apply to any increases in the scope of the Work
required as a result of environmental or natural resources taws enacted or amended after the submission of Bids for
the Contract. The Contractor shall compiy with the applicable notice and other requirements of ORS 279C.525. The
applicable rights and remedies of that statute will also apply.

In addition to ORS 279C.525, the Agency has compiled a list at 00170.01 of those federal, State, and focal agencies,
of which the Agency has knowledge, that have enacted ordinances, rules, or regulations dealing with the prevention of
environmental poliution and the preservation of natural resources that may affect the performance of Agency contracts.

00140.60 Extra Work - If directed by the Engineer's written order, the Contractor sha!l perform work not included En
the Contract. The Contractor shali perform this work according to:

• Standard Specifications

• Standard Drawings

• Other Pians and Specifications issued by the Engineer

Payment for Extra Work will be made according to Section 00196. Contract Time adjustments, if any, wili be made
according to 00180.80.

00140.65 Disputed Work - The Contractor may dispute any part of a Change Order, written order, or an oral order
from the Engineer by the procedures specified En Section 00199.

00140.70 Cost Reduction Proposals - The Contractor may submit written proposals to the Engineer that modify
Plans, Specifications, or other Contract Documents for the sole purpose of reducing the total cost of construction.
Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Agency, a proposai that is solely or primarily a proposai to reduce estimated
quantities or delete Work, as determined by the Engineer, is not eiigibie for consideration as a cost reduction proposal
and wili instead be addressed under 00140.30, whether proposed or suggested by the Agency or the Contractor.

(a) Proposal Requirements - The Agency will not adopt a cost reduction proposa! that impairs essential functions
or characteristics of the Project including but not limited to service iife, economy of operation, ease of maintenance,
designed appearance, or design and safety standards,

To conserve time and funds, the Contractor may first submit a written request for a feasibility review by the Engineer.
The request shouid contain a description of the proposa! together with a rough estimate of anticipated doliar and
time savings. The Engineer will, within a reasonable time, advise the Contractor in writing whether or not the
proposal would be considered by the Agency, should the Contractor elect to submit a detailed cost reduction
proposal.

A detailed cost reduction proposal shail include without Jimitation the foilowing information:

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 24



• A description of existing Contract requirements for performing the Work and the proposed change;

• The Contract items of Work affected by the proposed change, including any quantity variation caused by the
proposed change;

• Pay Items affected by the proposed change induding any quantity variations;

• A detailed cost estimate for performing the Work under the existing Contract and under the proposed change.
Cost estimates shall be made according to Section 00197. Costs of re-design, which are incurred after the
Agency has accepted the proposal, will be included in the cost of proposed work; and

• A date by which the Engineer must accept the proposal in order to accept the proposed change without
impacting the Contract Time or cost reduction amount.

(b) Continuing to Perform Work-The Contractor shall continue to perform the Work according to Contract
requirements until the Engineer issues a Change Order incorporating the cost reduction proposal, ff the Engineer
fails to issue a Change Order by the date specified in the proposai, the proposal shall be deemed rejected,

(c) Consideration of Proposal - The Engineer is not obligated to consider any cost reduction proposal. The
Agency will not be liable to the Contractor for failure to accept or act upon any cost reduction proposal submitted.

The Engineer will determine in its sole discretion whether to accept a cost reduction proposai as well as the estimated
net savings in construction costs from the adoption of all or any part of the proposal, in determining the estimated
net savings, the Engineer may disregard the Schedule of Items. The Engineer wiii establish prices that represent a
fair measure of the value of Work to be performed or to be deleted as a result of the cost reduction proposal

(d) Sharing Investigation Costs-As a condition for considering a Contractor's cost reduction proposal, the
Agency reserves the right to require the Contractor to share in the Agency's costs of investigating the proposal. If
the Agency exercises this right, the Contractor shall provide written acceptance of the condition to the Engineer.
Such acceptance will authorize the Agency to deduct its share of investigation costs from payments due or that may
become due to the Contractor under the Contract,

(e) Acceptance of Proposal Requirements " if the Contractor's cost reduction proposal is accepted in whole or in
part, acceptance will be made by a Change Order that wi!l include without limitation the following:

• Statement that the Change Order is made according to 00140.70;

• Revised Contract Documents that reflect all modifications necessary to implement the approved cost reduction
measures;

* Any conditions upon which the Agency's approval is subject;

• Estimated net savings in construction costs attributable to the approved cost reduction measures; and

• A payment provision according to which the Contractor will be paid 50% of the estimated net savings amount
as fui) and adequate consideration for performance of the Work of the Change Order.

The Contractor's cost of preparing the cost reduction proposal and the Agency's costs of investigating the proposai,
including any portion paid by the Contractor, will be excluded from determination of the estimated net savings in
construction costs. Costs of re-design, which are incurred after the Agency has accepted the proposal, wi!l be
included in the cost of the Work attributable to cost reduction measures.

If the Agency accepts the cost reduction proposal, the Change Order that authorizes the cost reduction measures
will also address any Contract Time adjustment.

(f) Right to General Use - Once submitted, the cost reduction proposal becomes the property of the Agency. The
Agency reserves the right to adopt the cost reduction proposal for generai use without additional compensation to
the Contractor when it determines that a proposal is suitable for application to other contracts,

00140.80 Use of Publicly Owned Equipment - The Contractor is prohibited from using publicly-owned Equipment
except in the case of emergency. In an emergency, the Contractor may rent publicly-owned Equipment provided
that:

• The Engineer provides written approval that states that such rental is in the public interest; and

• Rental does not increase the Project cost.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 25



00140.90 Final Trimming and Cleanup - Before Final Inspection as described in 00150.90, the Contractor shail
neatly trim and finish the Project and remove aii remaining unincorporated Materials and debris. Final trimming and
cleanup shail include without limitation the following:

• The Contractor shali retrim and reshape earthwork, and shall repair deteriorated portions of the Project Site.

• Where the Work has impacted existing facilities or devices, the Contractor shail restore or replace those facilities
to their pre-existing condition.

• The Contractor shali clean all drainage facilities and sanitary sewers of excess Materials or debris resulting from
the Work.

• The Contractor shall dean up and Seave in a neat, orderly condition, Rights-of-Way, Materials sites, and other
property occupied in connection with performance of the Work.

• The Contractor shall remove temporary buiidsngs, construction plants, forms, faisework and scaffolding, surplus
and discarded Materiais, and rubbish.

• The Contractor shail dispose of Materials and debris inciuding without limitation forms, faisework, scaffolding,
and rubbish resulting from clearing, grubbing, trimming, clean-up, removal, and other Work. These Materials
and debris become the property of the Contractor. The Contractor shall dispose of these Materials and debris
immediateEy.

• The Contractor shall restore and repiant or resurface adjoining properties to match existing grades and existing
surfaces.

• The Contractor shall install erosion and sediment contra! needed to stabilize the Project Site.

Unless the Contract specifically provides for payment for this item, the Agency will make no separate or additional
payment for final trimming and cleanup.

00140,95 "AS-BUILT" Records - The Contractor shall maintain a current and accurate record of Work completed
during the course of this Contract and make available to the Engineer updated copies of the project "As-Buiits" for
Engineer's review at any time. These "As-Builts" drawings shall be kept by accurately marking a designated set of the
Contract pians with the specified information as Work proceeds. Accurate, complete and current "As-Built" drawings
are a specified requirement for monthly progress payments of the Work completed. "As-Buiits" shail be reviewed for
completeness before recommendation of payment is granted. Incomplete or insufficient "As-Builts" wiii be returned to
the Contractor and recommendation for progress payment denied. At project completion and as a condition of final
payment, the Contractor shall deliver an acceptable complete and legible set of "As-Built" drawings to the Engineer.

The "As-Built" drawings shal! show the information listed below. Where the term "locate" or "location" is used, it shaH
mean record of position with respect to both the construction vertical datum and either construction horizontal datum
or a nearby permanent improvement.

• Record location of underground services and utiiities as installed
• Record iocation of existing underground utilities and services that are to remain and that are

encountered during the course of the Work
• Record changes In dimension, location, grade or detail to that shown on plans
• Record changes made by change order
• Record details not in original plans
• Provide fuliy completed shop drawings reflecting ali revisions

Upon completion of the construction, the Contractor shall review and certify the construction set of "As-Built" drawings
for completeness and accuracy of representation of any changes. Final payment will not be processed until "As-Built"
drawings have been submitted and approved.

City of Warrenton
SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 26



Section 00150 - Control of Work

00160.00 Authority of the Engineer (Project Manager) - The Engineer has authority over the Work and its
suspension, (see Section 00180) The Contractor shal! direct all requests for clarification or interpretation of the
Contract, in writing, to the Engineer. The Engineer will respond within a reasonable time. Contract clarification or
interpretation from persons other than the Engineer wili not be binding on the Agency..

The Engineer's determination is final on all matters, including but not limited to the following:

• Quality and acceptability of Materials and workmanship

• Measurement of unit price Work

• Timely and proper prosecution of the Work

• interpretation of Contract Documents

• Payments due under the Contract

and, except as provided in Section 00199 for claims for additional Contract time or Contract price, may be challenged
only through the dispute resolution process provided for in these General Provisions (00199) and, if applicable, the
Special Provisions.

Work performed under the Contract wili not be considered complete until it has passed Final Inspection by the Engineer
and has been accepted by the Agency.

Interim approvals issued by the Engineer, induding but not limited to Final Acceptance, will not discharge the Contractor
from responsibility for errors in prosecution of the Work, for improper fabrication, for failure to compiy with Contract
requirements, or for other deficiencies, the nature of which are within the Contractor's control

The Agency may appoint Inspectors and other personnel to assist in the administration of the Contract.

The authority stated in this subsection is subject to the individual's delegated authority by Ihe Agency. If the individual
does not have the stated authority, the subsection reference shall include Agency personnel that have such authority.

00150.02 inspector's Authority and Duties "To the extent delegated under 00150.01, Inspectors are authorized to
represent the Engineer and Project Manager to perform the following:

* Inspect Work performed and Materials furnished, including without limitation, the preparation, fabrication, or
manufacture of Materials to be used;

• Orally reject defective Materials and to confirm such rejection in writing;

• By oral order, temporarily suspend the Work for improper prosecution pending the Engineer's decision; and

• Exercise additional delegated authority.

Inspectors are not authorized to:

« Accept Work or Materials,

• Alter or waive provisions of the Contract.

• Give instructions or advice inconsistent with the Contract Documents.

00150.10 Coordination of Contract Documents - The Contract Documents, including but not limited to Contract
Change Orders, the Special Provisions, the Plans, and the Standard Specifications are intended to collectively describe
all of the items of Work necessary to complete the Project. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is
required by one is as binding as if required by ail,

(a) Order of Precedence - The Engineer will resoive any discrepancies between these documents in the following
order of precedence:

1. Permits from outside agencies;

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 27



2. Contract (Agreement)

3. Addenda;

4, Bid Schedule;

5. Special Provisions;

6. General Conditions;

7. Standard Specifications;

8. Geotechnical Data Reports;

9, Agency-prepared drawings specifically applicable to the Project and bearing the Project title;

10. Standard Drawings;

11. Reviewed and accepted, stamped Working Drawings;

12. Approved Unstamped Working Drawings.

Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Fie!d Orders, and Engineer's written interpretation and clarifications, in
precedence listed, will take precedence over ail other Contract Document components referenced herein.

Notes on a drawing shall take precedence over drawing details. Dimensions shown on the drawings, or that can be
computed, shall take precedence over scaled dimensions. The Drawings with the higher !evel of detail take precedence
over less detailed Drawings.

(b) Immaterial Discrepancies -The Contract Documents specify details for the construction and completion of the
Work. if Contract Documents describe portions of the Work in sufficient detail but are silent in some minor respect,
the Contractor may proceed utilizing the current best industry practices.

(c) Material Discrepancies - If the Contractor identifies a discrepancy, error, or emission En the Contract
Documents that cannot be resolved by the approach specified in (b) above, the Contractor shall immediately request
cSarification from the Engineer.

00150.15 Construction Stakes, Lines, and Grades:

(a) Agency Responsibilities - The Engineer wiil provide the location of the existing benchmarks and horizontal
controi locations used to design the project and prepare the Plans.

(b) Contractor Responsibilities - The Contractor shall:

• Accurately measure detailed dimensions, elevations, and slopes from the Engineer's benchmarks and
horizontal control locations;

• Provide al) labor, materials and equipment to properly stake out the project so that it can be constructed in
accordance with the Contract Documents. Any changes made shall be recorded and the changed vertical and
horizontai locations incorporated into the "as-built" drawings.

« Inform the Engineer of any property corners monuments and/or survey markers that are not shown on the Plans
and are found during construction activities prior to disturbing the monuments. Allow the Agency 2 Work days
for referencing all found markers before they are removed. Monuments that are noted on the Pians to be
protected and are disturbed by the Contractor's activities shall be replaced by the Contractor's surveyor at the
Contractor's expense in accordance with ORS Chapter 209.

The Contractor shall include costs of Construction Stakes, Lines, and Grades in the unit prices bid for the various Pay
Items. The Contractor will not be paid an additional amount for this Work, unless otherwise specified.

00150.20 Inspection:

(a) inspection by the Engineer - The Engineer may test Materials furnished and inspect Work performed by the
Contractor to ensure Contract compliance. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer 48 hours (two fuil Work Days)
in advance for inspection of each portion of the Work.

Contractor shall not begin placing successive Courses or portions of Work until preceding Courses or portions of the
Work have been inspected.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 28



if the Contractor performs Work without the Engineer's inspection or uses Materials that the Engineer has not
approved, the Engineer may order affected portions of the Work removed at the Contractor's expense,

At the Engineer's direction, any time before the Work is accepted, the Contractor shall uncover portions of the
completed Work for inspection. After inspection, the Contractor shail restore these portions of Work to the standard
required by the Contract, if the Engineer rejects Work due to Materials or workmanship, or if the Contractor
performed such Work without providing sufficient advance request for inspection to the Engineer, the Contractor
shall bear all costs of uncovering and restoring the Work, If the Engineer accepts the uncovered Work, and the
Contractor performed the Work only after providing the Engineer with sufficient advance notice, the costs of
uncovering and restoring the Work will be paid for by the Agency according to 00195.20.

(b) Inspection Facilities - The Contractor shall furnish walkways, railings, ladders, shoring, tunnels, piatfomns, and
other facilities necessary to permit the Engineer to have safe access to the Work to be inspected. The Contractor
shall require producers and fabricators to provide safe inspection access as requested by the Engineer.

(c) Sampling - When directed by the Agency, the Contractor shall furnish the Engineer with samples of Materials
that the Engineer wili test. All of the Contractor's costs related to this required sampling are Incidental.

(d) Inspection by Third Parties-Where third parties have the right to inspect the Work, the Contractor shall
coordinate with the Engineer and shall provide safe inspection access.

(e) Contractor's Duty to Make Corrections - The Contractor shall perform ail Work according to the Contract
Documents. The Contractor shall correct Work that does not comply with the Contract Documents at its own
expense. Inspection of the Work by the Engineer does not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for improper
prosecution of the Work.

00150.25 Acceptability of Materials and Work - The Contractor shall furnish Materials and shall perform Work in
Close Conformance to the Contract Documents, If the Engineer determines that the Materials furnished or the Work
performed are not in Close Conformance with the Contract Documents, the Engineer may:

• Reject the Materials or Work and order the Contractor, at the Contractor's expense, to remove, replace, or
otherwise correct any non-conformlty; or

* Accept the Materials or Work as suitable for the intended purpose, adjust the amount paid for applicable Pay
Items to account for diminished cost to the Contractor or diminished value to the Agency, document the
adjustment, and provide written documentation to the Contractor regarding the basis of the adjustment.

The Engineer's decisions concerning acceptabiiity of Materials or Work will be final.

00150.30 Delivery of Notices - Written notices to the Contractor by the Engineer or the Agency will be delivered:

• In person;

* By U.S. Postal Service first class mail or priority mail (which at the sender's option may include certified or
registered mail return receipt requested), to the current office address as shown in the records of the Agency; or

• By overnight delivery service of a private industry courier, to the current office address as shown in the records
of the Agency.

Notices shall be considered as having been received by the Contractor

• At the time of actual receipt when delivered in person

• At the time of actual receipt or 7 Calendar Days after the postmarked date when deposited for delivery by first
class or priority mai!, whichever is earlier; or

• At the time of actual receipt or 3 Calendar Days after deposit with a private industry courier for overnight delivery
service, whichever is earlier.

Written notices to the Engineer or the Agency by the Contractor shall be delivered to the Agency address shown in the
Special Provisions, unless a different address is agreed to by the Engineer, and shall be delivered:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 29



• tn person;

• By U.S. Postal Sen/ice first class mail or priority maii (which at the sender's option may include certified or
registered mail return receipt requested); or

• By overnight delivery se^/ice of a private industry courier.

Notices wit! be considered as having been received by the Agency:

• At the time of actual receipt when delivered in person;

• At the time of actual receipt or 7 Calendar Days after the postmarked date when deposited for delivery by first
ciass or priority mail, whichever is earlier; or

• At the time of actual receipt or 3 Calendar Days after deposit with a private industry courier for overnight delivery
service, whichever is earlier.

001S0.35 Submittals:

(a) Description - Submittals covered by these requirements include manufacturers' information, shop drawings,
test procedures, test results, samples, requests for substitutions, and miscellaneous Work-reiated submittais.
Submittals shall also inciude, but not be limited to, all mechanicai, eiectricai and eiectronic equipment and
systems, materials, reinforcing steel, fabricated items, and piping and conduit details. The Contractor shai!
furnish all drawings, specifications, descriptive data, certificates, samples, tests, methods, schedules, and
manufacturer's instaliation and other instructions as specifically required in the Contract Documents to
demonstrate fuiiy that the materials and equipment to be furnished and the methods of work comply with the
provisions and intent of the Contract Documents.

(b) Contractor's Responsibilities

1. The Contractor shall be responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in
each submitta! and shall assure that the material, equipment or method of work shaii be as described in
the submittai. The Contractor shat! verify that a!l features of ail products conform to the specified
requirements. Submitta! documents shall be clearly edited to indicate only those items, models, or series
of equipment, which are being submitted for review. A!l extraneous materials shali be crossed out or
otherwise obliterated. The Contractor shal! ensure that there is no conflict with other submittals and notify
the Engineer in each case where his submitta! may affect the work of another contractor or the Agency.
The Contractor shall coordinate submittafs among its subcontractors and suppliers including those
submittais complying with unit responsibiiity requirements specified in appiicable technical sections.

2, The Contractor shall coordinate submittals with the Work so that Work wiil not be delayed. It shall
coordinate and schedule different categories of submittals, so that one will not be delayed for !ack of
coordination with another. No extension of time will be allowed because of failure to properly schedule
submittals. The Contractor shail not proceed with Work related to a submittal until the submittal process
is complete. This requires that submittals for review and comment shall be returned to the Contractor with
the indication "No Exceptions Taken" or "Make Corrections Noted."

3. Submittals shall be carefuily reviewed by an authorized representative of the Contractor prior to
submission to the Engineer. Each submittal shall be dated and signed by the Contractor as being correct
and in strict conformance with the Contract Documents. In the case of Shop Drawings, each sheet shall
be so dated and signed, Any deviations from the Contract Documents shall be noted by the Contractor
on the transmittal form and such deviation shall be subject to approval in writing by the Engineer. The
Engineer will only review submittais that have been so verified by the Contractor. Non-verified submittais
will be returned to the Contractor without action taken by the Engineer, and any delays caused thereby
shall be the total responsibility of the Contractor.

4. The Contractor shall certify on each submittal document that it has reviewed the submittal, verified field
conditions, and compiled with the contract documents.

5. The Contractor may authorize in writing a material or equipment supplier to deai directly with the Engineer
or with the Agency with regard to a submittai. These dealings shal! be limited to contract interpretations
to clarify and expedite the Work.

(c) Shop Drawings and Product Submittals

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Condiiions For Construction
Page 30



1. Wherever called for in the Contract Documents or where required by the Engineer, the Contractor sha!)
furnish to the Engineer for review, five (5) copies plus one reprodudble copy or electronic file, of each
Shop Drawing or Product submittal. Shop Drawings may include detail design calculations, shop-
prepared drawings, fabrication and instailation drawings, erection drawings, lists, graphs, cataiog sheets,
data sheets, and similar items. if a list, graph, catalog sheet, data sheet, etc. includes more than one
item, dearly mark which item is the subject of the submKtai, Shop Drawings shall bear the signature and
seal of an engineer registered in the appropriate branch and in the state of Oregon, unless otherwise
indicated. Whenever the Contractor is required to submit design calculations as part of a submUtal, such
calculations shall bear the signature and seal of an engineer registered in the appropriate branch and in
the state of Oregon, unless otherwise indicated.

2. Shop Drawing and Product submittais shall be accompanied by the Engineer's standard submittaf
transmittai form, a reproducible copy of which is available from the Engineer. A submittal without the form
or where applicable items on the form are not completed will be returned for resubmittai.

3. Organization

• A singie submittal transmittai form shall be used for each technical specification section or item or
class of material or equipment for which a submittai is required. A single submittal covering muitiple
sections will not be acceptable, unless the primary specification references other sections for
components. Example: if a pump section references other sections for the motor, shop-applied
protective coating, anchor bolts, local control panel, and variable frequency drive, a single submittal
would be acceptable. A single submittaf covering vertical turbine pumps and horizontal split case
pumps would not be acceptable.

• On the transmittal form, index the components of the submittal and insert tabs in the submittal to
match the components. Relate the submittal components to specification paragraph and
subparagraph, Drawing number, detail number, schedule title, room number, or building name, as
applicable.

• Uniess indicated otherwise, terminology and equipment names and numbers used in submittals
shall match those used in the Contract Documents.

4. Format

• Minimum sheet size shall be 8.5 inches by 1 1 inches. Maximum sheet size shall be 22 inches by
34 inches. Every page in a submittal shall be numbered in sequence. Each copy of a submittal shall
be collated and stapled or bound, as appropriate. The Engineer will not collate sheets or copies.

• Where product data from a manufacturer is submitted, dearly mark which model is proposed, with
complete pertinent data capacities, dimensions, clearances, diagrams, controls, connections,
anchorage, and supports. Sufficient level of detail shall be presented for assessment of compliance
with the Contract Documents.

• Each submittai shall be assigned a unique number. SubmJttals shall be numbered sequentially,
and the submittal numbers shall be dearly noted on the transmittaL Original submittats shall be
assigned a numeric submitta! number (e.g., 25), If submittai "25" requires a resubmittal, the first
resubmittal will bear the designation "25.A" and the second resubmittal will bear the designation
"25.B"andsoon.

• if there is a follow-up submittal related to a previously submitted class of material or type of
equipment (e.g., follow-up submittal to submitta! "25"), it sha!l be assigned the number "25.1". If
submittal "25.1" requires a resubmittai, the first resubmittal will bear the designation "25.1.A" and the
second resubmitta! will bear the designation "25.1.B" and so on.

5. Disorganized submittals that do not meet the requirements of the Contract Documents will be returned
without review.

6. Except as may otherwise be indicated, the Engineer wili return prints of each submittal to the Contractor
with comments noted thereon, within 21 Days following receipt by the Engineer, it is considered
reasonable that the Contractor will make a complete and acceptabie submEttal to the Engineer by the first
resubmittal on an item. The Agency resen/es the right to withhoid monies due to the Contractor to cover
additional costs of the Engineer's review beyond the first resubmitlal. Engineer's cost for submittal review
beyond the first resubmittal is provided in the Special Provisions. The Engineer's maximum review period
for each submittal or resubmittai will be 21 Days.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 31



7. If a submittal is returned to the Contractor marked "NO EXCEPTiONS TAKEN," formal revision and
resubmlssion will not be required.

8. if a submitta! is returned marked "MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED," Contractor shail make the corrections
on the submittal, but forma! revision and resubmission will not be required, except where specsficaliy
required by Engineer as indicated on the submittal review form.

9. If a submittai is returned marked "AMEND-RESUBMIT," the Contractor shall revise it and shall resubmit
the required number of copies to the Engineer for review, Resubmittal of portions of multi-page or multi-
drawing submittals wi!t not be allowed. For example, if a Shop Drawing submittal consisting of 10
drawings contains one drawing noted as "AMEND - RESUBMIT," the submittal as a whole is deemed
"AMEND - RESUBMIT," and 10 drawings are required to be resubmitted.

10. If a submittai is returned marked "REJECTED-RESUBMIT," it shall mean either that the proposed material
or product does not satisfy the specification, the submittat is so incomplete that it cannot be reviewed, or
is a substitution request not submitted in accordance with the Genera! Conditions. In the first 2 cases,
the Contractor shail prepare a new submitta! and shall submit the required number of copies to the
Engineer for review. In the tatter case, the Contractor shall submit the substitution request according to
the Genera! Conditions.

11. Resubmittal of rejected portions of a previous submittal will not be ailowed. Every change from a submittai
to a resubmittai or from a resubmittal to a subsequent resubmittal shall be identified and flagged on the
resubmittai.

12. Fabrication of an item may commence only after the Engineer has reviewed the pertinent submittais and
returned copies to the Contractor marked either "NO EXCEPTIONS TAKEN" or "MAKE CORRECTIONS
NOTED". Corrections indicated on submittals shail be considered as changes necessary to meet the
requirements of the Contract Documents and shall not be taken as changes to the Contract requirements.

13. Corrections or comments made on the Contractor's Shop Drawings during review do not relieve the
Contractor from compliance with Contract Drawings and Specifications. Review is for conformance to
the design concept and genera! compliance with the Contract Documents on!y. The Contractor is
responsible for confirming and correlating quantities and dimensions, fabrication processes and
techniques, coordinating Work with the trades, and satisfactory and safe performance of the Work.

(d) Quality Control (QC) Submittals

1, Quality control submittais are defined as those required by the Specifications to present documentary
evidence to the Engineer that the Contractor has satisfied certain requirements of the Contract
Documents.

2. Unless otherwise indicated, QC submittals shal! be submitted:

• Before delivery and unloading, for the foilowing types of submittais:

o Manufacturers' instaliation instructions

o Manufacturers' and Installers' experience qualifications

o Ready mix concrete deliver/ tickets

o Design caiculations

o Affidavits and manufacturers' certification of compliance with indicated product requirements

o Laboratory analysis results

o Factory test reports

• For the following types of submittais, the manufacturer's field representative shall submit a draft
certification prior to leaving the Project site and a final certification within 7 days of the event
documented:

o Manufacturers' field representative certification of proper installation

• Within 30 Days of the event documented for the following types of submittals:

o Field measurement

o Field test reports

o Receipt of permit

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 32



o Receipt of regulatory approvai

3. The Engineer will record the date that a QC submittal was received and review it for compliance with
submittal requirements, but the review procedures above for Shop Drawings and samples wjli not apply.

(e) Deferred Submittals to Agency

1. For the purposes of this section, Deferred Submittals are defined as those portions of the Project that are
Contractor-designed and must be submitted to the Agency's building official for approva! and to meet
Building Permit plan review requirements.

2. The Engineer wilt schedule a pre-submittal conference with the Contractor and Agency's building official
to discuss proposed Deferred Submittal items, requirements, and review schedule.

3. The Contractor shall list the Deferred Submittals on the title or cover sheet of the Drawings for submission
to the Agency and shall state the design criteria/assumptions of the Deferred Submitta! items on the plans.
Deferred Submittais shall include details for connection of materiais to the structure and calculations
showing that the specified structural requirements are met.

4. The Contractor shall submit Deferred SubmJttais to the Engineer for review for general conformance to
the design of the structure. Neither the Agency nor the Engineer is responsibie for coordination of
Deferred Submittal components with Contract Documents, Review does not lessen nor shift burden or
responsibility from Contractor or assigned subcontractor/supplier to the Agency or Engineer. The
Engineer, upon confirming the Deferred Submittals are in general confonnance with the design, shall
forward the Deferred Submitiats to the building official. Contractor is responsible, with no exceptions, to
ensure that building official's Deferred Submittal review will not adversely affect Project's construction
schedule. The Deferred Submittal items shall not be installed by the Contractor until the design and
Deferred SubmEttals have been approved by the building official.

(f) Effect of Review of Contractor's Submittals

1. Review of Contract drawings, methods of work, or information regarding materials or equipment the
Contractor proposes to provide, shall not relieve the Contractor of its responsibiiity for errors therein and
shall not be regarded as an assumption of risks or liability by the Engineer or the Agency, or by any officer
or employee thereof, and the Contractor shall have no claim under the contract on account of the failure,
or partial failure, of the method of work, material, or equipment so reviewed. An indication of "NO
EXCEPTIONS TAKEN" or "MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED" shall mean that the Agency or Engineer has
no objection to the Contractor, upon its own responsibility, using the plan or method of Work proposed,
or providing the materials or equipment proposed.

00150.37 Equipment Lists and Other Submittals ~ The Contractor shall submit Equipment lists, and other required
submittals for approval by the Engineer. With each submittal, the Contractor shall dearly identify the applicable
specification sub-sectJon and the product make, model, size and proposed options.

00150.40 Cooperation and Superintendence by the Contractor:

The Contractor is responsible for fui! management of ali aspects of the Work, including superintendence of all Work by
Subcontractors, Suppfiers, and other providers. The Contractor shall appoint a single Superintendent and may aiso
appoint alternate Superintendents as necessary to control the Work. The form of appointment of the alternate shall
state, in writing, the alternate's name, duration of appointment in the absence of the Superintendent, and scope of
authority. The Contractor shall:

• Provide for the cooperation and superintendence on the Project by:
Furnishing the Engineer all data necessary to determine the actual cost of ail or any part of the Work, added
Work, or changed Work.
Allowing the Engineer reasonable access to the Contractor's books and records at all times. To the extent
permitted by public records laws, the Engineer wiil make reasonable efforts to honor the Contractor's
request for protection of confidential information.
Keeping one complete set of Contract Documents on the Project Site at all times, available for use by all
the Contractor's own organization, and by the Engineer if necessary.

• Appoint a single Superintendent and any alternate Superintendent who shall meet the following qualifications:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 33



Appointees shall be competent to manage a!l aspects of the Work.

Appointees shall be from the Contractor's own organization.

Appointees shall have performed similar duties on at least one previous project of the size, scope and
complexity as the current Contract.

Appointees shall be experienced in the types ofWork being performed,

Appointees shall be capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the Contract Documents.

• The appointed single Superintendent, or any alternate Superintendent shall:

Be present for a(! On-Site Work, regardless of the amount to be performed by the Contractor, Subcontractors,
Suppliers, or other providers, unless the Engineer provides prior approval of the Superintendent's or
aSternate Superintendent's absence.

Be equipped with a two way radio or cell phone capable of communicating throughout the project during all
the hours of Work on the Project Site and be available for communication with the Engineer.

Have full authority and responsibility to promptly execute orders or directions of the Engineer,

Have fulS authority and responsibility to promptly supply the Materials, Equipment, labor, and Incidentals
required for performance of the Work.

Coordinate and control all Work performed under the Contract, including without iimitation the Work
performed by Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Owner Operators.

Diligently pursue progress of the Work according to the schedule requirements of Section 00180.

Cooperate En good faith with the Engineer, Inspectors, and other contractors in performance of the Work,

Provide al! assistance reasonably required by the Engineer to obtain information regarding the nature,
quantity, and quality of any part of the Work.

Provide access, facilities and assistance to the Engineer in establishing such lines, grades and points as the
Engineer requires.

Carefuliy protect and preserve the Engineer's benchmarks and horizontal control locations.

Any Superintendent or alternate Superintendent who repeatedly faiis to foiiow the Engineer's written or oral orders,
directions, instructions, or determinations, shail be subject to removal from the project.

If the Contractor fails or neglects to provide a Superintendent, or an alternate Superintendent, and no prior approval
has been granted, the Engineer has the authority to suspend the Work according to 00180.70. Any continued Work by
the Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other providers may be subject to rejection and removal. The Contractor's
repeated failure or negiect to provide the superintendence required by these provisions constitutes a material breach
of the Contract, and the Engineer may impose any remedies available under the Contract, including but not limited to
Contract termination.

00150.50 Cooperation with Utilities:

(a) General - As specified in the Special Provisions or as shown on the Plans, existing Utilities requiring adjustment
may be adjusted by the Utility before, during, or after Project construction. "Adjustment of Utiiities" shafi mean the
alteration, improvement, connection, disconnection, relocation, or removal of existing UtiEity lines, facilities, or
systems in temporary or permanent manner.

(b) Contractor's Responsibilities - The Contractor shaSS:

• Follow applicable rules adopted by the Oregon Utility Notification Center;

• Contact Utility owners after the Contract is awarded to verify ail Utilities' invoivement on the Project Site;

• Coordinate Project construction with the Utilities' planned adjustments, take all precautions necessary to
prevent disruption of Utiiity service, and perform its Work in the manner that results in the least inconvenience
to the Utility owners;

• Include all UtiSity adjustment work, whether to be performed by the Contractor or the Utilities, on the Contractor's
Project Work schedule submitted under 00180.41;

• Protect from damage or disturbance any Utiiity that remains within the area in which Work is being performed;

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 34



• Not disturb an existing Utility if st requires an unanticipated adjustment, but shall protect it from damage or
disturbance and promptly notify the Engineer; and

• Report to the Engineer any Utility owner who fails to cooperate or fails to follow the planned Utility adjustment,

Subject to the Engineer's approval, the Contractor may propose adjustments to the Utilities by asking the Utility
owners to move, remove, or alter their facilities in ways other than as shown on the Plans or in the Special Provisions.
The Contractor shall conduct ail negotiations, make all arrangements, and assume all costs that arise from such
changes.

(c) Notification - This project is located within the Oregon Utility Notification Center area which is a Utilities
notification system for notifying owners of Utilities about work being performed in the vicinity of their facilities. The
Utiiities notification system telephone number is 811 (or use the old number which is 1-800-332-2344).

The Contractor shall comply with the rules of the Oregon Utility Notification Center, OAR 952-001-0010 through
OAR 952-001 "0090, and ORS 757.993. The Contractor may contact the Oregon Utility Notification Center at
503-232-1987 about these ruies.

00150.53 Utilities and Existing Improvements:

(a) Genera! - information shown on the plans as to the location of existing water courses and utilities has been
compi!ed from available sources and may not be accurate. The Contractor shali determine the location and
nature of affected water courses, utilities and underground improvements prior to commencing Work.

The Contractor shall provide for the flow of water courses and essentiai utilities that may be interrupted during
the progress of the Work and shall restore such water courses or utilities after completion of the Work.

The Contractor shali be responsible for exploratory excavations as it deems necessary to determine the exact
locations and depths of utilities which may interfere with Work, All such exploratory excavations shall be
performed as soon as practicable after Notice to Proceed and, in any event, a sufficient time in advance of
construction to avoid possible delays to the Contractor's progress. When such exploratory excavations show the
utility location as shown on the Pians to be in error, the Contractor shall so notify the Engineer.

The number of exploratory excavations required shall be that number which is sufficient to determine the
alignment and grade of the utility. Unless otherwise provided in the Special Provisions, all potholing and
exploratory work shali be incidentai to the Work and no separate payment shali be made therefore.

The Contractor shall coordinate project construction with the adjustment of utilities, take all necessary
precautions to prevent disturbing the utilities, and perform work so that utility owners and users are caused a
minimum of inconvenience.

The Contractor shall protect underground utilities and other improvements which may be impaired during
construction operations, regardless of whether or the not the utilities are indicated on the plans. The Contractor
shall take all possible precautions for the protection of unforeseen utility lines to provide for uninterrupted sen/ice
and to provide such specja! protection as may be necessary,

To ease or streamline the work, the Contractor may desire to adjust the utilities by asking the utility owners to
move, remove, or alter their equipment in ways other than those shown on the plans or in the Contract
Documents. The Contractor shali conduct the negotiations, make the arrangements, and pay all costs that arise
from such changes.

(b) Utilities to be IVIoved - In case it shall be necessary to move the property of any public utility or franchise
holder, such utility company or franchise holder shali be notified by the Contractor to move such property within
a specified reasonable time. When utiiity lines that are to be removed are encountered within the area of
operations, the Contractor shall notify the utility company and the Engineer a sufficient time in advance for the
necessary measures to be taken to prevent the interruption of service.

(c) Utilities to be Removed - Where the proper completion of the Work requires the temporary or permanent
removal ancf/or relocation of an existing utility or other improvement which is indicated, the Contractor shall
remove and, without unnecessary delay, temporarily replace or relocate such utiiity or improvement in manner
satisfactory to the Engineer and the owner of the facility. In al! cases of such temporary removal or relocation,

City ofWafrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 35



restoration to the former location shall be accomplished by the Contractor in a manner that will restore or replace
the utility or improvement as nearly as possible to its former locations and to as good or better condition than
found prior to removal.

(d) Underground Utilities and Improvements Indicated - Existing utility iines and underground improvements
that are indicated or the locations of which are made known to the Contractor prior to excavation and that are
to be retained, and all utility lines and underground improvements that are encountered during excavation
operations shall be protected from damage during excavation and backfilling and, if damaged, shail be
immediateiy repaired or replaced by the Contractor, unless otherwise repaired by the owner of damaged utility.
If the owner of the damage facility performs its own repairs, the Contractor shall reimburse said owner for the
costs of repair.

(e) Underground Utilities and Improvements Not Indicated ~ In the event that the Contractor damages existing
utility lines or underground improvements that are not indicated in the plans or marked in the field, or are not
indicated or marked with reasonable accuracy, or the locations of which are not made known to the Contractor
prior to excavation, the Contractor shall immediately provide a verbal report of such damage to the Engineer,
and provide a written report thereof promptiy thereafter. The Contractor shal! immediately notify the owner of
the damaged utility. If directed by the Engineer, repairs sha!! be made by the Contractor under the provisions
for changes and extra work contained in the General Conditions.

This subsection applies only to main line utilities. For service lines, see Subsection 00150.53(f).

For purposes of this section, "reasonable accuracy" is defined as within two (2) feet from the outside laterai
dimensions of both sides of an underground utility or facility from actual location. No representation shall be
made concerning the accuracy of vertical elevations of existing utilities, even if indicated in the plans, and no
additional payment wiii be made for damage to utilities encountered at depths differing from those indicated.

(f) Underground Services Indicated or Not - If service lines are encountered, whether shown, marked or not,
the Contractor shail take precautions to carefully work around them and repair them if they are damaged by the
Contractor, at no additional cost to the Agency. For purposes of this subsection, service lines to private property
are defined as:

• Sanitary sewer service iaterals of 6-inch diameter or less
• Water sen/ice lines of 2-inch diameter or less

(S) Approval of Repairs ~ All repairs to a damaged utility or improvement sha!! be inspected and approved by an
authorized representative of the utility or improvement owner, and accepted by the Agency before being
concealed by backfil! or other Work.

(h) Agency's Right of Access ~ The right reserved to the Agency and to the owners of public utilities and
franchises to enter at any time upon any public street, alley, right-of-way, or easement for the purpose of making
changes En their property made necessary by the Work of this Contract.

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors - The Agency reserves the right to perform other work on or near the
Project Site, including without limitation any Materials site, with forces other than those of the Contractor.

if such work takes piace on or near the Project Site, the Contractor shall have the following obligations:

• The Contractor shal! coordinate Work with other contractors or forces.

• The Contractor shaii cooperate in good faith with ali other contractors or forces.

• The Contractor shaii perform the Work specified in the Contract in a way that will minimize interference and
delay for ail forces involved.

• The Contractor shail place and dispose of the Materials being used so as not to interfere with the operations
of other forces.

• The Contractor shall join the Work with that of other forces in a manner acceptable to the
Engineer or the Agency, and shall perform it in the accepted sequence with the work of the other force.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 36



The Engineer will resoive any disagreements under this Subsection that may arise among the Contractor and other
work forces, or between the Contractor and the Agency. The Engineer's decision in these matters is final, as provided
in 00150.00.

When the schedules for Work of the Contractor and the work of other forces overlap, each contractor involved shall
submit a current, realistic progress scheduie to the Engineer. Before the Engineer accepts the schedule, each party
shali have the opportunity to review all schedules. After this review and any necessary consultations, the Engineer will
determine acceptable scheduies.

The Contractor waives any right it may have to make claims against the Agency for any damages or claims that may
arise because of inconvenience, delay, or loss due solely to the presence of other contractors working on or near the
Project Site.

If the Contract gives notice of work to be performed by other forces that may affect the Contractor's Work under the
Contract, the Contractor shall include any costs associated with coordination of the Work in the appropriate Pay item
or as a portion of a Pay Item.

In an emergency, the contractor most immediately able to respond may repair a facility or Utility of another contractor
in order to prevent further damage to the faciiity, Utility, or other Structure as a resuit of the emergency.

00150.60 Construction Equipment Restrictions:

(a) Load and Speed Restrictions for Construction Vehicles and Equipment - The Contractor shall comply with
legai weight and speed restrictions when moving Materials or Equipment beyond the limits of the Project Site.

The Contractor shall control vehicie and Equipment loads and speeds within the Project Site according to the
following restrictions, unless the Special Provisions provide otherwise:

• The Contractor shall restrict loads and speeds as necessary to avoid dispiacement or toss of Materials on
Subgrades and Aggregate Bases.

• The Contractor shall restrict weights to legal toads, and shali travel at speeds of no more than 45 mph or
the posted construction speed, whichever is jess, on treated Bases, Pavement, or wearing Courses.

• The Contractor shall not cross Bridges or other Structures with Equipment or vehicles exceeding the legal
load limit without prior written permission of the Engineer. The Contractor shall make any such request in
writing, describing the loading details and the arrangement, movement, and position of the Equipment on
the Structure, The Contractor shall comply with any restrictions or conditions included in the Engineer's
written permission.

(b) Protection of Buried Items - The Contractor shall use temporary fiil or other methods to avoid overload of
pipes, box culverts, and other items that are covered, or to be covered, by fill or backfill.

(c) Responsibility for Damages - The Contractor shail assume responsibility for damages caused by excessive
Equipment speed or loads while performing the Work, both inside and outside the Project Site. The Engineer's
permission to cross Bridges and other Structures, according to00150.60(a) will not relieve the Contractor from
responsibility for load-caused damages.

00150.70 Detrimental Operations - The Contractor shal! avoid operations whose methods, conditions, or timing may
injure people or damage property or the Work. Damage may include without limitation, staining surfaces with mud or
asphalt or damaging utilities, foundations or structures, (also see 00150.60, 00150,75, and Section 00170)

When any such damage occurs, the Engineer will determine if it is to be corrected by repair, reptacement, or
compensatory payment by the Contractor. if compensatory payment is required, the Engineer will determine the
amount. Compensatory payment may be deducted from monies due or to become due to the Contractor under the
Contract.

00150.75 Protection and Maintenance of Work During Construction - The Contractor shall protect and maintain
the Work during construction and until Third Notification has been issued, unless otherwise provided in the Contract.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Constaiction
Page 37



For the purposes of this Subsection, "maintenance" shaii include measures to prevent deterioration of Roadway and
Structures at the Project Site, and to keep them in good condition at all times during the prosecution of the Work. The
Contractor shall continuousiy allocate sufficient Equipment and workers to achieve such maintenance.

if the Contract requires the placement of a Course upon a previousiy constructed Course or Subgrade, the Contractor
shal! maintain the previous Course or Subgrade during all construction operations.

The Contractor shall JncSude costs of protecting and maintaining the Work during construction in the unit prices bid for
the various Pay Items. The Contractor wi!l not be paid an additional amount for this Work, unless otherwise specified.

The Engineer wi!l timeiy notify the Contractor of Contractor's noncompliance with this Subsection, if the Contractor
fails to remedy unsatisfactory protection or maintenance within 24 hours after receipt of such notice, the Engineer may
proceed to remedy the deficiency, and deduct the entire cost from monies due or to become due the Contractor under
the Contract.

00150.80 Removal of Unacceptable and Unauthorized Work-The Contractor shall correct or remove
unacceptable Work and remove unauthorized work, as directed by the Engineer in writing. The Contractor shall replace
such work with Work and Materials conforming to the requirements of the Contract,

For the purposes of this Subsection, "unauthorized work" shai! include without limitation the foliowjng:

• Work that extends beyond lines shown on the Pians or otherwise established by the Engineer;

• Work that is contrary to the Engineer's instructions; and

• Work that is conducted without the Engineer's written authorization.

The Agency will not pay the Contractor for unacceptable Work, except as provided in 00150.25, or unauthorized work.
The Engineer may issue a written order for the correction or removal of such work at the Contractor's expense.

ft, when ordered by the Engineer, the Contractor fails to correct or remove unacceptable Work or unauthorized work,
the Engineer may have the correction, removal, or removal and replacement, done by others and deduct the entire cost
from monies due or to become due the Contractor under the Contract.

00150.90 Final Inspection:

(a) On-site Construction Work - The Engineer will inspect the Project at a time dose to the compSetion of On-Site
Work for Contractor's compliance with the Contract Documents.

When all On-Site Work on the Project is completed, inciuding but not limited to Change Order Work and Extra Work,
the Engineer wili issue Second Notification as specified in 00180.50(g), including notification of required corrective
work (punch iist) to be completed prior to Engineer's issuance of Third Notification (Final Completion).

Within 15 Calendar Days after the Engineer receives the Contractor's written notification that all punch !ist items,
fina! trimming and cleanup according to 00140.90 have been completed, the Engineer will inspect the Project and
notify the Contractor that all Work is complete, or within 15 Calendar Days of inspection wilt give the Contractor
written instruction regarding incomplete or unsatisfactory Work.

(b) All Contract Work - The Engineer wiil issue the Third Notification when the Contractor has satEsfactoriiy
accomplished al! of the following:

• The Contractor has completed all On-Site Work required under the Contract, including the punch list items
from (a) above;

• The Contractor has removed ali Equipment; and

• The Contractor has submitted all required certifications, bills, forms, warranties and other documents.

• The Contractor has submitted complete and acceptable "As-Built" drawings as specified in 00140.95.

00150.91 Post-Construction Review-The Contractor or the Engineer may request a Post-Construction Review
meeting, to be held at a time prior to issuance of Third Notification but not eariier than 15 Days foliowing the date of

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 38



Second Notification. The meeting may be held if agreed to by both parties. The party making the request wili conduct
the meeting, and wiil announce the time and place of the meeting at ieast 15 Days prior to the meeting date. The
purpose of this meeting is to examine the Project for possible process improvements that may benefit future projects.

00150.95 Fina! Acceptance-After the Engineer completes Fina! inspection of all Correction Period work and deems
it satisfactorily compieted, the Agency wiil acknowledge Final Acceptance. The Agency wiii notify the Contractor in
writing of the date of Final Acceptance within 7 Calendar Days after Final Acceptance, or as soon thereafter as is
practicable.

00150.96 Maintenance Warranties and Guarantees - Prior to Second Notification, the Contractor shal! transfer to
the Agency all unexpired manufacturer's, installer's or supplier's warranties and guarantees for Materials and
Equipment instalied on the Project. Such warranties and guarantees shall recite that they are enforceable by the
Agency.

00150.97 Responsibility for Materials and Workmanship:

(a) The Contractor shall perform the Work according to the terms, conditions, and requirements of the Contract.

(b) Until the Agency's Final Acceptance of the Worl<, the Contractor shal) be responsibie for:

• Correcting or repairing any defects in, or damage to, the Work which results from the use of improper or
defective materials or workmanship; or

• Replacing, in its entirety, the Work affected by the use of improper or defective materials or workmanship to
the extent provided by law; and

• Correcting or repairing any Work, Materials, Structures, Existing Surfacings, Pavement, Utilities, or sites,
including without limitation Wetlands, damaged or disturbed in that correction, repair, or replacement, (see
00170.80to00170.85)

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 39



Section 00160 - Source of Materials

00160.00 Definitions - The following definitions apply to Section 00160:

(a) Prospective Source - Agency-furnished Materiajs source, use of which by the Contractor is optionai. The
Agency makes no guarantee or representation, by impSicatEon or otherwise, of the land use status, quantity, quality,
or acceptability of Materials available from it, except as may be stated in the Special Provisions.

(b) Mandatory Source - Agency-furnished Materials source, use of which by the Contractor is required.

00160.01 Notification of Source of Supply and Materials:

(a) All Materials - The Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of ail proposed Materials sources of supply,
including without [imitation any steel or other fabricators within the foiiowing time frames:

• At least 15 Caiendar Days before using or fabricating Materials, if source is within the State; or

• At feast 45 Calendar Days before using or fabricating Materials, if source is outside the State

(b) Prospective Source Materials - When given an option to use Prospective Sources of Materials to be
incorporated into the Work, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer En writing of the option selected within 15
Calendar Days from date of Notice to Proceed, Otherwise, such Materials sources may become unavailable.

(c) Approval Required - Before aliowing production or delivery of Materials to begin from any source, the
Contractor must obtain the Engineer's approval. Approval to use any source does not impiy that Materials from that
source will be accepted. If approved sources do not provide Materials that meet Specifications, the Materials will be
rejected. The Contractor will then be responsibie for locating other sources and obtaining the Engineer's approval.

00160.05 Qualified Products List (QPL) - The QPL is a listing of manufactured products available on the market (shelf
items) that ODOT has evaluated and found suitable for a specified use in construction. The QPL is published twice a
year and is available from ODOT's Construction Section; 800 Airport Road SE; Salem, OR 97301-4798; phone
503-986-3000. It may aiso be viewed on ODOT's web site.

The current version of the QPL at the time of Bid Closing is the version in effect for the Project. The Engineer may
approve for use a conditionaSly qualified product, or a product qualified for inclusion in a Sater edition of the QPL, if the
Engineer finds the product acceptable for use on the Project.

Use of iisted products shall be restricted to the category of use for which they are listed. The Contractor shail install all
products as recommended by the manufacturer. The Contractor shall replace qualified products not conforming to
Specifications or not properly handled or installed at the Contractor's expense.

00160.10 Ordering, Producing, and Furnishing Materials -The Contractor shall not place orders for or produce full
quantities of Materials anticipated to be required to complete the Work until the Work has advanced to a stage that
allows the quantities to be determined with reasonable accuracy.

(a) Contractor's Duties - In purchasing, producing, or delivering Materials, the Contractor shall take into account
the following:

• Kind of work involved;

• Amount of work involved;

• Time required to obtain Materiais; and

* Other relevant factors.

(b) Quantity of Materials - Materials quantities shown on the Plans, or indicated by quantities and Pay Items, are
subject to change or elimination. The Contractor is responsible for payment for excess Materials delivered to the
Project Site or storage sites. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Agency will not be responsible for:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 40



• MateriaSs the Contractor may deliver or produce in excess of Contract requirements;

• Extra expense the Contractor may incur because Materials were not ordered or produced earlier; or

• The Contractor's expenses related to Materials ordered by the Contractor that are not subsequentiy approved
for use.

Excess Materials, ordered or produced by the Contractor, without approval of the Engineer, may be purchased by
the Agency at the sole discretion of the Agency, (see 00195.80)

00160.20 Preferences for Materials:

(a) Buy America - If federal highway funds are involved on the Project, the Contractor shall limit the quantity of
foreign Materials incorporated into the Work as folSows. Section 635.410 of Title 23, Code of Federal Regulations,
and the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act require that ali iron or steel manufacturing processes,
including without iimitation the casting of jngots, for iron or steel Materials permanently incorporated into the Project
shall occur in the United States, unless the cost of foreign-origin iron or steel Materials does not exceed one-tenth
of one percent (0.1%) of the Contract Amount or $2,500, whichever is greater. The Contractor shall not incorporate
foreign-origin iron or steel Materials in excess of this amount into the Project. All foreign-origin iron or steel Materials
incorporated in the Project in excess of the amount indicated above shall be removed and replaced with domestic
iron or steel Materials at the Contractor's expense. For purposes of this Specification, the cost of foreign-origjn iron
or steel Materials shall be the vaiue of the iron or steel products as of the date they are delivered to the Project Site.

Manufacturing processes include without iimitation the application of coatings to finished iron or steel products or
components. Coatings include epoxy coating, galvanizing, painting, and any other coating that protects or enhances
the value of the steel or iron product or component.

The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a Certificate of Materials Origin, on a form furnished by the Engineer,
before incorporating any iron or steel products into the Project. Unless a Certificate of Materials Origin has been
provided to the Engineer, the Materials shall be considered of foreign origin.

The Contractor shall retain manufacturers' certificates verifying the origin of all domestic iron or steel Materials for
3 years after the date of final payment for the Project, and shall furnish copies to the Engineer upon request.

(b) Buy Oregon " According to ORS 279A. 120, the Contractor shaf) give preference to goods or services produced
in Oregon if price, fitness, avaiiability, and quality are equal. This provision does not apply to Contracts financed
whoily or in part by federal funds.

(c) Recycled Materials - According to ORS279A.010, ORS279A.125. ORS279A.145, ORS279A.150, and
ORS279A.155, and subject to the approval of the Engineer, the Contractor shall use recycled products to the
maximum extent economicaily feasibie.

00160.30 Agency-Furnished Materials ~ Unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions, Materials listed as
Agency-furnished wil! be availabie to the Contractor free of charge.

The Contractor shall be responsible for al! Materials furnished by the Agency and shall pay all demurrage and storage
charges. The Contractor shall replace at its expense Agency-furnished Materiais lost or damaged due to any cause.

The locations at which Agency-furnished Materials are available wii) be specified in the Specia! Provisions. if the
locations are not iisted in the Special Provisions, the Agency-fumished Materials will be furnished to the Contractor at
the Project Site. !n either case, all costs of handling, hauling, unloading, and placing Agency-furnished Material shall
be considered included in the price paid for the Pay item involving such Material.

A!! Agency-furnished Materials not incorporated into the Work remains the property of the Agency. The Contractor
shall deliver such Materials as directed by the Engineer.

001G0.50 Agency-Control!ed Land; Limitations and Requirements:

(a) General - The Contractor shall have no property rights En, or right of occupancy on, Agency-Controiled Land.
Nor shall the Contractor have the right to sell, use, remove, or otherwise dispose of any material from Agency-

City ofWarrenlon
SW Atder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 41



Controlled Land, areas, or property, except as specified in the Special Provisions or by the written authorization of
the Engineer.

Unless authorized in the Contract, the Contractor shal! not disturb any material within Rights-of-Way without written
authorization from the Engineer.

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the ownership of a!l materials originating on Agency-Controlled Lands
will at all times vest in, and remain within the control of, the Agency.

(b) Waste, Excess, and By-Product Materials - Ali waste, excess, and by-product materials, collectively referred
to in this Subsection as "By-Products", from the manufacture or production of Materials from Agency-Controlied
Lands shall remain Agency property. Unless otherwise ordered by the Engineer in writing, By-Products shall be
placed as required in the Special Provisions;

• In stockpiles at designated locations;

• At locations and in shapes that are readiiy accessible; and

• In such a manner as to avoid fouling areas containing useable materials, or interfering with future plant setups
to use materials from the property.

The Agency will not compensate the Contractor for handling and stockpiiing By-Products according to the Speciai
Provisions requirements. If by written order the Engineer directs the Contractor to stockpile or place designated By-
Products at alternate sites, the By-Products designated shall be loaded, hauled, and placed as directed, and this work
will be paid for according to 00195.20.

00160.60 Contractor-Furnished Materials and Sources:

(a) General - The Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, ail products and Materials required for the Project
from sources of its own choosing, unless such sources have been specified in the Specia! Provisions or Plans as
Prospective or Mandatory Sources.

(b) Acquisition of Sources - The Contractor shall acquire, at its own expense, the rights of access to, and the use
of, ail sources the Contractor chooses which are not Agency-controiled and made available by the Agency to the
Contractor.

(c) Additional Requirements - Except for continuously-operated commercial sources, Work sha!i not begin, nor
will any Materials be accepted by the Engineer, until the Contractor has:

(1) Given to the Engineers copy of permits from, or proof that permits are not required from:

The Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, as required under ORS 517.790;

The Department of State Lands, as required under ORS 196.815 (when removing material from the bed or
banks of any waters or from any Wetland); and

Locai governmental authorities having jurisdiction over land use at the source location.

(2) Furnished to the Engineer written approvai of the property owner, if other than the Contractor, for the
Contractor's proposed plans of operation in, and reclamation of, the source. The Contractor shail include in the
document containing the property owner's written approval a summary of the requirements of the permits
described above, which shali be subject to the Engineer's approval.

00160.70 Requirements for Plant Operations - Before operating mixing plants, Rock crushers, or other Equipment,
the Contractor sha!) provide the Engineer copies of all applicable discharge permits for noise, air contaminants, and
water pollutants from DEQ or applicable iocai jurisdictions, or a letter from DEQ or the local jurisdiction stating that no
permits are required for the use of the Equipment and sites.

00160.80 Requirements for Sources of Borrow and Aggregate - The Contractor shall conduct operations
according to all applicable federal, State, and local iaws (including without limitation ORS 517 and OAR 632-030) when
developing, using, and reclaiming all sources of Borrow material and Aggregate. The Contractor shall provide erosion

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 42



controi at Borrow sources that are not within the Project Site, The Contractor shall not operate in Wetlands except as
allowed by permit. The Contractor shall comp!y with all requirements for pollution and sediment control, including
without limitation the Nationa! Pollutant Discharge Eiimination System where applicable,

Except for continuously-operated commercial sources, the Contractor shall also conform to the following:

(a) if a natural growth of trees or shrubs is present, presen/e a border of such to conceal land scars.

(b) Excavate Borrow sources and Aggregate sources, except for those in streams and rivers, to provide:

• Reasonabiy uniform depths and widths;

• Natural drainage so no water stands or collects in excavated areas, when practicable;

• Slopes trimmed to blend with the adjacent terrain upon completion of operations;

• Slopes covered with native soil, or acceptable plant rejects to support plant growth, if required by Specifications,
Plans, or permits; and

• A vegetative cover that blends with the adjacent natural growth.

(c) Excavate in quarries so that:

• Faces will not be steeper than vertical (no overhang);

• Vertical faces conform to Oregon OSHA standards, Division 3, and as shown on an approved development
plan;

• Fioors or benches are excavated to a uniform Slope free of depressions and will drain and not interfere with
the downland owner's property; and

• Upon completion, the quarry is left appearing neat and compatibie with surrounding terrain.

(d) Obliterate haul roads specificaliy buiit for access to sources, and restore the areas disturbed by these roads as
nearly as practicable to the conditions that existed before the roads were built, unless otherwise directed by the
landowner or reguiatory body.

City ofWan'enton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 43



Section 00165 - Quality of IVIaterials

00165.00 General - The Contractor shall incorporate into the Work oniy Materials conforming to the Specifications
and approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall incorporate into the Work only manufactured products made of
new materiaSs unless otherwise specified in the Contract. The Agency may require additional testing or retesting to
determine whether the Materials or manufactured products meet Specifications.

Materials or manufactured products not meeting the Specifications at the time they are to be used are unacceptable
and must be removed immediately from the Project Site, unless otherwise directed by the Engineer.

00165.01 Rejected Materials - The Engineer may reject any Materials that appear to be defective (00150.25) or that
contain asbestos. The Contractor shall not incorporate any rejected Materials into the Work, Rejected Materials whose
defects have been corrected may not be incorporated into the Work until the Engineer has approved their use. The
Engineer may order the removal and replacement by the Contractor, at Contractor's expense, of any defective

Materials, (refer also to 00150.20)

00165.03 Testing by Agency - When testing Materials, the Agency wil! conduct the tests in its central laboratory, field
Saboratories, or other laboratories designated by the Engineer, even though certain AASHTO, ASTM, and other
Materials specifications may require testing at the place of manufacture. Results of the Agency's tests will be made
available to the Contractor.

00165.04 Costs of Testing - The SpecJai Provisions identify the Agency's and Contractor's responsibilities for testing
expenses. When the Contract requires that the Agency performs the testing, the testing wili be at the Agency's
expense.

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, all testing required to be performed by the Contractor will be at the
Contractor's expense.

00165.10 Materials Acceptance Guides - Uniess otherwise specified elsewhere in the Contract, Materials will be
accepted according to the following guides:

(a) Field-Tested Materials - Fieid-tested Materials wiil be accepted according to the ODOT Manual of Field Test
Procedures (MFTP) unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions. The MFTP is published once peryear and
is available from the ODOT -Construction Section, 800 Airport Road SE; Salem, OR 97301-4798; phone
503-986-3000. The MFTP is also available on the ODOT Construction Section web site.

(b) Nonfieid-Tested Materials - Nonfield-tested Materials wiii be accepted according to the ODOT Nonfield Tested
Materials Acceptance Guide (NTMAG), unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions. The NTMAG is
available on the ODOT Construction Section web site.

00165.20 Materials Specifications and Test Method References - References to Materials specifications and test
methods of ODOT, WAQTC, AASHTO, ASTM, other governmental agencies, or other recognized organizations mean
those officially adopted and in current use by the agency or organization on the date of the Call for Bids.

if there are conflicting references, or if no reference is made to Materials specifications or test method, Materials must
meet the Materials specifications or test methods required by the first applicable of the following agencies and
organizations:

• Field-Tested Materials:

Specia! Provisions;

Standard Specifications; and

MFTP..

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 44



• Nonfieid Tested Materials:

ODOT;

WAQTC;
AASHTO;

ASTM;

Other recognized national organizations, such as ANSI, AWPA, II\/ISA, and UL;and

Industry standards in the location where the Work is being performed.

If there are conflicting references in the Contract Documents to required sampling and testing frequencies, the
Contractor shall sample and test the Materials according to the first appiicable of the following:

* Special Provisions;

• Standard Specifications; and

• MFTP.

00165.30 Field-Tested Materials:

(a) Acceptance of Field-Tested Materials The Contractor's test results for fieid-tested Materials may be verified
by the Agency. Materials will be analyzed as determined by the Engineer for acceptance before the Engineer wjil
accept them for incorporation into the Work, incorporated Materials that do not meet Specifications will be evaluated
according to 00165.01 and 00150.25.

If the Agency's verification testing reveals that the Contractor's data is incorrect, the Agency may require additional
testing to determine whether the Materials meet Specifications. The Contractor shail perform additional quality
controi testing or provide split samples to the Agency for additional testing as directed. If the Materials do not meet
Specifications, the Contractor shail reimburse the Agency for the cost of the additional testing, which may be
deducted from monies due or to become due the Contractor under the Contract, Incorporated Materials that do not
meet Specifications will be evaluated according to 00165.01 and 00150.25. !f the Materials meet Specifications the
Agency wiil pay the cost for the additional testing.

00165.35 Nonfield-Tested Materials - Materials will be subject to acceptance testing if the Engineer so elects. The
Engineer may reject damaged or non-Specification Materials regardless of Ihe Materials Test Results and Quality
Compliance Certificates furnished.

(a) Test Results Certificate - The Certificate shall:

• Be from the manufacturer verifying that the Material furnished has been sampled and tested and the test
results meet the Specifications.

• Include, or be accompanied by, a copy of the specified test results (ODOT, AASHTO, ASTM, UL or other).

• Identify the independent testing agency and the representative responsibSe for the test results.

• Permit positive determination that Materiai delivered to the Project is the same Material covered by the test
results.

• Be delivered to the Engineer with the shipment of the material.

(b) Quality Compliance Certificate - The Certificate from the manufacturer shall:

• Verify that the Material meets the Specifications, and identify by number the specified test methods used,
(ODOT, AASHTO, ASTM, UL, or other)

• Permit positive determination that Material deiivered to the Project is the same Material covered by the
certificate,

• Be delivered to the Engineer with the shipment of the Material, or be an identification piate or mark, decal,
sticker, label, or tag attached to the container or Material,

(c) Equipment List and Drawings - These consist of lists of proposed Equipment and Materials, such as:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 sl Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 45



• Shop drawings

• Material iists

• Equipment lists

• Catalog description sheets

* Manufacturer's brochures

Submit these lists to the Engineer for review of conformance with the Specifications.

(d) Certificate of Origin of Steel Materials - When specified, complete this document (ODOT Form 734-2126) as
required by 00160.20 for Federal-aid projects.

Materials will be subject to acceptance testing if the Engineer so elects. The Engineer may reject damaged or non-
Specification Materials regardless of the Materials Conformance Documents furnished.

00165.50 Acceptance Sampling and Testing -The Contractor shall sample and test Materials for acceptance, as
required by the Contract. Materials will be analyzed as determined by the Engineer for acceptance before the Engineer
wil! accept them for incorporation into the Work. When the Engineer determines the Materials or Work does not conform
to the Specifications the Engineer may accept the Materials or Work with pay adjustments or reject the Materials or
Work per 00150.25.

00165.70 Use of Materials without Engineer's Acceptance:

(a) General - The Contractor shail not incorporate Materials into the Project prior to acceptance by the Engineer.
The Engineer may waive this requirement temporarily if Materials are necessary for immediate traffic safety.

(b) Materials Incorporated for Immediate Traffic Safety - if Materials are incorporated into the Project for
immediate traffic safety before acceptance by the Engineer, no payment wili be made for the value of the Materials,
or the costs of incorporating them, until Materials are accepted by the Engineer, or the Materials are otherwise found
through testing to comply with Specifications.

00165.75 Storage and Handling of Materials - The Contractor shall store and handle Materials so as to preserve their
quality and fitness for incorporation into the Work. The Contractor shaii restore all storage sites to their original condition
according to 00140.90, or to comply with any applicable permits, orders, or agreements, at the Contractor's expense,

Stored Materials:

Shall be readiiy accessible for inspection;

May be stored on approved parts of the Right-of-Way; and

May be stored on private property if written permission of the owner or lessor is obtained.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 46



Section 00170 " Legal Relations and Responsibilities

00170.00 General - The Contractor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and rules, (collectiveiy
referred to as "Laws" in this Section), that relate to the Work or to those engaged in the Work. Where the provisions of
the Contract are inconsistent or in confiict, the Contractor shall comply with the more stringent standard.

The Contractor shali indemnify, defend, and ho!d harmless the Agency and its representatives from liability arising from
or related to the violation of Laws by those engaged in any phase of the Work, This provision does not apply to Work
performed by Agency employees.

In any litigation, the entire text of any order or permit issued by a governmentai or regulatory authority, as well as any
documents referenced or incorporated therein by reference, shall be admissible for the purpose of Contract
interpretation.

The Contract shall not be construed against either party regardless of which party drafted it. Other than as modified
by the Contract, the appiicable rules of contract construction and evidence shall apply. This Contract shal! be governed
by and construed according to the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflict of laws.

Any dispute between the Agency and the Contractor that arises from or relates to this Contract and that is not resolved
under the provisions of Section 00199 shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court
for the State of Oregon in the county where the Agency's main office is located; provided, however, if a dispute must
be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted soiely and exclusively within the United States
District Court for the District of Oregon. In no event shall this Subsection be construed as a waiver by the State of
Oregon on any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on
the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any claim or from the jurisdiction
of any court. CONTRACTOR BY EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONAM
JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS REFERENCED IN THIS SECTION.

00170.01 Other Agencies Affecting Agency Contracts - Representatives of regulatory bodies or units of
government whose Laws may apply to the Work shall have access to the Work according to 00150.20(d). These may
include but are not limited to those in the foitowlng (a), (b), (c), and (d),

(a) Federal Agencies:

Agricuiture, Department of
Forest Service

Natural Resource Consen/ation Service

Army, Department of the
Corps of Engineers

Commerce, Department of

National Marine Fisheries Service

Defense, Department of

Energy, Department of

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Geology Survey

Health and Human Sen/ices, Department of

Homeland Security, Department of
U.S. Coast Guard (USCG)

Housing and Urban Development, Department of

Interior, Department of
Heritage, Conservation, and Recreation Sen/Jce

Bureau of Indian Affairs
Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Mines

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 47



Bureau of Reclamation

GeoSogJcai Survey
Office of Surface Mining, Reclamation, and Enforcement

Minerals Management Service

Solar Energy and Energy Consen/ation Bank

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Labor, Department of
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Occupationa! Safety and Heaith Administration (OSHA)

Transportation, Department of

Federal Highway Administration

Water Resources Council

(b) State of Oregon Agencies:

Administrative Services, Department of

Agricuiture, Department of
Natural Resources Division
Soil and Water Conservation District

Columbia River Gorge Commission

Consumer and Business Services, Department of

Insurance Division

Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Division (OR-OSHA)

Energy, Office of

Environmental Quality, Department of (DEQ)

Fish and Wildlife, Department of

Forestry, Department of

Geology and Mineral Industries, Department of

Human Resources, Department of

Labor and Industries, Bureau of

Land Conservation and Deveiopment Department

Parks and Recreation, Department of

State Lands, Department of

Water Resources Department

(c) Local Agencies;

City Counci!s

County Courts

County Commissioners, Boards of

Design Commissions

Historical Presen/ation Commissions

Lane Regional Air Pollution Authority (LRAPA)

Planning Commissions

Port Districts

Special Districts

(d) Oregon Federally Recognized Tribal Governments:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 46



Burns Paiute Tribe

Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw Indians

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde

Confederated Tribes of Siletz

Confederated Tribes of UmatElla Indian Reservation

Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs

Coquille Tribe

Cow Creek Band of Umpqua Indians

Klamath Tribe

00170.02 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes -As required to accomplish the Work, the Contractor shall do the following:

• Obtain al! necessary permits and licenses, except for those noted in 00170.03;

• Pay all applicable charges, fees and taxes, except for those noted in 00170.03;

• Give all notices required by applicable Laws, or under the terms of the Contract;

• Comply with ORS 274.530 relating to lease of stream beds by Oregon Division of State Lands;

• License, in the State of Oregon, all vehicles subject to licensing;

• Comply with ORS 477.625 and ORS 527.670 relating to clearing and fire hazards on forest lands; and

• Comply with all orders and permits issued by a governmenta! authority, whether iocaf, State, or federal.

00170.03 Furnishing Rights-of-Way, Easements and Permits - Unless required to be obtained in the name of the
Contractor, the Agency will obtain and pay for the following when they are required by the applicable Laws or by Plans
or Specifications:

• All necessary Rights-of-Way, Rights of Entry and Easements;

• Permits required for crossing or encroaching upon navigable streams;

• Permits required for removing materials from or depositing materials in waterways;

• Permits required for operating in Agency-controiied source of Materials or disposal area;

• System development fees charged by local units of government;

• Buiiding construction permits, not including specialty work such as heating, ventilation, air conditioning, or
electrical;

• Cost of referencing and replacing endangered survey monuments; and

• Environmentai permits, excluding erosion control permits,

If, after the Bid Closing date, the Agency obtains any Permits, Rights of Way or Easements which require changes to
the Work and thereby causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for the performance of the
Work, the Contractor shall submit information sufficient for the Engineer to determine the extent of the effects on the
cost and/or schedule, if the Engineer agrees the cost and/or schedule wi!l be affected by such changes, such effects
will be handled in accordance with the General Conditions. The Engineer wili provide the Contractor with a copy of any
such Permits, Rights-of-Way or Easements.

00170.04 Patents, Copyrights, and Trademarks - Prior to use of designs, devices, materiais, or processes protected
by patent, copyright, or trademark, the Contractor shall obtain from the Entity entitled to enforce the patent, copyright,
or trademark all necessary evidence of legal right.

The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hoid harmless the Agency and all third parties and political subdivisions
having a possessor/ or ownership interest or regulatory authority over the Project or Project Site from claims of patent,
copyright or trademark infringement, and from costs, expenses and damages the Contractor or Agency may be
obligated to pay as a result of such infringement during or after completing the Work.

CityofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 49



00170.05 Assignment of Antitrust Rights - The Contractor irrevocabiy assigns to the Agency any daim for relief or
cause of action the Contractor acquires during the term of the Contract, or which may accrue thereafter, by reason of

any violation of;

• Titie 15 (Commerce and Trade), United States Code;

• ORS 646.725; and

• ORS 646,730.

in connection with this assignment, it is an express obligation of the Contractor to take no action that would in any way
impair or diminish the value of the rights assigned to the Agency according to the provisions of this Subsection. Further,
it is the express obligation of the Contractor to take all action necessary to preserve the rights assigned. It Es an express
obligation of the Contractor to advise the Agency's legal counsel:

• In advance, of its intention to commence any action invoiving such claims for relief or causes of action;

• Immediately upon becoming aware of the fact that an action involving such claims for relief or causes of action
has been commenced by some other person or persons;

• The date on which it notified the ob[igor(s) of any such claims for relief or causes of action of the fact of the
Contractor's assignment to the Agency according to the provisions of this Subsection; and

• Immediateiy upon the discovery of any such antitrust claim for relief or cause of action.

[n the event any payment is made to the Contractor under any such claims for relief, the Contractor shall promptly pay
the full sum over to the Agency. In the event the Contractor fails to make such payment, the Agency may deduct the
amount from monies due or to become due the Contractor under the Contract,

00170.06 Taxes - The Contract unit or lump sum prices shali include fu!l compensation for any payroli taxes which
may be incurred under State and Federa! Unemployment and Social Security Acts, and al! Sales Taxes on materials
furnished by Contractor. The Contractor shall promptiy pay such taxes to the proper agency, and shall indemnify and
save harmless the Agency from any liability which may or could arise therefrom.

00170.07 Record Requirements - For purposes of this Subsection the term "Contractor" includes the Contractor, al!
subcontractors, Material Suppliers, and providers of rented operated Equipment (except non-DBE truck drivers), at all
tiers, for all subcontracts with first-tier Subcontractors, all subcontracts between the first-tier Subcontractors and their
subcontractors and any other iower tier subcontracts, and "Related Entities" as that term is defined in
OAR 731-005-0780. The Material Suppliers included in this definition are those for Aggregates, Asphalt Cement
Concrete, Portiand Cement Concrete and the supply and fabrication of structural steel items or Material Suppliers that
provide quotes.

(a) Records Required ~ The Contractor shall maintain all records, whether created before or after execution of the
Contract, or during Contract performance, or after Contract completion, to clearly document:

• The Contractor's performance of the Contract or a subcontract;

• The Contractor's ability to continue performance of the Contract or a subcontract; and

• Afi claims arising from or relating to performance under the Contract or a subcontract.

These records shall include ail records, including fiscai records, regardless of when created for the Contractor's
business. The records for the Contractor's business include without limitation the:

• Bidding estimates and records, worksheets, tabulations or similar documents.

• Job cost detail reports, including monthiy totals.

• Payroll records (including without limitation the ledger or register, and tax forms) and all documents which
establish the periods, individuals involved, the hours for the individuals, and the rates for the individuals.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 50



• Records that identify the Equipment used by the Contractor and subcontractors in the performance of the
Contract or subcontracts, including without iimUation, Equipment lists, rental contracts and any records used in
setting rentai rates,

• invoices from vendors, rental agencies, and subcontractors. •

• Material quotes, invoices, purchase orders and requisitions.

• Contracts with subcontractors and contracts with Material Suppliers, Suppliers and providers of rented
equipment

• Contracts or documents of other arrangements with any Related Entity as defined in OAR 731-005-0780.

• General ledger.

• Trial Baiance.

• Financial statements (including without limitation the balance sheet, income statement, statement of cash flows,
and financial statement notes).

• Income tax returns.

• Ail worksheets used to prepare bids or claims, or to establish the cost components for the Pay Items, including
without limitation, the labor, benefits and insurance, Materials, Equipment, and subcontractors.

The following are examples, but not an exhaustive iist, of records that would be included, if generated by the
Contractor. If the Contractor generates such records, or equivalent records, they are included among the records
subject to 00170.07,

• Daily time sheets and supervisor's daily reports.

• Collective bargaining agreements.

• Earnings records.

• Journal entries and supporting schedules.

• Insurance, weifare, and benefits records.

• Material cost distribution worksheet.

* Subcontractors' and lower tier subcontractors' payment certificates,

• Payroll and vendor's cancelled checks.

• Cash disbursements journal.

• Ali documents related to each and every claim together with all documents that support the amount of damages
as to each claim.

• Additional financial statements (including without limitation the balance sheet, income statement, statement of
cash flows, and financiai notes) preceding the execution of the Contract and following finai payment of the
Contract,

• Depreciation records on al! business Equipment maintained by the business involved, its accountant, or other
Entity. (If a source other than depreciation records is used to develop cost for the Contractor's internal purposes
in establishing the actual cost of owning and operating Equipment, ali such other source documents.)

The Contractor shall maintain afi fiscai records in material compliance with generally accepted accounting principles,
or other accounting principles that are accepted accounting principles and practices for the subject industry and
adequate for the nature of the Contractor's business, and in such a manner that providing a complete copy is neither
unreasonably time consuming nor unreasonably burdensome for the Contractor or the Agency. Failure to maintain
the records in this manner shall not be an excuse for not providing the records.

The Contractor shall include in its subcontracts, purchase orders, and all other written agreements, a provision
requiring a!l subcontractors, Material Suppliers and providers of rented operated Equipment, (except non-DBE truck
drivers), at ail tiers to comply with 00170.07. The Contractor shall also require ali subcontractors, Material Suppliers,
and providers of rented operated Equipment, (except non-DBE truck drivers), at all tiers and Reiated Entities to
include in their contracts, purchase orders, and all other written agreements, a provision requiring a!l lower tier
subcontractors, Material Suppliers and providers of rented operated Equipment (except non-DBE truck drivers) to
comply with 00170.07. The Material Suppliers to which this applies are those for Aggregates, Asphait Cement
Concrete, Portland Cement Concrete and the supply and fabrication of structural steel items or Material Suppliers
that provide Material quotes and Related Entities as defined in OAR 731-005-0780.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 51



(b) Access to Records - The Contractor shall provide the Engineer access to or a copy of all Contractor records
upon request. A Project Manager's authority to request or access records is subject to OAR 731-005-0780(9).
During the record retention period the Engineer, employees of the Agency, representatives of the Agency, or
representatives of regu!atory bodies or units of government may:

• inspect, examine and copy or be provided a copy of all Contractor records;

• Audit the records, a Contract or the performance of a Contract;

• Inspect, examine and audit the records when, En the Agency's sole discretion, the records may be helpful in the
resoiution of any claim, litigation, administrative proceeding or controversy arising out of or related to a Contract.

Reasons for access to audit, inspect, examine and copy records indude without limitation, general auditing,
reviewing claims, checking for colfusive bidding, reviewing or checking payment of required wages, performance
and contract compliance, workplace safety compliance, evaluating related Entities, environmental compliance, and
qualifications for performance of the Contract, including the ability to perform and the integrity of the Contractor.

Where such records are stored in a computer or in other digital media, the Engineer may request, and the Contractor
shall provide, a copy of the data files and such other information or access to software to ailow the Engineer review
of the records.

Nothing in 00170.07 is intended to operate as a waiver of the confidentiality of any communications privileged under
the Oregon Evidence Code. Nothing in 00170,07 limits the records or documents that can be obtained by legal
process.

(c) Record Retention Period - The Contractor shai! maintain the records and keep the records accessible and
avaiiabie at reasonable times and piaces for at ieast 3 years from the date of final payment under the Contract, or
until the conclusion of al! audits, litigation, administrative proceedings, disputes and claims arising out of or related
to the Contract, whichever date is later.

(d) Public Records Requests - !f records provided under this section contain any information that may be
considered exempt from disclosure as a trade secret under either ORS 192.501(2) or ORS 646.461(4), or under
other grounds specified in Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.410 through ORS 192.505, the Contractor shal!
clearly designate on or with the records the portions which the Contractor claims are exempt from disclosure, along
with a justification and citation to the authority relied upon. Entire records or documents shouid not be designated
as a trade secret or otherwise exempt from disclosure. Oniy speciHc information within a record or document should
be so designated.

To the extent allowed by the Oregon Public Records Law or other applicable law related to the disdosure of pubiic
records, Agency wil! not disclose records or portions of records the Contractor has designated as trade secrets to a
third party, who is not a representative of the Agency, to the extent the records are exempt from disclosure as trade
secrets under the Oregon Public Records Law or other applicable law, except to the extent Agency is ordered to
disclose in accordance with the Oregon Public Records Law or by a court of competent Jurisdiction. Application of
the Oregon PubSic Records Law or other applicable law shall determine whether any record, document or information
is actually exempt from disciosure.

In addition, in response to a public records request, the Agency will not produce or disclose records so identified as
exempt by the Contractor to any person other than representatives of the Agency, and others with authorized access
under 00170.07(b), without providing the Contractor a copy of the public records request, unless:

The Contractor consents to such disclosure; or

Agency is prohibited by applicable law or court order from providing a copy of the pubSic records request to the
Contractor.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 52



00170.10 Required Payments by Contractors - The Contractor shali comply with ORS 279C.505 and ORS
279C.515 during the term of the Contract.

(a) Prompt Payment by Contractor for Labor and Materials - As required by ORS 279C.505, the Contractor
shai!:

• Make payment promptly, as due, to alt Entities supplying labor or Materials under the Contract;

• Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund, whether from the Contractor or a
subcontractor, incurred in the performance ofthe Contract;

• Not permit any lien or claim to be filed against the State or any political subdivision thereof, on account of any
labor or Material furnished in performance of the Contract; and

* Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees according to ORS 316.167.

(b) Prompt Payment by Contractor to First-Tier Subcontractors) - According to ORS 279C.580(3)(a), after the
Contractor has determined and certified to the Agency that one or more of its Subcontractors has satisfactorily
performed subcontracted Work, the Contractor may request payment from the Agency for the Work, and shal! pay
the Subcontractor(s) within 10 Calendar Days out of such amounts as the Agency has paid to the Contractor for the
subcontracted Work.

(c) Interest on Unpaid Amount - If the Contractor or a first-tier Subcontractor fails, neglects, or refuses to make
payment to an Entity furnishing labor or Materials in connection with the Contract within 30 Days after the
Contractor's receipt of payment, the Contractor or first-tier Subcontractor shall owe the Entity the amount due plus
interest charges that begin at the end of the 1 0 day period within which payment is due under ORS 2790.580(3) and
that end upon final payment, uniess payment is subject to a good-faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C,580(5)(b).
The rate of interest on the amount due shall be in accordance with ORS 279C.515(2). The amount of interest shall
not be waived.

(d) Agency's Payment of the Contractor's Prompt Payment Obligations - If the Contractor fails, neglects or
refuses to make prompt payment of any invoice or other demand for payment for iabor or services furnished to the
Contractor or a Subcontractor by any Entity in connection with the Contract as such payment becomes due, the
Agency may pay the Entity furnishing the iabor or services and charge the amount of the payment against monies
due or to become due the Contractor under the Contract,

The payment of a claim by the Agency in the manner authorized in this Subsection shall not relieve the Contractor
or the Contractor's Surety from obligations with respect to any such claims.

(e) Right to Complain to the Construction Contractors Board - !f the Contractor or a subcontractor fails,
neglects, or refuses to make payment to an Entity furnishing labor or Materials in connection with the Contract, the
Entity may file a complaint with the Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good-faith dispute
as defined in ORS 279C.580(5)(b).

(f) Notice of Claim Against Bond - An Entity (which by definition includes a natural person) claiming not to have
been paid in full for labor or Materials supplied for the prosecution of the Work may have a right of action on the
Contractor's Payment Bond as provided in ORS 279C.600 and ORS 279C.605.

The Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLi) may have a right of action on the Contractor's and
Subcontractors' public works bonds and Payment Bonds for workers who have not been paid in full, as provided in
ORS 279C.600 and ORS 279C.605.

00170.20 Public Works Bond " If the original Contract Amount is $100,000 or greater, then before starting work, or if
the Contract Amount is amended to a Contract Amount $100,000 or greater, and unless otherwise exempt under ORS
279C.836(4), (7) - (9), the Contractor shall file a public works bond with the Oregon Construction Contractors Board in
the amount required by ORS 279C.836 [$30,000 (1970)] before starting or continuing Work on the project. Further, the
Contractor shall then include in every subcontract a provision requiring the subcontractor to have a public works bond
filed with the Oregon Construction Contractors Board in the amount required by ORS 279C.836 [$30,000 (1970)] before
starting Work, or if the Contract Amount is amended to $100,000 or above, before continuing Work on the project.
ORS279(C).830(3)(a,b) The Contractor shall verify subcontractors have filed a public works bond before the
subcontractor begins Work.

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 53



00170.32 Protection of Navigable Waters - The Contractor shali comply with all applicable Laws, including without
limitation the Federal River and Harbor Act of March 3. 1899 and its amendments.

The Contractor shal! not interfere with waterway navigation or impair navigable depths or clearances, except as U.S.
Coast Guard or Corps of Engineer permits ai!ow,

00170.60 Safety, Health, and Sanitation Provisions - The Contractor shail compiy with all Laws concerning safety,
health, and sanitation standards. The Contractor shall not require workers to perform Work under conditions that are
hazardous, dangerous, or unsanitary.

Workers exposed to traffic sha!l wear upper body garments or safety vests that are highly visible and meet the
requirements of 00225.25.

Workers exposed to falling or flying objects or eiectricai shock shall wear hard hats.

Upon their presentation of proper credentials, the Contractor shall allow inspectors of the U.S. Occupational Safety and
Heaith Administration (OSHA) and the Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Division (OR-OSHA) to inspect the
Work and Project Site without deiay and without an inspection warrant,

According to ORS468A.715 and ORS 468A.720, the Contractor or a Subcontractor who performs Project Work
involving asbestos abatement shall possess a valid DEQ asbestos abatement iicense.

00170.61 industrial Accident Protection:

(a) Workers' Compensation - The Contractor shaii provide workers' compensation coverage for on-the-job injuries
as required by 00170.70(d).

(b) Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation-If Work to be performed is over or adjacent to
navigable waters, the Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, (Chapter 18, Titie 33 of the USC)
may apply, and the Contractor shal! be responsible for compiying with its provisions (which may include the provision
of additional workers' compensation benefits to employees).

00170.62 Labor Nondiscrimination - The Contractor shali comply with al! Laws concerning equa! empioyment
opportunity, including without limitation those prohibiting discrimination because of race, religion, color, sex, disability,
or national origin.

00170.63 Payment for Medical Care - According to ORS 279C.530, the Contractor shail promptly, as due, make
payment to any person, copartnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgicai and hospital care services
or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of the Contractor, of all sums that
the Contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the Contractor coilected or deducted from
the wages of employees under any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.

00170.65 Minimum Wage and Overtime Rates for Public Works Projects:

(a) General - The Contractor is responsible for investigating locai labor conditions. The Agency does not imply that
labor can be obtained at the minimum hourly wage rates specified in State or federal wage rate pubiications, and no
increase in the Contract Amount will be made if wage rates paid are more than those listed.

(b) State Prevailing Wage Requirements - The Contractor shall comply with the prevailing wage provisions of
ORS 279C.800 through ORS 279C.870.

(1) Minimum Wage Rates - The Bureau of Labor and industries (BOLI) determines and publishes the existing
State prevailing wage rates En the pubiication "Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in Oregon". The
Contractor shall pay workers not less than the specified minimum hourly wage rate according to ORS 279C.838
and ORS 279C.840 and shall include this requirement in all subcontracts.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 54



See the Project Wage Rates page included with the Special Provisions for additional information about which
wage rates apply to the project and how to access the applicable wage rates.

(2) Payroll and Certified Statements - As required in ORS 279C.845, the Contractor and every subcontractor
shall submit written certified statements to the Engineer on the form prescribed by the Commissioner of BOU in
OAR 839-025-0010 certifying compliance with wage payment requirements and accurately setting out the
Contractor's or subcontractor's weekly payroSI records for each worker employed upon the project,

The Contractor and subcontractors shall preserve the certified statements for a period of 6 years from the date
of completion of the Contract.

(3) Additional Retainage:

a. Agency - As required in ORS 279C.845(7) the Agency will retain 25% of any amount earned by Ihe
Contractor on the project until the Contractor has filed the certified statements required in ORS 279C.845 and
in FHWA Form 1273, if applicable. The Agency will pay to the Contractor the amount retained within 14 Days
after the Contractor fties the required certified statements, regardless of whether a subcontractor has failed to
file certified statements.

b. Contractor - As required in ORS 2790.8-45(8) the Contractor shall retain 25% of any amount earned by a
First-Tier subcontractor on the project until the First-Tier subcontractor has filed with the Agency the certified
statements required in ORS 279C.845 and in FHWA Form 1273, if applicable. Before paying any amount
retained, the Contractor shall verify that the First-Tier subcontractor has filed the certified statement. Within
14 Days after the First-Tier subcontractor files the required certified statement the Contractor shall pay the
First-Tier subcontractor any amount retained.

(4) Owner/Operator Data - For a project funded by the FHWA, the Contractor shall furnish data to the Engineer
for each owner/operator providing trucking semces. Furnish the data before the time the services are performed
and include without limitation for each owner/operator:

• Drivers name;

• Copy of driver's license;

• Vehicle identification number;

• Copy of vehicie registration;

• Motor vehicle license plate number;

• Motor Carrier Plate Number;

• Copy of ODOT Motor Carrier 1A Permit; and Name of owner/operator from the side of the truck.

(c) State Overtime Requirements - As a condition of the Contract, the Contractor shall comply with the pertinent
provisions of ORS 279C.520 and 279C.540.

(1) Maximum Hours of Labor and Overtime Pay - According to ORS 279C.540, no person shall be employed
to perform Work under this Contract for more than 10 hours in any 1 Day, or 40 hours in any 1 week, except in
cases of necessity, emergency, or where pubiic policy absolutely requires it. In such instances, the Contractor
shall pay the employee at least time and a haif pay:

• For all overtime in excess of 8 hours a day or -40 hours in any 1 week when the work week is
5 consecutive days, Monday through Friday; or

• For all overtime in excess of 10 hours a day or 40 hours in any 1 week when the work week is
4 consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and

• For ati Work performed on Saturday and on any legai holiday specified in ORS 279C.540.

For additiona! information on requirements for overtime and establishing a work scheduie see OAR 839-025-0050
and OAR 839.025-0034.

(2) Notice of Hours of Labor - The Contractor shall give written notice to employees of the number of hours per
day and days per week the employees may be required to work. Provide the notice either at the time of hire or
before commencement of work on this Contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 55



(3) Exception - The maximum hours of labor and overtime requirements under ORS 279C.540 will not apply to
the Contractor's Work under this Contract if the Contractor is a party to a coilectsve bargaining agreement in effect
with any labor organization. For a coliective bargaining agreement to be in effect it shall be enforceable within
the geographic area of the project, and its terms shal! extend to workers who are working on the project (see
OAR 839-025-0054).

(d) State Time Limitation on Claim for Overtime - According to ORS 279C.545, any worker employed by the
Contractor is foreclosed from the right to collect any overtime provided in ORS 279C.540 unless a claim for payment
is filed with the Contractor within 90 Days from the completion of the contract, provided the Contractor posted and
maintained a circular as specified in this provision. Accordingiy, the Contractor shai!:

(1) Cause a circular, clearly printed inboldfaced 12-point type containing a copy of ORS279C.545, to be posted
in a prominent place alongside the door of the timekeeper's office or in a similar place which is readily
available and freely visible to any or a!l workers employed to perform Work; and

(2) Maintain such circular continuously posted from the inception to the completion of the Contract on which
workers are or have been employed.

(e) Additional Requirements When Federal Funds are Involved " When federal funds are involved, the following
requirements shal! apply En addition to the requirements of 001 70.65(a) through 00170.65(d). The Contractor shall
include these provisions in afi subcontracts as we!) as ensure that al! Subcontractors include these provisions in their
lower tier subcontracts.

(1) FHWA Requirements - For Federai-Aid projects, the Contractor shall comply with the provisions of FHWA
Form 1273, "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts".

(2) Minimum Wage Rates - The Contractor shall pay each worker En each trade or occupation employed to
perform any work under the contract not iess than the existing State (BOLI) prevailing wage rate or the applicable
federa! prevaiiing wage rate required under the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.), whichever is higher.
The Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts.

the Project Wage Rates page included with the Special Provisions for additional information about which
wage rates apply to the project and how to access the applicable wage rates.

(3) Payroll and Certified Statements - In addition to providing the payroli information and certified statements
required under ORS 279C.845 (see 00170.65(b-2)), the Contractor and every subcontractor shall submit written
certified statements that aiso meet the requirements in Section )V of FHWA Form 1273 except the Contractor and
every subcontractor shall preserve the certified statements for a period of 6 years from the date of completion of
the Contract.

(4) Overtime - With regard to overtime pay, the Contractor shall comply with the overtime provision affording the
greatest compensation required under FHWA Form 1273 and ORS 279C.540.

00170.70 Insurance:

(a) Insurance Coverages - Prior to starting work hereunder, CONTRATOR, at CONTRATOR'S cost, shail secure
and continue to carry until Final Acceptance, with an insurance company acceptable to CITif', the following insurance,
written on an occurrence basis, in amounts not !ess than the limitations on liability for iocal public bodies provided in
ORS 30.272 and ORS 30.273:

Commercial General Liability - CONTRATOR shall obtain, at CONTRATOR'S expense and keep in effect until
Final Acceptance, Commerciai General Liability Insurance covering bodiiy injury and property damage. Coverage
shall include Contractors, subcontractors and anyone directly or indirectly employed by either.

Pollution Liability-if indicated by Special Provisions, Poliution Liability insurance covering the Contractor's
liability, or the liability of an appropriate subcontractor, if the coverage is obtained by the subcontractor, for bodiiy
injury and property damage, and environmental damage resulting from sudden and accidental pollution, gradual
pollution, and related clean-up costs incurred by the Contractor, or by the subcontractor if the coverage Is obtained
by the subcontractor, while performing Work required by the Contract. If the coverage is obtained by the Contractor,
the coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance with separate limits for

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 56



Poilution Liability and Commercial General Liability. Combined singie limit per occurrence shall not be less than
the dollar amount indicated in the Special Provisions. The annual aggregate limit shall not be iess than the dollar
amount indicated in the Special Provisions, The policy shall be endorsed to state that the annua! aggregate limit of
liability shall apply separately to the Contract.

Asbestos Liability " If indicated by Special Provisions, the Contractor, or the subcontractor, if the coverage is
obtained by the subcontractor, shall provide an Asbestos Liability endorsement to the pollution iiabiiity coverage. tf
an endorsement cannot be obtained, The Contractor or subcontractor shall provide separate Asbestos Liability
Insurance at the same combined single limit per occurrence and annual aggregate limit as the Pollution Liability
Insurance with the policy endorsed to state that the annual aggregate limit of liability shall appiy separately to the
Contract.

Lead Liability - if indicated by Special Provisions, the Contractor, or the subcontractor, if the coverage is obtained
by the subcontractor, shali provide a Lead Liability endorsement to the pollution liability coverage. If an endorsement
cannot be obtained, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide separate Lead Liability Insurance at the same
combined single limit per occurrence and annual aggregate limit as the Pollution Liability Insurance with the separate
policy endorsed to state that the annual aggregate limit of liability shali apply separately to the Contract.

Commercial Automobile Liability " CONTRATOR shail obtain, at CONTRATOR'S expense and keep in effect
during the term of the resulting contract, Commercial Business Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned,
non-owned, or hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General LJabiiity
insurance (with separate limits).

Commercial Automobile Liability with Pollution Coverage - If indicated by Speciai Provisions, the Contractor,
or the subcontractor, if the coverage is obtained by the subcontractor, shall provide Commercial Automobile Liability
Insurance wilh Pollution coverage covering the Contractor's liability, or the liability of an appropriate subcontractor,
if the coverage is obtained by the subcontractor, for bodily injury and property damage, and environmental damage
arising out of the use of all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles while performing Work under the Contract. If the
coverage is obtained by the Contractor, the coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General
Liability insurance with separate limits for Commercial Automobile Liability with Pollution Coverage and Commerciai
General Liability. Combined single limit per occurrence sha!l not be less than the dollar amount indicated in the
Special Provisions or the amount required by the U.S. Department of Transportation, whichever is greater. If this
coverage is written in combination with the Commercia! Genera! Liability, the policy shall be endorsed to state that
the Commercial Genera! Liability annual aggregate limit shall apply separately to the Contract.

Commercial Automobile Liability with Pollution Coverage is required for this Project because the Project includes
pollution related Work. If the Contractor will be performing pol!ution related Work, this coverage covering the
Contractor must be provided. If an appropriate subcontractor, but not the Contractor, will perform the pollution
related Work, Commercial AutomobEie Liability with Pollution Coverage covering the subcontractor, but not the
Contractor, must be provided, however, the Contractor shall provide Commercia! Automobile Liability insurance
coverage covering the Contractor as provided in the Commercial Automobile Liability bullet above. If both the
Contractor and an appropriate subcontractor will be performing poiiution related Work, Commercial AutomobiSe
Liabiiity with Pollution Coverage covering both the Contractor and the subcontractor shali be provided, and the
Contractor may provide the coverage covering both the Contractor and the subcontractor, or the Contractor and the
subcontractor may provide their own, separate Commercial Automobile Liability with Pollution coverages.

(b) Tail Coverage" If any of the required liability insurance coverages of00170.70(a) are on a "claims made" basis,
"taii" coverage will be required at the completion of the Contract for a duration of 24 months. The Contractor shal!
furnish certification of "tail" coverage as described, or continuous "claims made" iiabiiity coverage for 24 months
following Final Compietion. Continuous "claims made" coverage will be acceptable in lieu of "tail" coverage, provided
its retroactive date is on or before the effective date of the Contract, if Continuous "claims made" coverage is used,
the Contractor shall keep the coverage in effect for a duration of not less than 24 months from the end of the Contract.
This will be a condition to the Engineer's issuance of a Third Notification.

(c) Additional Insured " The liability insurance coverage shall include C\jy and its officers and employees as
Additional Insured but only with respect to CONTRATOR'S activities to be performed under this Contract. Coverage
will be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and seif-insurance. Prior to starting work under this
Contract, CONTRATOR shall furnish a certificate to CITY from each insurance company providing insurance
showing that the CITY is an additional insured, the required coverage is in force, stating poiicy numbers, dates of
expiration and limits of liability, and further stating that such coverage is primary and not contributory.

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 57



(d) Professional Liability Insurance" Professional Liability insurance. The CONTRATOR shall have in force a
policy of ProfessionaS Liabiiity Insurance. The CONTRATOR shall keep such policy in force and current during the
term of this contract.

(e) Workers' Compensation - A!) employers, including the Contractor and its Subcontractors, if any, that employ
subject workers who are performing Work or providing labor or Materials under the Contract in the State shall comply
with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt
under ORS 656.126. The Contractor shall ensure that each of its Subcontractors compiies with these requirements.

The Contractor shall certify in the Contract that the Contractor is registered by the Oregon Workers' Compensation
Division either as a carrier-insured employer, a self-insured employer, an exempt employer, or is an independent
contractor who will perform the Work without the assistance of others.

The Contractor shaii ensure that its insurance carrier files a guaranty contract with the Oregon Workers'
Compensation Division before performing any Work.

(f) Notice of Cancellation or Change -There will be no cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of
aggregate limits or non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) without thirty (30) days written notice from CONTRATOR
or its insurer(s) to CITY. Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of this clause wil! constitute a material
breach of this Contract and wiil be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

(g) Certificate(s) of insurance - As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this Contract, the Contractor
shall furnish Certificate(s) of insurance to the Agency at the time(s) provided in00130.50(a). As evidence of
insurance coverages required by this Contract but permitted by the Agency under 00170.70(a) to be obtained by an
appropriate subcontractor, the Contractor shall furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance to the Agency for such coverages
together with the Contractor's request under 00180.21 for approval of the subcontract with that subcontractor. The
Certificate(s) will specify all of the parties who are Additional insureds. The Contractor shal) obtain, or ensure that
the appropriate subcontractors obtain, insurance coverages required under this Contract from insurance companies
or entities acceptable to the Agency and authorized to issue insurance in the State, The Contractor, or the
appropriate subcontractor, but not the Agency, shail be responsibie for paying ai! deductibles, seif-insured retentions
and/or self-insurance included under these provisions,

(h) Builders' Risk ~ If indicated by Special Provision, the Contractor shall obtain, at its expense, and keep in effect
during the term of the Contract, Builders' Risk insurance on an ail risks of direct physical !oss basis, Enciuding, without
limitation, earthquake and flood damage, for an amount equal to at least the value indicated in the Special Provisions.
Any deductible shall not exceed $50,000 for each loss, except that the earthquake and flood deductible shall not
exceed 5% of each ioss or $50,000, whichever is greater. The policy shall include the Agency as loss payee.

00170.71 Independent Contractor Status - The sen/ice or services to be rendered under this Contract are those of
an independent contractor The Contractor is not an officer, employee, or agent of the Agency as those terms are used
in ORS 30.265.

00170.72 Indemnity/Hold Harmless - To the fullest extent permitted by Saw, and except to the extent otherwise void
under ORS 30.140, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend (with counsel approved by the Agency) and hold harmless
the Agency, Agency's Authorized Representatives, Design Engineer, Design Engineer's consultants, and their
respective officers, directors, agents, employees, partners, members, stockholders and affiliated companies, and if
indicated by Special Provisions that federal transportation funding is involved the State of Oregon, the Oregon
Transportation Commission and the Oregon Department of Transportation and their respective officers and members
and employees (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against al! liabiiities, damages, losses, daims, expenses (including
reasonable attorney fees), demands and actions of any nature whatsoever which arise out of, result from or are related
to the following:

• Any damage, injury, loss, expense, inconvenience or delay described in this Section 00170.

« Any accident or occurrence which happens or is alleged to have happened in or about the Project Site or any
place where the Work is being performed, or in the vicinity of either, at any time prior to the time the Work is fuily
completed in al! respects.

• Any failure of the Contractor to observe or perform any duty or obligation under the Contract Documents which
is to be observed or performed by the Contractor, or any breach of any agreement, representation or warranty
of the Contractor contained in the Contract Documents or En any subcontract.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 58



• The acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor, a subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly empioyed by
them or any one of them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim,
damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder but in such case only to Contractor's
or subcontractor's proportionate extent.

• Any iien filed upon the project or bond claim in connection with the Work.

Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity which would
otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Subsection.

In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Subsection by an employee of the Contractor, a
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under this Subsection shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a subcontractor under workers' compensation acts,
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

00170.74 Employee Drug Testing Program - As required by ORS 2790.505(2), the Contractor shall have in place,
and maintain during the period of the Contract, an employee drug-testing program. The Agency retains the right to
audit and/or monitor the program. On request by the Engineer, the Contractor shaii furnish a copy of the employee
drug-testing program.

00170.78 Conflict of Interest - The Contractor shall not give or offer any gift, loan, or other thing of value to any
member of the Agency's governing body or employee of the Agency in connection with the award or performance of
any Contract.

The Contractor shall not rent, iease, or purchase Materiais, supplies, or Equipment, with or through any Agency
employee or member of the Agency's governing body.

No ex-employee of the Agency who has worked for the Agency on any phase of the Project within the prior 2 years
may be employed by the Contractor to perform Work on the Project.

00170.79 Third Party Beneficiary - There are no third-party beneficiaries of the Contract, unless federal
transportation funding is involved then the State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation Commission and the Oregon
Department of Transportation and their respective officers and members and employees, are third-party beneficiaries
of the Contract,

00170.80 Responsibility for Damage to Work:

(a) Responsibility for Damage in General-The Contractor shali perform Work, and furnish Materials and
Equipment for incorporation into the Work, at the Contractor's own risk, until the entire Project has been completed
and until Final Completion as determined by the Agency. The Contractor shall repair all damages to Work performed,
Materials supplied, and Equipment incorporated into the Work, except as otherwise provided in this Section.

(b) Repair of Damage to Work - Until Final Completion, the Contractor shail promptly rebuild, repair, restore, and
make good damages to all portions of the permanent or temporary Work, The Contractor shall perform all repairs
of damage to Work at no additional cost to the Agency, except for repairs necessitated by damage caused by:

• Acts of God or Nature, as defined in Section 00110;or

• Actions of governmental authorities.

(c) Vandalism and Theft - Vandalism includes damage to or destruction of Work or portions of Work that remain
on the Project Site resulting from vandalism, criminal mischief, arson, or other criminal or illegal behavior,

Theft includes the loss of Work or portions of Work that are Sost or stolen or otherwise unaccounted for from the
Project Site or from Materials or fabrication locations. The Contractor shall remain solely responsible for a!i losses
caused by theft, inciuding without limitation theft that occurs in conjunction with vandalism,

The Contractor shall provide protection of the Work from vandalism and theft until Final Completion.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 59



00170.82 Responsibility for Damage to Property and Facilities:

(a) !n General - As used in this Subsection, the term "Contractor" shall include the Contractor's agents,
Subcontractors, and al! workers performing Work under the Contract; and the term "damage" shall include without
limitation soiling or staining surfaces by tracking or splashing mud, asphalt, and other materials, as we!! as damage
of a more serious nature.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for damages arising from:

• The Contractor's operations;

• The Contractor's negligence, gross negligence, or intentional wrongful acts; and

• The Contractor's failure to comply with any Contract provision.

The Agency may withhold funds due the Contractor or the Contractor's Surety unti! all lawsuits, actions, and claims
for injuries or damages are resolved, and satisfactory evidence of resolution is furnished to the Agency.

(b) Protection and Restoration of Agency Property and Facilities - The following requirements apply to
highways, highway Structures and other improvements that are existing, under construction, or completed. The
Contractor shaff:

• Provide adequate protection to avoid damaging Agency property and facilities;

• Be responsible for damage to Agency property and faciiities caused by or resulting from the Contractor's
operations; and

* Clean up and restore such damage by repair, rebuilding, replacement, or compensation, as determined by the
Engineer.

(c) Protection and Restoration of Non-Agency Property and Facilities - The Contractor shall determine the
!ocation of properties and facilities that could be damaged by the Contractor's operations, and shai! protect them
from damage. The Contractor shaii protect monuments and property marks untii the Engineer has referenced their
location and authorized their removal. The Contractor shall restore property or faciiities damaged by its operations
to the condition that existed before the damage, at no additions! compensation.

The Contractor shall provide temporary facilities when needed, e.g., to maintain normal service or as directed by the
Engineer, until the required repair, rebuilding, or repiacement is accomplished.

The Contractor sha!i protect specific service signs, e.g., business logos, and tourist-oriented directionai signs (TODS)
from damage, whether the signs are to remain in place or be placed on temporary supports. The Contractor shail
repair or replace damaged signs at no cost to the Agency. Liquidated damages will be assessed against the
Contractor in the amount of $200 per day for each sign out of service for more than 5 Calendar Days because of the
Contractor's operations.

00170.85 Responsibility for Defective Work-The Contractor shall make good any defective Work, Materials or
Equipment incorporated into the Work, according to the provisions of Section 00150.

(a) Latent Defects - The Contractor shall remain liable for all latent defects resulting from causes other than fraud
or gross mistakes that amount to fraud until the expiration of ail applicable statutes of limitation and ultimate repose,
the Performance Bond, Warranty Bond, or Correction Period, whichever expires last. The Contractor shall remain
liable for a!i latent defects resulting from fraud or gross mistakes that amount to fraud regardless of when those latent
defects may be discovered, and regardless of whether such discovery occurs outside any applicable statutes of
limitation or ultimate repose or any appticabie Performance Bond, Warranty Bond, or Correction Period.

(b) Correction Period Warranty for Agency Projects: - The Contractor shall warrant all Work and workmanship,
including Changed Work, Additional Work, Incidental Work, On-Site Work, and Extra Work, and Materials and
Equipment incorporated in the Work, for one year from the date of Second Notification (Correction Period), except
that manufacturers' warranties and extended warranties according to 00170.85(c) shall not be abridged. The
Correction Period warranty described herein shall include extension of the Performance Bond for a period of one
year from the date of Second Notification.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 60



The Contractor shail be responsible for meeting the technical and performance Specifications required, making good
the Work, and for all repairs of damage to the Work and other improvements, natura! and artificial structures,
systems, equipment, and vegetation caused by, or resulting in whole or in part from occurrences beginning during
the Correction Period and are the result of defects in Materials, Equipment, and workmanship. The Contractor shall
be responsible for ail costs associated with completing the repair of the defects and for associated Work inciuding
but not limited to permitting, mobilization, traffic control, erosion control, surface restoration, site cleanup and
remediation caused by, or resuiting in whole or in part from, defects in Materiais, Equipment, or workmanship, and
other Work determined by the Engineer to be necessary to complete the repair of the defects.

Within 10 Calendar Days of the Agency's written notice of defects, the Contractor, or the Contractor's Surety, shall
vigorousiy and continuously correct and repair the defects and ail related damage. If the Contractor or the
Contractor's Surety fails to correct and repair the defects, the Agency may have the correction and repair done by
others. The Contractor or Contractor's Surety shall promptly reimburse the Agency for all expenses incurred to
correct and repair the defects.

In the event of an emergency, where delay could result in serious loss or damage, the Agency may make emergency
corrections and repairs, without written notice. The Contractor or Contractor's Surety shall promptly reimburse the
Agency for all expenses incurred to correct and repair the defects.

Corrections, repairs, replacements or changes shall be warranted for an additional one year period beginning on
the date of the Agency's acceptance of the corrections, repairs, replacements or changes.

Without iimsting the general applicability of other sun/ival clauses under the Contract, this warranty provision shall
survive expiration or termination of the Contract.

(c) Manufacturer, installer or Supplier Warranties and Guarantees:

(1) Manufacturer, Installer or Supplier Warranties ~ For those Specifjcation Sections referencing this
00170.85(c-1) Subsection, the Contractor shalt furnish Warranties from the Manufacturer, Installer or Supplier
and signed by an authorized Representative,

The warranty period will be specified in the applicable Specification Section for which it applies.

The warranty period wili begin on the date the Engineer issues Second Notification unless otherwise specified in
the Contract.

Corrections, repairs, replacements or changes shall be warranted for an additional Warranty period beginning on
the date of the Agency's acceptance of the corrections, repairs, repiacements or changes.

When the Agency makes written notification to the Manufacturer, Supplier or Installer of failure of an item covered
by this warranty, the warranty period will stop for the effected item or the portion of the effected item that failed,
as applicable, until the required repairs or replacements are made and accepted. All repaired or replaced items
shall meet current specifications, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, and will be warranted for the
remaining warranty period.

Warranty work shall be performed when weather permits. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, temporary repairs are
necessary, the temporary repairs will be made by the Agency or an independent contractor at the Manufacturer's,
Supplier's or Installer's expense. The Manufacturer, Supplier or Installer shall replace all temporary repairs at no
additional cost to the Agency.

The Manufacturer, Supplier or Installer shall provide all required traffic controi during repair or replacement of
failed items at no additional cost to the Agency.

(2) Trade Practice Guarantees - For those Items installed on the Project that have customary trade practice
guarantees, the Contractor shall furnish the guarantees to the Engineer at the completion of the Contract.

00170.89 Protection of Utility, Fire-control, and Railroad Property and Ser/ices; Repair; Roadway Restoration:

(a) Protection of Utility, Fire-Controi, and Railroad Property and Services; Coordination - The Contractor shail
avoid damaging the properties of Utilities, Railroads, railways, and fire-contro! authorities during performance of the

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 61



Work. The Contractor shali cooperate with and faciiitate the relocation or repair of all Utilities and Utility services, as
required under 00150.50, and of Railroad and fire-control property and railways.

The Contractor shall conduct no activities of any kind around fire hydrants until the local fire-controi authority has
approved provisions for continued service.

The Contractor shal! immediately notify any Utility, Railroad, or fire-control authority whose facilities have been
damaged.

if an Entity has a valid permit from the proper authority to construct, reconstruct, or repair Utility, Raiiroad, or fire-
control service in the Roadway, the Contractor shall allow the permit holder to perform the work.

(b) Restoration of Roadway after Repair Work - The Contractor shall restore the Roadway to a condition at ieast
equal to that which existed before the repair work addressed under this Subsection was performed, as directed by
the Engineer. All restoration work required as a result of Contractor's failure to protect Utilities, Railroads, railways
and fire-contro! facilities shall be at the Contractor's expense. Restoration which constitutes Extra Work will be paid
as Extra Work.

00170.92 Fencing, Protecting Stock, and Safeguarding Excavations - The Contractor shali be responsible for
loss, injury, or damage that results from its failure to restrain stock and persons.

(a) At the Contractor's Expense - The Contractor shal! restrain stock to lands on which they are confined using
temporary fences or other adequate means. The Contractor shall provide adequate temporary fences or other
protection around excavations to prevent animals and unauthorized persons from entering.

The Contractor shall repair, at Contractor's expense and to the Engineer's satisfaction, fences damaged by the
Contractor's operations and the operations of the Contractor's agents, employees and Subcontractors.

(b) At the Agency's Expense - The Contractor shaJ! construct fences, or move and reconstruct fences, as shown
on the Contract Documents or as directed by the Engineer. The Contractor shall tear down and remove fencing
within the Right-of-Way when no longer needed,as part of the removal Work described in and paid for according to
Section 00310.

00170.93 Trespass-The Contractor shall be responsible for its own, its agents' and employees', and its
Subcontractors' trespass or encroachment upon, or damage to, property during performance of the Contract.

00170.94 Use of Explosives - The Contractor shall comply with all Laws pertaining to the use of expiossves. The
Contractor shall notify anyone having facHJtJes near the Contractor's operations of Contractor's intended use or storage
of explosives. The Contractor shal! be responsible for all damage resulting from its own, its agents' and employees',
and its Subcontractors' use of explosives. (see 00330.41(e) and Section 00335)

00170.95 Unlawful Discrimination Policy -Agency - It is the policy of the City of Warrenton that no person shall be
denied the benefits of or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, service, or activity on the grounds of age,
disabiilty, race, religion, coior, nationa! origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression. The City of
Warrenton also requires its contractors and grantees to comply with this policy.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 62



Section 00180 - Prosecution and Progress

00180.00 Scope-This Section consists of requirements for assignment of the Contract, subcontracting, time for
performance, Contract responsibility, suspensions, terminations, and related provisions,

00180.05 Assignment/Delegation of Contract - Unless the Agency gives prior written consent, the Contractor shail
not assign, delegate, sell, or transfer to any Entity, or otherwise dispose of any Contract rights or obligations, including
without limitation:

• The power to execute or perform the Contract; or

• Any of its right, title or interest in the Contract.

Any attempted assignment, delegation, or disposition without prior Agency consent shail be void.

Such Agency consent wi!l not normally be given except for the assignment of funds due under the Contract, as provided
in 00180.06.

If written Agency consent is given to assign, delegate, or otherwise dispose of any Contract rights or obligations, it shali
not relieve the Contractor or its Surety of any part of their responsibility under the Contract,

00180.06 Assignment of Funds Due under the Contract - Assignment of funds due or to become due under the
Contract to the Contractor will not be permitted unless:

• The assignment request is made on the form acceptable to the Agency;

• The Contractor secures the written consent of the Contractor's Surety to the assignment; and

• The Engineer approves the assignment.

00180.10 Responsibility for Contract - The Contractor shall direct and coordinate the operations of its employees,
Subcontractors and agents performing Work, and see that the Engineer's orders are carried out promptiy, The
Contractor's failure to direct, supen/ise and control its employees, Subcontractors and agents performing Work will
result in one or more of the foilowing actions, or other actions as the Engineer deems appropriate;

• Suspension of the Work;

• Withholding of Contract payments, as necessary to protect the Agency;

• Ordering removal of individuals from the Project Site; or

• Termination of the Contract,

Action by the Agency under this provision will not prejudice any other remedy it may have.

00180.15 Agency's Right to Do Work at Contractor's Expense - Except as otherwise provided in 00150.75 and
00220.60, if the Contractor neglects to prosecute the Work properly or fails to perform any provision of the Contract,
the Agency may, after 2 Calendar Days' written notice, correct the deficiencies at the Contractor's expense. In
situations where the Engineer reasonably believes there is danger to life or property, the Agency may immediately and
without notice correct the deficiencies at the Contractor's expense.

Action by the Agency under this provision will not prejudice any other remedy it may have.

00180.20 Subcontracting Limitations:

(a) General - The Contractor's own organization shai) perform Work amounting to at ieast the percentage of the
original Contract Amount as indicated in the Special Provisions. The value of subcontracted Work is the fuli
compensation to be paid to the Subcontractors) for all pay items in the Subcontract(s).

CityofWarrenton
SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 63



(b) Own Organization - The term "own organization", as used in Section 00180, includes only employees of the
Contractor, Equipment owned or rented by the Contractor, Incidental rentai of operated Equipment, and Materials
and Equipment to be incorporated into the Work purchased or produced by the Contractor.

00180.21 Subcontracting:

(a) Substitution of Disclosed Subcontractors - The Contractor may only substitute a previously disciosed first-
tier Subcontractor according to the provisions of ORS 279C.585, The Contractor shail provide the Engineer with a
written notification that identifies the name of the proposed new Subcontractor and the reason for the substitution.
Authorized reasons for substitution are limited to the following circumstances (see ORS 2790.585(1) through
ORS 2790.585(10)):

• The disciosed Subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written contract that is reasonably based either upon
the Project Plans and Specifications, or the terms of the Subcontractor's written Bid, after having had a
reasonable opportunity to do so;

• The disclosed Subcontractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent;

• The disclosed Subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the contract;

• The disciosed Subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bond requirements of the prime Contractor that had
been identified prior to the Bid submittal;

• The Contractor demonstrates to the Agency that the Subcontractor was disclosed as the result of an inadvertent
clerica! error;

• The disclosed Subcontractor does not hold a license from the Construction Contractors Board and is required
to be licensed by the board,

• The Contractor determines that the Work performed by the disclosed Subcontractor is not in substantial
compliance with the Plans and Specifications, or that the Subcontractor is substantialiy delaying or disrupting
the progress of the Work;

• The disclosed Subcontractor is ineligible to work on a public improvement according to the applicable statutory
provisions;

* The substitution is for "good cause" as defined by State Construction Contractors Board rule; or

• The substitution is reasonably based on the Contract alternates chosen by the Agency.

(b) Terms of Subcontracts - Subcontracts shall provide that work performed under the subcontract shail be
conducted and performed according to the terms of the Contract. Compliance with 00170.07 is required. All
subcontracts, including Contractor's with the first-tier Subcontractors and those of the first-tier Subcontractors with
their subcontractors, and any other lower tier subcontracts shall contain a clause or condition that If the Contractor
or a subcontractor fails, neglects, or refuses to make payment to an Entity furnishing labor or Materials in connection
with the Contract, the Entity may file a complaint with the Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject
to a good-faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580. Additionally, according to the provisions of ORS 279C.580,
subcontracts shall include:

(1) A payment clause that obligates the Contractor to pay the first-tier Subcontractor for satisfactory performance
under the subcontract within 10 Calendar Days out of amounts the Agency pays to the Contractor under the
Contract

(2) A clause that requires the Contractor to provide the first-tier Subcontractor with a standard form that the first-
tier Subcontractor may use as an application for payment or as another method by which the Subcontractor may
claim a payment due from the Contractor.

(3) A clause that requires the Contractor, except as otherwise provided in this subsection, to use the same form
and regular administrative procedures for processing payments during the entire term of the subcontract. The
Contractor may change the form or the regular administrative procedures the Contractor uses for processing
payments if the Contractor:

• Notifies the Subcontractor in writing at ieast 45 Calendar days before the date on which the Contractor
makes the change; and

• Includes with the written notice a copy of the new or changed form or a description of the new or changed
procedure.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 64



(4) An interest penalty ciause that obligates the Contractor, if the Contractor does not pay the first-tier
Subcontractor within 30 Calendar Days after receiving payment from the Agency, to pay the first-tier
Subcontractor an interest penalty on amounts due in each payment the Contractor does not make in accordance
with the payment clause induded in the subcontract under00180,21(d-1). The Contractor or first-tier
Subcontractor is not obligated to pay an interest penalty if the only reason that the Contractor or first-tier
Subcontractor did not make payment when payment was due is that the Contractor or first-tier Subcontractor did
not receive payment from the Agency or the Contractor when payment was due. The interest penalty applies to
the period that begins on the day after the required payment date and ends on the date on which the amount due
is paid; and shali be computed at the rate specified in 00170.10(c),

(5) A clause that requires the Contractor's first-tier Subcontraclor to include a payment clause and an interest
penalty clause that conform to the standards of ORS 279C.580 (see 00180,21(d-1) and 00180.21 (d-4)) in each
of the first-tier Subcontractor's subcontracts and to require each of the firsMier Subcontractor's subcontractors to
include such clauses in their subcontracts with each iower-tier subcontractor or Material supplier.

These payment clauses shall require the Contractor to return all retainage withheld from the Subcontractor,
whether held by the Contractor or the Agency, as specified in 00195.50(d).

As required by ORS 279C.800 through ORS 279C.870, subcontracts shall include:

• A provision requiring the subcontractor to have a public works bond filed with the Construction
Contractors Board before starting Work on the Project, unless exempt.

• A provision requiring that the workers shall be paid not less than the specified minimum hourly rate of
wage.

(c) Contractor's Responsibilities - The Contractor sha!) remain solely responsible for administration of the
subcontract, including but not limited to:

• Performance of subcontracted Work;

• Progress of subcontracted Work;

• Payments for accepted subcontracted Work; and

• Disputes and ciaims for additional compensation regarding subcontracted Work.

It shall be the direct responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that each and every Subcontractor will not only be
issued a complete and current set of Plans and Specifications, but also that these Pians and Specifications are on
the project site and in use by the Subcontractor when it is performing its portion of the project.

Subcontracted Work shall not create a contract between the Agency and the Subcontractor, will not convey to the
Subcontractor any rights against the Agency, and wiSi not relieve the Contractor or the Contractor's Surety of any of
their responsibiiities under the Contract.

(f) Failure to Comply - Failure to comply with 00180,21 wiil be cause for the Engineer to take action reasonably
necessary to obtain compliance. This action may include, but is not limited to:

• Suspension of the Work;

• Withholding of Contract payments as necessary to protect the Agency; and

• Termination of the Contract.

00180.22 Payments to Subcontractors and Agents of the Contractor - To the extent practicable, the Contractor
shall pay in the same units and on the same basis of measurement as listed in the Schedule of items for subcontracted
Work or other Work not done by the Contractor's own organization. The Agency will not be responsible for any
overpayment or losses resulting from overpayment by the Contractor to Subcontractors and to its other agents, work
providers, service providers, and trucking sen/Ece providers,

if requested in writing by a first-tier Subcontractor, the Contractor shall send to the Subcontractor, within 10 Calendar
Days of receiving the request, a copy of that portion of any invoice or request for payment submitted to the Agency, or
pay document provided by the Agency to the Contractor, specifically related to any labor, Equipment, or Materials
supplied by the first-tier Subcontractor.

CityofWarrenlon
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 65



00180.30 IViaterials, Equipment, and Work Force -The Contractor shall furnish suitable and sufficient Materials,
Equipment, and personnel to properly prosecute and complete the Work. The Contractor shall use only Equipment of
adequate size and condition to meet the requirements of the Work and Specifications, and to produce a satisfactory
quality of Work. Upon receipt of the Engineer's written order, the Contractor shall immediately remove, and not use
again on the Project without the Engineer's prior written approval, Equipment that, En the Engineer's opinion, fails to
meet Specifications or produce a satisfactory product or result.

The work force shal! be trained and experienced for the Work to be performed. Upon receipt of the Engineer's written
order, the Contractor shall immediately remove from the Project Site, and shall not employ again on the Project without
the Engineer's prior written approval, any supervisor or employee of the Contractor or any subcontractor who, in the
Engineer's opinion, does not perform satisfactory Work or whose conduct interferes with the progress of the Work.

if the Contractor fails to remove Equipment or persons as ordered, or fails to furnish suitable and sufficient Materials,
Equipment and personnel for the proper prosecution of the Work, the Engineer may suspend the Work by written notice
until such orders are comp!ied with and such deficiencies are corrected, or the Engineer may terminate the Contract
under the provisions of 001 80.90(a).

00180.31 Required Materials, Equipment, and Methods ~ The Engineer's decisions under this Section are final.

(a) General - When the Equipment and methods to be used are not specified in the Contract, any Equipment or
methods that accomplish the Work as required by the Contract wiil be permitted.

When the Contract specifies certain Equipment or methods, the Contractor shall use the Equipment or methods
specified unless othen/vise authorized by the Engineer in writing.

(b) Substitution of Materials and Equipment to be Incorporated into the Work - After execution of the Contract,
the Engineer may approve substitution of Materials and Equipment to be incorporated into the Work as follows:

(1) Reasons for Substitution - The Engineer wiil consider substitution only if:

• In the judgement of the Engineer, the proposed Materials or Equipment are equal to or superior to the
specified items in construction, efficiency and utility; or

• Due to reasons beyond the control of the Contractor, the specified Materials or Equipment cannot be
deiivered to the Project in sufficient time to compiete the Work in proper sequence.

(2) Submittal of Request-The Contractor shail submit requests for substitution to the Engineer, including
manufacturers' brochures and other information needed to verify equality of the proposed item(s).

(c) Substitution of Equipment Specified to Perform Work-The Agency encourages development of new or
improved Equipment and innovative use of Equipment When the Specifications require Equipment of a particular
size or type to be used to perform certain portions of the Work, the Contractor may submit a request to the Engineer
to use Equipment of a different size or type. The request will not be considered as a cost reduction proposal
under 00140.70. The request shali:

• Be in writing and include a full description of the Equipment proposed and its intended use;

• Include the reasons for requesting the substitution; and

• include evidence, obtained at the Contractor's expense and satisfactory to the Engineer, that the
proposed Equipment is capable of functioning as weii as or better than the specified Equipment.

The Engineer will consider the Contractor's request and will provide a written response to the Contractor, either
permitting or denying use of the proposed Equipment.

Permission may be granted on a trial basis to test the quality of Work actuaily produced, subject to the foliowing:

• There will be no cost to the Agency, either in Contract Amount or in Contract Time;

• The permission may be withdrawn by the Engineer at any time if, in the Engineer's opinion, the Equipment
is not performing in all respects equivalent to the Equipment specified in the Contract;

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 66



• If permission is withdrawn, the Contractor shail perform the remaining Work with the originally-specified
Equipment; and

• The Contractor shail remove and replace nonspecsfication Work resulting from the use of the Contractor's
proposed Equipment, or otherwise correct it as the Engineer directs, at no additional compensation.

(d) Substitution of Methods - The Agency encourages development of new, improved, and innovative
construction methods. When the Plans or Specifications require a certain construction method for a portion of the
Work, the Contractor may submit a request for a change by following the provisions of 00140.70, "Cost Reduction
Proposais".

00180.40 Limitation of Operations:

(a) In General - The Contractor shall comply with all Contract provisions and shall:

• Conduct the Work at ail times so as to cause the ieast interference with traffic, and

• Not begin Work that may aliow damage to Work already started,

(b) On-Site Work - The Contractor shall not begin On-Site Work until the Contractor has:

• Received Notice to Proceed;

• Fiied with the Construction Contractors Board the public works bond as required in 00170,20;

• An approved Project Work schedule;

• An approved Traffic Control Plan;

• An approved Spill Prevention ControS and Countermeasure Plan, if required;

* An approved Pollution Control Plan;

• An approved Erosion and Sediment Control Plan;

< Met with the Engineer at the required preconstruction conference; and

< Assembled ali Materials, Equipment, and labor on the Project Site, or has reasonably assured that they will
arrive on the Project Site, so the Work can proceed according to the Project Work schedule.

00180.41 Project Work Schedules - The Contractor shail submit a Project Work schedule meeting the requirements
of this Subsection to the Engineer. The Project Work schedule is intended to identify the sequencing of activities and
time required for prosecution of the Work. The schedule is used to plan, coordinate, and contro! the progress of
construction. Therefore, the Project Work schedule shail provide for orderly, timely, and efficient prosecution of the
Work, and shall contain sufficient detaii to enabie both the Contractor and the Engineer to plan, coordinate, analyze,
document, and control their respective Contract responsibilities.

The Contractor shall submit a scheduie or pian for each activity that is behind schedule showing, in sufficient detail, the
proposed corrective action to complete Contract Work within the Contract Time. Sufficient detail shali include ali
required double shifts, overtime work, or combination of both.

Contractor's activity related to deveSoping, furnishing, monitoring, and updating these required schedules is Incidental.

The Contractor shatl submit a supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule to the Engineer prior to or at each
Progress Meeting. The "look ahead" Project Work schedule is suppiemental to the Type A, B, or C schedule specified
below. The supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule shali:

• Identify the sequencing of activities and time required for prosecution of the Work.
* Provide for orderiy, timeiy, and efficient prosecution of the Work.

* Contain sufficient detail to enable both the Contractor and the Engineer to plan, coordinate, analyze, document,
and contra! their respective Contract responsibilities.

The supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule shall be written in common terminology and show the planned
Work activities broken down into logical, separate activities by area, stage, and size and include the following
information:

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 67



• The resources the Contractor. subcontractors, or services will use.
• The locations of each activity that will be done including the iimits of the work by mile posts, stations, or other

indicators.

• The time frames of each activity by Calendar Days, shifts, and hours,
• All anticipated shoulder, lane, and road closures.

At a minimum, the Contractor shali prepare a bar chart that:

• Shows at least 3 weeks of activity including the week the bar chart is issued.
• Uses a largest time scale unit of 1 Calendar Day. Smaller time scale units may be used if needed.

• is appropriate to the activities.
* Identifies each Calendar Day by month and day.

include the Contract name, Contract number, Contractor's name, and date of issue on each page of the bar chart.

The Contractor shall submit the supplemental "took ahead" Project Work schedule starting at First Notification and
continuing until Second Notification has been issued and all punch !ist items and final trimming and clean-up has been
compSeted. The Contractor shail meet with the Engineer each week to review the supplemental "look ahead" Project
Work schedule, [f the Engineer or the Contractor determines that the current supptementa! "look ahead" Project Work
schedule requires changes or additions, either notations can be made on the current schedule or the Engineer may
require the submittal of a revised supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule. Review of the current and
subsequent supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedules does not reiieve the Contractor of responsibility for
timely and efficient execution of the Contract.

One of the foilowing Type "A", "B", or "C" schedules will be required under the Contract. The type of schedule wi!l be
identified in the Special Provisions.

(a) Type "A" Schedule - When a Type "A" schedule is required, the Contractor shall do the following:

(1) Schedule -At the preconstruction conference, the Contractor shall provide to the Engineer four copies of a
Project Work schedule, including a time-scaled bar chart and narrative, showing:

• Expected beginning and completion dates of each activity, inciuding ail staging; and

• Elements of the Traffic Control Plan as required under 00225.05.

The schedule shali show detailed Work activities as follows:

• Construction activities;

• The time needed for completion of the utility relocation work;

• Submittai and approval of Materials samples and shop drawings;

• Fabrication, installation, and testing of special Materials and Equipment; and

• Duration of Work, including completion times of all stages and their sub phases.

For each activity, the Project Work schedule shai! list the foilowing information:

• A description in common terminology;

• The quantity of Work, where appropriate, in common units of measure;

• The activity duration in Calendar Days; and

• Scheduled start, compietion, and time frame shown graphically using a time-scaled bar chart.

The schedule shali show the Work broken down into logical, separate activities by area, stage, or size. The
duration of each activity shall be verifiable by manpower and Equipment allocation, in common units of measure,
or by delivery dates.

The bar chart shall be prepared as follows:

• The length of bar shail represent the number of workdays scheduled.

CilyofWarrenlon
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 68



• The time scaie shall be appropriate for the duration of the Contract.

• The time scale shall be in Calendar Days.

• The smallest unit shown shall be 1 Calendar Day.

• The first day and midpoint of each month shall be identified by date.

• Distinct symboSs shall be used to denote muifipfe shift, holiday, and weekend Work.

Each page of the bar chart shall include a title block showing the Contract name and number, Contractor's name,
date of original schedule, and all update dates; and a iegend containing the symbols used, their definitions, and
the time scale, shown graphically. To ensure readability the bar chart shall be drawn on a reasonable size of
paper up to a maximum of 36 inch by 36 inch, using mu!tiple sheets when needed.

Within 7 Calendar Days after the preconstruction conference, the Engineer and the Contractor shall meet to
review the Project Work schedule as submitted. The Engineer will review the scheduie for compliance with all
Contract Time iimitations and other restraints. Review of this and subsequent schedules by the Engineer shall
not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for timely and efficient execution of the Contract. Within 10 Calendar
Days of this meeting, the Contractor sha!) resubmit to the Engineer four copies of the Project Work scheduie,
including required revisions.

(2) Review by the Engineer - The Project Work schedule may need revision as the Work progresses. Therefore,
the Contractor shall periodicaiiy review the Project Work scheduie and progress of the Work with the Engineer. If
the Engineer or the Contractor determines that the Project Work schedule no longer represents the Contractor's
own pians or expected time for the Work, a meeting shall be held between the Engineer and the Contractor. At
this meeting, the Contractor and the Engineer shall review Project events and any changes for their effect on the
Project Work schedule.

The Contractor shal! compiie an updated Project Work schedule incorporating any changes to the Project
compietion time(s). The bar chart shall refject the updated information. The Contractor shall submit four copies of
the updated Project Work schedule to the Engineer within 7 Calendar Days after the meeting. The report shall
include without Simitation the foliowing:

* Sufficient narrative to describe the past progress, anticipated activities, and stage Work;

• A description of any current and expected changes or delaying factors and their effect on the construction
schedule: and

• Proposed corrective actions.

(b) Type "B" Schedule - When a Type "B Schedule is required, the Contractor shall do the following:

(1) Initial Schedule - 5 Calendar Days prior to the preconstruction conference, the Contractor shail provide to
the Engineer four copies of a time-scaied bar chart Project Work schedule showing:

• Expected beginning and completion date of each activity, inciudJng all staging; and

• Elements of the Traffic Control Plan as required under 00225.05,

The initial schedule shali show a!) Work intended for the first 60 Days of the Contract to the level of detail described
in (2) below, and shall show the priority and interdependence (sequencing and network logic) of all major
segments of the remainder of the Work.

(2) Detailed Schedule - In addition to the above requirements, and within 30 Calendar Days after the Notice to
Proceed, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer one digital copy and four paper copies of a detailed time-
scaled bar chart Project Work schedule indicating the critical course of the Work. The digital copy shall be
compatible with MS Project 2003, Primavera P3, SureTrak Project Manager 3.0, or another scheduling
program approved by the Engineer.

Detailed work schedule activities shall include the foliowing:

• Construction activities;

• The time needed for completion of the utility relocation work;

* Submittai and approval of Material samples and shop drawings;

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 69



• Procurement of critical Materials;

• Fabrication, instailation, and testing of special Material and Equipment; and

• Duration of Work, including completion times of af! stages and their sub phases.

For each activity, the Project Work schedule shall list the following information:

• A description in common terminology;

• The quantity of Work, where appropriate, in common units of measure;

• The activity duration in normal workdays; and

• Scheduled start, completion, and time frame shown graphically using a time-scaled bar chart,

The schedule shali show the Work broken down into logical, separate activities by area, stage, or size. The
duration of each activity shall be verifiable by manpower and Equipment allocation, in common units of measure,
or by delivery dates.

The bar chart shall be prepared as follows:

• The length of bar shali represent the number of normal workdays scheduled.

• The time scale shall be appropriate for the duration of the Contract.

* The time scale shall be in norma! workdays (every day except Saturday, Sunday, and legal holidays).

• The smaiiest unit shown shall be 1 Calendar Day.

• The first day and midpoint of each month shall be identified by date.

• Distinct symbols shall be used to denote multiple shift, holiday, and weekend Work.

The bar chart drawing(s) shail include a title block showing the Contract name and number, Contractor's name,
date of original schedule, and all update dates; and a legend containing the symbols used, their definitions, and
the time scale, shown graphically. To ensure readsbitity the bar chart shall be drawn on a reasonable size of
paper up to a maximum of 36 inch x 36 inch, using multiple sheets when needed,

Within 10 Calendar Days after submission of the Project schedule the Engineer and the Contractor shail meet to
review the Project schedule as submitted. Within 10 Days of the review meeting, the Contractor shall resubmit to
the Engineer one dsgita! and four paper copies of the Project schedule, including required revisions.

The accepted Project schedule shaii represent all Work, as well as the planned sequence and time for the Work.
Review of this and subsequent schedules by the Engineer shali not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for
timeiy and efficient execution of the Contract,

(3) Review and Reporting - The Project Work schedule may require revision as the Work progresses,
Therefore, the Contractor shall monitor and when necessary revise the Project Work schedule as follows;

a. Review with the Engineer - The Contractor shall perform ongoing review of the Project Work scheduie
and progress of the Work with the Engineer, if the Engineer or the Contractor determines that the Project Work
schedule no longer represents the Contractor's own plans or expected time for the Work, a meeting sha!l be
held between the Engineer and the Contractor. At this meeting, the Contractor and the Engineer shall review
Project events and any changes for their effect on the Project Work schedule. After any necessary action has
been agreed upon, the Contractor shail make required changes to the Project Work schedule.

The Contractor shall collect information on all activities worked on or scheduled to be worked on during the
previous report period, including shop drawings, Material procurement, and Contract Change Orders that have
been issued, information shall include commencement and completion dates on activities started or completed,
or if still in progress, the remaining time duration.

The Contractor shail develop detailed sub-networks to incorporate changes, Additionai Work, and Extra Work
into the Project Work schedule. Detailed sub-networks shall include all necessary activities and logic
connectors to describe the Work and all restrictions on it. The restraints shall include those activities from the
Project Work schedule that initiated the sub-network as well as those restrained by it.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 70



The Contractor shall evaluate this information and compare it with the Contractor's project scheduie, if
necessary, the Contractor shall make an updated bar chart scheduie to incorporate the effect changes may
have on the Project completion time(s). For any activity that has started, the Contractor sha!l add a symbol to
show the actual date the activity started and the number of normal workdays remaining until completion. For
activities that are finished, a symbol shall be added to show the actua! date. The Contractor shail submit one
digital and four paper copies of the updated bar chart to the Engineer within 7 Days after the progress meeting,
along with a progress report as required by "b." beiow.

b. Progress Report - The Contractor shall submit a progress report to the Engineer each month. The report
shall include the foilowing:

• Sufficient narrative to describe the past progress, anticipated activities, and stage Work;

• A description of any current and expected changes or delaying factors and their effect on the construction
scheduie: and

• Proposed corrective actions.

(c) Type "C" Schedule - When a Type "C" Schedule is required, the Contractor shall do the foilowing:

(1) Initial Schedule -10 Calendar Days prior to the preconstruction conference, the Contractor shai) provide to
the Engineer one digital copy and four paper copies of a time-scaied bar chart Project Work schedule. The digital
copy shall be compatible with MS Project 2003, Primavera P3, SureTrak Project Manager 3.0, or another
scheduling program approved by the Engineer. The initial scheduie shal! show:

• The expected beginning and completion date of each activity, including all stages and phases;

• The time needed for completion of the utility relocation work; and

* The elements of the traffic contra! plan as required under 00225.05.

A logic diagram and a time-scaled bar chart will be acceptable in iieu of a time-scaled logic diagram.

The initial schedule shall show all Work intended for the first 60 Days of the Contract to the level of detail described
in (2) be!ow, and shall show the priority and interdependence (sequencing and network logic) of all major
segments of the remainder of the Work,

(2) Detailed Project Work Schedule ~ in addition to the above requirements, and within 30 Calendar Days after
First Notification, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer one digital copy and four paper copies of a detailed
time-scaied critical path method (CPM) network Project Work schedule and computer anaiysis printout, both
cleariy indicating the critical path. The digital copy shall be compatible with MS Project 2003, Primavera P3,
SureTrak Project Manager 3.0, or another scheduling program approved by the Engineer, The first submitted
detailed time-scaled critical path method (CPM) network Project Work schedule shall also contain a listing of the
quantity of Work for each activity, when appropriate, in common units of measure.

Detailed work scheduie activities shali include the following:

• Construction activities;

* Any limitations of operation specified in 00180.40;

• The time needed for completion of the utility relocation work;

• Implementation of TCP for each stage and phase;

• Submittai and approval of Material samples, mix designs, and shop drawings;

• Agency timeframes to process and return Contractor submitted plans, working drawings, equipment lists
and other submittals;

• Procurement of critical Materials;

• Fabrication, installation, and testing of special Material and Equipment;

• Duration of Work, including completion times of ati stages and their sub-phases; and

• Specified cure times for all concrete elements.

The activities shall be separately identifiable by coding or use of sub-networks or both. The duration of each
activity shall be verifiable and consistent with the description in the Project narrative required in (3) beiow.

City ofWanrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 71



Detailed sub-networks shali inciude all necessary activities and logic connectors to describe the Work and ali
restrictions on it. In the restraints, include those activities from any Project Work schedule that initiated the sub-
network as weli as those restrained by it.

The time scale used on the Contractor's detailed time-scaied cnticai path method (CPM) network Project Work
schedule shall be appropriate for the duration of the activities and the Project duration. The time scale shall be
in normal workdays, defined as every day except Saturday, Sunday and legal holidays, with calendar dates
identified no less than the first and midpoint of each calendar month. The smallest unit shown sha!i be 1 Day.
The network shali show the length of the activity or part scaled to accurateiy represent the number of normai
workdays scheduled. Distinct symbols or graphics shall be used to show multiple shift, holiday, or weekend work.

The schedule network drawing(s) shall include a title block showing the Contract name and number, Contractor's
name, date of original schedule, and ali update dates; and a legend containing the symbols used, their definitions,
and the time scale, shown graphically. To ensure readability the drawings shall be on a reasonable size of paper
up to a maximum of 36 inch x 36 inch, using multiple sheets when needed.

The Contractor shall include a tabulation of each activity in the computer mathematical analysis of the network
diagram. The foliowing information represents the minimum required for each activity:

• Event (node) number(s) for each activity;

• Maintain event (node) numbers throughout the Project;

• Activity description;

• Original duration of activities (in normal workdays);

• Estimated remaining duration of activities (in normal workdays);

• Earliest start date and actual start date (by calendar date);

• Earliest finish date and actual finish date (by calendar date);

• Latest start date (by calendar date);

• Latest finish date (by calendar date); and

• Siack or float time (in workdays).

Computer print-outs shall consist of at least a node sort and an "early start/totai-float" sort.

Within 14 Calendar Days after submission of the detailed time-scaled critical path method (CPM) network Project
Work schedule, the Engineer and the Contractor shat! meet to review the detailed time-scaied criticai path method
(CPM) network Project Work schedule as submitted. Within? Calendar Days of the meeting, the Contractor shall
resubmit to the Engineer one digital and four paper copies of the detailed time-scaied critical path method (CPM)
network Project Work schedule, including required revisions.

This first accepted detailed time-scaled critical path method (CPM) network Project Work schedule, also called
the accepted Project Work schedule, shali represent all Work, as weil as the planned sequence and time for the
Work. Review and acceptance of any Project Work schedules and Project narratives by the Engineer shall not
relieve the Contractor of responsibility for timely and efficient execution of the Contract.

(3) Project Narrative - In addition to the above requirements, and within 30 Calendar Days after First Notification,
the Contractor shal! provide to the Engineer a final written Project narrative that discusses the planning,
coordinating, scheduling and resourcing of the Work. The Project narrative shai! inciude the following written
description:

• Plans for staging the project.

• Al! critical activities.

* Aii near critical activities defined as those with less than 30 Days of float.

• A!! subcontractor activities that are critical, near critical, and those that are greater than two weeks in
duration.

• Labor resourcing, by stage and phase, to include the number of crews, average crew size and planned
nsght/weekend shifts inciuding that of subcontractors.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 72



• Equipment allocation, by stage and phase to include mobilization, demobilization and pianned activities
including that of subcontractors.

• Notifications required under the Contract during each stage and phase which may inciude but is not limited
to road closures, fanes closures, night work, cold plane pavement removal, and pile driving.

* Provide discussion on addressing reasonably predictable weather conditions and their impact on ail weather
sensitive activities. Also, provide discussion on other weather iimitations that may affect the project
schedule,

• Submittal and approval of material samples, mix designs, and shop drawings.

* Procurement of criticaS materials.

* Plans for dealing with "unique" construction items.

• Coordination of utilities and any immediate concerns for impacts/delays.

• Constructability issues.

• Cost Reduction Proposals and/or immediate requests for changes to the specifications.

• Concerns/issues that need to be addressed within the first 90 Days following First Notification.

The accepted Project narrative shall represent all cnticai and near critical Work, as weii as the planned sequence
and time for the Work.

(4) Review and Reporting - The Project Work schedule may require revision as the Work progresses.
Therefore, the Contractor shall monitor and when necessary revise the Project Work schedule as follows:

a. Review with the Engineer "The Contractor shall perform ongoing review of the accepted Project Work
schedule and progress of the Work with the Engineer, if the Engineer or the Contractor determines that the
accepted Project Work schedule no longer represents the Contractor's own plans or expected time for the
Work, a meeting shait be held between the Engineer and the Contractor. At this meeting, the Contractor and
the Engineer shall review Project events and any changes for their effect on the accepted Project Work
schedule. After any necessary action has been agreed upon, the Contractor shall make required changes to
the accepted Project Work schedule and associated Project narrative. Upon acceptance by the Engineer, this
wi!! become the new accepted Project Work schedule and associated Project narrative.

The Contractor shail collect information on all activities worked on or scheduled to be worked on during the
previous report period, including shop drawings, Material procurement, and Contract Change Orders that have
been issued, information shall include actual start and completion dates on activities started or completed, or
if still in progress, the remaining time duration.

The Contractor shaii develop detailed sub-networks to incorporate changes, Additional Work, and Extra Work
into the Project Work schedule. Detailed sub-networks shall include ail necessary activities and logic
connectors to describe the Work and ali restrictions on it. The restraints shall include those activities from the
Project Work schedule that initiated the sub-network as wel! as those restrained by it. The procedure for
acceptance of the revised or updated Project Work schedule as the new accepted Project Work scheduie will
be as provided above.

The Contractor shai! evaluate this information each month and compare it with the accepted Project Work
schedule. The Contractor shali make an updated bar chart schedule to incorporate the effect changes may
have on the Project completion time(s). For any activity that has started, the Contractor shall add a symbol to
show the actual date the activity started and the number of normal workdays remaining until compietion. For
activities that are finished, a symboi shall be added to show the actual date. The Contractor shaH submit,
digitally and in paper, copies of the updated bar chart to the Engineer within 7 Days after the progress meeting,
along with a progress report as required by "b." below.

b. Progress Report - Each month the Contractor shall submit a progress report and an update of the Project
Work schedule to the Engineer. The report and updated schedule shall be submitted both digitally and in paper
copy and shall include the following:

• A sufficient description, in narrative form, to describe the past progress, anticipated activities, and stage
Work;

• A description of any current and expected changes or delaying factors and their effect on the construction
schedule;

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 sl Street
Genera! Condilions For Construction
Page 73



• Proposed corrective actions;

• Proposals to keep the Project on schedule in the event of a delay; and

• Any changes to the logic as compared to the accepted Project Work schedule.

(d) Substitution of Schedules - When a Type "A" schedule is required, a Type "B" or Type "C" schedule may be
substituted for the Type "A" schedule.

When a Type"B"schedule is required, a Type "C" schedule may be substituted for the Type "B" schedule,

(e) Specified Contract Time Not Superseded by Schedule Revisions - The completion dates in any Project
Work schedule and any revised or updated Project Work schedules shal! be within the Contract Time(s) specified
for the Project, or within adjusted Contract Times approved according to 00180.80(c). Acceptance of any Project
Work schedule or any revised or updated Project Work schedules shali not constitute approval of any completion
dates that exceed such Contract Time(s). If the Contractor believes that additional Contract Time is due, the
Contractor shaii submit, with a revised Project Work schedule, a request for adjustment of Contract Time according
to 00180.80(c). A request for an adjustment of Contract Time will be evaluated using the most recently accepted
Project Work schedule.

(f) Float Time - Fioat time shown on the Project Work schedule, including any time between a Contractor's
scheduled completion date and the specified Contract Time(s), does not exist for the exclusive use of either party to
the Contract and belongs to the Project.

(g) Schedules Do Not Constitute Notice- Submittal of a Project Work schedule, with supporting Project narrative,
does not constitute or substitute for any notice the Contractor is required under the terms of the Contract to give the
Agency.

(h) Failure to Provide Schedule - The Project Work schedule is essential to the Agency. The Contractor's failure
to provide the schedule, schedule information, progress reports, Project narratives, or schedule updates when
required wili be cause to suspend the Work, or to withhold Contract payments as necessary to protect the Agency,
until the Contractor provides the required information to the Engineer.

00180.42 Preconstruction Conference - Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Engineer, before any Work is
performed and within 7 Calendar Days of the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall meet with the Engineer for a
preconstruction conference at a time mutualiy agreed upon.

00180.43 Commencement and Performance of Work" From the time of commencement of the Work to the time of
Final Acceptance the Contractor shall:

• Provide adequate Materials, Equipment, labor, and supen/Jsion to perform and compiete the Work;

• Perform the Work as vigorously and as continuousiy as conditions permit, and according to a Project Work
schedule that ensures completion within the Contract Time or the adjusted Contract Time;

* Not voluntarily suspend or slow down operations without prior written approval from the Engineer; and

* Not resume suspended Work without the Engineer's written authorization.

00180.44 Project Meetings - The Contractor shall participate in conferences and meetings for the purposes of
addressing issues related to the Work, reviewing and coordinating progress of the Work and other matters of common
interest to the Contractor, Engineer and Agency.

(a) Meeting Participants - Representatives of entities participating in meetings shall be qualified and authorized
to act on behalf of entity each represents,

(b) Meet in Agency's meeting room facility, or in a location otherwise agreed to by Agency and Contractor.

(c) Engineer will distribute to each anticipated participant written notice and agenda of each meeting at (east
4 days before meeting.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 74



(d) Require attendance of Contractor's superintendent and project manager, and Subcontractors who are or are
proximate to be actively invoived in the Work, or who are necessary to agenda.

(e) Engineer wiU invite agencies, utility companies or others when the Work affects their interests, and others
necessary to agenda,

(f) Engineer will record minutes of meeting and distribute copies of minutes within seven days of meeting to
participants and interested parties. Contractor shall advise Engineer within two days of receipt of meeting
minutes if Contractor does not agree with content of minutes.

(g) Progress Meetings

(1) Purpose of Progress Meetings: To expedite work of subcontractors or other organizations that are not
meeting scheduled progress, resolve conflicts, and coordinate and expedite execution of the Work,

(2) Attend reguiariy scheduied bi-weekiy progress meetings conducted by Engineer.

(3) Review progress of the Work, Progress Scheduie, 3-week look-ahead schedule, narrative report,
Application for Payment, record documents, and additional items of current interest that are pertinent to
execution of the Work.

(4) Verify:

• Actual start and finish dates of completed activities since last progress meeting.

* Durations and progress of activities not completed.

* Reason, time, and cost data for Change Order Work that will be incorporated into Progress
Schedule and Appiication for Payment,

• Percentage completion of items on AppSJcation for Payment.

• Reasons for required revisions to Progress Schedule and their effect on Contract Time and
Contract Amount.

(5) Review status of Requests for Ciarification/tnformation and Submittais review.

(6) Discuss Project safety and security.

(7) Discuss traffic control.

(8) Discuss potential problems which may impede scheduled progress and corrective measures.

(h) Coordination Meetings

(1) Purpose of Coordination Meetings; To coordinate the Work of this Contract with the work of the Agency
and with work of other contractors.

(i) Pre-Event Meetings

(1) Prior to start of critical activities, the Contractor shali schedule a meeting with Engineer to review
applicable specifications and drawings, coordination of inspection requirements and other key activities.

(j) Pre-Survey Conference

(1) The Contractor, applicable subcontractors, Contractor's surveyor, and Agency's surveyor shall meet with
the Engineer two weeks prior to beginning survey work. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss methods
and practices of accomplishing the sun/ey work.

(k) Other Meetings

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 75



(1) The Contractor shall prepare for and attend other meetings as identified elsewhere in the Contract
Documents.

00180.50 Contract Time to Complete Work:

(a) General - The time allowed to complete the Work or Pay Item is stipulated in the Special Provisions, and will be
known as the "Contract Time", (see 00110.20)

(b) Kinds of Contract Time - The Contract Time will be expressed in one or more of the following ways:

(1) Fixed Date Ca!cu!ation - The calendar date on which the Work or Pay Item shall be compieted; or

(2) Calendar Day Calculation - The number of Caiendar Days from a specified beginning point in which the Work
or Pay Item shall be completed.

(3) Work Day Calculation ~ The number of Work Days from a specified beginning point En which the Work or Pay
item shall be compieted.

(c) Beginning of Contract Time -When the Contract Time is stated in Calendar Days, counting of Contract
Calendar Days will begin with the first Calendar Day following the date of the Notice to Proceed. When the Contract
Time is stated in Work Days, counting of Contract Work Days will begin with the first Work Day following the date of
the Notice to Proceed,

(d) Recording Contract Time - All Contract Time will be recorded and charged to the nearest one-half Day.

Contract Times may be extended because of delays in the completion of the Work due to abnormal weather
conditions provided that the Contractor shall, within 10 days of the beginning of such delay, notify Engineer in writing
of the cause of the delay and request an extension of time. Such requests shall be accompanied with supporting
documentation referenced to the NOAA iNDEX weather in the Project vicinity. Engineer will make recommendations
to Agency to extend the Contract Times for completing the Work when, in Engineer's judgement, the findings of facts
and extent of delay justify such an extension. Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation of any
kind arising out of or relating to abnormal weather conditions.

(e) Exclusions from Contract Time - Regardless of the way Contract Time is expressed in the Contract, certain
Calendar Days will not be charged against Contract Time. These exdusions will be allowed when the Contractor is
prevented from performing Work due to one of the foilowing reasons, resulting in delay:

• Acts of God or Nature;

• Court orders enjoining prosecution of the Work;

• Strikes, iabor disputes or freight embargoes that, despite the Contractor's reasonable efforts to avoid them,
cause a shutdown of the entire Project or one or more major operations. "Strike" and "labor dispute" may
include union action against the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Materials supplier, or the Agency; or

• Suspension of the Work by written order of the Engineer for reasons other than the Contractor's failure
or negiect.

(f) Time Calculation Protest - In the event the Contractor disputes the accuracy of the statement of Contract Time
charges, it shall immediately contact the Engineer and attempt to resolve the dispute. If the dispute cannot be
resolved informally, the Contractor shail submit a formal written protest to the Engineer within 7 Calendar Days of
the date the Engineer mailed or delivered the statement. Failure to submit a formal written protest within the
7 Calendar Day period constitutes the Contractor's approval of the time charges, or adjusted time charges, itemized
in the statement.

(g) End of Contract Time - When the Engineer determines that the On-Site Work has been completed, except for
the items listed below, the Engineer wili issue a Second Notification.

The Second Notification will list:

• The date the time charges stopped;

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Condiiions For Construction
Page 76



• Final trimming and cleanup tasks (see 00140.90);

• Equipment to be removed from the Project Site;

• Minor corrective work (punch list) to be completed; and

• Submittals, including without limitation all required certifications, bills, forms, warranties, certificate of insurance
coverage (00170.70(b)), and other documents, required to be provided to the Engineer before Third Notification
will issue.

The Contractor shall complete all tasks listed in the Second Notification in an expeditious manner within the time frame
specified for Final Completion.

00180.60 Notice of Delay - The Contractor shall notify the Engineer of any deiay that will iikeiy prevent completion of
the Work or a Pay Item by the date specified in the Project Work schedule, The notice shall be in writing and shall be
submitted within 7 Calendar Days of when the Contractor knew or should have known of the delay. The notice shail
include, to the extent available, the following:

* The reasons or causes for the deiay;

* The estimated duration of the deiay and the estimated resulting cumulative delay in Contract completion;

• Except for 00180.50(e) and 00180.65 delays, whether or not the Contractor expects to request an adjustment of
Contract Time due to the delay;

• Whether or not the Contractor expects to accelerate due to the delay; and

• Whether or not the Contractor expects to request additional compensation due to the delay. Except for
00180.50(e) and 00180.65 delays, failure to include this information will constitute waiver of the Contractor's right
to iater make such a request.

• !f Contractor is delayed and has stopped Contract Item work for less than 60 minutes, neither additional Contract
Time nor additional compensation wi!i be considered.

00180.65 Righf-of-Way and Access Delays - Right-of-Way and access delays will be taken into consideration in
adjusting Contract Time, and in approving additional compensation if the performance of the Work is delayed because
of the Agency's failure to make available to the Contractor:

• Necessary Rights-of-Way;

• Agency-owned or Agency-controlled Materiais sources that are offered in the Contract for the Contractor's use;
or

• Access to, or rights of occupancy of, buildings and other properties the Contractor is required to enter or to disturb
according to Contract requirements.

If the duration and time period of an anticipated delay is stated in the Special Provisions, only the delay occurring
beyond that duration and time period- will be considered for adjusting Contract Time or providing additional
compensation.

00180.70 Suspension of Work:

(a) General - The Engineer has authority to suspend the Work, or part of the Work, for any of the following causes:

• Failure of the Contractor to correct unsafe conditions;

• Failure of the Contractor to carry out any provision of the Contract;

• Failure of the Contractor to carry out orders issued by the Engineer, the Agency, or any regulatory authority;

• Existence of conditions unsuitable to proper or safe performance of the Work; or

• Any reason considered by the Agency to be in the pubiic interest.

When Work has been suspended for any reason, the Contractor shall not resume Work without the Engineer's written
authorization.

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 77



(b) Contractor's Responsibilities during and after Suspension - During periods of suspension of the Work, the
Contractor shail continue to be responsible for protecting and repairing the Work according to 00170.80, and for
ensuring that a single designated representative responsible for the Project remains available according to
00150.40(b).

When Work is resumed after suspension, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Contractor shal! perform
the following at no additional compensation:

• Replace or repair any Work, Materials, and Equipment to be incorporated into the Work that was !ost or
damaged because of the temporary use of the Project Site by the public; and

• Remove Materials, Equipment, and temporary construction necessitated by temporary maintenance during the
suspension, as directed by the Engineer,

(c) Compensation and Allowances for Suspension - Compensation and allowance of additional Contract Time
due to suspension of any portion of the Work will be authorized only for Agency-inJtiated suspensions for reasons
other than the Contractor's failure or neglect (refer to 00180.50(e), 00180.65, and 00195.40)

00180.80 Adjustment of Contract Time:

(a) General - Contract Time established for the Work will be subject to adjustment, either by increase or decrease,
for causes beyond the control of the Contractor, according to the terms of this Subsection. After adjustment, the
Contract Time will become, and be designated as, the "Adjusted Contract Time". Except as provided in 00180.65
and 00195.40, an adjustment of Contract Time shall be the Contractor's only remedy for any delay arising from
causes beyond the control of the Contractor.

(b) Contractor's Request Not Required - The Engineer may increase or decrease the Contract Time or the
Adjusted Contract Time if Change Orders or Extra Work orders issued actually increase or decrease the amount of
time required to perform the Work. The Engineer may aiso increase Contract Time in the event of Right-of-Way and
Access delays (see 00180.65), and those delays due to causes beyond the Contractor's control specified in
00180.50(e). The Engineer will promptly inform the Contractor of adjustments made to Contract Time according to
this Subsection, and will include the reasons for adjustment.

If the Agency anticipates delay during performance of the Contract, and specifies its expected duration and time
period in the Special Provisions, the Engineer will only consider additional deiay beyond the stipulated duration and
time period in determining whether to adjust Contract Time.

(c) Contractor's Request Required - !n the event the Contractor believes that additional Contract Time is due, the
Contractor shail submit to the Engineer a timely request for adjustment of Contract Time. The Engineer will not
consider untimely requests. The Agency regards as timely only those requests for adjustment of Contract Time that:

• Accompany a proposed revised Project Work schedule submitted according to 00180.41, for comparison with
the last revision of the Project Work schedule; or

• Are not otherwise deemed waived and are submitted within 15 Days after the date of Second Notification, if
Second Notification has been issued.

The Engineer will not grant an adjustment of Contract Time for events that occurred prior to the date of the last
revision of the Project Work schedule. The Engineer will not authorize, nor the Agency pay, acceleration costs
incurred by the Contractor prior to its submittal of a request for adjustment of Contract Time to which the acceleration
costs relate.

The Contractor's request for adjustment of Contract Time shall be submitted to the Engineer on a form provided by,
or in a format acceptable to, the Engineer, and shall include a copy of the written notice required under 00180.60.
The request shall include without limitation:

• Consent of the Contractor's Surety if the request totals more than 30 Calendar Days of additional Contract
Time;

• Sufficient detail for the Engineer to evaluate the asserted justification for the amount of additional Contract Time
requested;

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 78



• The cause of each delay for which additional Contract Time is requested, together with supporting analysis and
data;

• Reference to the Contract provision allowing Contract Time adjustment for each cause of delay;

• The actual or expected duration of delay resuiting from each cause of delay, expressed in Calendar Days; and

• A schedule analysis based on the current approved Project Work schedule for each cause of delay, indicating
which activities are involved and their impact on Contract completion.

(d) Basis for Adjustment of Contract Time - in the adjustment of Contract Time, the Engineer wiii consider causes
that include, but are not limited to:

• Failure of the Agency to submit the Contract and bond forms to the Contractor for execution within the time
stated in 00130,50, or to submit the Notice to Proceed within the time stated in 00130.90;

• Errors, changes, or omissions in the Supplemental Drawings, quantities, or Specifications;

• Performance of Extra Work;

• Failure of the Agency or Entities acting for the Agency to act promptiy in carrying out Contract duties and
obligations;

• Acts or omissions of the Agency or Entities acting for the Agency that result in unreasonable delay referenced
in 00195.40;

• Causes cited in 00180.50(e); and

• Right-of-way and access delays referenced in 00180.65.

The Engineer will not consider requests for adjustment of Contract Time based on any of the following:

• Contentions that insufficient Contract Time was originaiiy specified in the Contract;

• Delays that do not affect the specified or Adjusted Contract Time;

• Delays that affect the Contractor's planned early completion, but that do not affect the specified or adjusted
Contract Time;

• Shortage or inadequacy of Materials, Equipment or labor;

• Work stoppage required by the Engineer to determine the extent of Work defects

• Time for the Contractor to correct the Work defects from date of notification of the defects unti! the correction
work is completed and has been approved by the Engineer.

• Late delivery of Materials and Equipment to be incorporated into the Work, except under those conditions
referenced in 00180.50(e);

• Different area of Material source in 00160.40(a);

• Substitution of Equipment in 00180.31(c);

• Reasonably predictable weather conditions; or

• Other matters within the Contractor's control or Contract responsibility.

(e) Consideration and Response by Agency - The Engineer wiil only consider a Contractor's request for Contract
Time adjustment submitted according to the requirements of 00180.80(c). The Engineer may elect not to consider
claimed delays that do not affect the specified or adjusted Contract Time required to complete the Work.

The Engineer may adjust Contract Time for causes not specifically identified by the Contractor in its request.

The Engineer will review a properly submitted request for Contract Time adjustment, and within a reasonable time
will advise the Contractor of the Engineer's findings, if the Contractor disagrees with the Engineer's findings, the
Contractor may request review according to the procedure specified in 00199.-40.

00180.85 Failure to Complete on Time; Liquidated Damages:

(a) Time is of the Essence - Time is of the essence in the Contractor's performance of the Contract. Delays in the
Contractor's performance of the Work may inconvenience the trave!ing public, interfere with business and commerce,

City ofWarrenton
SW ASder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 79



and increase cost to the Agency. It is essential and in the public interest that the Contractor prosecute the Work
vigorously to Contract completion.

The Agency does not waive any rights under the Contract by permitting the Contractor to continue to perform the
Contract, or any part of it, after the Contract Time or adjusted Contract Time has expired.

(b) Liquidated Damages-The Agency will sustain damage if the Work is not compieted within the specified
Contract Time. However, in certain Agency projects it may be unduly burdensome and difficult to demonstrate the
exact dollar value of such damages. The Agency wi!l identify such projects in the Special Provisions related to them.
In these projects, the Contractor agrees to pay to the Agency, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages, the
amount specified in the Special Provisions for each Calendar Day the Contractor expends performing the Contract
in excess of the Contract Time or adjusted Contract Time.

Payment by the Contractor of liquidated damages does not release the Contractor from its obligation to fully and
timely perform the Contract according to its terms. Nor does acceptance of liquidated damages by the Agency
constitute a waiver of the Agency's right to coiiect any additionai damages ft may sustain by reason of the
Contractor's failure to fully perform the Contract according to its terms. The liquidated damages shall constitute
payment in full only of damages incurred by the Agency due to the Contractor's failure to complete the Work on time.

if the Contract is terminated according to 00180.90(a), and if the Work has not been completed by other means on
or before the expiration of Contract Time or adjusted Contract Time, liquidated damages wili be assessed against
the Contractor for the duration of time reasonably required to complete the Work.

00180.90 Termination of Contract and Substituted Performance:

(a) Termination for Default ~ Termination of the Contract for default may result if the Contractor:

• Fails to comply with the requirements for records;

• Violates any material provision of the Contract;

• Disregards applicable laws and regulations or the Engineer's instructions;

• Refuses or faiis to supply enough Materials, Equipment or skilled workers for prosecution of the Work in
compliance with the Contract;

• Fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors;

• Makes an unauthorized general assignment for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors;

• Has a receiver appointed because of the Contractor's insolvency;

• is adjudged bankrupt and the court consents to the Contract termination; or

• Otherwise faiis or refuses to faithfully perform the Contract according to its terms and conditions.

if the Contract is terminated by the Agency, upon demand the Contractor and the Contractor's Surety shall provide
the Engineer with immediate and peacefui possession of the Project Site, and of alf Materials and Equipment to be
incorporated into the Work, whether located on and off the Project Site, for which the Contractor received progress
payments under 00195.50.

if the Contract is terminated for defauit, neither the Contractor nor its Surety shall be:

• Relieved of liabiiity for damages or losses suffered by the Agency because of the Contractor's breach of
Contract: or

• Entitled to receive any further progress payments until the Work is completed. However, progress payments
for completed Work that remain due and owing at the time of Contract termination may be made according to
the terms of 00195.50, except that the Engineer will be entitled to withhold sufficient funds to cover costs
incurred by the Agency as a result of the termination. Final payment to the Contractor will be made according
to the provisions of Section 00195.

If a termination under this provision is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unjustified, the termination
shail be deemed a termination for public convenience.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 80



(b) Substituted Performance - According to the Agency's procedures, and upon the Engineer's recommendation
that sufficient cause exists, the Agency, without prejudice to any of its other rights or remedies and after giving the
Contractor and the Contractor's Surety 10 Calendar Days' written notice, may:

• Terminate the Contract;

• Substitute the Contractor with another Entity to complete the Contract;

• Take possession of the Project Site;

* Take possession of Materials on the Project Site;

• Take possession of Materials not on the Project Site, for which the Contractor received progress payments
under 00195,50;

• Take possession of Equipment on the Project Site that is to be incorporated into the Work;

• Take possession of Equipment not on the Project Site that is to be incorporated into the Work, and for which
the Contractor received progress payments under 00195.50; and

* Finish the Work by whatever method the Agency deems expedient.

If, within the 10 Calendar Day notice period provided above, the Contractor and/or its Surety corrects the basis for
declaration of default to the satisfaction of the Engineer, or if the Contractor's Surety submits a proposal for correction
that is acceptable to the Engineer, the Contract will not be terminated.

(c) Termination for Public Convenience - The Engineer may terminate the Contract for convenience in whole or
in part whenever the Engineer determines that termination of the Contract is in the best interest of the public and for,
but not limited to, the foilowing reasons:

• If work under the contract is suspended by an order of a public agency for any reason considered to be in
the public interest other than by a labor dispute or by reason of any third party judicial proceeding relating to
the Work other than a suit or action Ried in regard to a labor dispute; or

• If the circumstances or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a reasonable time to proceed with a
substantial portion of the Contract; or

• If Agency funding from federal, state, local, or other sources is not obtained and continued at levels sufficient
to allow for purchase of the indicated quantity of services. This Contract may be modified to accommodate a
reduction in funds; or

• If Federal or State regulations or guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted in such a way that the
services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this Contract.

The Engineer will provide the Contractor and the Contractor's Surety 7 Calendar Days' written notice of termination
for public convenience. After such notice, the Contractor and the Contractor's Surety shall provide the Agency with
immediate and peaceful possession of the Project Site, and of Materials and Equipment to be incorporated into the
Work, whether located on and off the Project Site, for which the Contractor received progress payments under
00195.50.

Termination under any provision of this paragraph shall not affect any right, obligation, or liability of Contractor or
Agency that accrued prior to such termination,

if the Contract is terminated for public convenience, neither the Contractor nor its Surety shall be relieved of liabiiity
for damages or losses suffered by the Agency as a result of defective, unacceptable or unauthorized Work completed
or performed.

Compensation for Work terminated by the Engineer under this provision will be determined according to the
provisions of00195.70(b).

00180.95 Project Closeout

(a) Description of Requirements - Project Cioseout is defined to include general requirements near the end of
the Contract Time, in preparation for Substantial Compietion, Final Completion, final payment, normal

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 81



termination of Contract, occupancy by Agency and similar actions evidencing completion of the Work. Specific
requirements for individual units of Work are specified in various technical specification sections.

(b) Prerequisites To Substantial Completion

(1) Prior to requesting Engineer's inspection for certification of Substantial CompSetion for the entire
work, complete the following and list known exceptions in request:

• In progress payment request, coincide with or first following date claimed, show either 100%
completion for portion of work claimed as "substantiaHy complete", or list incomplete items, vaiue

of incompfetion, and reasons for being incomplete. Include supporting documentation for
completion as indicated in these Contract Documents.

• Submit specific warranties, workmanship/maintenance bonds, maintenance agreements, final

certifications and similar documents.

• Obtain and submit releases enabiing Agency's full and unrestricted use of the Work and access
to services and utilities.

• Deliver tools, spare parts, extra stocks of materials, and similar physical items to Agency.

• Where applicable, make final change-over of locks and transmit keys to Agency and advise
Agency's personnel of change-over in security provisions.

• Complete start-up testing of systems, and instructions of Agency's operating/maintenance

personnel. Discontinue (or change-over) and remove from Project site temporary facilities and

services, along with construction toois and facilities, mock-ups, and similar elements.

• Touch-up and otherwise repair and restore marred exposed finishes.

(2) Upon receipt of Contractor's request, Engineer will either proceed with inspection or advise
Contractor of prerequisites not fulfilled. Following initia! inspection, Engineer wii! either prepare
Certificate of Substantial Completion, or advise Contractor of Work which must be performed prior to
issuance of certificate; a repeat inspection wiil be performed when requested and assured by the
Contractor that Work has been substantialiy completed. Results of compSeted inspection wili form
initial "punch-iist" requirements for Final Completion. If more than two visits are required to complete

the final inspection for Substantial Completion then the Contractor shail pay the Agency for the
Engineer's time, for ali categories of labor required to complete the inspection for Substantial
Completion at the Engineer's standard billing rates at the time of inspection. This time shall include
time for travel and time to prepare inspection reports. Contractor shall also pay the Engineer's
expenses at cost plus 10% and $0.55 per mile for travel to and from the site.

(c) Prerequisites To Final Completion

(1) Prior to requesting Engineer's final inspection for final payment and acceptance, complete the following
and list known exceptions (if any) in request:

• Submit Una! payment request with final releases and supporting documentation which have not
previousiy been submitted and accepted. Include certificates of insurance for products and
completed operations where required.

• Submit updated final statement, accounting for additional (final) changes to Contract Amount.

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 82



• Submit certified copy of Engineer's final punch-list of itemized work to be completed or corrected,
stating that each item has been completed or otherwise resolved for acceptance, endorsed and
dated by Engineer.

• Submit final meter readings for utilities, measured record of stored fuel, and similar data as of
time of Substantiai Compietion or when Agency took possession of and responsibility for
corresponding elements of the work.

• Submit consent of surety.

• Submit final liquidated damages settlement statement, acceptabie to Agency.

• Submit record drawings, maintenance manuals, and similar final record information.

(2) Re-inspection Procedure: Upon receipt of Contractor's notice that the Work has been completed,
including punch-iist items resulting from earlier inspections, and accepting incomplete items delayed
because of acceptable circumstances, Engineer will re-inspect the work. Upon completion of re-

inspection, Engineer will either make recommendation for final payment and acceptance by the Agency
or advise Contractor of work not completed or obligations not fulfilled as required for final payment. If
necessary, procedure will be repeated. )f more than two visits are required to complete the final

inspection for final payment then the Contractor shaii pay the Agency for the Engineer's time, for a!)
categories of iabor required to complete the inspection for final acceptance at the Engineer's standard
billing rates at the time of inspection. This time shall include time to travel and time to prepare inspection
reports. Contractor shal! also pay the Engineer's expenses at cost pius 10% and $0.55 per mite for travel
to and from the site.

(d) Closeout Documents

(1) Submit following Closeout Submittals after receipt of Second Notification and at ieast seven (7) days prior
to Application for Final Payment:

• Evidence of Compliance with Requirements of Governing Authorities.

• Project Record Documents.

• Operation and Maintenance Manuals.

• Warranties and Bonds.

• Keys and Keying Schedule.

• Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens as outlined in Conditions of the Contract.

• Certificate of Compliance

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 83



Section 00190 " Measurement of Pay Quantities

00190.00 Scope - The Engineer will measure pay quantities for accepted Work according to the United States
standard measure unless otherwise provided in the Contract. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Engineer
wili round off all quantity computations using the following convention:

• The final significant digit will not be changed when the succeeding digit is less than 5.

• The fina! significant digit will be increased by one when the succeeding digit is 5 or greater.

The measurement provisions contained in the Specifications for each Pay Item wiil supplement or modify the above
convention by:

• Imposing measurement limitations

• Describing measurement or computation procedures

• Giving conversion factors or adjustment conditions

• Providing for determination of reasonably accurate and representative Pay Item quantities

Measurements required or allowed to be made by the Contractor will be subject to the Engineer's verification. The
Engineer's decision about measurement is final.

00190.10 Measurement Guidelines - Measurement of quantities will be made on the following bases, unless
otherwise specified in the Contract:

(a) Unit Basis - Unit will be each, unless otherwise specified in the Contract and will be determined by actual count
of units in place.

(b) Length Basis - Length wili be feet or mile, unless otherwise specified in the Contract and will be determined by
measuring the length at least to the nearest 0.1 foot or at least to the nearest 0.1 mile, as applicable, unless otherwise
specified in the Contract. Measurements will be limited to the dimensions shown or specified, or as directed by the
Engineer.

(c) Area Basis - Area wii! be square foot, square yard, or acre, unless otherwise specified in the Contract and will
be determined by measuring the width and the length (or height) at least to the nearest 0.1 foot and computed at
least to the nearest 0.1 square foot, nearest 0.1 square yard, or nearest 0.1 acre, as applicable, unless otherwise
specified in the Contract.

(d) Weight Basis - Weight will be pound or ton, uniess otherwise specified En the Contract and wii! be determined
as follows:

(1) Pound - Pound weight will be determined by the net weight identified on the manufacturer's packaged labels,
subject to periodic check weighing. Weight by pound wiil be measured at least to the nearest 1.0 pound unless
otherwise specified in the Contract.

Provide a certificate with each shipment together with a certified copy of the weight of each delivery. If the check
weight is less than the manufacturer weight by more than 0.4%, the discrepancy will be resoived by the Engineer.

(2) Ton-Ton weight will be determined on Contra ctor-provided scales as required under 00190.20 unless
otherwise allowed by the Specifications. Weight by ton wil! be measured at ieast to the nearest 0.01 ton unless
otherwise specified in the Contract.

If bituminous materials, portiand cement, lime, and similar bulk Materials are shipped by truck or rail, the supplier's
shipping invoice with net scale weights, or volumes converted to weights, may be used for Pay item quantity
determination in place of weights determined on the Contractor-provided vehicle scales.

Shipping invoice weights of the supplier's truck or transport shall be subject to periodic check weighing on the
Contractor's vehicle scales, or other scales designated, according to 00190.20. If the check weight is less than
the supplier weight by more than 0.4%, the discrepancy wi!l be resolved by the Engineer.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 84



No payment will be made:

• For quantities in excess of the supplier weight

• When Materials have been lost, wasted, or otherwise not incorporated into the Work

• For additional hauiing costs resulting from the check weighing

(e) Volume Basis - Volume wili be cubic yard truck measure or in-place measure, gallons, foot board measure
(FBM), or thousand foot board measure (MFBM), unless otherwise specified in the Contract and wilt be measured
at least to the nearest 0.1 cubic yard, nearest 1.0 gallon, nearest 0.1 FBM, or nearest 0.1 MFBM, as applicable,
unless otherwise specified in the Contract.

Truck measure will be the measured and calculated maximum "water level" capacity of the vehicle. Quantities will
be determined at the point of delivery, with no allowance for settlement of Material during transit. When required to
facilitate measurement, the vehicle load shali be leveled at the point of delivery. Payment will not be made for
Material in excess of the maximum "water levef" capacity. Deductions will be made for loads below the maximum
"water level" capacity.

When bituminous materials are measured by volume, the volume will be measured at 60 °F or will be corrected to
the voiume at 60 °F using the correction factors found in the MFTP (ODOT TM 321).

(f) Time Basis ~ Time wiil be hour, Day, or year, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, and wiil be measured
to at least the nearest 0.5 hour, nearest 1.0 Day, or nearest 1.0 year, as applicable, unless otherwise specified in
the Contract.

(g) Standard IVIanufactured Items - If standard manufactured items, such as fence, wire, plates, rolled shapes,
pipe, conduit and other similar items are specified in the Contract by properties such as gauge, unit weight, or section
dimensions, the manufacturing tolerances established by the industry involved will be accepted unless more
stringent tolerances are cited in the Contract,

(h) Lump Sum Basis - Lump sum, when used, means the Work described shail be completed and accepted without
measurement unless changes are ordered in writing by the Engineer.

00190.20 Contractor to Provide Vehicle Weigh Scales:

(a) General - !f the Specifications require measurement by weighing on vehicle weigh scales, the Contractor shall
provide vehicle weigh scaies and shall transport Materials to the scales. Subject to the Engineer's approval, weights
may be determined by plant or hopper scales according to 00190.30.

Contractor-provided scales shall be furnished, installed and maintained by the Contractor or its supplier, or, subject
to the Engineer's approva!, may be commercial scales located in the vicinity of the Project.

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, Pay Items to be measured by weight shall include ali Contractor costs
for providing, maintaining, inspecting, and testing scales; for furnishing appropriate weigh tickets; for seif-printing
scales; and for transporting Materials to the scales or to check weighing.

(b) Requirements " The scales shall conform to ORS 618, or the laws of the state in which they are located, and
NIST Handbook 44, and shall be:

• Licensed by the Oregon Department of Agriculture, or by the anaiogous regulatory body for scaies located
outside the State;

• Technically suitable for weighing the Materials;

• Properly installed and maintained; and

• Accurate to the required tolerances.

The weight of any Materials weighed by anyone other than the Engineer will be subject to check weighing as the
Engineer directs,

(c) Approaches - Vehicle scale approaches shalt be:

City ofWarrenlon
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 85



• At each end of the scale platform;

* Straight and in line with the platform; and

• Long enough to accommodate combination vehicles longer than the scale platform so that they are tevei and
allow release of brakes before weighing.

(d) inspections " Contractor shail have al! scales certified, that is inspected and their accuracy tested, by the
Oregon Department of Agriculture, an analogous regulatory body for scales located outside the State, or a scale
service company as foliows:

• Before use if installed at a new site;

• 60 Calendar Days after initial inspection;

• Every 6 months thereafter; and

• When the Engineer directs additionai inspections.

No MateriaSs weighed on scales without current certifications according to this Subsection will be accepted, The
Contractor shai! provide a copy of ali required certifications to the Engineer.

Testing by a scale service company within the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 618.

If additionai inspections directed by the Engineer confirm that the scale accuracy is within the required tolerances,
the Agency will pay the cost for inspecting and testing the scales. If the scale accuracy is not within these tolerances,
the Contractor shali pay the cost for inspecting and testing the scales.

(e) Inspection Results - If an inspection indicates the scales have been under-weighing (indicating less than the
true weight), the Agency will make no additional payment to the Contractor for Materials previously weighed.

If an inspection indicates the scales have been over-weighing (indicating more than the true weight), the weights will
be reduced for Materials received after the time the Engineer determines the overweighing began or, if that is not
possible, after the last acceptable certification of the scales. The reduction will be the amount of error in excess of
the 0.2% maintenance tolerance allowed in the Contract.

(f) Contractor-Provided Weigh Technician - The Contractor shall provide a technician to operate Contractor-
provided vehicle weigh scales. The Agency may observe procedures and require check weighing according to the
foilowing:

(1) Scale with Automatic Printer - if the scales have an automatic weigh memo printer that does not require
manuai entry of gross weight information, the Agency may periodically have a representative at the scales to
obsen/e the weighing procedures, in addition, the Engineer may periodically check the weight for a load of
Materials by directing the hau! vehide to reweigh on a different scale that has been inspected and certified
according to 00190.20(b) and 00190.20(d).

If a different scaie is not available within a 30 mile round trip from the regular haul route the Agency will allow
check weighing on an approved alternate basis. Check weights within 0.4% of the Contractor-provided weight
are acceptable.

The Engineer will resoive discrepancies found by check weighing. Agency employee costs will be paid by the
Agency. The Contractor shall pay all other costs resulting from the check weighings, including without limitation
the use of other scales.

if more than 50 tons per Day of all types of Materials are received from a scale, the Contractor shall make random
check weighings at [east every tenth Day on which more than 50 tons is received or at each interval that
10,000 tons has been weighed, whichever occurs first, or as directed by the Engineer. The Contractor shail make
at least one check weighing on projects where more than 2,000 tons of ali types of Materials are received from a
scale. The Contractor shaft provide the Engineer with the results of the check weighing.

(2) Scale Without Automatic Printer - if the scales require manual entry of gross weight information, the Agency
may periodicaliy have a representative weigh witness at the scales to observe the weighing procedures. The
Contractor shal) inform the Engineer of his intent to use a scale without an automatic printer at least 3 working
Days before weighing begins or before the Contractor changes to a scale that does not have an automatic printer.
The Contractor shall pay costs for the weigh witness. The hourly cost of the weigh witness will be as stated in

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 86



the Special Provisions. In addition, the Engineer may periodicaily check the weight for a load of Materials by
directing the haul vehicle to reweigh on a different scale that has been inspected and certified according to
00190.20(b) and 00190.20(d).

If a different scale is not available within a 30 mile round trip from the regular haul route the Agency will allow
check weighing on an approved alternate basis. Check weights within 0.4% of the Contractor-provided weight
are acceptable.

The Engineer will resolve discrepancies found by check weighing. Agency employee costs for check weighings
will be paid by the Agency. The Contractor sha!l pay ail other costs resulting from the check weighings, including
without limitation the use of other scales.

If more than 50 tons per Day of ai! types of Materials are received from a scale, the Contractor shall make random
check weighings at ieast every tenth day on which more than 50 tons is received or at each interyai that
10,000 tons has been weighed, whichever occurs first, or as directed by the Engineer. The Contractor shall make
at least one check weighing on all projects where materials are received from a scaie without an automatic printer.
The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with the results of the check weighing.

(3) Duties of Weigh Technician " The Contractor's weigh technician shali:

• Determine twice a Day, or as otherwise directed by the Engineer, the empty haul weights (fare weights) of
hauling vehicles, unless vehicles are tared before each ioad;

• Furnish daily a listing of the tare weights if 10 or more loads are hauled during that Day;

• Furnish a note listing the net weight for each consecutive ten loads with the following load;

• Furnish a daily listing of the net weights and totai weight for each type of Material hauled during that Day;
and

• Furnish a iegibte, serially numbered weigh memo for each load of Materials to the Agency's Materials
receiver at the point of delivery, or as directed by the Engineer. The memo shall identify the Project, the
Materials, the date, net weight (gross and tare as appropriate), and identification of vehicle, driver and weigh
technician.

(g) Agency-Provided Weigh Technician-If the Contractor provides vehicie weigh scales without a weigh
technician meeting the requirements of this Subsection, the Agency wiil provide a weigh technician at the
Contractor's expense. The Contractor shail provide a weighhouse for the weigh technician according to Section
00205. The Agency's weigh technician wiil:

• Determine tare weights;

• Prepare weigh memos for each load;

• Compile the weigh records; and

• Not participate in the production of Materials or the loading of haul vehicles.

00190.30 Plant Scales - The Contractor, with the Engineer's written approval, may weigh plant-mixed Materials on
scales that have either;

• An automatic weight batching and mixing control printer system; or

* A weigh hopper printer system.

Any additional costs resulting from the use of these scales shall be borne by the Contractor, Check weighing will be
done according to 00190.20(f).

Except for 00190.20(c) regarding approaches, the Contractor's use of plant scales shall comply with all provisions of
00190.20.

The Engineer's approval for the Contractor's use of plant scaies to determine pay weights will be rescinded if check
weighing or scale inspections indicate the scales do not consistently determine weights within the tolerances allowed
by state law.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 87



Section 00195 - Payment

00195.00 Scope and Limit;

(a) Genera! - The Agency will pay only for measured Pay item quantities incorporated into the Work or performed
according to the terms of the Contract. The Contractor understands and agrees that Pay Item quantities iisted in the
Schedule of Items do not govern payment.

Payment constitutes ful! compensation to the Contractor for furnishing all Materials, Equipment, labor, and
incidentals necessary to complete the Work; and for risk, ioss, damage, and expense arising from the nature or
prosecution of the Work or from the action of the elements, subject to the provisions of 00170.80. The Contractor
shall include the costs of bonds and insurance for the Project in the unit price for each Pay item of Work to be
performed,

(b) Essential or Incidental Materials or Work - When the Specifications state that the unit price for a Pay item is
compensation for certain Materials or Work essentia! or Incidents! to the Pay item, the same Materials or Work will
not be measured or paid under any other Pay Item.

00195.10 Payment For Changes in Materials Costs - On certain projects, as identified in the Special Provisions,
an escaiation/de-escalation clause with respect to certain materials wili be in effect during the life of the Contract,

00195.13 Asphalt Cement Material Price Escalation/De-Escalation Clause " Subsections 00195.13, 00195.13(a),
00195.13(b), 00195.13(c), and 00195.13(d) contain the price escaiation/de-escalation clause relating to asphait cement
materials (as defined in 00195.13(d)).

(a) Monthly Asphalt Cement IVfaterial Price (MACMP)" The Month!y Asphak Cement Material Price (MACMP)
will be established by the Agency each month and will be based on the pubiished prices of PG 64-22 asphait cement
furnished by Poten & Partners, Inc. The MACMP will be based on the average prices for the Pacific Northwest,
Portland Oregon area. Each MACMP for a given month wili be the average of the published prices of that MACMP
for each Friday in that month. For information regarding the caicuiation of the MACMP, and for the actuai MACMP,
go to the ODOTwebsite at:

httD://www.oreaon.aov/ODOT/HWY/ESTIMATING/asDhait fuei.shtm

If the ODOT selected index ceases to be available for any reason, the Agency in its discretion will select and begin
using a substitute price source or index to establish the MACMP each month. The MACMP wili apply to all asphalt
cement inciuding but not limited to paving grade, polymer modified, and emutsified asphalts, and recyciing agents.
The Agency does not guarantee that asphalt cement wil! be available at the MACMP

(b) Base Asphalt Cement Material Price (Base)" The Base price for this Project is the MACMP published on the
ODOT website for the month immediately preceding the bid opening date.

(c) Monthly Asphait Cement Adjustment Factor - The Monthly Asphalt Cement Adjustment Factor wi!i be
determined each month as foliows:

• If the MACMP is within ± 5% of the Base, there will be no adjustment.

• If the MACMP is more than 105% of the Base, then:

Adjustment Factor = (MACMP) - (1.05 x Base)

• If the MACMP is less than 95% of the Base, then:

Adjustment Factor = (MACMP) - (0.95 x Base)

(d) Asphalt Cement Price Adjustment-if specified in the Special Provisions, an asphait cement
esca!ation/de-escaiation clause wil! be in effect during the life of the Contract, A price adjustment wi!l be made for
each pay item in the bid schedule containing asphalt cement, The price adjustment as caiculated En 00195.13(c)

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 88



above wil! use the MACMP for the month the asphait is incorporated into the Project. The Agency reserves ali of its
rights under the Contract, including, but not limited to, its rights for suspension of the Work under 00180.70 and its
rights for termination of the Contract under 00180.90, and this escalation/de-escalation provision shail not limit those
rights.

00195.20 Changes to Plans or Character of Work:

(a) Insignificant Changed Work - If the changes made under 00140.30 do not significantly change the character,
quantity or unit cost of the Work to be performed under the Contract, the Agency will pay for such work at the Pay
Item price.

(b) Significant Changed Work - if the changes made under 00140.30 significantiy alter the character, quantity,
unit cost, or lump sum cost of the Work, the Agency will adjust the Contract. The Contractor shall not be entitled to
compensation for any loss in profits resulting from elimination of, reduction of, or other change to, a part of the Work.

Any such adjustments may be less than, but will not be more than the amount Justified by the Engineer on the basis
of the established procedures set out in Section 00197 for determining rates for Extra Work, but those procedures
shall account for the decrease or elimination of Work as weli as for increases in the Work. This does not limit the
application of Section 00199.

The term "Significant Changed Work" shail appiy only to that circumstance in which the character of the Work, as
changed, differs materiaity in kind, nature, or unit cost from that invoived or induded in the originally proposed
construction.

For purposes of this Section, "Significant" is defined as:

a) An increase or decrease of more than 25 percent of the total cost of the Work calculated from the original
proposal quantities and the unit contract prices; or,

b) An increase or decrease of more than 25 percent in the quantity of any one major contract item.

For condition b) above, a major item is defined as any item that amounts to 10 percent or more of the original total
contract price,

00195.30 Differing Site Conditions - Upon written notification, as required in 00140.40, the Engineer wil! investigate
the identified conditions. If the Engineer determines that the conditions are differing Project Site conditions under
00140.40 and cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required to perform any Work under the Contract, an
adjustment in the Contract Amount or Contract Time, excluding ioss of anticipated profits, will be made, and the Contract
modified accordingly, in writing. The Engineer will notify the Contractor as to whether or not an adjustment of the
Contract is warranted.

No Contract adjustment which benefits the Contractor will be allowed unless the Contractor has provided the required
written notice. Any such adjustments will be made according to 00195.20.

00195.40 Unreasonable Delay by the Agency - If the Contractor beiieves that performance of all or any portion of
the Work is suspended, delayed, or interrupted for an unreasonable period of time in excess of that originally anticipated
or customary in the construction industry, due to acts or omissions of the Agency, or persons acting for the Agency,
and that additional compensation, Contract Time, or both, are due the Contractor because of the suspension, delay or
interruption, the Contractor shall immediately file a written notice of delay according to 00180.60. The Contractor shall
then promptly submit a properly supported request for any additional compensation, Contract Time, or both, according
to the applicable provisions in 00180.60 through 00180.80 and Section 00199.

The Engineer will promptly evaluate a properly submitted request for additional compensation. If the Engineer
determines that the delay was un reason abie, and that the cost required for the Contractor to perform the Contract has
increased as a result of the unreasonable suspension, deiay or interruption, the Engineer will make an equitable
adjustment, excluding profit, and modify the Contract in writing accordingiy. The Engineer will notify the Contractor of
the determination and whether an adjustment to the Contract is warranted.

Under this provision, no Contract adjustment wili be allowed:

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 89



• Unless the Contractor has provided the written notice required by 00180.60;

• For costs incurred more than 10 Calendar Days before the Engineer receives the Contractor's properly submitted
written request;

• For any portion of a deiay that the Engineer deems to be a reasonable delay, or for which an adjustment is
provided for or excluded under other terms of the Contract; or

• To the extent that performance would nevertheless have been suspended, delayed or interrupted by causes
other than those described in this Subsection.

00195.50 Progress Payments and Retained Amounts:

(a) Progress Payments - The Agency's payment of progress payments, or determination of satisfactory
completion of Pay Items or Work or release of retainage under 00195.50(d), shall not be construed as Final
Acceptance or approvai of any part of the Work, and shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for defective
Materiais or workmanship or for latent defects and warranty obligations.

The estimates upon which progress payments are based are not represented to be accurate estimates. Ali
estimated quantities are subject to correction in the final estimate. If the Contractor uses these estimates as a
basis for making payments to Subcontractors, the Contractor assumes ail risk and bears any losses that result.

Progress payments shall be determined through the use of forms developed by the Engineer,

(1) Progress Estimates - At the same time each month, the Engineer will make an estimate of the amount and
value of Pay item Work completed. The amount of Work completed will be the sum of the estimated number of
units completed for unit price Pay Items plus the estimated percentage completed of iump sum Pay Items.

The estimated value of the Work completed will then be determined by using the Contract unit price for unit price
Pay Items, and by using one of the following methods to determine the value of the iump sum Pay Items:

• A Contractor-submitted, Engineer-approved Schedule of Values; or

• Engineer's determination, when there is no approved, Contractor-submitted Schedule ofVaiues.

The amounts to be ailowed for lump sum Pay Items in progress payments wil! not exceed the reasonable value
of the Work performed, as determined by the Engineer.

Incidentals such as formwork, faisework, shoring, and cribbing shall be included in the unit prices for the various
Pay Items requiring their use, unless specified as a separate Pay item. No payment will be made for Pay Items
that include Incidentals until units or portions of such Pay Item Work are in place and completed. The costs of
Incidentals will be paid in proportion to the percentage of Pay item Work completed.

(2) Value of Materials on Hand - The Engineer wili also make an estimate of the amount and value of acceptable
Materials on hand, i.e., already delivered and stored according to 00195.60(a), to be incorporated into the Work.

(3) Value of Work Completed -The sum of the values in (1) and (2)abovewi!l be collectively referred to in this
Subsection as the "value of Work completed", subject to (4) below.

(4) Limitations on Value of Work Accomplished - In determining the "value of Work accomplished", the
Engineer's estimate wiii be based on the unit prices for the various Pay Items. Any amounts not included in
progress payments due to substantial mathematical unbalancing of Pay Item prices will be included in the fina!
payment issued according to 00195.90(b).

(5) Reductions to Progress Payments - With each progress payment, the Contractor wiil receive a Contract
payment voucher and summary setting forth the vaiue of Work accomplished reduced by the following:

• Amounts previously paid;

• Amounts deductible or owed to the Agency for any cause specified in the Contract;

• Additionai amounts retained to protect the Agency's interests according to Subsection (e) below.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 90



(b) Retainage - The amount to be retained from progress payments will be 5% of the value of Work accomplished,
and will be retained in one of the forms specified in Subsection (c) below.

As provided in 00170.65(a) additional retainage of 25% of amounts earned will be withheld and released according
to ORS 279C.845 when the Contractor fails to file the certified statements required in ORS 279C.845, FHWA Form
1273, and 00170.65.

(c) Forms of Retainage - Moneys retained by the Agency under ORS 2790.570(7) shall be retained in a fund by
the Agency and paid to the Contractor in accordance with ORS 279C.570. Upon written request from the Contractor,
other forms of acceptable retainage are specified below in Subsections (1) and (2). "Cash, Alternate A" is the
Agency-preferrecf form of retainage. If the Agency incurs additionai costs as a result of the Contractor's election to
use a form of retainage other than Cash, Alternate A, the Agency may recover such costs from the Contractor by a
reduction of the final payment,

(1) Cash, Alternate A - Retainage will be deducted from progress payments and held by the Agency until final
payment is made according to 00195.90, unless otherwise specified in the Contract.

The Agency wiii deposit the cash retainage withheld in an interest-bearing account in a bank, trust company, or
savings association for the benefit of the Agency, as provided by ORS 279C.560(5). Interest earned on the
account shall accrue to the Contractor. Amounts retained and interest earned wiil be included in the final payment
made according to 00195,90.

Any retainage withheld on Work performed by a Subcontractor will be released to the Contractor according to
00195.50(d).

2) Bonds, Securities, and Other instruments " in accordance with ORS 279C.560, unless the Agency finds in
writing that accepting a bond, security or other instrument poses an extraordinary risk that is not typically
associated with the bond, security or other instrument, the Agency will approve the Contractor's written request
to deposit bonds, securities or other instruments with the Agency or in a custodial account or other account
satisfactory to the Agency with an approved bank or trust company, to be held instead of cash retainage for the
benefit of the Agency. In such event, the Agency will reduce the cash retainage by an amount equal to the value
of the bonds, securities and other instruments. Interest or earnings on the bonds, securities and other instruments
shall accrue to the Contractor.

Bonds, securities and other instruments deposited instead of cash retainage shall be assigned to or made payable
to the Agency and shaii be of a kind approved by the Director of the Oregon Department of Administrative
Services, including but not limited to:

• Bills, certificates, notes or bonds of the United States;

• Other obiigations of the United States or agencies of the United States;

• Obligations of a corporation wholly owned by the federal government;

• indebtedness of the Federal National Mortgage Association;

• Generai obligation bonds of the State of Oregon or a political subdivision of the State of Oregon;
• Irrevocable letters of credit issued by an insured institution, as defined in ORS 706.008.

The Contractor shall execute and provide such documentation and instructions respecting the bonds, securities
and other instruments as the Agency may require to protect its interests. When the Engineer determines that ail
requirements for the protection of the Agency's interest have been fulfilled, the bonds and securities deposited
instead of cash retainage will be released to the Contractor.

(d) Reduction of Retainage - As the Work progresses, the amounts to be retained under (b) of this Subsection
are subject to reduction in the Engineer's sole discretion. Retainage reductions will be considered only as follows:

• When the Work is 97.5% or more completed, the Engineer may, without application by the Contractor, reduce
the retained amount to 100% of the value of the Work remaining.

* For a project funded by the FHWA, when a subcontractor has satisfactorily completed all of its Work, it may
request release of retainage for that Work from the Contractor. The Contractor shall request reduction of
retainage in the amount withheld for the subcontractor's Work after certifying to the Agency that the
subcontractor's Work is complete, and that ail contractual requirements pertaining to the subcontractor's

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 91



Work have been satisfied. Within 60 Calendar Days of the end of the month in which the Agency receives
the Contractor's certification regarding the subcontractor's Work, the Agency will either notify the Contractor
of any deficiencies which require completion before reiease of retainage, or verify that the subcontractor's
Work complies with the Contract and release all retainage for that Work with the next scheduled progress
payment. Within 10 Calendar Days of receipt of retainage, the Contractor shai! pay to the subcontractor ati
such retainage reieased except for !atent defects or warranty.

• The Agency will only release retainage for satisfactorily completed portions of the Work represented by Pay
Items in the Schedule of items, or by Pay Items added by Change Order. Work not represented by a Pay
Item, but which constitutes part of an uncomp!eted Pay item, wi!i not be regarded as satisfactorily completed
Work for the purposes of this Subsection.

!f retainage has been reduced or eliminated, the Agency resen/es the right to protect its interests by retaining
amounts from further progress payments at the rates provided in 00195.50(b),

(e) Withholding Payments - In addition to any other rights the Agency may have to withho!d payments under other
provisions of the Contract, the Engineer may withhold such amounts from progress payments or fina! payment as
may reasonably protect the Agency's interests until the Contractor has:

• Completed all Final Trimming and Cleanup according to 00140.90 and Punch List work according to
00150.90(a). An amount of up to twice the Engineer's estimated value of Final Trimming and Cleaning and
Punch List work may be withheld.

* Complied with all orders issued by the Engineer according to the Specifications; and

• Satisfied all legal actions filed against the Agency, the Agency's governing body and its members, and Agency
empioyees that the Contractor is obliged to defend, (see 00170.72)

Notwithstanding ORS 279C.555 or ORS 279C.570 or 00195.50(d), if a Contractor is required to fife statements on
the prevailing rate of wages, but fails to do so, the Agency wjl) retain 25% of any amount earned as required
in 00170.65.

(f) Prompt Payment Policy - Payments sha!) be made promptly according to ORS 279C.570.

00195.60 Advance Allowance for Materials on Hand:

(a) General - If the total value of Materials on hand is at least $1 ,000 or the total value of a single class of Materials
on hand is at least $500, the Engineer may authorize an advance allowance for the Materials in the progress
payments. The Agency will not make advance allowances on the Materials uniess the following three conditions are
satisfied:

(1) Request for Advance Allowance - If Materials on hand meet the requirement of (2) below, an advance
allowance will be made if:

• A written request for advance aiiowance for Materials on hand has been received by the Engineer at ieast
5 Calendar Days before the pay period cutoff date; and

* The request is accompanied by written consent of the Contractor's Surety, if required by the Agency.

(2) Stored or Stockpiled Conditions - The Materials shall have been delivered and/or acceptably stored or
stockpiled according to the Specifications and as foitows:

• At the Project Site;

• On Agency-owned property;

• On property in the State of Oregon on which the property owner has authorized storage in writing. The
written authorization must a!!ow the Agency to enter upon the property and remove Materials for at least
6 months after completion of the Project. The Contractor shall furnish a copy of the written permission to
the Agency; or

• On property outside the State of Oregon on which the property owner has authorized storage in writing,
provided that such storage location is allowed by the Spedai Provisions or authorized in writing by the
Engineer. The permit must aliow the Agency to enter upon the property and remove Materials for at least

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 92



6 months after completion of the Project. The Contractor shall furnish a copy of the written permission to
the Agency.

To be eligible for advance allowance, the Materials shall:

• Meet Specification requirements;

• Have the required Materials conformance and quality compliance documents on file with the Engineer (see
Section 00165);

• Be in a form ready for incorporation into the Work; and

* Be dearly marked and identified as being specifically fabricated, or produced, and reserved for use on the
Project.

(3) Responsibility for Protection " The Contractor has ful! control and responsibility for the protection of
Materials on hand from the elements and against damage, loss, theft, or other impairment until the entire Project
has been completed and accepted by the Agency,

If Materials are damaged, lost, stolen, or otherwise impaired while stored, the monetary value advanced for them,
if any, will be deducted from the next progress payment.

if these conditions in 001 95.60(a-1) through 00195.60(a-3) have been satisfied, the amount of advance allowance,
less the retainage described in 00195.50, wi!l be determined by one of the following methods as elected by the
Engineer:

• Net cost to the Contractor of the Materials, f.o.b. the Project Site or other approved site; or

• Price (or portion of it attributable to the Materials), less the cost of incorporating the Materials into the Project,
as estimated by the Engineer.

(b) Proof of Payment - The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with proof of payment to the Materials suppliers
for purchased Materials within 30 Calendar Days of the date of the progress payment that includes the advance
allowance.

If proof of payment is not provided, sums advanced will be deducted from future progress payments, and the
Engineer will not approve further prepayment advance aliowance requests.

(c) Terminated Contract-If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall provide the Agency immediate
possession of ali Materials for which advance ailowances have been received, as provided above. If, for any reason,
immediate possession of the Materials cannot be provided, the Contractor shall immediately refund to the Agency
the totai amount advanced for the Materials. The Agency may deduct any amount not so refunded from final
payment.

00195.70 Payment under Terminated Contract-Payment for Work performed under a Contract that is terminated
according to the provisions of 00180.90 will be determined under (a) or (b) of this Subsection.

(a) Termination for Default - Upon termination of the Contract for the Contractor's default, the Agency wili make
no further payment until the Project has been completed. The Agency wil! make progress payments to the party to
whom the Contract is assigned, but may withhoid an amount sufficient to cover anticipated Agency costs, as
determined by the Engineer, to complete the Project.

Upon completion of the Project, the Engineer will determine the total amount that the defaulting Contractor would
have been entitled to receive for the Work, under the terms of the Contract, had the Contractor completed the Work
(the "cost of the Work").

!f the cost of the Work, less the sum of all amounts previously paid to the Contractor, exceeds the expense incurred
by the Agency in completing the Work, including without limitation expense for additional managerial and
administrative services, the Agency will pay the excess to the Contractor, subject to the consent of the Contractor's
Surety.

If the expense incurred by the Agency in completing the Work exceeds the Contract Amount, the Contractor or the
Contractor's Surety shali pay to the Agency the amount of the excess expense.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Condiiions For Con&iruclion
Page 93



The Engineer wil! determine the expense incurred by the Agency and the totai amount of Agency damage resulting
from the Contractor's default. That determination wi!l be final as provided in 00150.00.

tf a termination for default is determined by a court of competent Jurisdiction to be unjustified, it shall be deemed a
termination for public convenience, and payment to the Contractor will be made as provided in Subsection (b) beiow,

(b) Termination for Public Convenience:

(1) General - Full or partial termination of the Contract shail not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for
completed or performed Work, or relieve the Contractor's Surety of the obiigation for any Just claims arising from
the completed or performed Work.

(2) Mobilization - If mobilization is not a separate Pay item, and payment is not otherwise provided for under the
Contract, the Agency may pay the Contractor for mobiSization expenses, including moving Equipment to and from
the Project Site. If allowed, payment of mobilization expenses will be based on cost documentation submitted by
the Contractor to the Engineer.

(3) All Other Work - The Agency shal! pay the Contractor at the unit price for the number of Pay Item units of
completed, accepted Work. For units of Pay Items partially completed, payment wil! be as mutualiy agreed, or, if
not agreed, as the Engineer determines to be fair and equitable. No ciaim for loss of anticipated profits wili be
allowed. The Agency will purchase Materials ieft on hand according to 00195.80.

00195.80 Allowance for IVtaterials Left on Hand:

(a) Purchase of Unused Materials - If Materials are delivered to the Project Site, or otherwise acceptabiy stored
at the order of the Engineer, but not incorporated into the Work due to complete or partial elimination of Pay Items,
changes in Plans, or termination of the Contract for public convenience according to 00180.90, and it is not
commerciaily feasible for the Contractor to return them for credit or othenvise dispose of them on the open market;
the Agency will purchase them according to the formula and conditions specified in Subsection (b) beiow.

(b) Purchase Formula and Conditions:

(1) Formula - The Agency will apply the following formula sn determining the Contractor's allowance for Materials
left on hand:

Contractor's Actual Cost, plus 5% Overhead Allowance, minus Advance Allowances under 00195.60, but no
markup or profit.

(2) Conditions - The Agency will not purchase the Contractor's Materials left on hand unless the Contractor
satisfies the following conditions:

Requests the Agency's purchase of unused Materials;

Shows acquisition of the Materiais according to 00160.10;

Shows that the Materials meet Specifications;

Provides receipts, bills and other records of actual cost of Materials delivered to the designated delivery points;
and

Demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Engineer that the materials cannot be returned for credit or otherwise
disposed of on the open market.

00195.90 Final Payment:

(a) Final Estimate-As soon as practicable after Final Inspection of the Project, as provided in 00150.90, the
Engineer wiil prepare a final estimate of the quantities of the Pay Items completed. With this estimate of quantities
as a base, the total amount due the Contractor will be determined according to the terms of the Contract including
without limitation any amounts due for Extra Work performed.

City ofWarrenton
SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 94



(b) Final Payment - The amount of final payment will be the difference between the total amount due the Contractor
and the sum of all payments previously made. All prior partial estimates and payments shal! be subject to correction
in the final estimate and payment.

After computation of the final amount due, and after the Engineer's issuance of Third Notification, final payment will
be mailed to the Contractor's last known address as shown in the records of the Agency.

(c) No Waiver of Right to Make Adjustment" The fact that the Agency has made any measurement, estimate,
determination or certification either before or after compSetion of the Project, Final Acceptance, Agency assumption
of possession of the Project Site, determination of satisfactory completion of Pay Items or Work or release of
retainage under 00195.50(d) or payment for any part of the Work, shail not prevent either party from:

• Showing the true amount and character of the Work;

• Showing that any measurement, estimate, determination or certification is incorrect;

• Recovering from the other party damages that may have been suffered because the other party failed to comply
with the Contract.

(d) Evidence of Contractor Payments - As a condition of Final Payment, the Engineer may require the Contractor
to submit evidence, satisfactory to the Engineer, that all payrolls, material bills, and other indebtedness connected
with the project have been paid, except that in case of any disputed indebtedness or liens, the Contractor may submit
in lieu of evidence of payment, a surety bond satisfactory to the Agency guaranteeing payment of all such disputed
amounts when adjudicated in cases where such payment has not already been guaranteed by surety bond.

00195.95 Error in Final Quantities and Amounts;

(a) Request for Correction of Compensation - If the Contractor believes the quantities and amounts detailed in
the final Contract payment voucher, prepared by the Engineer according to 00195.90, to be incorrect, the Contractor
shall submit an itemized statement to the Engineer detailing all proposed corrections,

This statement must be submitted to the Engineer within 90 Calendar Days from the date the voucher was mailed
to the Contractor, according to 00195.90(b). Any request for compensation not submitted and supported by an
itemized statement within the 90 Calendar Day period wil! not be paid by the Agency. This does not limit the
application of Section 00199.

(b) Acceptance or Rejection of Request:

(1) Consideration of Request-The Engineer will consider and investigate the Contractor's request for
correction of compensation submitted according to 00195.95(a), and will promptly advise the Contractor of
acceptance or rejection of the request in full or in part.

(2) Acceptance of Request - If the Engineer accepts the Contractor's request(s) in full or in part, the Engineer
wiil prepare a post-final Contract payment voucher, including ail accepted corrections, and will forward it to the
Contractor.

(3) Rejection of Request - If the Engineer rejects the request(s) in full, the Engineer will issue a written notice
of rejection and mail it to the Contractor.

{4) Contractor Objection to Revised Voucher or Notice of Rejection - !f the Contractor disagrees with the
revised voucher or notice of rejection, the Contractor may seek review and resolution according to the procedure
specified in 00199.40. If the Contractor fails to submit a request for 00199.40 review within 30 Calendar Days
after the Engineer mai!s a post-final Contract payment voucher or notice of rejection, the Contractor waives all
rights to a claim based on errors in quantities and amounts.

00195.96 Waiver of Claims:

(a) The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:

(1) A waiver of all Claims by Agency against Contractor, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens, from
defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to 00150.90, from failure to comply with the Contract

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 95



Documents or the terms of any specia! guarantees specified therein, or from Contractor's continuing obligations
under the Contract Documents; and

(2) A waiver of a!l Claims by Contractor against Agency other than those previously made in accordance with the
requirements herein and expressly acknowledged by Agency in writing as still unsettled.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 96



Section 00196 - Payment for Extra Work

00196.00 General - Only work not included In the Contract as awarded but deemed by the Engineer to be necessary
to compiete the Project (see 00140.60) will be paid as Extra Work, Regardless of alterations and changes, any item of
Work provided for in the Contract will not constitute Extra Work. Payment for alterations and changes to Work wi!i be
made according to 00195.20.

Compensation for Extra Work will be paid only for Work authorized in writing by the Engineer and performed as
specified. Work performed before issuance of the Engineer's written authorization shall be at the Contractor's risk.
Extra Work will be paid as determined by the Engineer, according to 00196.10 and 00196.20.

00196.10 Negotiated Price - If the Engineer can reasonably determine a price estimate for Extra Work, the Engineer
may then give written authorization to the Contractor to begin the Extra Work. As soon as practicable, but within 10
Calendar Days after that authorization, the Contractor shall respond in writing to the Engineer's Extra Work price
estimate by submitting to the Engineer an Extra Work price quote. The price quote shall detai! the following items
related to the Extra Work:

• Types and amounts of Materials

* Hours of Equipment use and hours of labor

* Travel

* Overhead and profit

* Other costs associated with the proposed Extra Work

Pending approval of the price quote, the Engineer wili maintain force account records of the Extra Work. As soon as
practicable, but within 10 Calendar Days of receipt of a properiy supported price quote, the Engineer will review the
price quote and advise the Contractor if it is accepted or rejected. The Engineer will not accept a price quote that
cannot be justified on a Force Account basis. If the Contractor's price is accepted, the Engineer will issue a Change
Order, and the Extra Work will be paid at the accepted price.

00196.20 Force Account - if the Engineer and the Contractor cannot agree on a price for the Extra Work, the
Engineer may issue a Force Account Work order requiring the Extra Work to be paid as Force Account Work. Force
Account Work records and payment will be made according to Section 00197.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 97



Section 00197 - Payment for Force Account Work

00197.00 Scope - The Materials, Equipment and labor rates and procedures established in this Section appiy only to
Extra Work ordered by the Engineer to be performed as Force Account Work.

00197.01 General - Before ordering Force Account Work, the Engineer will discuss the proposed work with the
Contractor, and wili seek the Contractor's comments and advice concerning the formulation of Force Account Work
specifications. The Engineer is not bound by the Contractor's comments and advice, and has finat authority to:

• Determine and direct the Materials, Equipment and Labor to be used on the approved Force Account Work; and

• Determine the time of the Contractor's performance of the ordered Force Account Work.

Force account work performed by subcontractors will be measured and paid for on the same basis and in the same
manner as force account work performed directly by the Contractor.

If the Engineer orders the performance of Extra Work as Force Account Work, the Engineer will record, on a daily basis,
the Materials, Equipment and Labor used for the Force Account Work during that day. Engineer and the Contractor
shall sign the record daily to indicate agreement on the Materials, Equipment and Labor used for the Force Account
Work performed on that day.

The following shall be reflected on the daily record:

• Materials used in the Force Account Work as directed by the Engineer, except those furnished and paid under
rental rates for use of Equipment;

• Equipment which the Engineer considers necessary to perform the Force Account Work. Equipment hours will
be recorded to the nearest quarter hour;

• Labor costs, including that of Equipment operators and supervisors in direct charge of the specific operations
while engaged in the Force Account Work; and

• The Engineer's and Contractor's signatures confirming its accuracy.

00197.10 Materials:

(a) General - The Contractor will be paid for Materials actually used in the Force Account Work as directed by the
Engineer, except for those furnished and paid for under rental rates included with the use of Equipment. Payments
will be at actuai cost, including transportation costs to the specified location, from the supplier to the purchaser,
whether the purchaser is the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or other forces. Ail costs are subject to the provisions of
this Subsection.

(b) Trade Discount - If a commerciai trade discount is offered or available to the purchaser, it shall be credited to
the Agency, even though the discount may not have actually been taken. The Agency will not take any discounts
for prompt or early payment, whether or not offered or taken.

(c) Not Directly Purchased From Supplier- If Materia!s cannot be obtained by direct purchase from and direct
billing by the supplier, the cost shall be considered to be the price billed to the purchaser !ess commercial trade
discounts, as determined by the Engineer, but not more than the purchaser paid for the Materials. No markup other
than actual handling costs will be permitted.

(d) Purchaser-Owned Source - If Materials are obtained from a supply or source wholly or partly owned by the
purchaser, the cost shali not exceed the price paid by the purchaser for similar Materials furnished from that source
on Pay Items, or the current wholesale price for the Materials delivered to the Project Site, whichever is lower.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 98



00197.20 Equipment:

(a) General - Equipment approved by the Engineer to perform the Force Account Work will be eligible for payment
at the established rates only during the hours it is operated or on standby if so ordered by the Engineer. Equipment
hours will be recorded on the daily record to the nearest quarter hour.

Except as modified by these provisions, Equipment use approved by the Engineer will be paid at the rental rates
given in the most current edition of the Rental Rate Blue Books for Construction Equipment (f'B!ue Book"), Volumes
1, 2, and 3, published by Penton Media, Inc., and available from EquipmentWatch (phone 1-800-669-3282).

(b) Equipment Description - On the billing form for Equipment costs, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer
sufficient information for each piece of Equipment and its attachments to enable the Engineer to determine the proper
rental rate from the Blue Book.

(c) Rental Rates (without Operator):

(1) Rental Rate Formula - Rental rates for Equipment will be paid on an hourly basis for Equipment and for
attachments according to the following formuia:

Monthly Base Rate x Rate Adjustment Factor
Hourly Rate —•- — ^ ^ours/month — ' i-Hourly Operating Rate

Some attachments are considered "standard Equipment" and are already included in the monthly base rate for
the Equipment. That information can be obtained from EquipmentWatch.

(2) Monthly Base Rate - The monthly base rate used above for the machinery and for attachments represents
the major costs of Equipment ownership, such as depreciation, interest, taxes, insurance, storage, and major
repairs.

(3) Rate Adjustment Factor - The rate adjustment factor used above wili be determined by applying only the
Model Year Adjustment to the Blue Book Rates. The Regional and User Defined Ownership/Operating
Adjustments shall not apply.

(4) Hourly Operating Rate - The hourly operating rate used above for the machinery and for attachments
represents the major costs of Equipment operations, such as fuel and oil, lubrications, field repairs, tires or ground
engaging components, and expendable parts.

(5) Limitations -
If multiple attachments are included with the rental Equipment, and are not considered "standard Equipment",
only the attachment having the higher rental rate will be eligible for payment, provided the attachment has been
approved by the Engineer as necessary to the Force Account Work.

Rental will not be allowed for small tools that have a daily rental rate of iess than $5, or for unlisted Equipment
that has a fair market value of $400 or less.

The above rates apply to approved Equipment in good working condition. Equipment not in good working
condition, or larger than required to efficiently perform the work, may be rejected by the Engineer or accepted and
paid for at reduced rates.

(d) Moving Equipment- If it is necessary to transport Equipment located beyond the Project Site exclusively for
Force Account Work, the actual cost to transport the Equipment to, and return it from, its On-Site Work iocation will
be allowed as an additional item of expense. However, the return cost will not exceed the original delivery cost.
These costs will not be allowed for Equipment that is brought to the Project Site for Force Account Work if the
Equipment is also used on Pay Item or related Work.

If transportation of such Equipment is by common carrier, payment will be made in the amount paid for the freight.
No markups will be allowed on common carrier transportation costs. If the Equipment is hauied with the Contractor's
own forces, transportation costs will include the rental rate of the hauling unit and the hauling unit operator's wage.
If Equipment is transferred under its own power, the rental rate allowed for transportation time witi be 75% of the
appropriate houriy rate for the Equipment, without attachments, plus the Equipment operator's wage.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 99



(e) Standby Time - !f ordered by the Engineer, standby time wiil be paid at 40% of the hourly renta) rate calculated
according to this Subsection, excluding the hourly operating rate. Rates for standby time that are calcuiated at less
than $1 per hour will not be paid. Payment wi!! be limited to not more than 8 hours In a 24-hour period or 40 hours
in a one week period. Standby Time provisions shal! also apply to Section 00195 - Payment.

(f) Blue Book Omissions - If a rental rate has not been established in the Blue Book, the Contractor may;

• If approved by the Engineer, use the rate of the most similar mode) found in the B!ue Book, considering such
characteristics as manufacturer, capacity, horsepower, age and fuei type;

• Request EquipmentWatch to furnish a written response for a rentai rate on the Equipment, which shali be
presented to the Engineer for approval; or

• Request that the Engineer establish a rental rate.

(g) Outside Rental Equipment-if Contractor-owned or Subcontractor-owned Equipment is not availabie, and
Equipment is rented from outside sources, payment will be based on the actual paid invoice, Approval of the Engineer
to rent from outside sources must be obtained prior to renting the equipment.

If the invoice specifies that rental rate does not include fuel, lubricants, fieid repairs, and servicing, an amount equal
to the Blue Book hourly operating cost may be added for those items that were excluded.

The Agency may reduce the payment when the invoice amount plus allowance is higher than the amount authorized
under (c) through (f) of this Subsection.

The provisions of 00180.20(c) apply to owner-operated Equipment,

00197.30 Labor-The Contractor wil! be paid for all labor engaged directly on Force Account Work, including
Equipment operators and supervisors En direct charge of the specific force account operations, as foliows:

(a) Wages - The actuai wages paid to laborers and supervisors, if those wages are paid at rates not more than
those for comparabie labor currentiy employed on the Project, or at the recognized, current, prevailing rates in
the locality of the Project.

(b) Required Contributions - The actual cost of industriai accident insurance, unemployment compensation
contributions, payroll transit district taxes, and social security for old age assistance contributions incurred or
required under statutory law and these Specifications. The actuai cost of industrial accident insurance is the
National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) rate for the assigned risk pool for the appropriate work class
multiplied by the experience modification factor for the Contractor.

(c) Required Benefits - The actual amount paid to, or on behalf of, workers as per diem and travel allowances,
health and welfare benefits, pension fund benefits, or other benefits when such other benefits are required by a
collective bargaining agreement or other employment contract generatiy appSicable to the classes of labor
employed on the Project.

No overtime wiil be compensated unless authorized in advance of performing the work by the Engineer.

00197.80 Percentage Allowances - To the Contractor's actua! costs incurred, as limited En this Section 00197,
amounts equa! to a percentage markup of such costs will be allowed and paid to the Contractor as follows:

Subsection Percent

00197.10 Materials 17
00197.20 Equipment 17
00197.30 Labor 22

When a Subcontractor performs ordered Force Account Work, the Contractor wil! be allowed a supplemental markup
of 8% on each Force Account Work order

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 100



These allowances made to the Contractor will constitute complete compensation for bonds, insurance, overhead,
general and administrative expense, profit, and ail other Force Account Work costs that were incurred by the Contractor,
or by other forces that the Contractor furnished. No other reimbursement, compensation, or payment will be made.

00197.90 Billings - Billings for Force Account Work by the Contractor shal! be submitted for the Engineer's approval
on forms provided by the Agency or approved by the Engineer. Billings for Materials (other than incidental items out
of the inventory of the Contractor or Subcontractors), rental Equipment from sources other than the Contractor or
Subcontractors, and Special Services, shal! be accompanied by copies of invoices for the goods and sen/ices. The
invoices shall be fully itemized showing dates, quantities, unit prices, and complete descriptions of goods and services
provided. Invoices for amounts of $10 or iess per invoice are not required, unless requested by the Engineer.

Costs included on the bi!lings shall compiy with 00197.01(a) and 00197.10 through 00197.40.

When a billing for Force Account Work has been paid at the Project level, no further corrections will be made because
of further review if those corrections amount to less than $10.

City ofWarrenlon
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 101



Section 00199 - Disagreements, Protests, and Claims

00199.00 General - This Section details the process through which the parties agree to resolve any disagreement
concerning additional compensation or concerning a combination of additional compensation and Contract Time. (See
00180.80 for disagreements and claims concerning additional Contract Time only, and 00195.95 for disagreements
and ciaims concerning correction of final compensation.) The Agency will not consider direct disagreements, protests,
or claims from subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other Entity not a party to the Contract.

00199.10 Procedure for Resolving Disagreements-When disagreements occur concerning additional
compensation or a combination of additional compensation and Contract Time, the Contractor shall first pursue
resolution through the Engineer of ali issues in the dispute, including without limitation the items to be included in the
written notice in 00199.20. if the discussion fails to provide satisfactory resolution of the disagreement, the Contractor
shall follow the protest procedures outlined in 00199.20. if the Engineer denies aii or part of the Contractor's protest,
and the Contractor desires to further pursue the issues, the Contractor sha!l submit a claim for processing according
to 00199.30.

00199.15 Inappropriate Protest or Claim " It shall be presumed that the Contractor submits a protest or
claim for additional compensation in good faith, based upon facts which reasonably support the Contractor's position
and with fuli knowledge and understanding of the injury done to the Agency when notice of differing Project Site
conditions or claims for additional compensation are not submitted in a timeiy manner as required under the Contract.
Accordingly, the submission of a protest or claim without the concurrent submission of evidence that reasonably
supports the protest or claim, or the submission of a protest or claim in an untimeiy manner will constitute a waiver of
the protest or claim.

00199.20 Protest Procedure - if the Contractor disagrees with anything required in a Change Order or other written
or oral order from the Engineer, including any direction, instruction, interpretation, or determination, or if the Contractor
asserts a disagreement or dispute on any other basis, except 0195.95, that, in the Contractor's opinion, entitles or
would entitle the Contractor to additional compensation or a combination of compensation and Contract Time, the
Contractor shall do all of the foilowsng in order to pursue a protest and presen/e its claim:

(a) Oral Notice - Give oral notice of protest to the Engineer and outline the areas of disagreement before starting
or continuing the protested Work.

(b) Written Confirmation of Oral Notice - Not later than the end of the next business day following the day that
oral notice of protest is given, deliver written documentation to the Engineer of the oral notice that indudes the notice
of protest and the areas of disagreement.

(c) Written Notice - File a proper written notice of protest with the Engineer within 7 Calendar Days after receiving
the protested order, in the notice the Contractor shall:

• Describe the acts or omissions of the Agency or its agents that aiiegediy caused or may cause damage to the
Contractor or to the Project, citing specific facts, persons, dates and Work involved;

• Describe the Contractor's proposed alternative to the Work ordered, if any, which will avoid damage to
Contractor or to the Project;

• Describe the nature of the damages;

• Cite the specific Contract provision(s), if any, that support the protest;

• Include the estimated dollar cost, if any, of the protested Work, and furnish a list of estimated Materiais,
Equipment and labor for which the Contractor might request additional compensation; and

• If additional compensation is estimated to be due, include the estimated amount of additional time required, if
any.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS NOTICE REQUIREMENT RENDERS THE NOTICE IMPROPER AND SHALL
CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF ANY CLAIM FOR ADDITIONAL COMPENSATfON OR A COMBINATION OF
ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION AND CONTRACT TIME FOR ANY PART OF THE PROTESTED WORK.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 102



(d) Engineer's Record and Response - The Engineer will file a copy of each written notice of protest in the
Project records and wili issue a written response to the protest within seven (7) work days of receipt of a timely filed
written notice of protest. The Engineer has no responsibility to evaluate the protest unless the Contractor has timely
fiied a proper notice submitting all of the above information.

(e) Final Documentation of Claim " Within 60 Calendar Days following completion of the protested work,
Contractor shall provide the Engineer with complete documentation of protested work, listing exact materials,
equipment and iabor used for the work and the dollar amount requested for each. If the claim is accepted, no
additional compensation will be awarded based on documentation submitted after this deadline. If the ciaim is denied
or if the Contractor is not satisfied with the decision by the Engineer, the amount claimed by the Contractor in any
subsequent Step or proceeding may not exceed the dollar amount requested under this subsection.

(f) Records - Keep complete records of ali costs and time incurred throughout the protested Work, and allow the
Engineer access to those and other supporting records. Provide daily records of protested Work, on a weekly basis,
on a schedule to be set by agreement with the Engineer.

(g) Comparison of Records - Provide the Engineer adequate facilities for keeping cost and time records of the
protested Work. The Contractor and the Engineer will compare records and either bring them into agreement at the
end of each day, or record and attempt to explain any differences.

(h) Work to Proceed - in spite of any protest, proceed promptly with the Work ordered by the Engineer.

(i) Evaluation of Protest - The Engineer has no responsibility for evaluating a protest that is not timely filed, or for
which adequate supporting documentation has not been made available to the Engineer. Provided the procedures
above are followed, the Engineer will promptly evaluate all protests, after the Contractor has fuliy complied with the
requirements described in 00199.20(c), Written Notice, if the protest is denied, the Engineer will notify the Contractor
in writing of the reasons for full or partial denial. if a protest is found to be valid, the Engineer wili, within a reasonable
time, make an equitabie adjustment of the Contract. Adjustment of time will be evaluated according to 00180.80.

The Engineer has no responsibility for evaluating and may reject a protest that does not comply with 00199.20(b).
if the protest is rejected, the Engineer will notify the Contractor in writing of the reasons for rejection.
(j) Protest Evaluation by Third Party Neutral - if the Engineer agrees that the Contractor has fully complied with
the requirements described in 00199.20(b), and if the Engineer fully or partially denies, in writing, the Contractor's
protest according to 00199.20(f), the Contractor may request that a mutually selected Third Party Neutral review the
protest. Procedures for selecting, using, and paying for the cost of the Third Party Neutral will be specified by
Change Order.

if the Contractor does not accept the Engineer's evaluation of the protest, or either the Contractor or Engineer
disagrees with the resoiution recommended by the Third Party Neutral, the Contractor may pursue a claim as
described in 00199.30.

00199.30 Claims Procedure:

(a) General" If the Contractor believes that additional compensation is due, or a combination of additional
compensation and Contract Time, and has pursued and exhausted all the procedures provided in 00199.10 and
00199.20 to resolve a disagreement and protest, the Contractor may file a claim.

The Agency's Contract is with the Contractor. There is no contractual relationship between the Agency and any
subcontractors, Suppliers or any Entity other than the Contractor. It is the Contractor's responsibility to fully evaluate
any claim before presenting st to the Agency. In addition, when a claim includes Work done or costs incurred by any
subcontractors, Suppliers, or any Entity other than the Contractor, the Contractor remains soleiy responsible for
presenting the claim to the Agency.

Claims that include Work done or costs incurred by subcontractors, Suppliers, or any Entity other than the Contractor
wili not be considered by the Agency unless the Contractor has:

• Completed and provided its own written evaiuation of the claim;

• Verified by its own independent review and evaluation of the amount of compensation sought; and

• Certified the claim in accordance with 00199.30(b) (Part 10).

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 sl Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 103



(b) Claims Requirements-At any time during the progress of the Work, but not later than 45Caiendar Days
following the date of the Second Notification, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer in writing, claims for
additional compensation or a combination of additional compensation and Contract Time additional to that specified
in the Contract. For a claim not submitted within the 45 day !JmJt, that has not met the requirements of 00199.20, or
is not fiied as provided in 00199.30, the Contractor waives any claim for additionai compensation or for addttiona!
compensation and Contract Time, and the Agency may reject the ciaim.

Written claims to the Engineer or the Agency by the Contractor shall be delivered to the Agency address shown in
the Special Provisions, uniess a different address is agreed to by the Engineer, and shaU be delivered:

• By U.S. Postal Service first class mail or priority mail (which at the sender's option may include certified or
registered mail return receipt requested); or

• By overnight delivery service of a private industry courier.

Claims will be considered as having been received by the Agency:

• At the time of actua! receipt or 7 Calendar Days after the postmarked date when deposited for delivery by first
class or priority mail, whichever is earlier; or

• At the time of actual receipt or 3 Calendar Days after deposit with a private industry courier for overnight delivery
service, whichever is earlier.

The Agency reserves the right at any time and at any step in the ciaim decision or review process to request
additional information, records or documentation related to the claim or the Contract either directly or through agents
working toward resoiution of the disputed or claimed events and issues.

Claims shall be made in writing, and shall inciude all information, records and documentation necessary for the
Agency to properly and compietely evaluate the claim.

To be considered, claims for additional compensation, or for additionai compensation and Contract Time, shall be
completed according to 00199.30 and shall be submitted with the required information and in the format below and
labeled as required below for each claimed issue:

(Part 1) Summary (!abe! page 1.1 through page 1.X) - In the summary, include a detailed, factual statement of
the claim for additional compensation and Contract Time, if any, with necessary dates and locations of Work
involved in the claim and the dates of when the event arose. Also include detailed facts supporting the
Contractor's position relative to the Engineer's decision (see 00199.20(0);

(Part 2) Proof of notice (iabel page 2.1 through page 2.X)-Submit a copy of the written notice, with all
attachments, that was given to the Agency. Include the date when that written notice and the date when oral
notice was given:

(Part 3) Copies of the Contract Specifications that support the Contractor's daim (!abei page 3.1 through page
3.X);

(Part 4) Theory of entitlement supporting the claim (labe! page 4.1 through page 4.X) - Include a narrative of how
or why the specific Contract Specifications support the ciaim and a statement of the reasons why such
Specifications support the claim;

(Part 5) Itemized list of claimed amounts (label page 5.1 through page 5.X) - Claimed damages that resulted
from the event with a narrative of the theories and records and documents used to arrive at the value of the
damages;

(Part 6) Additional Contract Time requests (iabel page 6.1 through page 6.X) - if the daim is for a combination
of additiona! compensation and Contract Time, submit a copy of the schedule that was in effect when the event
occurred and a detailed narrative which explains how the event impacted Contract Time. In addition, if an Agency-
caused delay is claimed:

• include the specific days and dates under claim;

• Provide detailed facts about the specific acts or omissions of the Agency that allegedly caused the delay,
and the specific reasons why the resuiting delay was unreasonable; and

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Genera! Conditions For Construction
Page 104



* Provide a schedule evaluation that accurately describes the impacts of the claimed delay.

• Also see 00180,80 for additional requirements regarding claims for Contract Time and causes that are
eligible and ineligible for consideration;

(Part 7) Copies of actual expense records (label page 7.1 through page 7.X) - Include documents that contain
the detailed records and which support and total to the exact amount of additional compensation sought. Include
the information and calcuiations necessary to support that amount. That amount may be caiculated on the basis
of Section 00197, if applicable, or may be calculated using direct and indirect costs presented in the following
categories:

• Direct Materials;

• Direct Equipment The rate claimed for each piece of Equipment shall not exceed the actuai cost. In the
absence of actual Equipment costs, the Equipment rates shall not exceed 75 percent of those calculated
under the provisions of 00197.20. For each piece of Equipment, the Contractor shall include a detailed
description of the Equipment and attachments, specific days and dates of use or standby, and specific hours
of use or standby;

• Direct labor;

• Job overhead;

• General and administrative overhead: and

• Other categories as specified by the Contractor or the Agency;

(Part 8) Supporting records and documents (fabei page 8.1 through page 8.X) - Include copies of, or excerpts
from the following:

• Any documents that support the claim, such as manuals standard to the industry and used by the Contractor;
and

• Any daily reports or diaries related to the event, photographs or media that help explain the issue or event
(optional), or all other information the Contractor chooses to provide (optional);

(Part 9) Certification (label page 9.1 through 9.X)-A certified statement, signed by a person authorized to
execute Change Orders, by the Contractor, subcontractor, Supplier, or Entity, originating the claim, as to the
validity of facts and costs with the following certification:

Under penalty of law for perjury or falsification, the undersigned, ^(Name}, (Title), (Company) certifies that this
claim for additional compensation for Work on the Contract is a true statement of the actual costs incurred (in
the amount of $ _, exclusive of interest) and is fully documented and supported under the Contract
between the parties.

Signature:

Date:_, 20_
Subscribed and sworn before me this _ day of _, 20_

Notary Public

My commission expires _,„,,„,„„,,, , _ .

(Part 10) Contractor evaluation of a lower tier claim (label page 10.1 through 10,X) - (f the claim includes Work
done or costs incurred by any subcontractors, Suppliers, or any Entity other than the Contractor, the following are
required:

• Data required by the other Subsections of 00199.30(b);

• Copies of the Contractor's, subcontractor's, Supplier's and Entity's, at ail tiers above the level of which the
claim originates, separate evaluation of entitlement;

• Copies of the Contractor's, subcontractor's, Supplier's and Entity's, at all tiers above the level of which the
claim originates, independent verification and evaluation of the amount of damages sought; and

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 105



A person authorized to execute Change Orders on behalf of the Contractor, subcontractor, Supplier and
Entity, at ail tiers above the level of which the claim originates, must sign a statement with the following
certification:

Under penalty of law for perjury or falsifscation, the undersigned,
(Name) {Title}, (Company) certifiQs that this claim originating from the subcontractor, Supplier or
Entity^Com}3any)Jor additional compensation for Work on the Contract is a reasonable statement,
independently verified, of the costs incurred (in the amount of $ _, exclusive of interest) and
fs fully documented and supported under the Contract between the parties.

Signature:

Date: _, 20_
Subscribed and sworn before me this _ day of _, 20_

Notary Public

My commission expires ^ ^^__ _ .

If the Engineer determines that additionai information, records or documentation is needed to a!low proper evaluation
of the claim submittal, the Engineer will request the information, records or documentation. The Contractor shall
submit to the Engineer within 14 Calendar Days, or as otherwise agreed by the parties, the required additional
information, records and documentation.

if the Engineer determines that the claim submiftal with the additional information, records and documentation
submitted is incomplete and not accepted as a claim, the Engineer will notify the Contractor En writing and the
submittal will be rejected and wili not be considered under 00199.40.

(c) Records Requirements - The Contractor shall comply with 00170.07.

(d) Compliance Required - Full compiiance by the Contractor with the provisions of this Section is a condition
precedent to the commencement of any lawsuit by the Contractor to enforce any claim.

00199.40 Claim Decision; Review; Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies - The Agency intends to resolve a!i
claims at the iowest possible administrative level The Engineer wiii also determine whether multipSe claims should be
advanced separately or together.

if the Engineer denies the claim for additional compensation or a combination of additional compensation and Contract
Time, In full or in part, according to 00199.40(a), the Contractor may request review of the denial. The disputed claim
for additional compensation or a combination of additional compensation and Contract Time may then be resoived, in
fuilorinpart, at any of the progressive steps of claim review procedure as specified in (b) through (c) of this Subsection.

If the Engineer has denied a claim, in full or in part, for Contract Time on!y according to 00180.80, or has denied a
claim, in fuli or sn part, for correction of final compensation according to 00195.95, those disputed claims may then be
resolved, in ful! or in part, at either of the two progressive steps of claim review procedure as specified in (b) through
(c) of this Subsection.

A person authorized by the Contractor to execute Change Orders on behalf of the Contractor must be present and
attend aii claim hearings. For ati claims, ail of the actions and review under each step of the review process shaii occur
before the review can be advanced to the next higher step.

If, at any step in the claim decision or review process, the Contractor fails to promptly submit requested information or
documentation that the Agency deems necessary to analyze the claim, the Contractor is deemed to have waived its
right to further review, and the claim wili not be considered properly filed and preserved.

(a) Decision by the Engineer - The Engineer will, as soon as practicable, consider, investigate, and evaluate a
Contractor's claim for additional compensation, or for a combination of additional compensation and Contract Time,
if submitted as required by 00199.30.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 106



Once the Engineer determines the Agency is in receipt of a properly submitted claim, the Engineer will arrange a
meeting, within 21 Calendar Days or as othen/vise agreed by the parties, with the Contractor in order to present the
claim for formal review and discussion.

If the Engineer determines that the Contractor must furnish additionai information, records or documentation to allow
proper evaluation of the claim, the Engineer will schedule a second meeting, to be held within 14 Calendar Days or
as otherwise agreed by the parties, at which the Contractor shall present the requested information, records and
documentation.

The Engineer will provide a written decision to the Contractor within 30 Calendar Days of the last Engineer-ievel
meeting.

If the Contractor does not accept the Engineer's decision, the Contractor may, within 10 Calendar Days of receipt of
the written decision, request in writing that the Engineer arrange a review at Step 1 (see (b) beiow).

(b) Step 1: Public Works Director Level Review-The Contractor shall request that the Engineer arrange a
meeting with the Public Works Director or the Public Works Director's designee, as determined by the Public Works
Director, in order to present the denied or partially denied claim for formal review and discussion. The meeting will
take place within 21 Calendar Days of the Agency's receipt of the request, or as otherwise agreed by the parties.

If the Public Works Director (or designee) determines that the Contractor must furnish additional information, records
or documentation to allow proper evaluation of the daim, the Public Works Director (or designee) will scheduie a
second meeting, to be held within 14 Calendar Days, or as otherwise agreed by the parties, at which the Contractor
shall present the requested information, records and documentation.

The Public Works Director (or designee) will provide a written decision to the Contractor within 30 Calendar Days of
the last meeting with the Public Works Director (or dessgnee).

The claim is subject to 00199.60, if not all of the records requested by the Public Works Director (or designee) were
furnished. If applicable, advancement of the claim is subject to the provisions of 00199.60 regarding waiver and
dismissal of the daim or portions of the claim,

If the Contractor does not accept the decision, the Contractor may, within 180 Calendar Days from the date of
receipt of the Public Works Director (or designee) written decision or within 90 Calendar Days of the date of Second
Notification, whichever is later, initiate Step 2 as set forth in subsection (c) below.

(c) Step 2: Arbitration and Litigation - The Contractor must follow each step in order, and exhaust all available
administrative remedies before resort to arbitration and litigation. Litigation of a claim that cannot be resolved in
Step 1 shall be initiated by filing a complaint in the Circuit Court for the State of Oregon in the county where the
Agency's main office is iocated that contains a stipulation to arbitration under ORS 36,410, The claim and ali cross
and counter-claims filed in response to the complaint shall be submitted to the Court Arbitration Program set forth in
ORS 36.400 to 36.425, Chapter 13 of the Oregon Uniform Trial Court Rules and the Circuit Court supplemental local
rules concerning arbitration. Either party may seek, and shall be entitled to, an order directing the other party to
submit to arbitration as provided herein and to judgment for its costs, expenses and attorney fees in obtaining and
enforcing the order

In no event shall this Subsection be construed as a waiver by the Agency or by the State of Oregon on any form of
defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the Eleventh
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.

(d) Payment of Costs, Expenses and Attorney's Fees ~ The prevailing party shall be entitled to an award for
reasonabie costs and expenses incurred after the initiation of Step 2, including costs and expenses incurred for
arbitration, tria! de novo and on appeal. Costs and Expenses shall include, but shati not be limited to, reasonable
attorney fees and expenses, arbitrator fees and expenses, and costs of discovery

As used in this subsection 00199.40(d), "prevailing party" for an arbitration award means (1) a Contractor who has
received an arbitration award, exclusive of interest, costs and expenses, that is more than the dollar amount claimed
by the Contractor in its Final Documentation of Claim under 00199.20(d) or (2) the Agency if there is no arbitration
award to the Contractor or if the arbitration award to the Contractor, exclusive of interest, costs and expenses, is
less than the dollar amount of the award in the Step 1 decision. For all other arbitration awards, there shall not be a
"prevailing party."

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 107



The award of costs and expenses after trial de novo shall be made as provided for in ORS 36.425. The award of
costs and expenses after appeal from a Judgment entered after trial de novo shall be to the prevailing party
designated as such by the appeals court.

The Contractor shall comply with 00170.00.

00199.50 Mediation - Notwithstanding the formai claims procedure specified above, the parties may enter into
nonbinding mediation by mutuai agreement at any time, in which case the parties may also agree to suspend the time
requirements in Section 00199 pending the outcome of the mediation process. The rules, time and piace for mediation,
as well as selection of the mediator, shall be established by mutual agreement. Costs shall be divided equally between
the Contractor and the Agency. Either party may terminate mediation at any time upon 5 Calendar Days notice to the
other, after which the time requirements of Section 00199 shall be automatically reinstated and shall resume from the
point at which the time requirements were suspended.

00199.60 Review of Determination Regarding Records-If not all of the records requested by the Agency
under 00199-40(c) Step 2 were provided, then the Agency wili determine:

• if the records are of the type described in 00170,07; and

• If the records have not been maintained or the records, or access to the records, has not been provided to the
Agency as required by 00170,07 and this Section; and

• !f the records are material and necessary for proper evaluation of part or all of the c!aim; and

• The portions of the claim for which the records are material and necessary for proper evaluation.

If the Agency makes the foregoing determinations, then subject to the review process described below, all portions of
the claim for which the Agency determined the records are material and necessary for proper evaluation are
immediateiy waived and irrevocably dismissed.

Even if the records have not been maintained or the records, or access to the records, have not been provided to the
Agency in a given instance, the Agency may determine that sufficient records have been provided for the Agency to
properiy evaluate the claim in that instance. If the Agency makes this determination, the claim or portions of the claim
will not be waived or dismissed under this provision.

If the Contractor does not accept the Agency written determination that the records are material and necessary for
proper evaluation of part or all of the claim, and the portions of the claim for which the records are material and
necessary, the Contractor may, within 14 Calendar Days of receipt of the Agency determination, request, in writing, a
review of such determination by the Public Works Director (or designee). If the Contractor does not request a review
of the Agency determination, the Agency determination shall then become the Agency's final determination as of the
expiration of the time limit to request review.

If the Contractor requests the review, the Public Works Director (or designee)will schedule a review meeting within
14 Calendar Days, or as othenwise agreed by the parties, of when the Public Works Director (or designee)receives the
written review request. The Agency and the Contractor will each have an opportunity to explain their respective
positions at the review meeting in a manner determined by the Public Works Director (or designee).

Within 10 Calendar Days of the review meeting, the Public Works Director (or designee)wiil issue a written proposed
finding of whether the records not maintained or not provided to the Agency, or for which access was not provided to
the Agency, are material and necessary for proper evaluation of part or alt of the claim. If the Public Works Director (or
designee)makes that finding, then the Pubiic Works Director (or designee)will also make a proposed written finding as
to what portions of the claim the records are material and necessary and, therefore, waived and irrevocabfy dismissed.

Even if the records have not been maintained or the records, or access to the records, have not been provided to the
Agency in a given instance, the Public Works Director (or designee) may determine that sufficient records have been
provided for the Agency to properiy evaluate the claim in that instance. If the Public Works Director (or designee)
makes this determination, then the claim or portions of the claim will not be waived or dismissed under this provision.

The Public Works Director's (or designee) findings will be submitted to the Contractor. The Public Works Director's (or
designee) findings are the Agency's final determination.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 108



If the Agency's final determination is that the records are material and necessary for proper evaluation of part or all of
the claim, then the claim or that portion of the claim for which the records are material and necessary is waived and
irrevocably dismissed, unless the Contractor provides the records, or access to the records, to the Agency within
5 Calendar Days of the Agency's final determination. If the Contractor provides the records, or access to the records,
within this time limit, the Agency will schedule a meeting with the Contractor within 14 Calendar Days or as otherwise
agreed by the parties, to discuss the records.

The Agency's final determination that records are material and necessary for proper evaluation of part or all of the
claim, and the Agency's final determination of the portions of the claim for which the records are material and necessary,
shall be final and binding.

If the entire claim is waived and irrevocably dismissed pursuant to the Agency's final determination there will be no
further decision by the Agency on the claim or further review of the claim under 00199.40 and the claim will not be
eligible for mediation under 00199.50. If only portions of the claim are waived and irrevocably dismissed pursuant to
the Agency's final determination, the Agency will provide a written decision to the Contractor regarding the remaining
portions of the claim within 30 Calendar Days of the final Step 2 meeting, or the Agency's final determination regarding
the records, whichever is iater. There will be no further decision by the Agency on or further review under 00199.40 of
the portions of the ciaim waived and irrevocably dismissed pursuant to Agency's final determination and those portions
will not be eligible for mediation under 00199.50.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
General Conditions For Construction
Page 109



Certificate of Compliance

CityofWarrenton,

225 S MAIN AVE. WARRENTON, OR 97146

ATTN: City ofWarrenton Public Works Director

PROJECT NAME: SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

PROJECT LOCATION-. SW A!der Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street

i hereby certify that:

A. Al! work on the above referenced contract has been performed and materiais supplied in accordance with the
plans, specifications and contract documents for the above work;

8. There have been no substitutions of Subcontractors without prior notification to the City in accordance with
ORS279C.585;

C. Contractor and subcontractors performing work under this contract were registered with the Construction
Contractors Board in accordance with ORS 701.035 to 701,138 before commencing work under the contract;

D. Ail payments due to aii persons supplying labor or material for the performance of the work provided for in this
contract have been made;

E. Ail contributions or amounts due the industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or subcontractors incurred
in the performance of the contract have been paid,

F. Ail sums withheld from empioyees under ORS 316.167 have been paid to the Department of Revenue.

Authorized Signature_ Date,

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Certificate of Compliance
Page 1



SPECIAL PROVISIONS

PART 00100 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

Section 00120 - Bidding Requirements and Procedures

00120.01 Receipt of Bids; Opening - Add the following:

Sealed bids wi!l be received up to the hour of 2:00 PM local time, on Tuesday, April 20, 2021

Received by:

Adam Dailey
Engineering Consultant

Received at:

Bids wil) ONLY be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through
QuestCDN.com

Any bids received after the above specified time will not be considered.

Bids will be publicly opened at the hour of 2:00 PM local time, on Tuesday, April 20, 2021

Opened by:

Adam Dailey, PE
Design Engineer Consultant

Opened at:

City Hail
225 S. Main Ave. Warrenton, OR.97138

00120.02 Prequalification of Bidders - Add the following:

Prequalification of bidders IS NOT required.

When prequalification is required, forms may be obtained from:

N/A

PrequatJfjcation applications must be received at the above location no iess than seven (7) calendar days prior to bid
opening. Required minimum prequalification class(es) of work for the Contractor (or Contractor in combination with
proposed subcontractors) for this contract are:

N/A

00120.03 Request for Solicitation Documents "Add the following:
The contract documents may be viewed and downloaded by registering with QuestCDN online (www.questcdn.com) r
or calling (952-233-1632). A contractor may view the Contract Documents at no cost on the QuestCDN website prior

City ofWarrenton
SWAtder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Spedai Provisions
Page 1



to deciding to become a Plan-holder. To be considered a Plan-hoider for construction bids, a contractor must register
on QuestCDN.com and purchase the contract documents, in digital form for downloading, at a cost of $50.00.
Registering as a Plan-holder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors because Plan-holders will
receive addendums and other contract document updates via QuestCDN.

For this project bids will ONLY be received and accepted via the oniine electronic bid service through QuestCDN.com.
To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click the online bidding button at the top of
advertisement. Prospective bidders must be on the plan holders list through QuestCDN for bids to be accepted.

00120.04 Pre-Bid Meeting -Add the fol!owing;

An OPTIONAL pre-bid meeting wi!! be held.

2:00 PM Tuesday, April 6, 2021

225 S MAIN AVE. WARRENTON, OR 97146

Bids submitted by bidders who have not attended a MANDATORY pre-bid meeting will not be accepted and will be
returned unopened.

Statements made by a City representative at the pre-bid meeting are not biinding on City unless confirmed by written
addendum. A project site tour wiil follow as part of the pre-bid meeting.

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 2



Section 00150 - Contra! of Work

00150.30 Deliver of Notices - Contractor written notice to Engineer or Agency shal! be delivered to:

Adam Daiiey, PE
Design Engineer Consultant
AM Engineering
PO Box 973 Seaside OR. 97138
503-468-8600

00150.50 Cooperation with Utilities - This subsection is supplemented with the following:
The Contractor is required to coordinate construction activities with the gas company and notify the gas company
immediately if conflicts are encountered.

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors - This subsection is supplementa! with the following:
The Contractor is required to coordinate construction activities with all Contractors included, or not included, in this
project,

Section 00165 ~ Quality of Materials

00165.03 Testing by Agency - The Agency at its own cost shall retain the sen/ices of a testing laboratory to conduct
field testing on the compaction of subgrade, engineered fill, aggregate base, asphaltic concrete, pipe bedding and
trench backfili. Areas failing to meet the density requirements shali be re-compacted by the Contractor immediately at
no additional cost to Agency and tested again until passing.

Areas showing failing compaction results shall receive further attention without undue delay. Further attention may
involve additional compaction efforts, other compaction methods, removal and recompaction of material or removal
and replacement of material as required to obtain passing results.

No additional compensation will be made to the Contractor for down-time incurred as a result of testing or waiting for
test results.

All additional Agency testing costs as a result of failing tests shall be borne entirely by the Contractor. All associated
costs arising from any necessary additional work due to failing compaction test results, including removal and
replacement of material, shall be borne by the Contractor.

Any subsequent settlement of any backfilied area during the Correction Period shall be considered to be the result of
improper compaction and shall be promptly corrected by the Contractor at no cost to the Agency.

00165.04 Costs of Testing - Delete the second and third sentences of the first paragraph and add the following:

The Contractor shall conduct source-review tests of Aggregates for submitta! to the Agency.

CityofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page3



Section 00170 - Legal Relations and Responsibilities

00170.03 Furnishing Rights of Way and Permits -The Agency wil! apply and pay for the City Grading/Erosion Control
Permit, The Permit shali be picked up by and be in the Contractor's name. Prior to construction, the Contractor shall
obtain, from the City, a Right-of-Way Permit and a Sidewalk and Driveway Permit. Permit fees shall be waived by the
City.

00170.10(a) Commercial Automobile Liability ~ Combined single limit per occurrence shall be not iess than
$1,000,000.

00170.65(b)(1) Minimum Wage Rates-BOLI Prevailing Wage Rates title page is included at the end of these Special
Provisions.

BOLI Prevailing Wage Rates: Effective January 1,2021

00170.70(a) Commercial General Liability ~ Combined single limit per occurrence shall not be !ess than $1,000,000.
Annual aggregate limit shail not be less than $2,000,000.

00170.70(c) Additional Insured - The liability insurance coverages of 00170.70(a) shal! indude: Agency, the Agency's
governing body, board, or Commission and its members, and the Agency's officers and employees as Additional
Insureds, but only with respect to the Contractor's activities to be performed under the Contract. When federai
transportation funding is involved, the liability coverages of 00170.70(a) shall also include the State of Oregon, the
Oregon Transportation Commission and the Oregon Department of Transportation and their respective officers,
members and employees as additionai insureds, but only with respect to the Contractor's activities to be performed
under the Contract, Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. The
liability coverages of 00170.70(a) that are permitted by the Agency to be obtained by an appropriate subcontractor shall
include all of the foregoing as Additional Insureds and shali also include Contractor and its officers and employees as
Additional insureds.

Section 00180 - Prosecution and Progress

00180.20(a) General - The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to at ieast 50% of the original
Contract Amount.

00180.40(a) In Genera) - Add the following to subsection:

Work hours shali be: 7:00 am - 6:00 pm

unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

00180.41 Project Work Schedules - A Type "A" Schedule shall be required for the Project.

00180.41(a) Type "A" Schedule - A Type "A" Schedule is required for this Project.

00180.85(b) Liquidated Damages - The amount of liquidated damages, per Calendar Day, shall be; $300

CityofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 4



Section 00190 ~ Measurement of Pay Quantities

00190.00 Scope ~ This section is suppiemented with Section 00190 ~ Measurement of Pay Quantities included after
the Bid Schedule in the Bid Form section of the Contract Documents.

Section 00199 - Disagreements, Protests, and Claims

00199.30{b) Claims Requirements - Contractor written claims to Engineer or Agency shall be delivered to:

Adam Dailey, PE
Design Engineer Consultant
A.M. Engineering
PO Box 973 Seaside OR. 97138
503-468-8600

City ofWarrenton
SW ASder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 5



PART 00200 - TEMPORARY FEATURES AND APPURTENANCES

Section 00205 - Field Laboratory, Weighhouse, Etc.

Delete section in its entirety.

Section 00210 IVIobilization

00210.00 Scope ~ Add the following to the subsection:

• Obtaining required bonds, insurance, permits, and licenses.

• Preparing and submitting shop drawings, "As-Buiit" drawings and other submittals.

• Removing equipment and extra materials from site upon completion of Work.

• All other work not identified in a separate bid item.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 6



Section 00220 - Accommodations for Public Traffic

00220.02 Public Safety and Mobility - In the eighth "builetized" item, delete the words "as shown on the Plans".

00220.03(a) Over-Dimensional Vehicle Restrictions - Deiete subsection in its entirety.

00220.40(d) Adjacent to Excavations - in the first "bulietized" item, delete the words "as shown on the standard
drawings".

00220.40(e)(1) Closed Lanes " Add the foiiowing to the subsection:

Unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Engineer, the Contractor shall maintain two lanes of traffic on all streets
adjacent to street affected by construction at ai! times.

Unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Engineer, the Contractor shall maintain two lanes of traffic on all streets
affected by construction between the hours of: 6:00 pm - 7:00 am

Detours and closures will be allowed, but must be approved in writing by the Engineer in advance.

00220.70 Opening Sections to Traffic - In the second paragraph, delete the phrase "except watering ordered to
protect the work or to alleviate dust wiif be paid as provided in Section 00340".

City ofWafrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 7



Section 00225 -Work Zone Traffic Control

00225.00 Scope - Delete the phrase "according to the standard drawings, the traffic controi plan (TCP) for the Project,
these Specifications, or as directed" and replace with the phrase "traffic control plan (TCP) for the Project submitted by
the Contractor and accepted by the Agency, these Specifications, or as directed".

00225.05 Contractor Traffic Control Plan - Delete the subsection in its entirety and replace with the following:

The Contractor shali submit a proposed TCP prepared by an engineer currently licensed in Oregon for the Agency's
review and acceptance at [east 14 days prior to start of any construction. The proposed TCP shal! address al!
operationai aspects of the Contractor's work, and shall include provisions for areas used by the Contractor for staging
and storage of materials and equipment. The proposed TCP shall include order and duration of the TCP, al! TCMs,
TCDs, !ane and street closures. and detours. If additionai modifications are proposed by the Contractor to the
Contractor's TCP as accepted by the Agency, submit modifications prepared by an engineer currently licensed in
Oregon at least 7 days before beginning the construction activities that require the TCP changes.

The following parameters shall apply to the Contractor's Traffic Control P!an:

• Constraints, restrictions and coordination requirements as per 00220(e)(1), 00220(e)(2)(b) and 00220.40(0.

• Traffic control shall be designed to move traffic past the area smoothly, with proper and adequate advance
signing.

• Wherever the existing roadway surface is disturbed by construction, and except where temporary paving is
required, the Contractor shall regulariy grade and maintain a smooth gravei surface for vehicular traffic
traveling through and within the project area unti! the project is complete. Gravel wiif be swept from adjacent
asphalt at the end of each working day.

• Access for Emergency vehicles sha!) be accommodated at aii times.

• The Contractor shall have the responsibility of coordinating the needs of the abuttJng residents and businesses
for parking and access.

• The Contractor shail coordinate its schedule of Work, operations and traffic control with the following
organizations and agencies as applicable:

Wan-enton School Buses, 503-325-4550

Sunset Empire Transit 503-861 -7433

Warrenton Police 503-861-2235

Recology Warrenton Regional Office 503-861 -0578

• The Contractor shall retain a Traffic Control Supen/isor for the project, with responsibility and authority to
continuously monitor and direct traffic control operations at all times on the project. The Traffic Control
Supervisor shall have specific training in temporary traffic control for construction. The Contractor shall
provide the Traffic Control Supervisor's name and phone number and training credential documentation to the
Agency at the pre-construction conference. The Traffic Control Supen/isor shall not be changed by the
Contractor without prior written notification to the Agency and providing the same information for the new
Traffic Control Supervisor and receiving Agency acceptance of the change.

00225.90(a) Method "B" - Lump Sum Basis - Delete subsection and replace with the following:

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 8



Work zone traffic control wil! be paid for at the Contract lump sum amount for the item "Temporary Work Zone Traffic
Control, Complete",

Payment wil! be payment in full for ail work covered under this Section.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 9



Section 00280 ~ Erosion and Sediment Control:

00280.00 Scope - Add the following to the subsection:

An Oregon NPDES 1200-C Permit is not required for this project. Erosion controi measures are included in the contract
documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for fu!l implementation of the erosion control measures and shai) take
proper actions to prevent contaminants, induding sediment, from entering the storm drain system or otherwise being
conveyed to Waters of the State. Take immediate corrective action if directed by the Agency or Engineer, or if the
Contractor observes contaminants, including sediment entering the storm drain system.

(a) Notify the Agency of the need to prepare additional erosion contra! measures, whenever there is a change in
construction activities or operations that may affect the discharge of significant quantities or pollutants to surface waters,
ground waters, storm drainage systems. The erosion control measures shall be amended if they do not effectively
achieved the objective of reducing poiiutants in stomnwater discharges.

00280.04 Erosion and Sediment Control Plan on Agency Controlled Lands - In the last sentence of the first
paragraph, delete "before" and replace with "after".

00280.05 Erosion and Sediment Control Plan on Non-Agency Controlled Lands - In the last sentence of the first
paragraph, delete "before" and replace with "after".

00280.30 Erosion and Sediment Control Manager - Add the following to the first sentence;

ESCM shail assume the duties as included in this subsection as we!l as those identified for the Permittee's Site
Inspector as per the ESCP in the Supplemental Drawings including inspection frequency and reporting.

In the second paragraph, delete "10 days before" and replace with "at".

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 10



Section 00290 - Environmental Protection

00290.20(b) Fuel Storage - Delete the second sentence of the second paragraph.

00290.30(b) Pollution Control Plan: In the first paragraph, delete "10 days before" and replace with "at"

Delete the iast paragraph which begins "A Pollution Control Plan Contractor Packet,.."

CityofWarrenton
SWAider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 11



PART 00300 - ROADWORK

Section 00310 - Removal of Structures and Obstructions

00310.44 Earthwork in Connection with Removal - Add the foliowing to subsection:

Catch basins and manho!es removed shall be backfiiled with compacted Class B Backfiil in accordance with
00405.14 from the bottom of the excavation to the top of the street subgrade.

00310.92 Separate Item Basis - Replace "(g) Asphalt Pavement Saw Cutting
Foot" with

"(g) Asphalt Pavement and Concrete Saw Cutting ............................................................. Foot"

Section 00390 - Riprap Protection

00390.90 Payment - Add the foilowing to subsection;

(QRiprap Basins with Geotextiie........................................................................................ CubicYard

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 12



PART 00400 - DRAINAGE AND SEWERS

Section 00405 - Trench Excavation, Bedding, and Backfifl

00405.00 Scope - In the first paragraph delete" This Work consists of excavating trenches, constructing trench
foundations, and placing bedding, pipe zone material and backfill." And replace with "This Work consists of potholing
for determination of existing utiiities, excavating trenches, constructing trench foundations, and placing bedding, pipe
zone material and backfill,"

00405.02 Definitions

Pipe Bedding: Add the fojlowing:

The total bedding depth shall be a minimum of 6 inches beSow the bottom outside surface of the barrel of the pipe for
the fuli width of the trench.

Pipe Zone: Deiete "8 inches" and replace with "12 inches".

Trench Excavation: Add the foilowing:

Trench excavation shall be classified as common excavation/with the exception of rock excavation.

Trench Backfill Delete; "Furnishing, placing, and compacting material other than Controlled Low-Strength Materia!
(CLSM) in the trench, between the top of the pipe zone material and the bottom of the pavement base Rock, ground
surface or surface material." And replace with "Furnishing, placing, and compacting imported crushed aggregate
materia!, other than Controlied Low-Strength Materiai (CLSM), free from wood waste, organic materia!, and other
extraneous or objectionable matena!s, in the trench, between the top of the pipe zone material and the bottom of the
pavement base Rock, ground surface or surface material."

Latera! Restraint Shoring System; Add the following:

Lateral Restraint Shoring System is defined as a shoring system with full face braced shields tightly against the trench
sidewalis throughout trench excavation and pipe instailation to maintain lateral stability.

00405.11 Trench Foundation - Delete the four "bulieted" items and replace with the following;2-1/2"-0 base
aggregate in conformance with 02630.10.

00405.12 Bedding - Add the foliowing to subsection:

Pipe Bedding material shall be %" - 0 base aggregate material in conformance with 02630.10.

00405.13 Pipe Zone IVIaterial -Add the following to subsection:

Pipe Zone Material shall be 3A" - 0 base aggregate material in conformance with 02630.10.

00405.14 Trench Backfill - Remove the following from the subsection:

(a) Class A Backfill - Use native or common material that, in the opinion of the Engineer, meets
the characteristics required for the specific surface loading or other criteria of the backfill zone.
(c) Class C Backfill - Use dean sand with no particle size larger than 1/4 inch,
(d) Class D Backfill - Use pit run or bar run material, well-graded from coarse to fine. The
maximum dimension shali be 3 inches.
(e) Class E Backfill - Use CLSM conforming to Section 00442.

00405.16 Pipe Zone Locate Wire - Add this subsection;

The Contractor shall install 1 2 gauge located directly over pipe centeriine and on top of the pipe zone material (no more
than 8" above the pipe crown) for all non-ferrous pipe, Wire color In conformance with 00445.11(e). Run wires into
valve, cleanout and meter boxes, manholes and other structures to a point accessible from the cover. Locate wires to
not hinder access into manhoies. All tracer wire splices shall be with a "Protrace TW" connector or approved equal.

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 13



00405.30 Quality Control Personnel - Delete subsection En its entirety,

00405.41 (c) Trench Width - Delete third and fourth sentences of subsection.

00405.43 Dewatering - This section ss supplemented as foilows:

Dewatering equipment shall be provided to remove and dispose of al! surface water and groundwater entering
excavations, trenches, or other parts of the work.

1. The Contractor is solely responsible to design, furnish, install, maintain, and operate ail necessary
dewatering wells, sump/pumps and other devices for dewatering all excavations. The Contractor's plan
for the dewatering system shall be submitted to the Engineer at the preconstruction conference for review.

2, At aEt times have on the project sufficient dewatering devices for immediate use, including standby pumps
in case other pumps become inoperable.

3. Provide a sufficient number of dewatering devices so as to hold the groundwater ievei at an elevation of
not less than 1 foot below the lowest eJevation of the pipe or other material to be piaced. When
groundwater is encountered, the Contractor shafi assess the situation and develop a plan to
accommodate dewatering. The Contractor shall be soiely responsible for control of groundwater through
dewatering and trench excavation control P!an, Ail costs for pumping, piping, settiing and discharging of
trench groundwater shall be considered incidenta! to the work for groundwater control pumping of up to
250 gpm. if conditions are such that additional pumps are required to remove water in excess of 250
gpm, the Contractor shall use the number and size of additional pumps, as required, to maintain a water-
free trench.

if pumping in excess of 250 gpm is required, a change order wiil be negotiated to provide compensation
to the Contractor shall be per 1140.40 of the Standard Specifications.

4. The dewatering operation shall be continuous, so that the excavated areas shall be kept free from water
during subgrade preparation, while pipes are installed, and until backfill has been placed to the extent
that no damage from hydrostatic pressure, fiotation, or other cause wiii result.

5. Continue dewatering during backfiiling operations such that the groundwater is at least 1 foot be!ow the
level of the compaction effort at ail times. No compaction of saturated materials will be allowed.

6. If pumping is required on a 24 hour basis, requiring engine drives, then engines shall be equipped in a
manner to keep noise to a minimum.

7. Dewatering devices must be adequately filtered to prevent the removal of fines from the sos).

8. Settle and/or filter all dewatering system collected fiow through Contractor provided settling tanks and
systems in order to meet Water Quality Standards; Beneficial Uses, Policies, and Criteria for Oregon
(OAR 340-041-0036) prior to discharging.

9. Dispose of water in such a manner as to cause no injury or nuisance to public or private property, or be

a menace to the public health.

10. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to existing structures, pavement, utilities, or of the
new works caused by Contractor's dewatering activities or failure of any part of the Contractor's
dewatering activities.

The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing temporary drainage facilities to convey and dispose of
surface water failing on or passing over the site.

00405.44 Trench Foundation - Deiete the third sentence of the second paragraph and replace with the following:
Place the trench foundation material in no more than 12-inch iayers and compact according to 00330.43.

00405.45 Pipe Bedding - Add the foliowing paragraph to subsection:

The Contractor shali place subsequent iifts of not more than 6-inches in thickness up to one foot above the top of the
pipe, bringing lifts up together on both sides of the pipe.

Bedding material shall be compacted to 95% of the Standard Proctor maximum dry density (ASTM D698, AASHTO T-
99). For the case that bedding material is not density testable, procedures in accordance with 00405.46(c) (2) shall
be followed, in this case, the bedding materials should be compacted using suitable compaction equipment until non-
yielding.

City of Warrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 14



Bedding disturbed by pipe movement, by removal of shoring, or by movement of a trench box or shield shali be
recompacted prior to backfilL Specia! care shall be taken to provide adequate bedding support at wye or tee
connections, at Fernco connections and adjacent to other structures so as to avoid bending or shearing stresses at
these critical points. The Contactor shall prevent pipe movement either horizontally or vertically during piacement and
compaction of pipe bedding material.

00405.46(b) Pipe Zone - Add the following to the subsection:

Pipe zone material shall be compacted to 95% of the Standard Proctor maximum dry density (ASTM D698, AASHTO
T-99).

00405.46(c)(1) General - This subsection is modified as follows:

Delete second paragraph. Excavated material shall not be used for backfill material.

00405.46(c)(2) Class A, B, C, or D BacRfiti - Delete the second paragraph of the subsection and add the following:

Within rights of way and paved surfaces, trench backfill shall be compacted to 98% of the Standard Proctor maximum
dry density within two feet of final pavement subgrade elevation and to 95% of the Standard Proctor maximum dry
density below two feet of final pavement subgrade elevation. Waterjetting is not acceptable as a method of compaction.

In-place compaction tests will be made by the Agency. Contractor shall remove and recompact material that does not
meet specified requirements. The Agency will charge the Contractor for the time and expenses to re-test non-compliant
trench backfil!.

For materials where a compaction cun/e cannot be deveioped in accordance with ASTM D698 or AASHTO T-99,
compaction and field verification procedures for non-testable soils in ODOT Section 00330,43(c) should be followed.
Defection testing is not required.

When the backfiliing is complete, the Contractor shall finish the surface area as specified. In paved areas, the Contractor
shal! maintain the surface of the trench backfili level with the existing grade, until final pavement rep!acement is
compieted and accepted by the Agency.

Add the following at the end of the subsection:

When crossing below an existing natural gas pipeiine main or sen/ice of any size, the Contractor shall provide and
install sand drainage material conforming to 00360.10 to provide a 12-inch envelope in ail directions around the existing
gas piping.

00405.48(c) Pavement, Curb and Sidewalk

Add the following to the first paragraph, after the second sentence:

Saw cut to nearest joint, panel or as indicated in the Supplemental Drawings.

In second paragraph, delete "6 inches" and replace with "12 inches" and add the foliowing:

The Contractor is responsible for any damage to the sawcut trench edges between the time of excavation and paving.
Trenches excavated for paving may not be left open for more than one day without steel plates or backfiliing.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 15



Section 00415 ~ Video Pipe Inspection

00415.40(c) Inspection - Delete the last sentence of the first paragraph and replace with the following:

Stop and inspect the full drcumference of all pipe Joints.

Section 00440 ~ Commercial Grade Concrete

00440.14(a) General - In last sentence, delete "a QCT" and replace with "Agency".

00440.30 Quality Control Personnel - Delete this subsection in its entirety.

Section 00442 " Controlled Low Strength Materials

00442.00 Scope - Controlled Low Strength Material shall be used to plug abandoned pipe and for the construction
of trench dams.

CityofWarrenton
SWAIder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 16



Section 00445 - Sanitary, Storm, Culvert, Siphon, and Irrigation Pipe
00445.11(e) TracerWire

Deiete the second sentence and repiace with the following:

The HMW-PE insulated cover shall be 45 mil thick. Wire color in conformance with 00445.11(e).

00445.11(h) Sanitary Sewer Laterals - Add this subsection:

Construct sanitary sewer laterals per the Supplemental Drawings. Tee's consisting of a PVC hub, rubber sieeve and
stainless steei band are not acceptable.

00445.48 Tracer Wire - Add the following to the first paragraph:

Run wires into cteanouts, manhoies and other structures to a point accessible from the cover and not to impede access,

Section 00470 " Manholes, Catch Basins and Iniets

00470.00 Scope - Add the following to subsection:
This Work shall consist of installing storm sewer and sanitary sewer manhoies.

Storm sewer manholes shall be constructed per the Supplemental Drawings,

Sanitary sewer manholes shall be constructed per Supplemental Drawings.

Catch basins shall be constructed per the Supplemental Drawings.

00470.11 Precast Concrete Manholes and Bases - Storm sewer manhoies shall be core drilled in the field for catch
basin lateral and interceptor drain connections.

00470.71{b) Vacuum Testing - This subsection shail aiso appiy to storm drain manholes,

00470.72 Adjusting IVlanholes and Catch Basins to Grade - Add this subsection:

Manhofe structures and catch basins shali be set to grade of preliminary asphalt surface and adjusted to final grade of
surface at the time of final asphalt paving.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 17



Section 00490 - Work on Existing Sewers and Structures

00490,40 General - Add the following to subsection:

Contractor shall be solely responsible for safety during the performance of the Work. No one shall enter into any sewer
segment, or structure, where hazardous conditions may exist until such time as the source of these conditions is
identified and eliminated by the Contractor and/or Agency. The Contractor shall perform all tests that may be required
to identify and assess unsafe conditions and shall perform ali work in accordance with the latest OSHA confined space
entry regulations. Contractor will coordinate its work with Iaea! fire, police and emergency rescue units so they are
aware of his working conditions. Access for deaning purposes shall be via existing manhole openings.

00490.43 Abandoning Pipe in Place - Replace subsection with "Abandoned pipes shall be compieteiy fiiled with
controiied low-strength materia! in accordance with Section 00442 and capped."

00490.50 Sanitary Sewer and Storm Drain Connections -Add this subsection:

Connecting new sanitary sewer or storm drain pipe larger than 6-inch diameter to existing sanitary sewer or storm
drain pipe shali be with a Romac 501 coupling, Romac Macro HP coupiing or approved equal.

Section 00495 - Trench Resurfacing

00495.10 Materials - Permanent trench surfacing materials in existing paved areas shall be Asphalt Concrete
Pavement (ACP) to in accordance with Section 00744.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 18



PART 00600-BASES

Section 00641 ~ Aggregate Subbase, Base, and Shoulders

00641.10(a) Base and Shoulder Aggregate -After the second sentence, add the following:

Base aggregate shall consist of both leveling rock and base rock as shown on the SuppiementaS Drawings. Leveling
rock and base rock shall conform to Section 02630.10 for 3/4"-0.

00641.80{b) Volume Basis - Remove "When measurement is by volume, quantities will be measured in the hauling
vehicle." and replace with "When measurement is by volume, quantities will be in-place measure. Quantities will be
limited to the Neat Lines shown or as verified by the engineer,"

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 19



PART 00700 - WEARING SURFACES

Section 00744 - Asphalt Concrete Pavement

00744.12(a) Mix Type - Mix Type shail conform to 1/2" ACP.

00744.13 Job Mix Formula Requirements - JMF shall conform to Level 2.

00744.16 Sampling and Testing - Agency wi)! provide sampling and testing including type and frequency of tests.

00744.42 Tack Coat - Delete the last sentence of the first paragraph and replace with the following;

Tack coat asphalt shall be approved by the Engineer prior to application,

00744.43(c) Placing" in last paragraph of subsection, deiete the third sentence and replace with the following:

Where 4-snches of ACP is required for trench pavement patching or street section, place in two separate 2-inch lifts.

00744.49 Compaction - Agency wi!! conduct compaction testing inciudsng determination of testing frequency.

Section 00759"" Miscellaneous Portland Cement Concrete Structures

00759.12 Sidewalk Ramp Treatment - Detectable warning surfaces shali be cast in piace, brick red.

00759.41 Earthwork - Excavation for curb sha!l be performed at the same time as excavation for roadway section,
and shatl extend to 1-foot beyond the back of curb,

00759.42 Foundations - Delete the words "using selected granular backfdl materiai according to Section 00330 or".

City ofWarrenton
SW Aider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 20



PART 00800 - PERMANENT TRAFFIC SAFETY AND GUIDANCE DEVICES

Section 00850 - Common Provisions for Pavement Markings

00850.50 General - Add the following to subsection:

Temporary pavement markings shall be maintained in serviceable condition throughout the project until permanent
pavement markings are installed. Temporary pavement markings that are damaged shall be repaired or replaced by
the Contractor immediately at no additional cost to Agency.

00850.75 Manufacturer's Warranty - In the first sentence, delete "on Agency supplied warranty forms". DeSete the
East sentence.

Section 00865 - Longitudinal Pavement Markings - Durable

00865.00 Scope - Add the following to subsection:

Continental style crosswalks shall be High Skid Resistant Pre-formed ThermoplastJc.

Crosswaiks with standard bars and diagonai striping shal! be constructed with an Agency provided legend using white
paint with reflective glass beads.

if any portion of a crosswalk marking is removed or damaged during construction, the entire crosswaik marking shali
be replaced with thermoplastic or paint as noted on the SuppSementa! Drawings. All four sides of the crosswalk marking
are to remain consistent.

Section 00867 -Transverse Pavement Markings - Legends and Bars

00867.45 Installation - Type B-HS: Preformed, Fused Thermopiastic Film High Skid material shali apply to this
project.

PART 00900 - PERlVfANENT TRAFFIC CONTROL AND ILLUMINATION SYSTEMS

00940.90 Payment - Add the following to subsection:

(g) Signs with post, _, _......................................................................................... Lump Sum

item (g) includes payment for sign posts as shown En the supplemental drawings.

In item (g), the type of sheeting will be inserted in the first blank; the type of material will be inserted in the second
blank.

Cily ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 21



PART 01000 - RIGHT OF WAY DEVBLOPMENT AND CONTROL

Section 01040-Planting

01040.00 Scope - Add the following to this subsection:

Ail pianting, including sod lawn instaliation, shall be completed by a professional/licensed landscape company,

01040.55(k) Site Specific Restoration - Add this subsection:

At any point of connections to private storm drain catch basins, storm drain lines, water or sewer services, or other
facilities, restore the site of connection to existing conditions or better. Lawn sod shall be used for all grass restoration,

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 22



PART 01100 -WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS

Section 01140 - Potable Water Pipe and Fittings

01140.10 Materials - Modify this subsection as follows:

Ail water lines shall be ductile iron thickness Class 52 meeting the requirements of Section 02470.20 or as directed in
the Supplemental Drawings,

All ductile iron pipe and fittings and al! brass fittings shall be manufactured within the U.S.

01140.40(a) Dewatering Trenches - This section is supplemented with the following:

See subsection 00405.43 Dewatering for additional requirements.

01140.41 (a) Genera! - Add the following to subsection:

Pipe shall be installed with 30 inches minimum and 42 inches maximum cover from the top of the pipe to finished grade
unless otherwise shown on the Supplemental Drawings or as approved by the Engineer.

01140.41(c) Pofyethylene Encasement- Delete this subsection in its entirety.

01140.43 Polyethyiene Encasement - Delete this subsection in its entirety.

01140.44(b) Restrained Joints - Delete the first sentence and replace with the following:

In addition to concrete thrust blocks as required in subsection 01140.44(a), mechanically restrain all Joints at bends,
tees, dead ends and crosses.

01140.47(b) Permission - Delete and replace with the following:

The Contractor shall notify the Agency at least 2 working days in advance of each requested shutdown. Shutdowns
shall not be scheduled on Friday or the day before a holiday and shall be planned to take piace early in the day.
Shutdowns may also have to be scheduled during times other than normal working hours. To minimize the
inconvenience to water customers, the Contractor shail plan carefuily for the installation of the new pipe by exposing
the existing pipe in advance and making sure to have all necessary fittings, tools, equipment and personnel to make
the connection in as short a time period as possible, The Contractor shali notify the Agency of any changes to the
schedule prior to customer notification. If the schedule is changed after Agency staff has spent time or resources
preparing for the shutdown, the Contractor will reimburse the Agency for personnel and equipment time and other
expenses. Reimbursement will not be required if circumstances beyond the controi of the Contractor cause the
schedule change.

01140.51 Hydrostatic Testing - Delete and replace with the following:

Hydrostatic Testing shall be performed in accordance with the most recent edition ofAWWA C600

01140.52 Disinfecting ~ Delete and replace with the following:

Prior to placing new water mains in sen/ice, the Contractor shal! disinfect new mains, and any repaired portions of, or
extensions to, existing mains, and obtain two satisfactory bacterial og tea I reports, DJsinfection shall be performed in
accordance with AWWA C651, or as directed by the Engineer. The first sample will be collected and bacterioiogical
tests obtained by the Agency at its cost. The second sample shall be collected by the Contractor and the Contractor
shall be responsible for having the bacteriologica! test conducted by a State of Oregon certified laboratory at the
Contractor's cost. The Contractor shal! notify the Engineer at least 24 hours in advance to schedule bacteriological
testing.

No connections will be made to the existing water system until the Contractor has successfully passed specified
pressure and bacterioiogica) testing. Temporary piping, valves and connections may be required to maintain water
service and compSete testing. Contractor is responsible for detailing and providing al! temporary piping, vaives and
connections required.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 23



Section 01170 ~ Potable Water Service Connections, 2 inch and Smaller

01170.40 Genera! -Add the following to subsection:

Connect to ail water mains, including Class 52 ductile iron, using saddles. Direct taps are prohibited.

The existing water meters shall be left in the water meter box for the Agency to disconnect and reinstall if appllcabie.
The Agency wil! perform the required documentation for updating property account information related to the water
meter.

01170.40(b) Installation - Add the foilowing to subsection:

When copper tubing is used for sen/ice connections, the tubing shall only be bent by using a suitable copper tubing
tool to bend, Anydivots for bends found in the copper tubing upon installation will be unacceptable. The Contractor wii!
replace the tubing at no additional charge to the Agency.

01170.41 Reconnecting Existing Services " Add the following to subsection:

Where relocated/replaced water meter and service is shown on the drawings, the existing water service line, meter
box, fittings, appurtenances and other miscellaneous materials shall be removed and disposed of by the Contractor.

City ofWarrenton
SWAider Avenue 2nd Street to 1st Street
Special Provisions
Page 24



PART 02000 - MATERIALS

Section 02470 - Potable Water Pipe Materials

02470.20(a) General - Delete the last sentence of the subsection and replace with the following:

Ductiie iron pipe shall be Standard Thickness Class 52. Ail ductile iron pipe and fittings shall be manufactured within
the United States.

Section 02475 - Potabie Water Fitting Materials

02475.20 Ductile Iron Pipe Fittings -" Delete the first sentence and replace with the following:

All ductile iron fittings shail meet the requirements of AWWA C153.

Section 02485 - Hydrant and Appurtenance Materials

02485.10 Fire Hydrants ~ Add the following to subsection:

Gate valves on the hydrant assembly as shown In the Supplemental Drawings are considered incidental to the hydrant
and no additional payment will be made. The fire hydrant tee shall be flanged or mechanical joint as shown on the
Suppiementai Drawings.

Section 02490 - Potabie Water Service Connection EVIaterials, 2 Inch and Smaller

02490.70 Meter Boxes - Delete subsections (a) and (b) and replace with the fotiowjng:

Meter boxes shall be in conformance with the Supplemental Drawings.

City ofWarrenton
SW Alder Avenue 2nd Street to 1 st Street
Special Provisions
Page 25



AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TO; The Warrenton City Commission

FROM: Collin Stelzig. P.E., Public Works Director

DATE: May 11, 2021

SUBJ: Spring Clean-up Resolution 2598

SUMMARY

This is the second reading of Resolution 2598 establishing fees for Spring Clean-up

and updating Section 1 to include a one-day event on a week-end day to

accommodate scheduling by Recology.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION

Public Works recommends the City Commission conduct the second reading and

adoption of Resolution 2598 amending Ihe Spring Clean-Up Collection Policy.

ALTERNATIVE

1) Other action as deemed appropriate by the City Commission

2) None recommended

FISCAL IMPACT

The City Commission budgeted $12,000.00 for Spring Clean-Up.

! ' / ^

Approved by City Manager: ';.. ...i^f I <-'. ' •l * i / <.r. ^,.s) <v ".
\ ;

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum,

7.C



RESOLUTION No. 2598

AMENDING RATES AND SCHEDULES TO THE SPRING CLEAN-UP COLLECTION
POLICY AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 2072

WHEREAS, the City ofWan-enton has found that Spring Clean-Up Day is a benefit of the

citizens of Warrenton, and;

WHEREAS, the success of Spring CIean-Up Day has continued to be a popular event with

widespread participation, and;

WHEREAS, the City Commission has found it necessary to adopt a formal Spring Clean-Up

Day collection policy as a means of controlling the cost to Wan'enton's rate payers.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WARRENTON RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Spring Clean-Up Day will be a one-day event held on a weekend day.

SECTION 2: Participants will be required to show that they are a City ofWan'enton garbage

ratepayers in the City ofWarrenton by showing a current City utility bill in the name of the

participant.

SECTION 3: The City will collect $5.00 per vehicle and/or trailer load to offset the costs of
Spring Clean-Up Day to the ratepayers of Warrenton.

SECTION 4: The City retains the ability to collect additional fees for items that impose extra
cost on the City as a result of their disposal and sets new rates for the following items.

Tires Off Rim $ 3.00 Tires On Rim $ 6.00
Refrigerator/Freezers $ 35.00 Large Appliances $ 8.00

SECTION 5: The City maintains the right to reject any materials deemed inappropriate or

hazardous.

FIRST READING: April 27, 2021
SECOND READING: May 11, 2021

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of Warrenton this 11th day of May, 2021.

APPROVED

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST

Dawne Shaw, City Recorder



AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TO: The Warrenton City Commission

FROM: Dawne Shaw, City Recorder

DATE: May 11, 2021

SUBJ: STREET VACATION PETITION NO. 155 - RESOLUTION SETTING

A PUBLIC HEARING

SUMMARY

The City received a petition from Jetty Street, LLC, and Stephanie and/or Gerald

Poe proposing to vacate a portion of 4 Avenue in Hammond. The purpose of the

vacation is for setbacks. The petition is attached. I find the petition complete having

attached in writing the consent of owners of two-thirds in area of property embraced

within the real property affected. The City's consent would be required in order to

be complete. I have prepared a resolution for your consideration to consent to

move forward with a Public Hearing and to set a public hearing date of June 8,

2021.

Public Works, Planning, Marina and Fire departments have reviewed the petition;

their comments are attached. If there appears to be no reason why the petition

should not be allowed in whole or in part, the governing body shall fix a time for a

formal hearing upon the petition.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION

7.D



I move to adopt Resolution No. 2599, setting a Public Hearing date of June 8,

2021, for vacation petitioners Jetty Street, LLC, and Stephanie and/or Gerald Poe,

for a portion of 4* Avenue (Hammond).

ALTERNATIVE

Other action as deemed appropriate by the City Commission

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost of the vacation is paid for by the petitioners.



RESOLUTION NO. 2599

Introduced by All Commissioners

A RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF JUNE 8, 2021, TO CONSIDER
STREET VACATION PETITION NO. 1 55, THE VACATION OF A PORTION OF 4TH AVENUE

IN THE HAMMOND DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF WARRENTON, OREGON

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Jetty Street, LLC and Stephanie and/or Gerald Poe have petitioned the

Warrenton City Commission to vacate a portion of 4 Avenue (Hammond) in the Plat of "First

Addition to Kindred Park", more particularly described in the attached legal description; and

WHEREAS, the Wan'enton City Commission has found no reason why the petition should be

allowed in whole or in part; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that a public hearing on said petition is hereby set for
June 8, 2021, at the hour of 6:00 p.m. atWarrenton City Hall, 225 S. Main Avenue, Warrenton,

Oregon.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Recorder will provide notice of the public hearing as
required by Oregon Statutes regarding the proposed vacation petition.

PASSED by the City Commission of the City ofWan-enton this 1 1th day of May 2021.

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

APPROVED

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

ATTEST

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder



STREET VACATION PETITION
City of Warrenton

Fee: $600.00

Petitioner

?me: jetty Street, LLC, Gerald
and/ or Stephanie Poe

Mailing Address;

9879 Buena Vista Dr.
Independence, OR 97351

Phone Number:

503-871-1319

Email Address:

hansen@santepartners.com

Petitioners Reuresentatjve

Name: Jordan Winters

Mailing Address:

1220 20th St SE, Suite 310
Salem, OR 97302

Phone Number:

503-209-6034

Email Address;

winters@santepartners.com

1. A description of the right-of-way area to be vacated. (Don't forget to inclitde a map In'ghlighfmg the
area, A survey ffr professionally Developed legal (Jescripfion is requires).

Attached

2. Reason for the Vacation Request, (Advise if any bwlflings/slwctures will be in Uie area to be vacafed).

4th Avenue along the Petitioners' frontage has been designated by the City of Warrenton as a Local Road. Table
16.136.010of thedtyof Warrenton Street Design Standards requires the Right-of-Way width for a Local Road to
be 60 feet. The current right-of-way for 4th Avenue along the Petitioners' frontage is a 70 foot right of way. As

such,10 feet of the existing right-of-way is not necessary based on the design standards for a Local Road.
Petitioner requests additional space in order to make current building size fit within the property and required
setbacks. Because the units are town home, which are longer and narrower, the added 10'will a!!ow applicant to
fit desired size home and stitl maintain open space for communal landscaping and recreation within (ho property.
The reduction in 10' wiff stili aiiow for the required haif-street improvements per city code. Petitioner intends to

provide these ha!f street improvements as part of Iheir development.
Note: If additional room is necessary, please attach extra ^ages.

3. Required affidavits.

a. 100% ofabutting property owners.

b. Two-thirds m area of real property affected by proposal. Refer to OKS Chapter 271 (attached).

c. List of all shutting and affected property owners, mailing addresses, and corresponding square
footage of property owned.



^/^^/

Return To:

For Questions - Contact:

CityofWarrenton
P.O. Box 250
225 S. Main Street
Warrenton, OR 97146

Kevin Cronin, City Planner
Phone:503-861-0920
Email; cltyplanner@ci.wan'enton,or.us



CITY OF WARRENTON
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

RIGHT OF WAY VACATION
Street Vacation Check List RECEIVED

WARRENTON, OR 97146

DISCLAIMER: Completion of this application does not constitute approval of the
street vacation. The ultimate decision will be made by the Warrenton City
Commission.

To help facilitate the street vacation process, you must complete the steps below in the order presented.

I have read the "Vacating A Street" brochure.

I have called and spoken to EJteen Ystad _ at Clatsop County's
Cartography Department (503-325-8522) to see who will own the right-of-way area after the
vacation is completed. (In most cases the vacated area is split down the middle and reverts back to
the adjacent property owner.) Please Ust who receives property:

Jetty_Street, LLC and Gerald Poe

I have talked with all owners of the properties that abut all sides and comers of the portion ofright-
of-way to be vacated and they will support the vacation request (objecting property owners will
complicate or stop the process).

I have contacted private utilities to determine if the companies will support the vacation, with or
without special conditions. To ensure that you have a complete understanding of affected utilities,
a utility locate should be requested by calling: 800-332-2344.

SIGN TO CONFIRM:

I have completed all of the aboj

After you have done all of the above and it appears that a rieht-of-wav vacation may
be feasible, a written right-of-way vacation petition (attached) and a Six Hundred Dollar ($660-08) 7^ 'i
application fee is required. If multiple streets are involved, or it affects multiple lots, a land use review by
the Platming Department and Planning Commission is required. The petition fee is Eight Hundred Dollars

^) when it's required to go before the Planning Commission.

Upon receipt of this checklist, the petition, the required fee and all necessary signatures, (see ORS 271.080
attached), the City Planner shall review the petition. If petition is deemed incomplete, it will be returned

to Ihe petitioner for additional signatures or other required mformation. If required percentages of consent
is confirmed, the matter will be placed on the City Commission^ Agenda to consider settmg a public
hearing or referred to the Planning Commission, if required. Please allow four weeks for the review of the
petition.



5&F Land Services

172S N Roosevelt Drive, Suite B, Seaside, OR 97138
(503) 738-3425 - www.sflands.com

PROJECT NO.: 21G35101
DATE: 4/16/2021

INITIALS: ER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Right of Way Vacation

EXHIBIT WA"

4th Avenue (Myler Avenue)

A portion of land located in the Southeast one quarter and the Southwest one quarter of Section

5, Township 8 North, Range 10 West, Wiltamette Meridian, City of Warrenton, Clatsop County,
Oregon, more particularly described as follows:

The South 10.00 feet of that certain 70.00 feet street, adjoining and coincident, with Lots 1 to 9,
inclusive, in Block 9/ Plat of "First Addition to Kindred Park"/ Book 1, Page 60, records of Clatsop

County/ Oregon.

Subject to any public or private easements that may exist.

Containing 0.07 acres more or less.

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

4^-t L. !W^Ai4^/~

OREGON
SEPTEMBER 10. 2019

JACK L WHITE II
91987PLS



OJ
en

04
c^

1 INCH =
40 FEET

05

0
.co
^§

co

LLJ

30'

4TH AVE

- L

(MYLERAVE)

_ J L- _

30'

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

^i-

N90-OOWE 308.24'

^/7^/^o> STREET RIGHT OF WAY VACATION
/ -'/ / y /^ >~ /~ /

N90'00'00"E 253.31'

ND^°P^K"

•<8T"D;dN.T^«lc""
OK '1'

N89*59'05"W 255.29'

TAX LOT 5802

TAX LOT 4000
I

LEGEND:

STREET VACATION EXHIBIT SKETCH

FOUND MONUMENT
OF RECORD

VACATION AREA

^
OREGON

SEPTEMBER 10, 2019
JACK L WHITE II

91987PLS

LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 AND THE SW
1/4 OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 8
NORTH, RANGE 10 WEST W.M.

CUY OF WARRENTON/ CLATSOP
COUNTY/ OREGON

SEzF Land Services
1725 N ROOSEVELT DR, STE

-B, SEASIDE, OR 97138
Proj No: 21G35101 (5n^) 738-3425

www.sflands.con
info&sflands.con



Clatsop County/ OR

lettv_Sfc

3rd-fl

s^ "^/.

4th-Ave: L4thAve

te-AL

a

t

Air.
trfI
(0

rSth-Ave—.K^

ad

300

:5thAve

0

n
V)
0>
c

6UTSt;

fin Ktr
us CT.

wi-

B-(.

•Uiv

t»ai

w.

ir'

fUf

:6thSt
iPadficDrive

w\m

1?N1B

I (N101

SNltW

winw

8NSW

•M9H

6N9W

BfiW

W3W

sww

7HW

CHCW

SNBW

•mw

SHTW

i WM

m?w

W7W

5NW

WM j
I

BHGW

TtUW

6 NEW

5N6W

1H6W

H
^i;l
Lk

•'11 rsv-

n—T
w>--—_ - . ^~~^^./.r> ^.^ /'^

,S?C[atsop. Clatsop County CIS. Sources: Esri, HERE, Garimin7-FA©7NOftK;'USS§- ©-OpenStreetMap-contribulK^n^the GI^Uge^Communi
^^y, ~- ^tttu^a,LV,wv|r VT T- • y TT^^- - — n"ri_— •'->,-.- • -. - -, • |; •; • • f --—•_— . ^.— -._..,--—. - ,^^._- ^ - - -. ..„, ,-^ ^ —ffl'S^'S . I—

Ibw

4/2^/202111:37 AM

Clatsop County
0.1

I Imi

This map was produced using datsop County GIS
data. The data is maintained by CSatsop County to
support its governmental activities. Clatsop County
/s not' responsible for any map errors^ possible
misuse, or misinterpretation.



Dawne Shaw

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:

Scott Hess

Thursday, April 22, 2021 1 1:46 AM
Dawne Shaw
Linda Engbretson
4th Street Vacation - Hammond Area

Dawne,

Planning has reviewed the 10' Street Vacation request on 4th Street in Hammond, and has no objections or concerns.

Thank you,

Scott A. Hess

Community Development Director

(503) 861-0920
CrTYOFWARRENTON

(^'hi& m&Uaye fncu^, c.on.tcdn. confiden.iia.i cLn.d/ot ^'co^tietat^. in.fQ>un.a±ion. and i& intended ^ot. tfte pe'c^on.fentit^ to which it wa^

InxtU^, ac/t/teAAec/. ctf^ou. kcwe. te.ceived tki^ emctll A^ ettot, yO/eaAe contact th.e. 'G.t^, an.d t/t&n. &hlc&d tke, o^u.yn.a.i docum.ent.

(fln^. uAa j6y o^AeU tA biftlctl^ pt.ohiJbit&d.



Dawne Shaw

From: Richard Stelzig
Sent: Monday, May 3, 2021 2:18 PM
To: Dawne Shaw

Subject: RE: Fourth Street widths

Dawne,

Public Works does not oppose this 10' partial street vacation. It appears that a 36' wide road will still fit within the
remaining ROW and can be aligned with the existing Fourth Avenue roadway.

Thank you/

Collin Stelzig, PE | Public Works Director |CityofWarrenton
45 SW 2nd St. | P.O. Box 250 | Warrenton, OR 97146
Office: (503) 861-0912 | Fax: (503) 861-9661
rstelzig@ci.warrenton.or.us! www.ci.warrenton.or.us

"This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information/ and is intended for the person/entity to which it was originally

addressed. If you have received this email by error, please contact the City and then shred the original document, Any use by others is strictly

prohibited."

From: Dawne Shaw <dshaw@ci.warrenton.or.us>

Sent: Monday/ May 03, 2021 9:54 AM
To: Richard Stelzig <rsteizig@ci.warrenton.or.us>

Subject: FW: Fourth Street widths

HiCollln/

I forwarded this late Friday and just want to make sure you have received. Please review and

let me know as soon as possible if this is acceptable and reply to the original email that I sent

(April 22) for feedback on the street vacation. I need to include your comments with the

agenda memo.

Thanks!

Da-wne 5/un/v/cMC

City of Warrenton

City Recorder | Asst. to the City Manager)

Human Resources Coordinator

(503) 861-0823



Dawne Shaw

From: Jane Sweet

Sent: Wednesday, April 28. 2021 11:49 AM
To: Dawne Shaw

Subject: RE: Street Vacation - 4th Avenue Hammond

No I think it would be just fine - unless they use our garbage dumpster

From; Dawne Shaw
Sent: Wednesday/ April 28, 2021 11:48 AM
To: Jane Sweet
Subject; RE: Street Vacation - 4th Avenue Hammond

Thanks Jane, So you do not see any issues in regards to the adjacent marina property?

(just to clarify)

Da-wne Sticuw, CMC
City of Warrenton
City Recorder|Asst. to the City Managerl
Human Resources Coordinator

(503) 861-0823

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information, and is intended for the person/entlty to which it was
originally addressed. If you have received this email by error/ please contact the Csty and then shred the original document Any use

by others Is strictly prohibited.

From: Jane Sweet <jsweet@ci.warrenton.or.us>

Sent: Wednesday/ April 28,2021 11:46 AM
To: Dawne Shaw <dshaw@ci.warrenton.or.us>

Subject: RE: Street Vacation - 4th Avenue Hammond

1 do not have any feedback other than he seems like a nice guy

Thanks Dawnelll



This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information, and is intended for the person/entity to which it was
originafty addressed. If you have received this emafl by error, please contact the Gty and then shred the original document. Any use
by others is strictly prohibited.

From: DawneShaw
Sent: Thursday, April 22,2021 1:45 PM
To: Richard Stelzig <rstelziR@ci.warrenton.or.us>; Fire Chief <firechief@ci.warrenton.or.us>, Jane Sweet

<isweet@ci.warrenton,or,ys>

Subject; Street Vacation - 4th Avenue Hammond

Hello,

We have received a street vacation petition for a 10/ section of right-of-way along 4th Avenue

in Hammond (aka MylarAve). Please see that attached map and advise if you have any
concerns or objections to granting this vacation, The 10/ portion is highlighted in pink. Let me
know if you have any questions.

Dawne Shaw/CMC

CityofWarrenton

City Recorder jAsst. to the City Manager]
Human Resources Coordinator

(503) 861-0823

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information^ and Ss intended for the person/entity to which it was
originally addressed. If you have received this email by error, please contact the City and then shred the original document. Any use
by others is strictly proh!b!ted.



Dawne Shaw

From: Fire Chief
Sent: Monday, May 3, 2021 11:15AM
To: Dawne Shaw

Subject: RE: Street Vacation ~ 4th Avenue Hammond

Dawne,

I don't see any issues, looks like we will gain some road width for our access.

Thanks,

Brian Alsbury

Fire Chief
(503) 861-2494
CITY OF WARRENTON

(J~kt^ /neAAcyre tna^. c.on.todn. confltientlai and/o'c. p'c.opt.ieta.l^ in.fotmation. ajul i& intended fot th.e. ps.uon./e.ntit^ to whicJt it tvaA

otiyina^ ac/AeAAee/. ^ifyou. kav& 'cewiv&d t/ti^ em.all b^ ettot, ^/eaAe contact the Qty and Men dAtec/ ^Ae ot^uuz/ <^ocum.ent.

(ftn^, uAe A^ oMeU ^A &tttlct^, p'cohlbitexi.

From: Dawne Shaw

Sent: Thursday, April 22, 2021 1:45 PM
To: Richard Stelzig <rstelzig@ci.warrenton.or.us>; Fire Chief <firechief@ci.warrenton.or.us>; Jane Sweet

<isweet@ci.warrenton.or.us>

Subject: Street Vacation - 4th Avenue Hammond

Hello/

We have received a street vacation petition for a 10/ section of right-of-way along 4th Avenue

in Hammond (aka Mylar Ave). Please see that attached map and advise if you have any

concerns or objections to granting this vacation. The 10/ portion is highlighted in pink. Let me

know if you have any questions.

Dawne Shaw/ CMC

CityofWarrenton

City Recorder I Asst. to the City Manager)
Human Resources Coordinator

(503) 861-0823

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information, and is intended for the person/entity to which it was
originally addressed. If you have received this email by error, please contact the City and then shred the original document. Any use

by others is strictly prohibited.



AGENDA MEMORANDUM

TO: The Honorable Mayor and Warrentpn City Commission

FROM: Linda Engbretson/ City Manager

DATE: For the Agenda of May II/2021
SUBJ: Street Vacation Amendment - Ordinance No. 1251

SUMMARY
Clatsop County reached out to the city regarding a street vacation for SE Galena in Chelsea
Gardens done in 2016. Because the legal description states, "in Block 2" and not "between

Blocks 1 and 2" only half the street was vacated, when the intention was clearly to vacate the

entire width of the right of way. t am sure this was discovered as part of the apartment project
currently being considered on these lots. Looking at the map, you can see how the Block 1 was

missed.

This is considered a scrivener's error and a full hearing is not required to correct the legal

description.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION
"/ move to conduct the first reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1251, to correct the legal

descriptions of Street Vacation No. 147."

Title: ORDINANCE NO. 1251, INTRODUCED BY ALL COMMISSIONERS, VACATING A
PORTION OF SE GALENA AVENUE IN WARRENTON, OREGON, and REPEALING
ORDINANCE NO. 1210A

ALTERNATIVE
None recommended.

FISCAL IMPACT
Recording costs considered in FY 2020-2021 budget.

7.E



ORDINANCE NO. 1251

INTRODUCED BY ALL COMMISSIONERS

VACATING A PORTION OF SE GALENA AVENUE
IN WARRENTON, OREGON, and REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 1210A

WHEREAS, The Wan-enton City Commission previously vacated a portion ofSE Galena Avenue under

Ordinance No. 1210A;and

WHEREAS, all legal proceedings were followed for the vacation; and

WHEREAS, the Clatsop County Assessor's Office has informed the City of a legal description error in
the original vacation;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City ofWarrenton ordains as follows:

Section 1. The public right-of-way in the City ofWan'enton, Clatsop County, State of Oregon, described

as:

That portion of SEGalena Avenue that runs from SE 14th Place south for a distance of 361.2 feet
between Block 1 and Block 2, Sub Tract 3 of Chelsea between tax lots 81027BC 01700 81027
BC 01600; 81027BC 02100,81027BC 02200 and 81027BC 01500

is hereby vacated. Nothing contained herein shall cause or require the removal or obstruction of any

drainage ditch, abandonment of any sewer, water main conduit, utility line, pole or any other thing used

or intended to be used for any public service.

Section 2. The City Recorder of the City ofWan-enton is hereby ordered to make this vacation a matter of
public record; and it is expressly provided that the petitioner shall forthwith pay the costs oflhe necessary
changes of public records, as required by law, and it is hereby provided that the City Recorder shall file
with the clerk, the assessor, and the surveyor ofClafsop County, a certified copy of this ordinance.

Section 3. This ordinance will take effect 30 days after its adoption by the Wan-enton City Commission.

Adopted by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon this_day of May 2021.

First Reading: May 11, 2021
Second Reading: May 25, 2021

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer, III, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC,

City Recorder



AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TO: The Warrenton City Commission

FROM: Dawne Shaw, City Recorder

DATE: May 11, 2021

SUBJ: Amendment to Warrenton Municipal Code - Homestay Lodging and

Vacation Rental Dwellings; Homestay Lodging Standards; Ordinances 1248

and 1250

SUMMARY

At its April 27', 2021 meeting, the City Commission held a public hearing on the

amendments to the Warrenton Municipal Code (WIV1C), Title 16 Development Code,

Division 2 Land Use Districts to include Homestay Lodging and Vacation Rental

Dwellings (Ordinance No. 1248), and amendments to WMC Title 8.24, Homestay

Lodging Standards (Ordinance No. 1250). The first readings of the ordinances were

conducted after the public hearing and are presented today for the second readings

and adoption.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION

"I move to conduct the second reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1248, an

Ordinance Amending WMC Title 16, Development Code, Division 1, Chapter 16.12

Definitions; Division 2, Land Use Districts, Chapters: 16.24, 16.28, 16.32, 16.36,

16.40, 16.44, 16.56; and Division 3, Chapter 16.180."

"I move to conduct the second reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1250, an

Ordinance Amending WMC Title 8, Health and Safety, Chapter 24 Homestay

Lodging Safety Standards."

"! move to adopt Ordinance No. 1248 and Ordinance No. 1250."

7.F



1) None recommended

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

/ . /'' /

Approved by City Manager ^/ . n ^ /: ^ ;. ^ /- y {,\ ( Lt tV\

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



Ordinance 1248

Introduced by All Commissioners

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WARRENTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 16,
DEVELOPMENT CODE, DIVISION 1, CHAPTER 16.12 DEFINITIONS; DIVISION 2,

LAND USE DISTRICTS, CHAPTERS: 16.24, 16.28,16.32,16.36,16.40,16.44, 16.56; AND
DIVISION 3, CHAPTER 16.180

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds it appropriate to amend the Development Code's

reference to Homestay Lodging and Vacation Rental Dwellings to meet the City's needs; and

WHEREAS) the City ofWan'enton is best served by land use decisions that are clear in their

intent within the Development Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission conducted a public hearing on this amendment on April 27,

2021, to receive public testimony and to consider the Planning Coinmission's recommendation;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City ofWarrenton ordains as follows:

Section 1. Amend Warrenton Municipal Code Division 1, Introduction, Chapter 16.12

Definitions to insert the following definitions as written:

[new language; deleted language]

Homestav Lodsing. A short-term rental In an owner-occupied, single-family detached dwelling
unit using up to five bedrooms, including bedrooms in accessory dwellings.

Vacation Rental Dwelling. A smgle-family dwelling or accessory dwelling that is nonowner
occupied and is rented for terms of less than 30 days.

Section 2. Amend Wan-enton Municipal Code Division 2, Land Use Districts (various chapters)

to read as follows:

[new language; deleted language]

16.24.020 Permitted Uses.
P. Homestav Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.

16.28.020 Permitted Uses.
Q. Homcstay Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.

16.32.020 Permitted Uses.
R. Homestay Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.



16.36.020 Permitted Uses.
R. Homestay Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.

16.40.020 Permitted Uses.
A. Only the following uses and their accessory uses are permitted along Highway 101,
SE Marlin, SE Ensign Drive, SE Discovery Lane, and SE Dolphin Avenues and shall
comply with the above noted sections as well as Chapter 16.132:

21, Homestay Lpdgmfi subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.
22. Vacation Rental Dwelling subject to the Safety Regulations in Chapter
8.24.030.

34-23. Similar uses as those stated above.

B. For all other C"l zoned areas within the City limits ofWarrenton, the following uses
and their accessory uses are permitted and shall comply with the above noted sections:

24. Homestay Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.
25. Vacation Rental Dwelling subiect to the Safety Regulations in Chapter

8.24.030.

34726. Similar uses as those stated in this section, {retam ordmance references)

16.44.020 Permitted Use
A. Residential.

6. Homestay Lodging subject to the standards in Chapter 8.24.
^H. Similar uses as those listed In this section.

16.44.030 Conditional Uses.
H. Vacation Rental Dwelling subject to the Safety Regulations in Chapter
8.24.030.

HrL Similar uses as those listed in this section, (retam ordinance references}

16.56.030 Conditional Uses.
M. Vacation Rental Dwelling subject to the Safety Regulations in Chapter

8.24.030.

NrN. Similar uses as those listed in this section.

Section 3. Amend Warrenton Municipal Code Division 3, Design Standards, Chapter 16.180

Accessory Structure, Accessory Dwelling, Garage, and Carport Design Standards, Section

16.180.040 to read as follows:

[new language; deleted language}

An accessory dwelling is a small, secondary housing unit located on a legal lot with an
established single-family residence. Accessory dwellings are typically the size of a studio
apartment. The additional unit can be a detached cottage, a unit attached to a garage, or in a
portion of an existing house. Accessory dwellings provide cost-effective and independent living
spaces for family members, such as in-laws, retired parents, etc. Accessory dwellings can also



provide semi-independent living spaces for physically or mentally disabled family members
requiring partial supervision or assistance with activities of daily living. Accessory dwellings arc
never suited for rental dwellings and use of an accessory dwelling as a rental or income
producing unit is strictly prohibited and io subject to enforcement and penalties as preRcribed by
th4s-Ge^7 Accessory dweiUn^s inay be rented long term as a &erm|lled use. Accessory dwellings
may be rented as part of a permitted Homcstay Lodging use so long as the main structure of the
property is owner-occupied. The housing density standard of residential zones does not apply to
accessory dwellings, due to the small size and low occupancy level of the use. The following
standards are intended to control the size and number of accessory dwellings on individual lots,

so as to promote compatibility with adjacent land uses. Accessory structures shall comply with
the following standards:

C. Rental Unit Prohibited. Acccosory dwellings are never appropriate for use as a
rental unit or other income producing unit. Accessory dwellings may be rented long term
as a permitted use. Accessory dwellings may be rented as part of a permitted Homestay
Lodging use so long as the main structure of the property is owner-occupled. Accessory
dwellings shall not be used as servants quarters or as lodging (temporary or permanent)
for housekeepers, gardeners, etc. Use of an accessory dwelling for purposes other than
what is expressly permitted in this section is strictly prohibited and shall be subject to the
enforcement and penalty provisions of Chapter 16.16.

Section 4. This_0rdinance shall take full force and effect 30 days upon its adoption by the

Comrmssion of the City ofWan-enton.

First Reading: April 27, 2021

Second Reading: May 11,2021

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon this May 11,2021.

Approved

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

Anest

Dawne Shaw, City Recorder



Ordinance 1250

Introduced by All Commissioners

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WARRENTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8, HEALTH
AND SAFETY, CHAPTER 24 HOMESTAY LODGING SAFETY STANDARDS

WHEREAS) the City Commission finds it appropriate to amend the Warrenton Municipal Code

to update Safety Standard for Homestay Lodging and Vacation Rentals to meet the City's needs;

and

WHEREAS, the City ofWarrenton is best served by land use decisions that mitigate detrimental

impacts to surrounding properly owners; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission conducted a public hearing on this amendment on April 27,

2021, to receive public testimony and to consider the Planning Commission's recommendation;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City ofWan-enton ordains as follows:

Section 1. Amend Warrenton Municipal Code Section 8.24.030, to read as follows:

[new language; deleted language]

8.24.030 Safety regulations.

12. Provide one off-street parking space per guest bedroom. The approved off-street

parking space must remain available for renters. A parking diagram of the approved
parking spaces must be provided to renters and be available in a prominent location
wjthin the dwelling. Parking stalls shall meet the minimum standards of Section
16.128.030.

17. 24-hour Representative: The vacation rental owner and designated representative's

name, physical address, email address and phone number must be provided to the City
upon permit application and renewal. The information shall be kept current at all times.
The owner or representative shall be available by phone (24 hours a day, seven days a
week) to ensure a response to complaints regarding emergencies and the condition,

operation, or conduct of the occupants. A 24-hour representative must be able to.

physically respond to the vacation rental site within 30 minutes, and if requested they
must respond. If there is a change in the designated representative the property owner

must submit to the City the name of the new representative.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take full force and effect 30 days upon its adoption by the

Commission of the City ofWarrenton.



First Reading: April 27,2021

Second Reading: May 11, 2021

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrcnfon, Oregon this May 11,2021.

Approved

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

Attest

Dawne Shaw, City Recorder



AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TO: The Warrenton City Commission

FROM: Dawne Shaw, City Recorder

DATE: May 11, 2021

SUBJ: Amendment to Warrenton Municipal Code - Marijuana Businesses in

General Commercial (C-1) and General Industrial (1-1) to Conditional Uses

as Opposed to Permitted Uses; Ordinance 1249

SUMMARY

At its April 27, 2021 meeting, the City Commission held a public hearing on the

amendments to the Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC), Title 16 Devefopment Code

Division 2. The amendment moves medical marijuana dispensaries and recreational

marijuana retail outlets in General Commercial (C-1) from Permitted Use to

Conditional Use. The amendment also moves recreational marijuana production,

recreational marijuana processing or recreational marijuana wholesale activities in

General Industrial (1-1) from Permitted Use to Conditional Use (Ordinance No.

1249). The development standards maintain the location limitations to the east side

of Hwy 101, as outlined in 16.60.040. The first reading of the ordinance'was

conducted after the public hearing and is presented today for its second reading

and adoption.

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION

"I move to conduct the second reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 1249, an

Ordinance Amending WMC Title 16, Development Code, Division 2, Land Use

Districts, Chapter 16.40, General Commercial (C-1), and Chapter 16.60, General

Industrial (1-1)."

"I move to adopt Ordinance No.1249."

7.G



ALTERNATIVE

1) None recommended

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

Approved by City Manager:/ \ ^ c/ i,^ ^ C! * . '• fl 'y /''• ' ') .;>

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



Ordinance 1249

Introduced by All Commissioners

AN ORBINANCE AMENDING WARRENTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 16,
DEVELOPMENT CODE, DIVISION 2, LAND USE DISTRICTS, CHAPTER 16.40,

GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-l), AND CHAPTER 16.60, GENERAL
INDUSTRIAL (1-1)

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds it appropriate to amend the Development Code's

procedural requirements for Marijuana Businesses to assure that the land use decision making

process continues to meet the City's needs; and

WHEREAS, the City ofWarrenton is best served by land use decisions that mitigate detrimental

impacts to surrounding property owners; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission conducted a public hearing on this amendment on April 27,

2021, to receive publ 1c testnnony and to consider the Planning Commission s recommendation;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City ofWarrenton ordains as follows:

Section 1. Amend Wan'enton Municipal Code Section 16.40, to read as follows:

[new language; deleted language]

16.40.020 Permitted Uses.
4^—Medical marijuana diQponQarios and rccroational marijuana retail outlets liconQcd by
the State of Oregon and subject to Section 16.040.060.1.

16.40.030 Conditional Uses.
7. Medical marijuana dispensaries and recreational marijuana retail outlets licensed by
the State of Oregon and subject to Section 16.40.060.1.

Section 2. Amend Warrenton Municipal Code Section 16.60, to read as follows:

[new language; deleted language]

16.60.020 Permitted Uses.
T^—Recreational marijuana production, recreational marijuana processing, or
recreational marijuana wholesale activities, subject to Section 16.60.010.N.



16.60.030 Conditional Uses.
D. Recreational marijuana production, recreational marijuana processing, or

recreational mariiyaiMwho^ subject to Section 16.60.040.N.

16.60.040 Development Standards.
N. Recreational marijuana production, recreational marijuana processing, and

recreational marijuana wholesale activities shall be located only east of Highway 101 and
at least 1,000 feet from any public or private school, church, public park or child care
center, and shall operate exclusively as a single building occupant or with other licensed
medical marijuana dispensaries or recreational marijuana retail outlets. (Ord. 1196-A § 4,
2015)

Section 3. This_0rdinance shall take full force and effect 30 days upon its adoption by the

Commission of the City ofWarrenton.

First Reading: April 27, 2021

Second Reading: May 11, 2021

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton, Oregon this May 11, 2021.

Approved

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor

AHest

Dawne Shaw, City Recorder



Agenda Memorandum

To: The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Warrenton City Commission

From: April Clark, Finance Director

Date: May 11,2021
Regarding: Review of Reserve Funds

ORS 294.346
SUMMARY:
Oregon Revised Statute 294.346 requires that Reserve Funds be reviewed by the

governing body eveiy 10 years after establishment. This only requires that the
governing body have a discussion regarding the purpose of the fund and whether it
is still meeting its intended function and then decide if the fund should be
continued or abolished.

The Community Center Capital Reserve Fund and the Facilities Maintenance Fund

require review this year. These funds are active and serving the purpose for which

they were intended. These funds are considered Special Revenue Funds and
receive revenues mostly from transfers from the Community Center Fund and the
General Fund, respectively. The Community Center Capital Reserve Fund has
paid for approximately $12,000 in improvements over the last 10 years and the
Facilities Maintenance Fund has paid for approximately $560,000 in the same time

period.

Both funds were established on May 21, 2003 and re-established July 1, 2011 by
Resolution #2328 and #2329. The current balance in the Community Center

Capital Reserve Fund is $7,587. The current balance in the Facilities Maintenance

Fund 1s $93,026.

The Community Center Advisory Board is also In support of continuing the
Community Center Capital Reserve Fund in the hopes that a portion of future
fund-raising revenues will be transferred to that fund for major maintenance and

improvements.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends continuing both of these Funds.

7.H



Recommended Motion: I move to continue the Community Center Capital
Reserve Fund and the Facilities Maintenance Fund.

ALTERNATIVE:
Abolish one or both fluids. Staff would bring back a resolution.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Community Center Capital Reserve Fund will enable the City to accumulate

funds to purchase equipment and capital improvements for the Community Center.
The Facilities Maintenance Fund will enable the City to accumulate funds for the

maintainance and improvement of the Municipal Building, Head Start Building,
Park Facilities, Library, and Community Center without having to pull from
current year revenues.

Approved by City Manager: \ ; i,.r i. ( /' <; ', .1 y <. \'/~\ ,-^

All supporting documentation, i.e., maps, exhibits, etc., must be attached to this memorandum.



RBSOLVHON N0*2328

i Introduced by All Commissioners

ESTABUSHMBNT OF A ?S?V)S OTND

(RepeaUug Resolution No* 2054)

"Whex'eas, the Budget Committee adopted appropyMony for '(•he Community Center Capital Reserve
Pund beginning in the fiscal year 2003-2004 and the fund was established on May 21, 2003,

'WtaeaSi reserve funds must be revi&wed, favery 10 yoars by the .govemmg body to determine
wliette title fund is still meeting file objectives and purpose for which it was established,

NOW, THK?TOmS,BmrWSOLV? that the City Commission of the City ofWarrenton
hereby authorises the establisbment of to Comnnunity Center Capital n.escrve Fund as follows:

Section 1. This fhnd will be used to accumulate funds for maintenance and capital improvements of
the Wan'eiiton Commvnity Center.

Section 2. All revenues, whioU are mostly transfers ftom llio Community Center Pund^ are
committed, by the governing body»-foy -the pm'poRe of funding mdntenan.ce and capital improvements
of the Warrenton Community Center.

Section 3. This fand functions as a imvhgs account and tomsfers ar^ not nllowed from this fund
unless tho tod is dissolved. Upon dissolulioii, as acted upon by tho governing body, all residual
funds will be transteed to the Comnnmity Center Fund.

Section 4. This fund is a special revenue fund for financial yeporting purposes.

Section 5. This resolution repeals resolufton no, 2054.

Section 6, This resolution is effective on July 1,2011.

PASSED by the City Commission of the City ofWau-onton I'hisSGl day of^rv^v/ . 2011
T^

APPHOVBD by the Mayor of the City ofWarrenton thisoQT-day of-^brQ^V 2011

^//^x ^/,
Mayor ^

ATTEST:

(^S^nrf.*^. C^^^C^ry ^ ^ , ^
City Recorder

^1 I



R1ESOLUTIONN0.2329

Futyoduce^ I)y All Comini8Sioney$

ESTABLISBMBNT W A RESERVE WW
(Etepealtng Resolution No. 2056)

Whereas, the Budget Committee adopted appropriations fox* the FaoiUties Maintoxiance Fund in the '
fiscal yeEiy 2003^004 and the fund was tto established on May 21,2003. This fbnd was fonnerly
the Building and Replacement Reserve Fund, established on Juno 21» 1989 and then repealed on June
11, 2003.

Whereas^ reserve funds must be reviewed eveiiy 10 yem by the governmg body to determine whether
the fund is still meeting the objootim and purpose for which It w^s established,

NOW, TOXSREFOK1S, BE IT R1ESOLVEO that the City Commission of the City omrrenton
teeby authorizes the establishment of the PacilUies Maintenance IFund as follows:

Section 1. This fimd will be -used to ac&ymulate funds for maintenance and capital impmements of
file Municipal Building, H^ad Start Building, Park Paoilitles, Litey, and the CoinmimUy Center.

Section 2. All revenues? wNch are mostly transfers froixi the General Puud, are comniltted, by -the
governing body, for the purpose of funding mamtenanco and capital improvements of the Municipal
Building, Head Start: Building, Park Pacilifies, Library, and fee Commumty Center.

Section 3. This ftmd functions as a savings account and transfers a('e not allowed from Ihis fund
unless the fund is dissolved. Upon dissolution, as &oted 'upon by the governing body, all residxml
funds will be transferred to the General Fund.

Section 4. This fund is a special revenue fund for financial reporting purposes.

Section 5. Tiiis resolution repeals resolution no.2056.

Section €, This resolution is effective on July 1,2011.

PASSED by the City Commission of the City ofWmwnton thispET d^y of44rv)^rV * ^011

APPROVBD by the Mayor of the City ofWan-ehfon fhisc^fday of,-|J)rU^nV 201 1

^i.lL:^
^

Mayor /
ATTEST:

_a»,

City 3E<ecorder


	1 City Comission Agenda 5.11.21
	3.A City Commission Meeting Minutes 4.27.21
	3.B Monthly Finance Report - March 2021
	3.C Community Center Advisory Board Minutes - 2.25.21
	4. Proclamation - National Public Works Week - May 16 - 23, 2021
	7.A Consideration of the First Reading of Resolution No. 2600
	7.B Consideration of Bid Award - Big River Construction; SW Alder Reconstruction, 2nd -1st Street Project
	7.C Consideration of Second Reading of Resolution No. 2598; Spring Clean-up Costs
	7.D Consideration of Street Vacation No. 155; Resolution No. 2599 - Setting a Public Hearing Date
	7.E Consideration of Ordinance No. 1251; Street Vacation No. 147 Amendment
	7.F Consideration of Second Reading of Ordinance No.1248; Homestay Lodging and Vacation Rental Dwellings, and Ordinance No. 1250; Homestay Lodging Standards
	7.G Consideration of Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1249; Marijuana Businesses in General Commercial (C-1) and General Industrial (I-1) to Conditional Uses
	7.H Consideration of Community Center Capital Reserve Fund and Facilities Maintenance Fund Review



